
1

AGENDA
  

Contact Officer: Ron Schrieber, Democratic Services officer

Tel: 01235 422524

E-mail: ron.schrieber@southandvale.gov.uk

Date: Date Not Specified

Website: www.southoxon.gov.uk www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk

A MEETING OF THE

Joint Audit and Governance Committee

WILL BE HELD ON MONDAY 4 JULY 2016  AT 6.30 PM

MEETING ROOM 1, 135 EASTERN AVENUE, MILTON PARK, MILTON, 
OX14 4SB

Members of the Committee:

Charles Bailey
Kevin Bulmer (Co-Chair)
Dudley Hoddinott

Simon Howell (Co-Chair)
Chris Palmer
Henry Spencer

Alan Thompson
David Turner
John Walsh

Substitutes
David Dodds
Paul Harrison

Toby Newman
Richard Pullen

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  
These include large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For 
this or any other special requirements (such as access facilities) 
please contact the officer named on this agenda.  Please give as 
much notice as possible before the meeting.

Public Document Pack



2

1 Apologies  

2 Declarations of Interest  

To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests and other interests in 
respect of items on the agenda for this meeting.   

3 Minutes  (Pages 4 - 8)

To adopt and sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 21 March 
2016 (attached)

4 Review of complaints received during 2015/16  (Pages 9 - 53)

To consider the report of the Chief Executive (attached).

5 Impact of the corporate services outsourcing and 5 councils 
partnership on the internal control environment  (Pages 54 - 
113)

To consider the report of the Strategic Director (attached).

6 Agresso control environment  (Pages 114 - 121)

Paul Thorogood (Capita Local Government Services) Head of Service - Finance and 
Accountancy will be in attendance to explain what caused the control environment 
issues identified within the Agresso and accounts receivable control environment 
and what has been done to address them. A report is also attached.

7 Internal audit activity report - first quarter 2016/17  (Pages 122 - 
186)

To consider the report of the assurance manager (attached).

8 Internal audit management report - first quarter 2016/17  
(Pages 187 - 196)

To consider the report of the assurance manager (attached).

9 Internal audit annual report 2015/16  (Pages 197 - 208)

To consider the report of the assurance manager (attached).

10 External auditor's fees letters  (Pages 209 - 214)

To consider the external auditor’s letters (attached).

11 Treasury outturn 2015-16  (Pages 215 - 238)



3

To consider the report of the head of finance (attached).

12 Audit and governance work programme  (Pages 239 - 242)

To review the work programme (attached).

Exclusion of public including the press

To consider whether to exclude members of the press and public from the meeting 
for the following items of business under Part 1 of Schedule 12A Section 100A(4) of 
the Local Government Act 1972 and as amended by the Local Government (Access 
to Information) (Variation) Order 2006 on the grounds that: 

(i) it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 1, Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, and 

(ii) the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information.

13 Internal audit report - planning application  (Pages 243 - 257)

To consider the report of the assurance manager (attached).

MARGARET REED

Head of Legal and Democratic Services



1

Minutes

OF A MEETING OF THE

Joint Audit and Governance Committee

HELD AT 6.30 PM ON MONDAY 21 MARCH 2016

MEETING ROOM 1, 135 EASTERN AVENUE, MILTON PARK, MILTON, 
OX14 4SB

Present 

Kevin Bulmer, Dudley Hoddinott, Simon Howell, Chris Palmer, Henry Spencer, Alan 
Thompson and John Walsh

Officers 

Simon Hewings, William Jacobs, Fiona Kaluza, Nilesh Parmar, Adrianna Partridge, 
Margaret Reed, Ron Schrieber, Marcia Slater and Michelle Yankah

Also present: 

EY Auditor: Adam Swain

49 Apologies 

Charles Bailey tendered apologies.

50 Declarations of interest 

None.

51 Minutes 

RESOLVED: to adopt as correct records the minutes of the meetings held on 25 
January and 22 February 2016 and agree that the chairman signs them as such.

52 Review of code of conduct complaints procedures 

The committee considered a report on the arrangements for panels to determine 
code of conduct complaints referred by the monitoring officer and revised procedures 
for and information on dealing with such complaints.

The committee suggested an amendment to the flow chart attached to the code of 
conduct complaints fact sheet (Appendix 2 to the report) to make clear that any 
requests for confidentiality would be dealt with during the initial overview.

Public Document Pack

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



2

RESOLVED: to recommend the South and Vale Audit and Governance Sub-
Committees to:

(a) appoint (on an ongoing basis until May 2019) complaints panels comprising 
three members of the sub-committee or their appointed substitutes to 
determine code of conduct complaints referred by the monitoring officer;

(b) appoint each member or substitute of the sub-committee to serve on any 
complaints panel which is convened so as to include her or him in its 
membership;

(c) agree that wherever possible, a panel should comprise the chairman or vice-
chairman of the sub-committee plus two other members of the sub-committee, 
but that this should not affect the principle that any three members of the sub-
committee will constitute a properly appointed panel;

(d) authorise the head of legal and democratic services to convene panels to 
consider code of conduct complaints having regard to members’ availability 
and eligibility to take part; 

(e) adopt the revised procedures for dealing with code of conduct complaints set 
out in appendix one to the report with effect from 1 April 2016 (and subject to 
further review in 2019); 

(f) authorise the monitoring officer to make minor amendments to the procedures 
including minor or consequential amendments required for clarification, 
consistency and compliance with the councils’ style guide; and

(g) subject to the suggested amendment detailed above, note the revised 
document entitled Code of conduct complaints: fact sheet set out in appendix 
two to the report that will continue to provide information for members of the 
public when making code of conduct complaints.

53 Internal audit activity report - fourth quarter 2015/16 

The committee considered the assurance manager’s report on internal audit activity 
during the fourth quarter of 2015/16.

Twelve audits had been completed since the January committee meeting. Of these, 
six had received limited assurance and the key points and findings were presented to 
the committee.

The committee requested the internal auditors ensure that, in future, the wording of 
audit recommendations be sufficiently precise to ensure best practice will be 
adopted.

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



3

Joint neighbourhood planning grants

The committee requested that:

 with regard to post funding checks, confirmation that all the funding allocated 
was used on developing the neighbourhood plan should be provided by the 
town/parish council’s responsible financial officer. 

 officers confirm the numbers of grants awarded and their value in both 
2015/16 and 2014/15;

 spot checks of an approved funding application and one in progress be carried 
out;

 details of which town/parish councils had or had not confirmed that funding 
had been used on developing their neighbourhood plan be circulated to 
members for information; and

 the new procedure for neighbourhood planning grant applications, including 
following the approval of area designations/decision statements, be circulated 
to members for information.

South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils’ creditor 
payments 2015/16

In response to members’ questions the head of finance reported that:

 errors identified were mainly due to users (both council and capita staff) not 
following the correct procedures rather than problems with the Agresso 
financial system;

 compulsory training sessions had been introduced for all Agresso system 
users; and

 more sample checking would be carried out once staff were fully trained to 
determine the extent of duplicate payments.

Joint payroll 2015/16

In response to members’ questions the HR business support manager reported that:

 it was intended to reconcile the establishment list and the payroll system on a 
monthly basis;

 whilst the normal process was to obtain two references for all new starters 
there were instances where the recruitment manager chose to proceed with 
the appointment with just one reference, for example, on the grounds of 
urgency.

 as part of the corporate services contract, Capita would be responsible for 
both HR and payroll from 1 August.

RESOLVED: to 

(a) note the internal audit activity report for the fourth quarter of 2015/16; 

(b) request that Capita’s contract manager attend the next committee meeting to 
explain what has caused the control environment issues identified within 
recent audit reports and elsewhere, and what has been done to address 
these; and 

Page 6

Agenda Item 3



4

(c) request that the project  manager for the outsourcing project or his/her 
representative attend the next committee meeting to report on how the 
committee can gain assurance of the control environment following the 
outsourcing of corporate services functions.

54 Internal audit management report - fourth quarter 2015/16 

The committee considered the assurance manager’s management report on internal 
audit for the fourth quarter of 2015/16.

With regard to the remaining 2015/16 planned audit work set out at appendix 2 to the 
report, the committee expressed concern at the delay in receiving management 
responses to the project management audit.

RESOLVED: to

(a) note the internal audit management report for the fourth quarter of 2015/16; 
and

(b) request that the audit report on project management be submitted to the next 
meeting. 

55 Internal Audit Plan 2016/17 

The committee considered the assurance manager’s report which explained the 
process for setting the internal audit plan and for calculating the resources available 
and which set out the proposed internal audit plan for 2016/17.

RESOLVED: to approve the internal audit annual plan 2016/17.

56 Vale of White Horse and South Oxfordshire District Councils' 
Audit Plan 2015/16 

The committee considered Ernst & Young’s audit plan 2015/16 which set out how 
they intended to carry out their responsibilities as the councils’ external auditor.

No significant financial statement risks had been identified other than the general risk 
of management override. In addition, the corporate services contract had been 
identified as a significant value for money risk.

RESOLVED: to note the Vale of White Horse and South Oxfordshire District 
Councils’ audit plan 2015/16.

57 Local government audit committee briefing 

The committee considered the external auditor’s briefing document and agreed that 
future briefings should be circulated to members for information.

RESOLVED: to note the local government audit committee briefing.

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



5

58 Statement of accounts 2015/16 

The committee considered a report on progress being made towards the completion 
of the 2015/16 statement of accounts and which presented revised statements of 
accounting policies for approval.

The committee was informed that there were two key changes to the financial 
statements for 2015/16. These were:

 the adoption of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement into the Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16 (“the Code”), and

 the replacement of the explanatory foreword to the accounts by a narrative 
statement, as required by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.

The committee noted the work being undertaken to achieve a faster closedown of the 
accounts.

RESOLVED: to

(a) note progress on completing the 2015/16 statement of accounts; and

(b) approve the revised statements of accounting policies as shown in Appendix 1 
(South Oxfordshire District Council) and Appendix 2 (Vale of White Horse 
District Council).

59 Audit and governance work programme 

The committee reviewed and noted its work programme which set out matters 
scheduled for consideration at future meetings.

The committee was informed that the 2015/16 treasury management outturn report, 
which had been scheduled for the September meeting, would now be submitted to 
the committee in July.

The meeting closed at 8.05 pm

Chairman Date

Page 8

Agenda Item 3



Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee

Report of: Chief Executive
Author: Kim Ashford
Contact: Kim Ashford
Telephone:  01235 422099
Textphone: 18001 01235 540303
E-mail: kim.ashford@southandvale.gov.uk

South Cabinet member:  John Cotton
Tel: 01835 408105
E-mail:  leader@southoxon.gov.uk

To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee
DATE: 04 July 2016

Vale Cabinet member: Matthew Barber
Tel: 07816 481452
E-mail:  councillor@matthewbarber.co.uk

Review of complaints received during 
2015/16

Purpose of report

1. The purpose of this report is to provide the committee with information and 
statistics about complaints received during 2015/16.

Corporate objectives 

2. By analysing complaints we can identify any trends and introduce service 
improvements, where necessary, thereby supporting the corporate objective to put 
residents at the heart of service delivery and seek to provide an excellent customer 
experience.

3. Due to the fact that this annual review been brought forward to this meeting in 
order to reduce the number of items on the September agenda, the official annual 
complaints report from the LGO will not be available for inclusion at this meeting. 
This report will be circulated once received, towards the end of July.

CONFIDENTIAL

Page 9

Agenda Item 4

mailto:leader@southoxon.gov.uk


Background

THE COMPLAINTS PROCEDURE

4. The main benefits of having a council-wide procedure for dealing with complaints 
are that:

 members of the public know what to do if they have a complaint and how we 
will deal with it

 staff can be confident about what to do when they get a complaint

 everyone is treated fairly and equally

 by analysing complaints we can improve our services

5. A good complaints procedure gives us the opportunity to show that we want to be 
open and honest, that we care about providing a good service and that we value 
feedback on problems that need attention. 

Please note that due to the departure of Anna Robinson and the secondment of 
Steve Bishop, the process for managing stage 1 and stage 2 complaints has been 
reviewed. Pending the arrival of the new Chief Executive, interim arrangements are 
as follows:

Stage 1 complaints are dealt with by service managers or heads of service 
within the relevant service, and stage 2 complaints are dealt with by an 
independent head of service or the chief executive.

Stage one

The head of service or service manager will respond (or arrange for a member of 
their team to respond on their behalf) within 20 calendar days of receipt of the 
complaint. All complaints are logged on the complaints database, which generates 
daily automatic reminder emails from three calendar days prior to the target date 
and continues to do so until details of the response have been entered. 

Stage two

An independent head of service or the chief executive will respond within 20 
calendar days of receipt of the request to escalate the complaint to stage two. 
Again, the complaints database generates daily automatic reminder emails from 
three calendar days prior to the target date.

We advise the relevant ward member(s) when we receive, and respond to, 
complaints at both stages.

If, having followed our complaints procedure, the complainant remains dissatisfied, 
s/he has the right to ask the Local Government Ombudsman (LGO) to investigate 
their complaint.  

 

Page 10

Agenda Item 4



 COMPLAINTS STATISTICS

5. Complaint statistics are reported in the March and September Board Reports each 
year, which is available to councillors via a web link in In Focus.  The Board Report 
is also available to the public on our website.    

6. Appendix One contains statistics and details relating to the number of complaints 
received and our performance against target for issuing responses. The number of 
complaints in South is broadly in line with the previous 2 years, while those in Vale 
have increased with roughly 40% relating to planning. Planning complaints are less 
likely to be resolved at stage 1.

LGO investigations

7. During 2015/16 the LGO received 13 complaints against South compared with 24 
in 2014/15, and 7 against Vale compared with 15 in 2014/15. 

9. The number of complaints against both South and Vale has decreased in 2015/16. 

10.Not all LGO enquiries require us to make a formal response.  This can be for a 
number of reasons including: 

 the LGO can reach a decision from seeing copies of the responses sent at the 
different stages of our complaints procedure

 the complaint is outside the LGO’s jurisdiction and a response from us is 
therefore unnecessary

 the complainant has an alternative right of appeal and the LGO is therefore 
unable to investigate the complaint

11.South achieved 77% of target for response times for LGO complaints, while Vale 
achieved 43%. While these response times are below target, this is because of 
some very difficult outlying cases which needed to be investigated over a 
prolonged period. The LGO was aware of the difficulties with these cases and 
where the delay was on the side of the Council, the LGO was kept informed of 
progress.

12.Examples of LGO complaints are attached for information, at appendix 2 (South) 
and appendix 3 (Vale).

Financial Implications

15.There are no financial implications arising directly from this report.

Legal Implications

16.There are no legal implications arising from this report.

Risks

17.Having a formal complaints procedure allows us to analyse complaints and 
improve services where necessary. It also gives members of the public clarity 
about what to do if they have a complaint, and how we will deal with it.  If we did 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



not have a formal procedure, we would be unable to carry out such analysis, with 
the risk that we would fail to make service improvements.  

Other implications

18.There are no human resources, sustainability, equality or diversity implications 
arising directly from this report.

Conclusion 

19.This report sets out the statistical data for complaints received during 2015/16.

Background papers

20.None

 

Page 12

Agenda Item 4



Appendix One

Complaints statistics

1. The following charts show the number of complaints received at each council, at each stage of the process, and compares them to 
numbers received in the previous three years.

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 4



P
age 14

A
genda Item

 4



2. The following charts show the number of complaints received for each service at each stage of the complaints procedure.

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 4



P
age 16

A
genda Item

 4



3. The total number of complaints received is fairly consistent with the number received last year. For South, there is virtually no 
change in the number of stage 1 complaints, and there has been a decrease in stage 2 and LGO complaints: in 2014/15 there 
were 17 stage 2 complaints and 24 LGO complaints, as opposed to 13 stage 2 complaints and 13 LGO complaints in 2015/16.  
For Vale, there has been an increase in stage 1 and stage 2 complaints, and a decrease in LGO complaints: in 2014/15 there 
were 57 stage 1 complaints, 15 stage 2 complaints and 15 LGO complaints, whereas in 2015/16 there were 73 stage 1 
complaints, 22 stage 2 complaints and 7 LGO complaints.

4. As in 2014/15, Finance and Planning received the highest number of complaints across both councils.  

South
In 2014/15, Planning received 16 stage 1 complaints, 8 stage 2 complaints and 7 LGO complaints; and in 2015/16, Planning 
received 19 stage 1 complaints, 6 stage 2 complaints and 8 LGO complaints. In 2014/15, Finance received 25 stage 1 complaints, 
2 stage 2 complaints and 2 LGO complaints; and in 2015/16, Finance received 22 stage 1 complaints, 2 stage 2 complaints and 3 
LGO complaints.

Vale
In 2014/15, Planning received 22 stage 1 complaints, 9 stage 2 complaints and 6 LGO complaints; and in 2015/16, Planning 
received 30 stage 1 complaints, 13 stage 2 complaints and 4 LGO complaints. In 2014/15, Finance received 27 stage 1 
complaints, 5 stage 2 complaints and 5 LGO complaints; and in 2015/16, Finance received 18 stage 1 complaints, 4 stage 2 
complaints and 2 LGO complaints.

Planning
Due to the number and type of complaints received, mainly concerning issues relating to communication response times, an 
internal audit is currently in progress to investigate and address these issues.

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 4



5. The following charts show our performance against target in responding to complaints.

P
age 18

A
genda Item

 4



P
age 19

A
genda Item

 4



P
age 20

A
genda Item

 4



6. The percentage of complaints at stages 1 and 2 that were dealt with within target at South is fairly consistent when compared 
with 2014/15 percentages, with a decrease in the number of on-target LGO complaints since last year. The percentage dealt 
within within target at Vale has increased for stage 1, but had decreased for stage 2 and LGO complaints. 

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 4



Appendix Two

LGO decisions – 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 – South

1. LGO decision – not pursued: complaint had not been through the council’s     
formal complaints procedure.
Decision date – 06 June 2015
Complaint

Non receipt of postal vote. 

LGO’s conclusion

The complaint could not be pursued as the complainant had not been through the 
council’s own formal complaints process.

2. LGO decision – not upheld:  no further action
Decision date – 24 August 2015
LGO main subject area – Planning
Complaint

The complainant, Mr Z, complained about the way the Council considered taking 
enforcement action against him. In particular, he complained about: 

• excessive delay by the Council in deciding whether to take enforcement action;

• disclosure to third parties of the Council’s intention to prosecute him for alleged 
breaches of planning permission; and

• soliciting information from third parties to allow it to mount a prosecution against him.

Background – Ombudsman’s summary

Mr Z owns and runs an airfield in the Council’s area. The Council originally granted a 
CLUED for use of an identified lawful grass strip as a runway for recreational flying by 
private aircraft only in 2001. Since then, there has been a gradual intensification of 
activities on the airfield, and the range of activities has also expanded from microlights 
to fixed wing aircraft, hot air balloon flights and parachuting. 
Mr Z sought to regularise some of these activities through applications for further 
CLEUDs in 2009, 2010, 2011, and 2014. The Council has approved some of 
these applications and refused others. Mr Z had a right of appeal to the Planning 
Inspectorate against the Council’s decision to refuse the CLEUD applications. 

In 2010 the Council issued an enforcement notice requiring Mr Z to stop recreational 
flying on any part of the site except the lawful strip and to remove aircraft and 
associated equipment. Mr Z made a further CLUED application for the use of a grass 
main runway, a cross-wind runway, taxiways and apron for landings, take-offs, 
manoeuvring and parking of aircraft. The Council refused the application. The Planning 
Inspectorate refused Mr Z’s subsequent appeal. 

Page 22

Agenda Item 4



The Council began an investigation in March 2012 into further alleged breaches of 
planning control at the airfield after complaints from a neighbour affected by aircraft 
noise. Initially, the investigation covered the installation of portakabins and a windsock 
mast on part of the site and a brown directional sign for the airfield on the road outside. 
Its investigation also covered the alleged use of the grass landing strip and other areas 
by a commercial parachuting school. This was said to result in noisy aircraft taking off 
and landing several times a day usually at weekends. As the original CLEUD allowed 
only recreational flying, any commercial flying could be a breach of planning control.

During its investigation the Council’s records show its officers have made at least five 
site visits to witness activities or to gather other information.

In May 2013, the Council sent a letter to residents who had either complained about 
activities on the airfield, or who had expressed an interest to the Council about what 
was happening on the airfield. The letter says the Council was looking into complaints 
about alleged breaches of planning control. It does not say that such breaches have 
happened. It asks if residents think breaches of planning control have happened and for 
records of the frequency, type and location of flights and other activities on the airfield. It 
says these records could be used in any prosecution if the Council finds there has been 
a breach of planning control. It does not say the Council is mounting a prosecution.

In July 2013, the investigation expanded to cover the alleged unauthorised change of 
use from land used for agriculture and recreational flying of private aircraft only to 
‘mixed use of agriculture and commercial airfield’. This included flying of private 
recreational aircraft, flying aircraft for commercial purposes, aircraft sales, maintenance 
and servicing of aircraft, test flying, flying experiences, trial flights and a flying school. In 
addition, the Council also investigated the use of additional runways in breach of an 
existing enforcement notice and the erection of an unauthorised viewing platform.

In December 2013, the Council issued a Planning Contravention Notice (PCN) to Mr Z 
setting out a series of detailed questions about activities on the airfield in connection to 
the unauthorised change of use and the erection of the viewing platform. The questions 
included details of the dates certain activities started on the airfield, and details of the 
numbers and types of flights on the airfield in the preceding ten years as recorded in the 
airfield’s flight logs. 

The PCN gave Mr Z 21 days to supply the information it requested. The Council 
reissued the PCN in February 2014 when Mr Z said the first PCN had been issued to 
the wrong person.

Mr Z supplied some of the information requested later in February 2014, but said it was 
too onerous for him to supply details of the flight logs for all ten years. The Council 
reduced its request to the flight logs for only three years, and also offered to come to the 
airfield to inspect these logs in person. Council officers made a site visit to inspect the 
logs in April 2014. 

Mr Z also said there had been commercial activities on the airfield for more than ten 
years although the parachute school using the airfield had only been operating for about 
four years. He said the viewing platform had also been essentially complete for over 
four years and was also immune to enforcement action.

Page 23

Agenda Item 4



The Council has subsequently analysed a large amount of information provided in the 
flight logs and by Mr Z. It has also taken its own legal advice. The Council’s 
investigation was also hampered when its offices, including the planning department, 
burned down in January 2015. 

In its response to my draft findings, the Council says it has now closed its enforcement 
case and intends to take no further action.

LGO’s conclusion

The LGO did not consider Mr Z suffered injustice as a result of the Council’s 
investigation into alleged breaches of planning control on his airfield. Mr Z had a remedy 
for the delay as he could have submitted a formal planning application or an application 
for a certificate of lawful use or development if he believed he had evidence the 
breaches were immune from enforcement action. He would also have had a right of 
appeal to the Planning Inspector if the Council had refused these applications. The LGO 
also did not consider the Council was wrong to ask residents potentially affected by the 
activities on the airfield for information or evidence about those activities. 
The LGO’s final decision was to discontinue the investigation and close the complaint. 

3. LGO decision – closed after initial enquiries: out of jurisdiction
Decision date – 19 May 2015
LGO main subject area – Legal and Democratic services
Complaint

The complainant, Mrs X, said she did not receive her postal vote and so could not vote 
at the General Election.

Background – Ombudsman’s summary

Mrs X is a member of the UK Armed Forces and is serving abroad. She applied to the 
Council for a postal vote and the Council granted this.
For the General Election her postal voting pack did not arrive. She says this is not the 
fault of the post as the British Forces Post Office prioritises postal votes.
Mrs X contacted the Council who offered her a proxy vote. Mrs X did not know anyone 
in the Council’s area who could vote for her, and could not return the form to the Council 
offices, as she was abroad. As a result she lost her right to vote. 

LGO’s conclusion

Although elections appear to be run by local authorities in law they are run by the 
Returning Officer for each area. The Returning Officer acts in their own personal 
capacity, not as an officer of the Council. So this is not an administrative function of the 
Council and not a complaint the Ombudsman can investigate.  

Page 24

Agenda Item 4



4. LGO decision – closed after initial enquiries: no further action
Decision date – 30 June 2015
LGO main subject area – Economy, Leisure and Property
Complaint

The complainant, Mr B, complained the Council failed to take the action it said it would 
take to remove long-stay boats from a river Thames mooring area.

Mr B says by allowing people to overstay and live aboard the Council has detrimentally 
affected visiting boaters for whom the facility was created. He says as the area has no 
services, people using it long term have discharged raw sewage into the river. Mr B 
wants the Council to enforce its planning restrictions.

Background – Ombudsman’s summary

When the Council granted planning permission for the moorings it was for temporary 
use only.

In October 2014 Mr B complained to the Council about the long term use of the 
moorings. In response to his complaint the Council said it would take action. Mr B 
complains the Council failed to take that action and to reply to his communications after 
he had raised a formal complaint in February 2015. 

In its response to Mr B’s complaint the Council explained it had received legal advice 
after it had served notices of seeking possession. It then concluded that taking action in 
the courts would not provide a satisfactory long term solution. Its preference is to treat 
the issue of winter overstays as part of a more comprehensive policy. It said it would 
collect nightly fees over the summer season which would ensure boats moved on after 
a couple of days. 

There is no evidence of fault in the way the Council reached its decision not to go to 
court. The Council has considered all the relevant matters. Mr B says the Council made 
an error of fact about another mooring site nearby but this is not an issue which had any 
significant influence on the Council’s decision not to go to court.

The Council upheld Mr B’s complaint that it told him it would take action to remove the 
long-stay boats but failed to do this. It apologised for misleading him. While the Council 
was at fault in this respect, this is not something that has, of itself, caused significant 
enough injustice to Mr B to justify the Ombudsman’s involvement.

LGO’s conclusion

The Ombudsman would not investigate Mr B’s complaint because there was no 
evidence of fault in the way the Council reached its decision not to go to court to remove 
long-stay boats. Mr B had not suffered significant enough injustice from the Council 
misleading him.

Page 25

Agenda Item 4



5. LGO decision – closed after initial enquiries: no jurisdiction
Decision date – 30 September 2015
LGO main subject area – Planning
Complaint

The complainant, Mr D, complained on behalf of his mother, Mrs E.  Mr D complained 
the Council failed to take action against unlawful use of a piece of land close to Mrs E’s 
home. 

Background – Ombudsman’s summary

In April 2014 Mr D reported an alleged breach of planning to the Council. The allegation 
was about the neighbouring town Council’s use of a piece of land close to Mrs E‘s 
home. 

Mr D said the reported breach impacted on Mrs E’s enjoyment of her home because the 
town Council were using the area for the composting of green waste. Mr D said this was 
not in accordance with the permission granted in 2013, which set out the conditions of 
use for the land. He wanted the Council to take action to cease the ongoing unlawful 
use of the land. 

In May 2014 officers from the Council’s enforcement team contacted the town Council 
to arrange a meeting with the owners of the land to discuss the reported breach of 
planning. The meeting went ahead on 14 May 2014. 

During the initial site visit the Council discovered some issues with the access. The 
town Council agreed to carry out works to the access of the site within two weeks to 
make it compliant with the previously approved plans. The enforcement officer also 
considered an area of the site used for composting. The officer took photographs of the 
composting and said he would need to consider whether this required planning 
permission. 

The enforcement officer then began his investigations. He found that none of the 
previous planning applications had included permission for green waste or the storage 
of equipment. The officer arranged a meeting with an employee of the town Council to 
discuss the matters.

The meeting took place on 29 September 2014. Shortly after the meeting the 
enforcement officer advised the town Council of the need to submit planning 
applications for landscaping and tree protection. He also said the Council needed an 
application for the storage of green waste, but this would need to be submitted to the 
county Council which has jurisdiction for matters relating to storage of green waste. The 
Council allowed 28 days for submission of the application. 

In November the town Council put in applications relating to the landscaping and tree 
protection. The Council later approved these in January 2015. 

The Council then contacted the county Council to check the status of the application for 
green waste storage. Officers from the county Council confirmed the town Council had 
contacted them to discuss its application for permission to store green waste.  

The town Council filed signed statements to assert that the land has been used for the 

Page 26

Agenda Item 4



maintenance of equipment and horticultural materials for more than ten years and thus 
exempt from enforcement action.

In January 2015 a meeting took place between the town Council, a local MP and 
residents from the area. After this meeting the land owner confirmed he had not agreed 
to the storage of equipment. He said he had only ever authorised the storage of grass 
cuttings and other green waste.

After considering the information available, including the recent statement from the land 
owner, the Council decided that the site had not been used in this way for the length of 
time reported, and therefore it was subject to planning permission. Officers contacted 
the town Council seeking a formal application to regularise the use of the land. 

On 1 May 2015 the town Council put in an application for a certificate of lawfulness to 
formalise the use of land as a ‘parks service storage area’. The Council refused the 
application later that month.  

LGO’s conclusion

The LGO’s investigation found no evidence of fault by the Council and did not uphold 
the complaint.

The LGO did not investigate Mr D’s concerns about the actions of the town Council, and 
in particular the validity of the statutory declarations made by officers of the town 
Council. This is because the jurisdiction of the Ombudsman extended to, among other 
authorities, district, borough, city and county councils. It did not extend to parish or town 
councils.  

6. LGO decision – not pursued: complaint had not been through the council’s     
formal complaints procedure.
Decision date – 21 July 2015
Complaint

The complainant alleged that their request to be re-housed on medical grounds has 
been ignored repeatedly. 

LGO’s conclusion

The complaint could not be pursued as the complainant had not been through the 
council’s own formal complaints process.

7. LGO decision – closed after initial enquiries: out of jurisdiction
Decision date – 13 August 2015
LGO main subject area – Planning
Complaint

The complainant, Mr A, complained about a decision made by the Council in 1996 to 
grant planning permission for his house. He said it did not take due care when granting 
consent in assessing the risk of flooding.

Page 27

Agenda Item 4



Background – Ombudsman’s summary

Mr lives in a house which he purchased in 1998. He says that planning consent was 
given for his house in 1996. He believes that at the time consent was granted the 
Council did not act with due care in assessing the potential risk from flooding.

When Mr A bought his property it was for him and his advisers to carry out their own 
assessment of the risk of flooding. I do not consider this was the Council’s duty alone.

Mr A’s property flooded in 2008 and again in 2014. So it is clear that in 2008 he was 
aware of the problem. 

The law requires that a complaint should be made to the Ombudsman within twelve 
months of the complainant becoming aware of the matters complained of.

It was open to Mr A to complain to the Council at the time and to the Ombudsman if not 
satisfied by its response. But he did not complain to the Ombudsman until July 2015. By 
then it was too late to complain.

I have discretion to dis-apply this rule. I would not do so unless there were clear 
reasons to explain why a complaint was not made earlier, and I was confident there was 
a realistic prospect of reaching a sound, fair and meaningful decision. 

LGO’s conclusion

The LGO considered whether to exercise discretion to investigate the complaint. An 
investigation would have to consider decisions which were taken in 1996. The LGO did 
not consider that there was a prospect of making a sound, evidence based and robust 
decision about matters which took place so long ago and saw no good reason to accept 
this as a late complaint. The Ombudsman would not investigate this complaint about a 
planning matter as it was outside jurisdiction because it was not made in time.

8. LGO decision – not upheld: no further action
Decision date – 22 March 2016
LGO main subject area – Planning
Complaint

The complainant, Mr X, complained there was fault in the way the Council dealt with two 
planning applications concerning a neighbouring property. Specifically, Mr X complained 
the planning officer misled the local parish council with the intention of leading it to 
withdraw its objection to the first application, which would otherwise have been 
considered by the Council’s planning committee. 

Background – Ombudsman’s summary

A neighbour to Mr X’s property made a planning application to extend a cottage and 
build another property in the garden. Mr X and others objected to the proposed 
development. The Council approved the application. The neighbour then made a 
second application to vary a condition of the permission to add roof-lights and flat-
roofed dormer windows in the new property. The Council’s planning committee refused 
the second application and the neighbour appealed to the planning inspectorate. The 

Page 28

Agenda Item 4



planning inspector dismissed the appeal as the Council had meanwhile granted 
permission after a third application that substituted pitched roofs on the dormer 
windows.

Mr X complained to the Council. The Council considered five points of complaint and a 
question. It wrote a final response to Mr X on 2 April 2015. I deal with the five 
complaints in turn.

The Council supplied a webcast of the planning committee meeting that considered the 
second application. I have viewed this webcast. A councillor showed concerns about the 
attitude of the neighbour. This was because he had submitted the second application in 
order to add roof-lights and dormer windows shortly after the decision on the first 
application. Another stated that something must have gone on behind the scenes.

Councillors were entitled to refuse the application, which they did. However, the 
opinions or suspicions of councillors are not the same thing as evidence of fault, despite 
Mr X’s view to the contrary. The correspondence I have seen shows no evidence of 
fault by the Council in the way the planning officer conducted the planning process.

Given the planning committee rejected the second application, there is an argument that 
it would also have rejected the first had it considered it. This is not certain. But what is 
more important is whether the planning committee should have had the opportunity to 
consider the first application. If not, speculating on the planning committee’s likely 
decision would be irrelevant.

The Council’s scheme of delegation sets out the grounds on which an application must 
be considered by the planning committee rather than a planning officer. One of these is 
an objection by the relevant parish council. The local parish council withdrew its 
objection to the application. I deal with Mr X’s allegation about this below, but once the 
parish council withdrew the objection, the planning officer could decide the application 
herself.

The Town and Country Planning Act 1990 sets out a range of relevant planning matters 
planning authorities must consider. However, it allows planning authorities to decide 
what weight to give to those matters. The Ombudsman cannot therefore criticise the 
weight a planning authority gives to relevant matters, only the failure to do so.

Although Mr X takes the view the planning officer did not consider valid objections, her 
report shows she considered relevant planning matters.  These included the size and 
scale of the new development and its suitability in the streetscape in an historic 
environment. I do not therefore find the Council at fault here.

I have read the correspondence between the planning officer and the parish council. 
The parish council emailed the planning officer to say it objected to the first application 
because the development had roof-lights in the new building. The planning officer 
confirmed the developer had sent in amended plans that removed the roof-lights. The 
planning officer then asked the parish council if it still wished to object and the parish 
council confirmed it did not. Although the developer later applied again to vary the 
condition, this does not mean the planning officer misled the parish council during the 
first application. The Council approved the first application on the basis there were no 

Page 29

Agenda Item 4



roof-lights, which was the point on which the parish council had objected. I do not 
therefore find it at fault. 

Mr X complained of this in his original complaint. The Council said the inaccuracies 
were addressed in letters and emails from the developer. 

Documents on the Council’s website from the first application show the architect 
apologised to the Council in an email that some drawings were inaccurate and 
submitted revised drawings. I have seen no evidence to suggest whether there were 
any other inaccuracies. Mr X has not stated whether the planning officer relied on any 
specific inaccuracy in writing her report on the first application. I do not therefore find the 
Council failed to challenge inaccurate statements. 

Mr X complained a senior planning officer suggested in a letter the Council had no duty 
to protect listed buildings even when specific risks were identified. I have read the letter. 
It stated the Council had considered such concerns. I do not therefore find the Council 
at fault. 

 LGO’s conclusion

The LGO did not uphold the complaint as the Council acted without fault.

9. LGO decision – closed after initial enquiries: out of jurisdiction
Decision date – 21 December 2015
LGO main subject area – Planning
Complaint

Mr X complains that the Council failed to give him clear guidance on how to remedy a 
breach of planning control at his property. As a result he has incurred unnecessary 
costs in trying to remedy the breach. 

Background – Ombudsman’s summary

The Council’s policy is to give people who breach planning control the opportunity to 
remedy the breach before taking formal action. This may involve the Council negotiating 
a solution in line with its planning policies.  The Council’s policy is not to disclose the 
name of a person who reports a possible breach of planning control. 

A person can apply for a certificate of lawfulness if there has been a change of use to 
their property and that change of use has been continuous for 10 years or more. If the 
Council grants the certificate it means the change of use is lawful and it cannot take 
enforcement action. 

The Council started a planning enforcement investigation into Mr X’s property as it had 
concerns about a possible breach of planning control at his property. 

Officer A inspected Mr X’s property and noted he was storing materials inside and 
outside the property. He considered this amounted to a material change of use of the 
property which it did not have planning permission for.   Officer A also noted Mr X was 

Page 30

Agenda Item 4



breaching the conditions of the planning permission for his property by using the garage 
for storage and storing materials outside. 

Following the site visit officer A wrote to Mr X. He explained why he considered there 
was a breach of planning control.  He said he did not believe the Council would grant 
planning permission to regularise the breaches of planning control but Mr X should seek 
his own independent advice. He agreed to allow Mr X two months in which to tidy the 
site but said he was sceptical Mr X could avoid the need for enforcement action. He 
recommended Mr X sought commercial premises. 

Mr X sent an email to officer A setting out what action he intended to take.  Officer A 
replied and advised the measures set out by Mr X would go a long way to showing the 
business use of the property was ancillary to the residential use of the property. He also 
said he could not agree to Mr X using the garage as storage as that would breach the 
conditions of his planning permission. Office A said the only way round this would be for 
Mr X to apply to remove the condition of the planning permission. He also said the grant 
of a certificate of lawfulness was another option. This meant the condition could not be 
enforced on the basis it had been breached for a continuous period of 10 years. 

Two months later officer A contacted Mr X. The purpose of this was to arrange a further 
site visit to see if he had tidied up the site to the extent his business could be 
considered to be ancillary to the residential use of the property.

Mr X replied to say he had tidied the site and moved his business to a commercial unit.  
He agreed to a site visit. 

Officer A and officer B visited Mr X’s property. Officer A’s site visit notes record that 
improvements had been made but some rooms and the garage were still being used to 
store goods. The notes also record Mr X telling the officers the business use of the 
property had been ongoing for more than 10 years. 

Following the site visit officer A wrote to Mr X setting out the Council’s position. He said 
that he would leave the investigation open as Mr X was still in the process of moving to 
commercial premises and the business activity exceeded that which could be 
considered as ancillary to the residential use of the property. Officer A also 
recommended Mr X applied for a certificate of lawfulness and what evidence he would 
need to provide to do so. 

Mr X made a complaint to the Council as he considered officer A had failed to give clear 
guidance so he could prevent enforcement action. He also complained the Council was 
harassing him and the enforcement investigation was corrupt. 

The Council considered Mr X’s complaint though its two stage complaints process. The 
Council did not uphold his complaint at stage one so Mr X requested it be escalated to 
stage two. Officer B and officer C visited Mr X in response to this request. After the visit 
officer B wrote to Mr X to say she considered that there was a material change of use at 
his property which he did not have planning permission for. She set out a number of 
ways in which Mr X could remedy the breach of planning control. These options 
included a range of ways Mr X could reduce the business use of the property or apply 
for a certificate of lawfulness. 

Page 31

Agenda Item 4



Officer C responded to Mr X’s complaint.  He found that officer A had not given Mr X a 
clear action list for addressing the breach in the way officer B had. He did not uphold Mr 
X’s complaints of harassment and corruption.

LGO’s conclusion

The Council was at fault as it failed to give Mr X a clear list of action he needed to take 
to remedy a breach of planning control. The Council apologised to Mr X which was 
sufficient to remedy the injustice to him. Mr X complained that the Council’s 
enforcement investigation was corrupt. The LGO did not investigate this complaint as 
corruption is a criminal matter and not one which the Ombudsman can deal with. 

10. LGO decision – closed after initial enquiries: no further action
      Decision date – 18 September 2015
      LGO main subject area – Planning

Complaint

The complainant, Mr B, said the Council was wrong to approve his neighbour’s planning 
application to extend their property. Mr B said the extension is over development, 
against the covenants in the title deeds and would lead to a loss of light to his property.

Background – Ombudsman’s summary

The Council received a planning application from Mr B’s next door neighbour. The 
application is to build a single storey extension to the bungalow. 

Mr B objected to the application and said the extension would be overbearing and 
cause a loss of light to a window on the side of his property. Both Mr B and the parish 
council also objected on the grounds the street was built as sheltered housing for single 
and dual occupants over the age of 50. They were concerned the extension would 
substantially increase the footprint of the property and be out of keeping with the area. 

Council officers considered the planning application and decided to approve it. While Mr 
B disagrees with that decision, the Ombudsman can only criticise the Council if there 
was fault in the way the Council made its decision. 

Further investigation of the complaint is unlikely to find fault by the Council. This is 
because officers considered the impact of the proposed development on the local area 
and specifically on neighbours including Mr B. Officers decided there were no planning 
reasons to refuse the application and explained their reasoning in a delegated officer 
report. When considering the impact of the extension on Mr B’s amenity, officers noted 
it would lead to a loss of light to his bathroom window. But as this window is opaque and 
not serving a habitable room, officers decided the loss of light was not so severe as to 
warrant refusing the application. That is a decision officers are entitled to make and 
there are no reasons to criticise the way officers have made their decision. 

While Mr B says there are covenants on the property that prevent this type of 
development, that is not a material planning consideration the Council could take into 
account. Planning permission does not overrule a restrictive covenant. If Mr B believes 
his neighbour is in breach of the covenant by building the extension, he can take legal 
advice to establish whether he can take a private action against his neighbour.

Page 32

Agenda Item 4



LGO’s conclusion

The Ombudsman would not investigate this complaint because there was not enough 
evidence of fault by the Council.

11. LGO decision – report issued: not upheld, no maladministration
      Decision date – 01 December 2015
      LGO main subject area – Finance

Complaint

The complainant, Mr X, said the Council should have investigated his complaint about a 
parish councillor. He said the Council’s procedure for investigating such complaints 
allows it to do anything it likes and then hope people do not take their complaints 
further. He asked for the Councillor to make a public apology.

Background – Ombudsman’s summary

Mr X is a member of a political party. He was attending a meeting of a town council, as 
a member of the public. A councillor (who I will call Councillor Z) suggested a proposed 
policy was racist, like the policies of Mr X’s party. Mr X stood up and asked Councillor Z 
to repeat what they had said. Councillor Z did so and made some hand gestures which 
Mr X and other interpreted as obscene.

Mr X complained to the District Council that Councillor Z had breached the Code of 
Conduct for Councillors. The Council did not acknowledge Mr X’s complaint or tell him 
how it would consider it. Mr X had to contact the Council several times to find out what 
was happening.

The Council followed its policy on investigating such complaints. This policy is based on 
a statutory policy provided by the Government. The Monitoring Officer asked Councillor 
Z for his comments. As what Mr X had said seemed clear the Officer did not ask Mr X 
for further comments.

Councillor Z sent an apology to Mr X, for any offence that he had inadvertently caused 
to him by his hand gestures, which he said were indicating his view that Mr X was a 
‘small man’. 

The Council’s decision on Mr X’s complaint was the comment had not been that Mr X 
was racist, but that his parties’ policies were. The Council felt the remark was within the 
acceptable parameters of political debate.

It agreed Councillor Z’s gestures could be a breach of the Code of Conduct. But it felt 
the breach was not so significant to justify spending public money on an investigation. 
As Councillor Z had agreed their conduct was ill advised and apologised the Council 
decided no further action was needed.

Mr X complained there had not been an investigation and Councillor Z was lying about 
what happened. He said the Council should not be using cost as a reason not to 
investigate. In response the Council said given the weak sanctions available it could 

Page 33

Agenda Item 4



spend time and effort reaching a definitive conclusion, but then only be able to issue a 
weak warning to the Councillor. It did not think this was a good use of public money.

I suggested to the Council it would be good practice for the Monitoring Officer to 
acknowledge complaints about Councillors and give the complainant an outline of the 
timescales and what may happen next. The Council agrees and will do this in future. 

LGO’s conclusion

The LGO could understand why Mr X was unhappy with the Council’s decision not to 
investigate the complaint. However the Council had followed its policy, based on 
Government guidance, and had come to a reasoned decision. As the LGO could not 
say there was fault with how the decision was made, the LGO’s decision was not to 
investigate this complaint.

12. LGO decision – report issued: not upheld, no maladministration
      Decision date – 03 September 2015
      LGO main subject area – Finance

Complaint

Mr X’s complaint related to a series of Discretionary Housing Payment (DHPs) 
applications he had made to the Council while going through a difficult financial and 
personal time. Mr X complained the Council:

a) Failed to properly and fairly consider his DHP applications;

b) Failed to take into account his mental health conditions when dealing with 
him and his applications;

c) Discriminated against him when dealing with his second DHP application.
Mr X said as a result of the Council’s failings he and his family members suffered 
hardships they would not otherwise have endured. Mr X said he had been caused 
distress by what he considered to be the Council’s discriminatory behaviour towards 
him.

Background – Ombudsman’s summary

Mr X was in financial difficulty from June 2014 onwards. He was renting a private home 
for his family. He signed a new tenancy to stay at the property in July 2014. The rent 
was £1,700 per month.

Mr X was entitled to apply for DHP to help with his as he was receiving Housing Benefit 
(HB) at the time. He received the initial 13 weeks of full rent, which was £390 a week. 
When that period ended in September, his HB fell to the local standard rate for the two-
bed property his family was determined to require to be properly housed. Mr X then had 
a rent shortfall of £200 per week.

Mr X first applied for a DHP on 24 October 2014. Mr X asked for the DHP until February 
2015 when he expected to be back on his feet without benefits. Mr X was spending 
£400 more than his total income at the time.

Page 34

Agenda Item 4



The Council refused to pay Mr X any DHP. It sent a letter to Mr X explaining its decision 
on 27 November 2014. Mr X asked for the decision to be reviewed on 2 December 
2014. On 8 December Mr X sent a letter which confirmed he had rent arrears of 
£17,000. The officer reviewing the DHP refusal considered Mr X was living beyond his 
current means. But the officer decided to give Mr X a DHP of £50 per week from 9 
September until 23 February 2015. Mr X had confirmed he would be the beneficiary of 
some funds from a family trust by February. The Council confirmed this DHP award on 
17 December 2014.

After further correspondence with the Council, Mr X asked for the decision to go before 
the Council’s DHP appeal panel. The Council confirmed the hearing would be on 26 
January 2015.

Before the appeal, Mr X emailed the Council in December claiming the Council had 
discriminated against him. He did not allege the discrimination was on the grounds of 
mental health issues. The Council denied its officers had discriminated against Mr X. Mr 
X sent further emails in December. On 6 January, he sent a further email stating that 
the situation had caused him and his family great stress which was affecting his health 
and ability to work, and he had an appointment to see his GP.

The 26 January panel appeal hearing decided to award Mr X a further £50 per week, 
payable from 9 September 2014 to 23 February 2015. On 6 February Mr X told the 
Council he would like to apply for DHP again. He was intending to move to another 
privately rented house which had a rent of £1,300 per month. The Council advised it 
may help with his moving costs, but that he would need to consider moving to a 
property which would be met by the standard HB amount. Mr X did not make a further 
DHP application.

Mr X complained to the Council on 9 June 2015 about the way it had dealt with his first 
DHP application. He said the Council’s treatment of him had worsened his mental 
health. He wanted to reapply for a DHP, or Judicially Review the Council.

Mr X submitted a second DHP application on 11 June, asking for £200 per week. He 
stated he had depression, bipolar disorder, and a previous diagnosis of Post-Traumatic 
Stress Disorder (PTSD). On 23 June the Council asked him for more details of his 
mental health problems, and whether he had received a formal diagnosis of any 
condition.

Mr X told the Council also on 23 June that his parents would be buying a house and 
renting it to him for the maximum HB rent amount his family could receive. He told the 
Council he had started mental health treatment. An officer considered Mr X’s application 
and recommended the Council should pay Mr X approximately £200 per week from 23 
February to 17 July 2015. That officer took the view the amount requested was not 
excessive and that Mr X had made efforts to reduce his family’s living costs.

The Council did not follow the officer’s recommendation and took a different view on the 
same information. On 7 July the Council wrote to Mr X declining his DHP application. 
Amongst the second officer’s reasons was that Mr X had received a diagnosis of mild 
depression, not the mental health conditions he claimed. The officer considered £200 
per week was excessive and the family was not at risk of homelessness, given the 
parents’ plan to buy a property for them, and the time it would take for any eviction 
process to end.

Page 35

Agenda Item 4



Mr X appealed on 9 July. He said the drugs prescribed to him indicated he had bipolar. 
The Council declined to review the officer’s decision but invited Mr X to lodge an appeal 
to the DHP panel. Mr X asked for a further appeal. The appeal was held on 12 August 
and sent its decision to Mr X the next day. The panel said it had taken into account all 
the evidence presented, including medical information, but decided not to award Mr X 
any further DHP. Mr X brought his complaint to the Ombudsman.

LGO’s conclusion

The LGO did not find fault in the way the Council dealt with Mr X’s applications for DHP 
awards. The LGO did not see evidence of the Council discriminating against Mr X 
during the DHP process or the decisions it reached.

13. LGO decision – upheld: maladministration, no injustice
      Decision date – 29 February 2016
      LGO main subject area – Planning

Complaint

The complainant, Mr X, complained that the Council failed to properly consider the 
impact on his property and wrongly granted planning permission for a two story rear 
extension at his neighbour’s property. 

Mr X also complained the Council delayed in responding to his complaint.

Background – Ombudsman’s summary

Mr X’s neighbour applied for planning permission to build a two storey front, side and 
rear extension. Mr X did not object to the extension in its entirety, but objected to the 
two storey rear element. He was concerned this would overlook his rear garden and 
affect his privacy. Mr X made further comments asserting the two storey rear extension 
would be unacceptable because:

• The overall height and projection would be invasive;

• It would reduce the light to his kitchen, utility room and toilet;

• The window in the rear gable end would be invasive to the privacy in his 
garden;

• It would reduce the light onto his landing; and 

• The two storey section would be out of keeping with the other houses in 
the street.

A planning officer (Officer 1) considered the application and visited the site. There is no 
contemporaneous record of what Officer 1 noted on the site visit. But the Council has 
provided copies of the photographs Officer 1 took during this visit. This includes a 
photograph of the side of Mr X’s property which faces the proposed extension.

Having assessed the application Officer 1 prepared a report recommending approval. 
The report states the main considerations when determining this application are:

Page 36

Agenda Item 4



• Whether the scale and design of the proposed extensions would be in keeping with 
the character and appearance of the site and surrounding area; and

• Whether the proposed extensions would impact neighbouring amenity.
The report considers each in turn. It refers to Mr X’s concern the extension would be 
out of character but notes there is a precedence of two storey side and single storey 
front extensions along Mr X’s street. Officer 1 also considered the varied architecture 
in the locality would mean the proposal would not result in a material change in 
character or appearance. 
In considering the impact on neighbouring amenity the report refers to Mr X’s 
concerns about outlook and access to sunlight. The report states:

“The southern orientation of the rear elevations of [the application site] 
and its neighbouring properties, the rear projection of the two story rear 
element and the distance between [the application site] and [Mr X’s 
property] would mean that access to sunlight would not be reduced to 
an unacceptable level. Outlook of neighbouring properties would not be 
reduced to an unacceptable level also, with the proposed rear projection 
not being within 45 degrees when conducting a line of sight analysis.”

Officer 1 considered there was an established relationship between the properties which 
resulted in a degree of rear overlooking. Although the windows on the second storey of 
the rear elevation would have oblique views of neighbouring gardens, the officer 
considered the impact on garden privacy was acceptable.

The Council approved the application by delegated authority. Mr X was unhappy with 
the Council’s decision and asked it to reconsider. Mr X asserted the planning officer had 
not given fair consideration to the loss of sunlight and privacy at his property. He was 
also unhappy Officer 1 had not contacted him about his comments on the application. 
The Council’s response confirms Officer 1 took account of Mr X’s objections during the 
site visit. During this visit Officer 1 noted a number of windows in Mr X’s property which 
could be affected by the proposed extensions. These windows were not to primary living 
spaces such as bedrooms or a living room. The Council states it was also apparent the 
kitchen had more than one window.

The Council accepted the proposal would affect the sunlight entering Mr X’s property 
but did not consider the impact would be unacceptable to the point of refusing 
permission. In addition the Council stated the type and level of overlooking from the 
proposed extension was commonplace, especially in residential developments like Mr 
X’s street. Had the window been in the side, rather than rear elevation it would not have 
been acceptable. But the Council concluded the loss of privacy from the rear facing 
window would not reduce neighbour privacy to an unacceptable level.

Mr X was not satisfied with the Council’s response and made a formal complaint. He 
maintained the two storey rear extension was out of keeping with the character of the 
street. He felt the Council should have viewed the proposal from his property as he was 
the only one affected by the rear extension. 
Mr X also questioned the Council’s assessment of the loss of sunlight to his property. 
The Council had incorrectly assumed his kitchen had more than one window. Mr X felt 
this was a gross error which suggested Officer 1 had not properly considered the impact 
on his property. He also disagreed with the Council’s assessment on the loss of privacy.

Page 37

Agenda Item 4



In its response the Council confirmed the two storey extension complied with the 
Council’s relevant development policies and design guidance. It apologised for the 
incorrect assumption regarding Mr X’s kitchen windows. But did not consider this 
materially altered the assessment of the impact of the extension with regard to loss of 
light.  

The Council considered the decision to grant planning permission was soundly based 
having taken account of the particular circumstances of the development and the 
relationship with Mr X’s property. As Mr X felt the Council had not adequately addressed 
his concerns he asked the Council to consider the matter further. Mr X also complained 
about the delay in responding to his complaint. The Council’s response acknowledged it 
had not met its response times on several occasions and apologised for this. 

As part of the review of Mr X’s complaint the Council had asked Officer 1 to consider the 
application afresh based on only one window to Mr X’s kitchen. Officer 1 confirmed the 
national planning policy framework and planning rules would still point towards 
approval. The Council did not uphold Mr X’s complaint and refused his request for 
compensation. 

In response to my enquiries Mr X has reiterated his concerns about overlooking of his 
patio and the loss of light to his kitchen. He does not consider either to be acceptable.

LGO’s conclusion

The Council’s error regarding the number of windows in Mr X’s kitchen amounted to 
fault, but there was no evidence that but for this error it would not have granted planning 
permission. The Council’s failure to respond to Mr X’s complaints and correspondence 
was also fault and the Council provided an appropriate apology for this.

14. LGO decision – closed after initial enquiries: out of jurisdiction
      Decision date – 06 June 2016
      LGO main subject area – Planning

Complaint

The complainant, Ms B, said there had been a total lack of openness and objectivity by 
the Council when considering planning applications at a site near her home.

Background – Ombudsman’s summary

It is not the Ombudsman’s role to police or oversee how councils run their departments. 
While the Ombudsman can consider complaints about specific actions where there is a 
claimed fault causing an injustice to the complainant, she would not investigate a broad 
complaint of misconduct or failures at management level. The Ombudsman also has no 
power to take or recommend action against specific members of staff. 

Ms B’s complaints about a lack of openness and objectivity by council officers relate to 
planning applications it received for development near her home. I have considered 
whether the Ombudsman should investigate complaints about how the Council has 
made its decisions on these planning applications. 

Page 38

Agenda Item 4



In 2013, the Council received a planning application to demolish existing buildings and 
build two residential dwellings. The Council approved the planning application in August 
2013. Ms B judicially reviewed the Council’s decision to approve the planning 
application. In April 2014 the judge issued his judgment, that none of Ms B’s grounds 
were reasonably arguable. 

This complaint is late, because the Council’s decision was made more than 12 months 
ago. There are no good reasons to investigate this late complaint. This is because the 
Ombudsman cannot consider a complaint about the Council’s decision to approve the 
application, or the way it presented evidence to the judge. 

The planning application and the Council’s decision to approve it has been the subject 
of court proceedings and the Ombudsman has no power to investigate such complaints. 
Even if, as Ms B states, some aspects of the application were not considered by the 
judge or the Council presented misleading evidence to the judge, knowing it had failed 
to disclose documents of relevance to the decision, the Ombudsman still has no power 
to consider this matter. 

Also, given Ms B lives a short distance from the site and does not share a boundary 
with it, there is no significant injustice to her from the Council’s decision to approve that 
planning application. 

Ms B has raised a complaint about the way the Council has dealt with the location of a 
footpath near the application site. The legal public right of way ran across the site for 
development, although custom and practice of footpath users was to use a path outside 
the site area. This alternative path was noted in the Council’s records as being the 
definitive path. 

Ms B says the applicant failed to correctly answer questions on the application form.  
The Council has now been through the process to “stop up” the footpath. Again, this 
was considered as part of the judicial review and relates to matters that happened more 
than 12 months ago. The complaint is therefore old and there are no good reasons for 
the Ombudsman to now consider it. The footpath as commonly used is still accessible. 
And the loss of the legal route in favour of the “as used”, footpath has not caused Ms B 
a significant personal injustice. 

LGO’s conclusion

The LGO would not investigate this complaint. The Ombudsman cannot consider 
complaints that are more than 12 months old or have been the subject of court 
proceedings. And where the Ombudsman did have power to investigate, there was not 
enough evidence of fault or of a significant injustice to Ms B to warrant an investigation.

Page 39

Agenda Item 4



15. LGO decision – not upheld: no further action
      Decision date – 10 June 2016
      LGO main subject area – Planning

Complaint

Mr A complained about the Council’s handling of planning matters in relation to the 
development of two properties in his road. The Council had wrongly allowed the 
applicant, Mr X, to obtain permission to develop his land when previously it had refused 
permission for the same development. The development would impact adversely on the 
character of the area and the lives of residents.

Background – Ombudsman’s summary

Mr A lives in a cul-de-sac where Mr X owns two properties which I shall refer to here as 
1 and 2 Main Street. In 2014 Mr X applied for planning permission to build 2 chalet-style 
bungalows in the large rear gardens of 1 and 2 Main Street. 

The Council refused the application on the grounds that the development would harm 
the established character of the area and because of the adverse impact on future 
residents of 1 Main Street.

In February 2015 Mr X resubmitted the application with some modifications but the 
Council decided the proposal would detract from the character of the area and refused 
permission. Mr X appealed against the decision to the Planning Inspector. 

Mr X then applied for a Certificate of Lawfulness for a large outbuilding for 1 Main 
Street. In June 2015 the Council confirmed the outbuilding fell within permitted 
development rights for which planning permission was not required.

In July 2015 Mr X submitted a further planning application to build one bungalow in the 
rear garden of 1 Main Street and permission was granted in September. In reaching his 
decision under delegated powers, the case officer took into account the fall-back 
position provided to the applicant by the Lawful Development Certificate (LDC) for the 
outbuilding and concluded the proposed development “would not be harmful to the 
character and appearance of the surrounding area and would not materially harm the 
living conditions of nearby residents or result in conditions prejudicial to highway safety”.

In October Mr X submitted a second Certificate of Lawfulness application for an 
outbuilding for 2 Main Street. At the Council’s request, Mr X provided additional 
information to support the size and use of the building. The officer dealing with the case 
considered the examples of appeal decisions Mr A had sent in to support his view that 
the application should be refused. However, the officer decided the application 
demonstrated a clear and genuine need for the outbuilding and that it would be used for 
purposes incidental to the enjoyment of the main dwelling house. Having decided the 
outbuilding met the criteria for permitted development, the Certificate was granted in 
December.

Mr A complained to the Council about its handling of the applications in relation to 1 and 
2 Main Street and in February 2016 it provided its final response to his complaint. The 
Council did not uphold the complaint. It concluded that the planners had acted correctly 

Page 40

Agenda Item 4



in determining each application step independently of other steps and that at all times 
had weighed up the various factors in coming to their view.

In April, Mr X’s appeal to the Planning Inspectorate against the Council’s refusal of his 
resubmitted application for two bungalows was successful. In allowing the appeal the 
Inspector took into account that permission had been granted for one bungalow so a 
form of backland development had been established and it was a material consideration 
which carried some weight in her determination of the appeal.

LGO’s conclusion

Without evidence of fault by the Council the Ombudsman would not pursue the 
complaint.

Page 41

Agenda Item 4



Appendix Three

LGO decisions – 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 – Vale

1. LGO decision – closed after initial enquiries – no further action
Decision date – 5 May 2015
LGO main subject area – Finance
Complaint

The complainant, Ms B, complained about the way the Council dealt with her council 
tax account. She said the Council should not have been able to tell her that she owes 
nothing and then change its mind. Miss B was seeking compensation for the stress 
she said she had suffered as a result of what the Council had done.

Background – Ombudsman’s summary

In August 2014 the Council sent a council tax bill to Ms B. The bill showed the Council 
had applied an unoccupied unfurnished property discount to Ms B’s account so a nil 
balance was due. What the Council should have done was to apply the exemption for 
one month only because this is the Council’s maximum period for this type of 
exemption.

The Council issued a new bill later on in August 2014. This showed a balance due of 
over £800. Miss B wrote to the Council after receiving the new bill. She said as she 
already had a nil balance bill she would dispose of other correspondence.

Just over a month later the Council wrote to Ms B at the address she had given on her 
letter. The Council told her the second bill superseded the first one. In October 2014 
the Council sent a council tax reminder to Ms B because it had not received an 
instalment payment. The bill stated failure to pay will result in legal proceedings. 

Ms B then wrote to the Council. Her letter heading showed her new address. She said 
in her letter “Do NOT threaten me with legal action this is clearly YOUR mistake and 
up to YOU to resolve it.” The Council replied ten days later. It sent the letter to Ms B’s 
previous address. The Council said the full charge for an unoccupied and empty 
property was due after one month. The Council said it was sorry for any confusion the 
bills may have caused.

Ms B replied in November 2014. Her letter was dated a month after the Council had 
last written to her. She said she did not live at the address the Council had written to 
and she had given it her correct address. She said she was the sole owner of the 
property. She told the Council its previous letter was confusing because it said the 
adjustment bill showed it had awarded a discount from July 2014 to August 2004. She 
asked the Council to explain what was happening and for a breakdown of its 
calculations.

In its reply to Miss B the Council apologised for putting 2004 instead of 2014 in its 
letter to her. The Council said it needed Ms B to clarify the exact date she moved into 
the property. It told her it would award a 25% discount if she was the only occupant 
from that date. The Council said the property had to be her sole or main residence.

Page 42

Agenda Item 4



In December 2014 Ms B complained about the way the Council had dealt with her 
council tax. She said the Council had refused a 25% discount and put ridiculous 
demands on her.

The Council has made some errors in this case. It sent an initial bill which showed it 
had wrongly applied the empty property discount for more than one month. It delayed 
replying to the letter Ms B sent after she had received the second bill. It wrote to Ms B 
at her previous address and it gave an incorrect date in a letter to her. But the level of 
injustice these errors have caused to Ms B is not significant enough to justify the 
Ombudsman’s involvement. The Council has a statutory duty to levy and collect 
council tax due. So, if a council makes a mistake with a council tax account the 
Ombudsman would not criticise it for issuing a new bill superseding the original one.

In April 2015 the Council told Ms B if she would confirm she moved into the property 
when her tenant moved in and she was the sole occupier and so was entitled to the 
single person discount, it would write off the remaining debt. Ms B says the Council 
has failed to clarify what main residence status is. She has sent a cheque to the 
Council for the amount due as a sole occupant of the property.

If Ms B wishes to challenge the Council’s decision on her eligibility for a single person 
discount, it is reasonable to expect her to appeal to the Valuation Tribunal. That is 
because the Valuation Tribunal is the appropriate body to decide disputed eligibility for 
the single person discount. The Ombudsman cannot rule on the question of eligibility 
for the single person discount.

LGO’s conclusion

The Ombudsman would not investigate Ms B’s complaint because the level of injustice 
she suffered as a result of the Council’s errors was not significant enough to justify the 
Ombudsman’s involvement and it was reasonable for her to go to the Valuation Tribunal 
to challenge a decision on her eligibility for the single person discount.

2. LGO decision – not upheld: no maladministration
Decision date – 01 September 2015
LGO main subject area – Planning
Complaint

Mr B complained that the Council failed to properly deal with his complaints about two 
extractor fans attached to restaurants near his commercial premises. He said that 
because of this, his planning application to build three houses on the site was refused. 
Mr B complains that the Council then granted retrospective planning permission for one 
of the fans. Mr B also complained about the Council’s decision to grant planning 
permission for the restaurants in 2000, which included an external door leading to his 
private land.

Background – Ombudsman’s summary

Mr B owns some workshop buildings and land to the rear of two restaurants. In 2015, 
the Council refused Mr B’s planning application to demolish the workshop buildings and 
build three houses. One of the reasons for refusal was that the odour and noise from a 

Page 43

Agenda Item 4



nearby restaurant extractor fan would have a detrimental impact on the proposed 
residential development.

Mr B had complained to the Council about this extractor fan in 2011. He believed the 
owner had installed it without planning permission. The Council told Mr B that the 
extractor fan was included in the planning application for the restaurant that was 
granted permission in 2000. It said there was no breach of planning control.

In 2014, the owner of the restaurant applied for planning permission to reposition the 
extractor fan. The Council granted permission in September 2014. Mr B complained to 
the Council about it again. The Council then told Mr B that while it had granted planning 
permission for the restaurant in 2000, it had not discharged a condition relating to the 
extractor fan. It said that its Environmental Health team had recommended that the 
Council serve a Breach of Condition Notice in 2005. It told Mr B that legal advice had 
been sought but it could not explain why a Notice had not been served. The Council told 
Mr B that the failure to comply with the condition became immune from enforcement 
action in 2010.

Mr B believes that his planning application to build three houses would have been 
granted planning permission if the Council had taken enforcement action, either in 2005, 
or when he complained in 2011. Mr B says that he also telephoned the Council about 
another extractor fan, on the side of an adjacent restaurant, in 2011. He says that the 
Council told him that it did not need planning permission. 

After Mr B complained again in 2014, the Council investigated and found that this 
extractor fan did need planning permission. The Council contacted the owner who then 
submitted an application for retrospective planning permission. Mr B objected to the 
planning application. He said the fan should not be granted permission because it 
emitted noxious fumes and fat from a cooking appliance.

The Council granted planning permission in April 2015. Mr B says the Council failed to 
properly consider his objections to the application. He says the planning application 
wrongly stated that the fan provided ventilation for a store room, when it actually serves 
a cooking appliance.

Mr B had complained previously that both extractor fans emitted cooking smells and 
dripped fat onto the ground. In 2012, the Council wrote to Mr B and explained that it had 
a duty to take action when it received a statutory nuisance complaint from a resident of 
its area. But that it could not take any action in this case because Mr B was not a 
resident; he was complaining as the owner of commercial premises.

Mr B complained about the same matter in 2014. He said that the fans were emitting 
obnoxious smells and were dripping fat onto the ground creating a problem with rats. Mr 
B also complained that a security light was shining directly onto his commercial 
property. The Council investigated and decided that a statutory nuisance did not exist. 
The Officer explained to Mr B that the extractor fans and light could not be considered a 
nuisance to a vacant industrial plot. He also told Mr B that there was no evidence of a 
rat infestation. 

Mr B considers the Council failed to deal with his complaints properly. He believes that if 
it had done so, he would have been granted planning permission to demolish his 
workshop buildings and build three houses.

Page 44

Agenda Item 4



LGO’s conclusion

The LGO did not uphold Mr B’s complaint. In the matters that were investigated, the 
LGO found no evidence of fault by the Council.

3. LGO decision – not upheld: no maladministration
Decision date – 06 January 2016
LGO main subject area – Finance
Complaint

The complainant, Mr X, said the way the Council collected council tax arrears was 
unlawful. In particular he stated the summons and the liability order were unlawful. 

Background – Ombudsman’s summary

Mr X has not paid any council tax for 2015/16. He has also not received any CTR for 
this financial year. The Council has invited Mr X to apply for CTR and has offered to 
send a visiting officer to help him complete the form. 

The Council served a summons in July and the magistrates granted a liability order in 
August. The Council has told Mr X it will cancel the summons, and the costs, if Mr X 
applies for CTR. The Council has told Mr X that if he is entitled to CTR, which seems 
likely, then his arrears would be greatly reduced, or completely cleared. Mr X has not 
applied for CTR. 

The Council asked the court for a liability order because Mr X has not paid his council 
tax and has not applied for CTR to reduce his liability. The Council has obtained a 
liability order. This means the magistrates were satisfied that Mr X owes the council tax. 
A liability order is a court decision and, although Mr X thinks it is unlawful, I cannot 
question a decision made by the court. If Mr X thinks there has been a procedural 
irregularity he can apply to the court to have it set aside. 

In addition, while I appreciate that Mr X has strong opinions about the validity of the 
summons and the liability order, the Council has offered to cancel the liability order, and 
the costs, if Mr X applies for CTR. This was a fair offer for the Council to make. 

LGO’s conclusion

The LGO would not investigate this complaint because there was insufficient evidence 
of fault by the Council and because the LGO could not comment on a decision that had 
been made by the court.

Page 45

Agenda Item 4



4. LGO decision – not upheld: no further action
Decision date – 12 October 2015
LGO main subject area – Corporate Strategy
Complaint

The complainant, Mr B, said the Council’s actions and attitude towards caravan site 
licensing enforcement at a property his company manages was unacceptable and 
unprofessional. He said it did not comply with the law and relevant guidance.

Background – Ombudsman’s summary

Mr B’s company owns a mobile home park in the Council’s area licensed under the 
Caravan Sites and Control of Development Act 1960. The Act allows council officers 
access to licensed sites for a purpose under the Act provided they give notice and do 
not demand access without it. Officers visited the site in July 2015 and wrote to Mr B 
about several matters after the visit. Mr B complained because the Council had not 
notified his company or the site manager before visiting. 

In its reply to his complaint the Council said the purpose of the officer visit was not to 
inspect the site under the Act, but to discuss a private matter with a resident. I have 
seen records about the visit which I cannot share with Mr B because they are about the 
person who asked for the discussion, which was not connected with the licence. There 
is not enough evidence of fault by the Council here to warrant investigation.

Mr B does not accept this, and his solicitor says the fact officers raised licensing matters 
after the visit is evidence its purpose was in connection with the licence. That is clearly 
a matter of interpretation of the law rather than one of fact, and it would be reasonable 
for Mr B to ask a court of law to interpret the law. It is not a matter for the Ombudsman.

Mr B also complained about:

• remarks made by an officer on the visit;
• the action the Council took after the visit;

• reports to the police; and 

• what he described as harassment and intimidation which made him fear for his 
safety. 

The Council asked for more specific information or evidence about these matters, but 
without it could do nothing to reply to them. Some of the allegations are for the police as 
potentially criminal matters, and the Ombudsman would not therefore investigate them. 

It would be reasonable to expect Mr B’s company to appeal against action the Council 
might take to enforce compliance with the site licence conditions, as provided under the 
Act. So, the Ombudsman will not investigate such matters. Mr B’s solicitor says his 
client wants the Council to have a transparent approach to enforcement and for it not to 
treat other licence holders more favourably. That the Council might be treating others 
more favourably is not evidence of injustice to Mr B which the Ombudsman will pursue. 

The Council has decided in its response to Mr B’s complaint not to remove a particular 
officer from involvement in the matters it is investigating on site as Mr B asked. It is for 
the Council to decide how to manage its officer resources. It cannot reasonably be 

Page 46

Agenda Item 4



expected to be able to substitute officers in a specialist area of work, even if there was 
some reason to do so. 

Some of Mr B’s allegations about the negative attitude of council officers are not specific 
enough for the Ombudsman to investigate. Nor is there evidence to support them in the 
limited exchange of correspondence I have seen. It is the responsibility of Mr B’s 
company to comply with the licensing regime. The Council should satisfy itself about 
that compliance and take action if not. It is Mr B’s company’s right to use the relevant 
appeal rights if they cannot agree. There is little or no role for the Ombudsman in these 
procedures, and not enough evidence of significant injustice to Mr B’s company from 
other matters outside it.

LGO’s conclusion

The Ombudsman would not investigate Mr B’s complaint because it would be 
reasonable for his company to use its rights to appeal against any substantive 
enforcement action. There is not enough evidence of fault by the Council or of it causing 
Mr B’s company injustice in matters outside the enforcement and appeals procedure to 
warrant the Ombudsman investigating.

5. LGO decision – insufficient evidence for an investigation to be conducted
Decision date – 19 October 2015
LGO main subject area – Corporate Strategy
Complaint

The complainant, Mr X, complained about the Council’s refusal to cancel a parking fine. 
He also complained that he was denied the right to appeal to an independent body.

Background – Ombudsman’s summary

Mr X parked in a car park on a Friday and bought a ticket. He was attending an event 
and needed to keep his car in the car park for Friday and Saturday. The ticket machine 
did not allow him to buy a ticket in advance for the Saturday. 

The Council issued an ECN at 8:18am on the Saturday because his car was not 
displaying a ticket for that day. Mr X bought a ticket at 9.25am which was valid for the 
whole day. He spoke to the traffic enforcement officer who suggested he appeal. 

Mr X appealed. He explained he could not buy a ticket in advance. He also pointed out 
that the Council had not lost any parking revenue. In response, the Council explained 
that it had correctly issued the ECN because he was not displaying a ticket during the 
restricted hours. It said he could have bought a ticket for the Saturday, after 6pm on the 
Friday. He could also have used the telephone payment system to avoid going back to 
the car park. The Council gave Mr X another ten days to pay at the reduced rate. It 
explained it may prosecute if he did not pay. 

Mr X said the ticket machine did not say he could have bought an advance ticket after 
6pm. He said the Council’s decision was unjust and unfair and he wanted an 
independent appeal.  In response, the Council denied it was abusing the law but said it 
was the driver’s responsibility to park correctly. The Council gave Mr X another ten days 
to pay £40. Mr X paid £40. 

Page 47

Agenda Item 4



LGO’s conclusion

The LGO would not investigate this complaint because there was insufficient evidence 
of fault by the Council.

6. LGO decision – report issued: not upheld, no maladministration
Decision date – 09 December 2015
LGO main subject area – Planning
Complaint

Ms A complained the Council failed to properly consider a planning application for a 
large development in her village. The Council did not consult the County Council’s Care 
Commissioner about the care home facilities part of the application and failed to 
consider its sustainability. In granting permission, the creation of jobs, which the care 
facilities would have provided, was given significance when the site for such facilities 
was never sustainable.

Background – Ombudsman’s summary

 The Council’s planning committee granted planning permission for a development in 
Ms A’s village involving 100 residential dwellings and the provision of extra care 
facilities for the elderly.

 One of the factors taken into account in coming to the decision to grant permission was 
the employment opportunities the proposed care facilities would provide. However, 
subsequently the County Council confirmed the site was not suitable or sustainable as 
a location for elderly care facilities.

 Ms A’s parish council submitted a complaint to the Council about its handling of the 
planning application. It complained that no proper consideration had been given to the 
sustainability of the proposed care facilities part of the application and that the County 
Council’s Care Commissioner had not been consulted and if he had been he would 
have expressed the view that the site was not suitable or sustainable for care facilities. 

 The complaint was considered at the two stages of the Council’s complaints procedure 
but the Council did not accept the parish council’s view that the issue of sustainability 
had not been properly considered. It explained that the report to the planning 
committee had made clear why the Council could not sustain an “in principle” objection 
to the proposal and further explained that had the application been for residential 
dwellings only, rather than dwellings and care facilities, the decision would very likely 
have been the same.

 However, at the second stage of its complaints procedure, the Council did accept that 
officers should have been more diligent in seeking the views of the relevant County 
Council officer on the merits of the care home facilities and that it was not good enough 
to have relied just on general consultation with the County Council when no response 
to the care home aspect of the application had been received.

 Dissatisfied with the Council’s response to the parish council, Ms A made her own 
complaint to the Ombudsman, citing her personal injustice as that of being denied 
employment opportunities and care facilities which she and her family might have used.  

Page 48

Agenda Item 4



LGO’s conclusion

 Given the limited fault by the Council, and the limited injustice caused to Ms A, the 
Ombudsman would not pursue the complaint any further.

7. LGO decision – not investigated: insufficient injustice to justify an investigation
Decision date – 02 November 2015
LGO main subject area – Corporate Strategy
Complaint

The complainant, Mr X, complained the Council had not cancelled an Excess Charge 
Notice (ECN) he had received for parking without displaying his Blue Badge.

Background – Ombudsman’s summary

Mr X said that:

• he has a valid Blue Badge which he normally uses for free parking in a council car 
park,

• his medical condition and medication can make him forgetful,

• he has in the past forgotten to display his blue badge and the Council has cancelled 
an ECN because of his condition,

• more recently, he parked without displaying his Blue Badge and got another ECN 
which the Council has refused to cancel on appeal,

• the ECN costs £35 if paid within a two week period and increases to £70 if paid later 
than that,

• he is worried about the cost and inconvenience of further ECNs, should he continue to 
forget to display his blue badge,

• he would like the Council to cancel the current ECN.

The Council has said that it has already cancelled one ECN in the last year and would 
not cancel this one. It has, however, agreed to extend the period during which Mr X can 
pay the lower price and has agreed he can pay it in four instalments.

LGO’s conclusion

The LGO would not investigate Mr X’s complaint about the Council’s refusal to cancel an 
ECN. The injustice to Mr X was not enough to justify an investigation and an 
investigation would be unlikely to achieve more for Mr X than the compromise the 
Council has already agreed.

Page 49

Agenda Item 4



8. LGO decision – not upheld: no fault
Decision date – 22 March 2016
LGO main subject area – Planning
Complaint

The complainant, Mr X, complained there was fault in the way the Council dealt with two 
planning applications concerning a neighbouring property. Specifically, Mr X complained 
a planning officer misled the local parish council with the intention of leading it to 
withdraw its objection to the first application, which would otherwise have been 
considered by the Council’s planning committee.

Background – Ombudsman’s summary

A neighbour to Mr X’s property made a planning application to extend a cottage and 
build another property in the garden. Mr X and others objected to the proposed 
development. The Council approved the application. The neighbour then made a 
second application to vary a condition of the permission to add roof lights and flat-roofed 
dormer windows in the new property. The Council’s planning committee refused the 
second application and the neighbour appealed to the planning inspectorate. The 
planning inspector dismissed the appeal as the Council had meanwhile granted 
permission after a third application that substituted pitched roofs on the dormer 
windows.

Mr X complained to the Council. The Council considered five points of complaint and a 
question. It wrote a final response to Mr X on 2 April 2015. I deal with the five 
complaints in turn.

The Council supplied a webcast of the planning committee meeting that considered the 
second application. I have viewed this webcast. A councillor showed concerns about the 
attitude of the neighbour. This was because he had submitted the second application in 
order to add roof lights and dormer windows shortly after the decision on the first 
application. Another stated that something must have gone on behind the scenes.

Councillors were entitled to refuse the application, which they did. However, the 
opinions or suspicions of councillors are not the same thing as evidence of fault, despite 
Mr X’s view to the contrary. The correspondence I have seen shows no evidence of 
fault by the Council in the way the planning officer conducted the planning process.

Given the planning committee rejected the second application, there is an argument that 
it would also have rejected the first had it considered it. This is not certain. But what is 
more important is whether the planning committee should have had the opportunity to 
consider the first application. If not, speculating on the planning committee’s likely 
decision would be irrelevant.

The Council’s scheme of delegation sets out the grounds on which an application must 
be considered by the planning committee rather than a planning officer. One of these is 
an objection by the relevant parish council. The local parish council withdrew its 
objection to the application. I deal with Mr X’s allegation about this below, but once the 
parish council withdrew the objection, the planning officer could decide the application 
herself.

Page 50

Agenda Item 4



The Town and Country Planning Act 1990 sets out a range of relevant planning matters 
planning authorities must consider. However, it allows planning authorities to decide 
what weight to give to those matters. The Ombudsman cannot therefore criticise the 
weight a planning authority gives to relevant matters, only the failure to do so.

Although Mr X takes the view the planning officer did not consider valid objections, her 
report shows she considered relevant planning matters.  These included the size and 
scale of the new development and its suitability in the streetscape in an historic 
environment. I do not therefore find the Council at fault here.

LGO’s conclusion

The LGO did not uphold the complaint as the Council acted without fault.

9. LGO decision – not upheld: no further action
Decision date – 29 April 2016
LGO main subject area – Planning
Complaint

Mr X complained that the Council’s consideration of a planning application on land to 
the rear of his property lacked transparency as he considered the officer who 
recommended approval of the application had a conflict of interest. 

Background – Ombudsman’s summary

A developer submitted an application to the Council to build a two bedroom property on 
land to the rear of Mr X’s property. Officer A, the case officer, assessed the application. 
She considered the application should be refused.  She came to this view as she 
considered:
• the development site was too small in comparison to other plots in the vicinity

• development was cramped with insufficient amenity standards for occupiers

• insufficient parking 

• the contribution of one house to the housing supply shortfall did not outweigh the 
harm when considered against the strategic housing applications in the emerging 
local plan and the housing policies of the adopted local plan.

Officer A issued a draft report to the developer. The emails between officer A and the 
developer show he challenged her reasons for refusal. He considered the refusal 
reasons were not in accordance with the national planning policy framework (NPPF) 
which is the Government’s guidance on determining planning applications. 

Officer A discussed the application with officer B who was her line manager.  In 
response to my enquiries the Council has said officer B assessed the application in light 
of paragraph 14 of the NPPF and came to a different conclusion to officer A.  

Paragraph 14 of the NPPF provides there is a presumption for sustainable 
development. It also says where relevant policies are out of date, councils should grant 
permission unless any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and 

Page 51

Agenda Item 4



demonstrably outweigh the benefits.  Paragraph 49 of the NPPF says that a councils 
housing policies cannot be considered to be up to date if it does not have a five year 
supply of housing land. The Council does not have such a supply.

The Council has said it had previously interpreted paragraph 14 in a different way that 
had led to it refusing planning permission for developments. The developers appealed 
against these decisions which the planning inspectorate upheld and granted planning 
permission.

The Council proposed to determine the application by delegated decision. This means 
the application is not considered by the planning committee. It is decided by the head of 
planning in consultation with the chairman of the planning committee.

Emails between officer A and the developer show the application was discussed with 
the chairman of the planning committee but a decision was deferred. This was because 
the highways authority had objected to the application on grounds of whether the 
development would have sufficient parking and whether the access was sufficient. 
Officer B visited the site to determine if a refusal on the grounds of insufficient on street 
parking could be sustained and also asked the developer to supply more information. 

Some months later the Council decided to approve the application. The officer’s report 
set out his consideration of the application. He considered: 

 the development is relatively small and would be in keeping with the area;

 the size of the garden met the Council’s standards and the layout provided sufficient 
space for a two bedroom property;

 amendments to the plans created a better outlook for the occupants of the proposed 
development;

 there was sufficient space for parking to gain access to the site and sufficient on 
street parking. So the Council considered it the Highway Authority’s objection could 
be sustained;

 the proposed property would not have a great impact on neighbour’s amenity.

So the Council considered the potential adverse impact of the development was not 
significant or demonstrable. 

The Council issued the decision notice stating it had approved the application. But the 
decision notice gave reasons for refusal. Mr X made a complaint to the Council about 
the confusion caused by the incorrect decision notice and the difference of opinion 
between officers A and B. He also considered officer B had a conflict of interest as he 
knew the developer.

The Council considered Mr X’s complaint through its complaints procedure. It upheld his 
complaint about the incorrect decision notice and apologised for the errors. It also 
explained planning officer can come to different professional judgements about an 
application and this was not fault. 

The Council also explained the developer and officer B had worked together some 27 
years ago. But it considered there was no conflict of interest as they do not have a 

Page 52

Agenda Item 4



professional or social relationship. The Council also said they were professional 
adversaries. 

Mr X made a complaint to the Ombudsman as he considered the Council’s response 
was contradictory as it said officer B and the developer did not have a relationship. But 
then said they were professional adversaries. Mr X considered this showed officer B 
had a conflict of interest. 

In response to my enquiries, the Council has said that an officer who knows the 
applicant in a social capacity would not be involved in the consideration of their 
application. But it did not consider an officer to have a conflict of interest if they know 
the applicant in a professional capacity. 

The Council has said officer B had contact with the developer in 2013 at a meeting but 
there had been no contact since.  Officer B has only had professional contact on no 
more than two or three occasions in the last 27 years.

LGO’s conclusion

There was no evidence to indicate that officer B had a conflict of interest when 
considering a planning application for an applicant who he knew in a professional 
capacity. 

Page 53

Agenda Item 4



Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee

Report of Strategic Director 
Author: Steve Bishop (interim 5 councils partnership transition 
manager)
Telephone: 01235 422090
E-mail: steve.bishop@southandvale.gov.uk
SODC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Lynn Lloyd
Tel: 01844 354313
E-mail: lynn.lloyd@btinternet.com
VWHDC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Matthew Barber
Telephone: 07816 481452
E-mail: matthew.barber@whitehorsedc.gov.uk

To: JOINT AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

DATE: 4 July 2016

Impact of the corporate services 
outsourcing and 5 councils partnership 
on the internal control environment

Recommendation

The Committee is asked to note the contents of this report and suggest any actions 
arising.

CONFIDENTIAL

Page 54

Agenda Item 5

mailto:steve.bishop@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:lynn.lloyd@btinternet.com
mailto:matthew.barber@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


Purpose of Report

1. The joint committee requested this report given its recent concerns about certain 
internal control weaknesses in existing services being delivered by Capita and those to 
be delivered by Capita and Vinci after 31 July 2016.  The joint committee is keen to 
understand whether the outsourcing of additional services to Capita (and to the Vinci 
consortium) is likely to increase the risks on the councils’ internal control environment.

Corporate Objectives 

2. 2012 – 2016 corporate plan objectives:

- Excellent delivery of key services

- Effective management of resources

3. Draft 2016 – 2020 corporate plan:

- Provide value for money for residents and where relevant ensure that services pay 
for themselves.

Background

4. The internal control environment encompasses all the councils’ checks, balances and 
other arrangements for ensuring achievement of the council’s objectives and reducing 
the risk of financial loss.

5. The ‘corporate services project’ has resulted in the re-letting of the revenues and 
benefits services to Capita, along with other council services being outsourced for the 
first time (accountancy, HR, IT, land charges, licensing, procurement).  The project has 
also resulted in the outsourcing of car parks, facilities management and property 
services to the Vinci consortium.  The contracts commence on 1 August 2016 for South 
and Vale.

6. The project has also created a new ‘5 council partnership’, with Hart District Council, 
Havant Borough Council (with its existing partner East Hampshire District Council) and 
Mendip District Council joining forces with South and Vale.  By jointly procuring the 
above ranges of services and creating a joint client team to administer the contracts the 
councils will save over £40m over the next 9 years, access potential additional savings 
of £500m, attract investment to improve service standards and strengthen resilience.

7. Many of the services being outsourced are support services to the rest of the council 
which incorporate key financial processes and corporate internal control procedures.  
By outsourcing a service the council is transferring day-to-day operational service 
delivery responsibilities to another organisation which inherently introduces risk to the 
effectiveness of the internal controls.  A range of measures have been taken to 
safeguard the internal control environment, which are explained below. 

Existing arrangements

8. Before describing the new measures, it is worth pointing out that several important 
existing internal control safeguards will continue unaffected by the outsourcings.  Each 
of the councils will still have a s.151 officer who is personally responsible for the 

Page 55

Agenda Item 5



adequacy of financial administration.  That officer will continue to be responsible for an 
effective internal audit function.  The internal auditors will still have unfettered access to 
all financial systems, processes and officers – whether on the contractors’ side or the 
councils’

9. External audit will continue to collaborate with internal audit in order to assess financial 
systems.  Internal audit will continue to fully review the key financial systems every 
year and complete an annual assessment of the internal control environment.

10.The councils’ annual review of each of its major contractors, including Capita and Vinci, 
by the joint Scrutiny Committee will continue.  This is particularly important given that, 
from August, Capita will be responsible for a greater proportion of the councils’ internal 
control environment than before.

Service specifications

11.The councils produced written specifications for each of the services which set out their 
detailed requirements.  An example, the Accountancy service specification, is provided 
in annex 1.  It contains many contractually-binding obligations around internal controls 
e.g.:

The Supplier shall ensure that there are effective systems of internal 
financial control in place including (but not limited to) reviewing, maintaining 
and updating on an on-going basis the following:

 the accountancy procedure manual

 the VAT manual
The Supplier shall proactively review (at least every twelve months) the 
Authorities’ financial procedure rules and suggest improvements (if any) to 
the client officer.

The Supplier shall implement recommendations arising from internal and 
external audits in respect of services that the Supplier controls.

Joint client team

12. In parallel with the outsourcings to Capita and Vinci, the councils have created a joint 
client team comprising 25.5 full time equivalents who will manage the contractors.  At 
the time of writing this report approximately half of the client team had been recruited to 
by redeploying existing client officers from each of the councils.

13.The joint client team is split into specialist sub-teams, each of which has very 
experienced staff used to managing contractors and maintaining internal controls.  For 
example, the finance lead officer throughout the procurement (and deputy s.151 officer 
at his respective council) has already been redeployed into the team; the most 
experienced exchequer and finance systems officer at South and Vale has been 
redeployed into the team; and, the South and Vale revenues and benefits manager has 
been redeployed into the equivalent role, now providing his expertise to all five 
councils.  The team will make sure the contractors maintain internal controls.

Page 56

Agenda Item 5



14.The joint client team is headed by the client relationship director who has been 
externally appointed.  They will report to a senior manager at each of the councils who 
will ensure the team and contractors are accountable equally to the five councils.

Governance structure

15.Beyond the client team’s day-to-day management of the contractors there is a 
substantial governance framework to oversee the contracts, as set out in the legally-
binding inter-authority agreement.

16.A joint committee comprising a cabinet member from each council has executive 
authority; whilst a strategic management board, joint tactical board and other boards 
such as the transition and transformation board of officers will provide the necessary 
authority to improve performance and address any problems.  These boards provide 
escalation routes should the contractors fail in any respect such as internal control 
weaknesses.

17.The joint overview and scrutiny committee can jointly monitor the operation of the 
contracts and consider any generic issues which are not council-specific.  Each 
council’s existing audit committee and scrutiny committee arrangements are unaffected 
and would be expected to deal with any council-specific issues.

18. In the unlikely event that an internal control weakness was not addressed at joint client 
team level, nor at any of the board escalation levels, the matter would be referred to 
the respective council’s audit committee which could summon the contractor, client 
officer, management representative and/or internal/external auditors to assess the 
situation.  The contractors would make every reasonable effort to avoid this.

Contractual remedies

19.Capita and Vinci have extensive experience of council contracts and are highly 
motivated to avoid contractual disputes.  Throughout competitive dialogue the councils, 
their legal representatives and commercial consultant ensured a range of contractual 
remedies were incorporated to incentivise the contractors to fully comply with service 
specifications including internal control requirements.

20.The contractual performance indicator standards represent the best of the five councils’ 
performance.  The payment and performance mechanism puts the contractor’s profit 
margin at risk on a sliding scale should the contractors fail to achieve a proportion of 
the PIs.

21.The councils have step-in rights to intervene and take back control of particular 
services (or part-services) at the contractor’s expense should the contractor fail to 
comply with the requirements of the contract (including internal controls).

22.The councils can choose to terminate the contract (or parts of the contract).

Mobilisation

23.The above arrangements describe the permanent arrangements which safeguard the 
internal control environment throughout the 9 year contract term.  For completeness it 
is worth separately considering the special initial mobilisation period.

Page 57

Agenda Item 5



24.Both the Capita and the Vinci service delivery solutions involve substantial upfront 
change programmes.  Staff and operational service responsibilities will be transferred 
to the contractors on 1 August 2016 in a series of pre-planned ‘transition’ activities.  In 
order to secure the financial savings, improved performance levels and resilience the 
contractors will introduce new systems and processes and relocate some services to 
remote processing centres in a series of pre-planned ‘transformation’ activities. Both 
‘transition’ and ‘transformation’ activities are change projects which require careful 
management by the contractors’ teams and council officers.

25.Capita’s approach is to focus on transition activities.  Whilst Capita has commenced 
transformation activities, they will not be completed until October 2016 – May 2017 
(variable ‘target operating model’ completion dates depending upon service).  Capita 
will not carry out any restructurings until after August.  As there are far fewer changes 
in transition than transformation, this approach represents less initial risk, but longer 
risk periods until target operating models are embedded and proven.

26.Vinci’s approach is to undertake transition and transformation in parallel during April – 
August to achieve a ‘big bang’ start on 1 August.  Vinci has commenced a pre-transfer 
restructuring consultation with the staff who will transfer to the three Vinci companies.  
This approach represents higher risk over a shorter period, but generates the efficiency 
savings Vinci need to meet its tender commitments.

27.South and Vale are the first of the five councils to transition and be transformed.  They 
will experience the greatest risks as Capita and Vinci mobilise their teams and 
implement their solutions.  Both approaches involve an element of service design as 
they tailor their preferred solution to the practical harmonised needs of the five different 
councils.  Therefore both contractors need to test and tweak their solutions using South 
and Vale as the ‘guinea pigs’.

28.Our partner councils Hart, Havant (with East Hampshire) and Mendip will have lower 
risk transitions and transformations after South and Vale have implemented the 
harmonised solutions.  This is a similar scenario to that experienced with the innovative 
joint waste collection procurement when Vale’s implementation in 2010 was almost 
problem-free after South’s more problematic first implementation 15 months before.

29.Any change project involves risks which need to be managed.  The councils’ steering 
group is responsible for maintaining the risk registers which record the specific risks 
affecting these projects, alongside the mitigations introduced to manage them.  The 
registers are attached as annex 2 to this report.  In addition, both Capita and Vinci 
maintain their own registers.

30. I meet with the external and internal auditors regularly.  They are both sent project 
management updates and they have full access to all project records.  They will be 
working with me to identify stages through the transition/transformation where they can 
undertake additional/specific assurance reviews for South and Vale.

Conclusion

31.Once South and Vale implement the various changes to be introduced by Capita and 
Vinci, the two councils will stabilise.  From then on the arrangements summarised in 
paragraphs 8 to 22 above will safeguard the internal control environment.  I am 
confident the councils will be at least as secure as now, plus more resilient relying on 
larger, better-supported teams.

Page 58

Agenda Item 5



32.However, initially during the mobilisation, design, testing and implementation phases 
the councils will face higher risks of service disruption and internal control weaknesses.  
The contractors and councils have designated transition managers and teams who are 
managing these risks, either through mitigation actions or through close monitoring, 
addressing issues and solving problems to minimise the temporary impact on the 
internal control environment.

Page 59

Agenda Item 5



P a g e  | 1

Five Districts Corporate Services 
Project

Service Specification: Finance

Page 60

Agenda Item 5



P a g e  | 2

Contents

1. Introduction 3

2. Scope 4

3. Service Requirements 6

4. Definitions and Glossary 33

Page 61

Agenda Item 5



P a g e  | 3

1. Introduction 

This service specification represents the requirements of Hart District Council, Havant 
Borough Council, Mendip District Council, South Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of 
White Horse District Council, hereafter known as the Councils.
In developing their requirements the Authorities have recognised that the expectations of 
service users, and the financial, technological and legislative environment in which the 
Authorities operate will change.  The Authorities expect their partner(s) to deliver best in 
class performance throughout the Term and this is expressed in terms of:

(i) Delivering the individual service requirements as specified for all Authorities
(ii) Supporting the delivery of corporate outcomes common to all of the Authorities that cut 
across one or more of the services in the scope of this partnership
(iii) Delivering specific outputs and outcomes for individual Authorities

For the avoidance of doubt it should be assumed that such delivery will be in accordance 
with all prevailing legislation and generally accepted codes of practice from relevant bodies 
such as CIPFA, IRRV etc.(unless specifically highlighted otherwise).

Page 62

Agenda Item 5



P a g e  | 4

2. Scope
Service Function
 is in specification,
  is out of specification

Hart 
DC

Mendip 
DC

South 
Oxfordshire 
DC

Vale 
of 
White 
Horse 
DC

Havant 
DC 
(inc. 
East 
Hants 
DC)

Budget setting (incl training)
    

Budget monitoring (incl training)
    

Accounts closure and statement of 
accounts (incl training)     

Capital accounting
    

Support to service departments and 
councillors (including option appraisal & 
business case reviews, and support for 
procurement)

    

VAT 
    

Insurance
    

FoI requests
    

Bank reconciliations
    

Bank relationship management     

Attendance at committee meetings
    

Treasury management 
    

the role of statutory S151 Officer and 
deputy S151 Officer     

strategy and decisions relating to the 
strategic direction of the Authority     

finalisation of policy documents
    

final liaison with external auditors
    

Page 63

Agenda Item 5



P a g e  | 5

The Supplier shall carry out the Finance Service’s statutory functions in accordance with all 
relevant legislative and regulatory frameworks (as amended and updated from time to time) 
including (but not limited to):

 Local Government Act 1972

 Local Government Finance Act 1988

 Local Government Acts 2000, 2003

 Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011

 Audit Commission Act 1988

 Authority’s Constitution

 relevant financial regulations

 Best Value Accounting Code of Practice and Service Reporting Code of Practice for Local 
Authorities

 Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom

 CIPFA Code of Audit Practice

 Localism Act 2011

The Supplier shall use reasonable endeavours to meet the key objectives of the Service, which 
are:

 managing a successful budget process engaging with all stakeholders

 providing financial advice and support to the Authorities

 to enable financial information to be transparent and accessible to citizens of the Authority

 timely and high quality financial information for improved decision making; and

 the provision of high quality assurance to all stakeholders on a timely basis.

Page 64

Agenda Item 5



Output Specification:  Finance

6

3. Service Requirements
The following table indicates the service requirements for the Finance function.

The Supplier shall adhere to the standards listed in the final column of the following table.

Reference Service Area Function Outputs Key volumes 
or frequency 
requirement

The Supplier shall work with the CFO to ensure good financial 
administration and stewardship on behalf of the general public and to 
ensure that Authority resources are managed in accordance with 
legislation, financial regulations, SORP and guidance provided by CIPFA 
and other relevant guidance.

On-going

The Supplier shall ensure that as business practices, legislation, financial 
regulations, CIPFA guidance and other relevant guidance change Supplier 
procedures shall be updated with immediate effect. 

The Supplier shall ensure that there are effective systems of internal 
financial control in place including (but not limited to) reviewing, 
maintaining and updating on an on-going basis the following:

 the accountancy procedure manual

 the VAT manual
The Supplier shall proactively review (at least every twelve months) the 
Authorities’ financial procedure rules and suggest improvements (if any) to 
the client officer.

FIN001 Strategic 
Finance and 
Financial 
Services

Financial 
Administration 
and 
Stewardship

The Supplier shall implement recommendations arising from internal and 
external audits in respect of services that the Supplier controls.P

age 65

A
genda Item

 5



Output Specification:  Finance

7

Reference Service Area Function Outputs Key volumes 
or frequency 
requirement

The Supplier shall validate and challenge the assumptions and information 
provided by services to ensure that the financial consequences of 
activities are fully evaluated and embedded within planning and decision 
making.  The Supplier shall support planning and decision making by 
providing relevant and timely financial information.

The Supplier shall provide comprehensive, professional, timely (up-to-
date) and accurate information and provide financial advice to services in 
relation to revenue budgets and capital programmes for the Authorities, in 
line with the budget setting timetable and Authorities guidance.

In addition to the finance service, the Supplier shall provide:

 any activity reasonably included within the scope of a professional 
financial planning service

 any activity which the Authorities currently provide as part of their 
financial planning service; and

 a level of service delivery in accordance with appropriate professional 
standards and codes of practice.

The Supplier shall prepare and maintain each Authority’s medium term 
financial plan (MTFPs).

FIN002 Financial 
Planning and 
Strategy

The Supplier shall provide information, advice and support to the 
Authorities (including budget holders, senior management and members) 
including (but not limited to):

 Costing of:
o commitments arising from existing policies
o development costs of proposed changes in policy or performance 

targets
o savings from proposed changes in policy or performance targets; 

P
age 66

A
genda Item

 5



Output Specification:  Finance

8

Reference Service Area Function Outputs Key volumes 
or frequency 
requirement

and
o proposed capital programmes and assistance with bids for external 

funding.

 Consultation with budget holder’s service management in their 
preparation of:
o detailed budget projections in a format/template agreed by the 

Authority
o detailed budget representing Authority policy/corporate plan 

objectives; and
o full working papers where appropriate.

The Supplier shall record, process and provide detailed information on 
agreed budgets and capital programmes to budget holders.

The Supplier shall review and report to the Authority on:

 the financial impact of the Authority’s strategic priorities

 the financial impact on Service Delivery Plans

 funding and funding substitutions on service capital programmes and 
the Supplier shall administer virements in accordance with the financial 
regulations.

The Supplier shall provide on-going support to service managers to 
ensure decisions and priorities from a finance perspective are compliant 
with financial regulations/legislation/guidance and offer value for money.  
This shall include (but shall not be limited to):

 advising on the use of funding and funding substitutions in relation to 
the service capital programme and reporting all changes accordingly;

P
age 67

A
genda Item

 5



Output Specification:  Finance

9

Reference Service Area Function Outputs Key volumes 
or frequency 
requirement

 responding to consultation documents/ evaluating documents;

 contribute to finance service’s service plan; and

 attending Authority/partnership meetings as the Authority’s finance 
representative.

The Supplier shall advise the Authority and its management teams of 
government announcements, policy and statutory changes and their 
impact on the Authority and its finances.

The Supplier shall lead the Authority’s budget setting process in 
accordance with the prevailing Finance Act and for approval by the 
Authority’s cabinet and Authority by the dates set.

Final budget by 
3rd week in 
February (in 
order for Council 
Tax bills to be 
sent out)

The Supplier shall ensure that a budget is completed in accordance with 
the budget setting process as agreed annually with each Authority and 
approved within budget timetable deadlines.

Process is 
usually run from 
September to 
February

The Supplier shall ensure that budgets are set for each Authorities’ 
service.  The Supplier shall work with services, challenge the data the 
services provide and check the validity of information provided to ensure 
that budgets are within the cash limit set by the Authority.

The Supplier shall work with Authorities’ services to ensure that actions 
required for meetings and throughout the budget process as set out by the 
Authority are met within the agreed timescales and in the specified format.

FIN003 Financial 
Management 
Budgets and 
Budget Setting

The Supplier shall support Authority services in ensuring that they:

 construct their budgets for approval by challenging, checking the 

P
age 68

A
genda Item

 5



Output Specification:  Finance

10

Reference Service Area Function Outputs Key volumes 
or frequency 
requirement

validity of information provided by services and providing quality 
assurances; and

 are informed of their grant and funding allocations (including revenue 
and capital as appropriate).

In setting budgets the Supplier shall:

 ensure inflation is applied appropriately where required

 ensure budgets are in line with salary agreements/uplifts

 work with Authorities’ services to ensure that efficiencies, income, 
service reductions, growth and pressures are reflected in the five year 
MTFP

 ensure that confidentiality is maintained and budgets are cleared with 
the S151 officer.

The Supplier shall support services by checking and providing the relevant 
challenges to ensure that Authority budgets reconcile to HR head 
count/establishment.

The Supplier shall support the Authorities by working with services to 
prepare and validate alternative budget motions as requested by 
councillors.

The Supplier shall create and process virements (as per the financial 
regulations and cleared with the S151 Officer) to reflect agreed budget 
changes and ensure that an audit trail of adjustments is maintained.  The 
Supplier shall ensure that budgets are accurately loaded onto the general 
ledger to the correct codes by dates agreed with the Authorities.

In accordance 
with finance 
regulations

The Supplier shall work with the Authority’s revenues and benefits team 
(which may also be the Supplier) on the collection fund balances and tax 
base.  The Supplier shall obtain authorisation from the S151 Officer as 

In compliance 
with the 
Revenues and 

P
age 69

A
genda Item

 5



Output Specification:  Finance

11

Reference Service Area Function Outputs Key volumes 
or frequency 
requirement

required for tax base and collection rate calculation.  (The Supplier shall 
comply with the details set out in the Revenue and Benefits Output 
Specification in respect of the service requirements for this function area).

Benefits Output 
Specification

The Supplier shall liaise with preceptors and levying bodies to inform them 
of the Council Tax base.
The Supplier shall complete all work necessary to enable the Authority’s 
revenues and benefits team (which may also be the Supplier) to invoice 
council tax payers.

The  Supplier shall ensure payments to levying and precepting bodies are 
paid in a timely manner.

The Supplier shall apply, where applicable, for capitalisation from DCLG 
(Gate 1 and Gate 2).

The Supplier shall confirm payment amounts and dates with the DCLG.

The Supplier shall assist with financial input into the Council tax leaflet.

The Supplier shall produce a 5 year (minimum) capital programme, which 
forms part of the budget process and shall include (but shall not be limited 
to) project spend and sources of funding.

FIN004 Costing, 
Modelling and 
Option 
Appraisals

The Supplier shall assist the Authorities in strategic and operational 
decision making.
Budgeting
The Supplier shall produce financial forecasts and financial models for 
strategic decision making and budget proposals and shall provide tools to 
guide operational activity as requested by the Authority’s finance 
department or Authorities’ services.

Budgeting:  
Provision of 
forecasts and 
models to guide 
operational 
activity as 
requested by 
the finance 
department or 

P
age 70

A
genda Item

 5



Output Specification:  Finance

12

Reference Service Area Function Outputs Key volumes 
or frequency 
requirement
Authority 
services.  In line 
with project 
timescales.

The Supplier shall carry out options appraisals including (but not limited 
to) the development of financial baselines and the review of financial 
assumptions and the implications on the Authority’s budgets as requested 
by the Authority’s finance department or Authority services.

Projects
The Supplier shall undertake financial evaluations for contracts as 
requested by Authorities’ services and provide a written 
conclusion/recommendation of the evaluation within five (5) Working Days 
of receipt of all the specified documentation or other such period as 
agreed with the requesting Authority service (such period to be agreed 
having regard to (inter alia) the complexity of the company structure, the 
number of companies to be evaluated and whether the Supplier is given 
advance notification of the request by the Authorities service.

The Supplier shall, dependent on the number of companies to be 
evaluated, provide an estimate within five (5) Working Days from the time 
all the information requested has been received.

The Supplier shall assist the Authority in developing financial models to 
support business cases by providing challenge and validation of the data 
to enable informed decision making.  Modelling and other required 
financial inputs shall be provided within project timescales and produce 
accurate results.

The Supplier shall support project managers in budget monitoring of 
projects by reviewing, checking and challenging the assumptions and 
information provided to enable informed decision making within the 

P
age 71

A
genda Item

 5



Output Specification:  Finance

13

Reference Service Area Function Outputs Key volumes 
or frequency 
requirement

timelines specified in the project plan.

The Supplier shall advise the Authority on the financial aspects and 
implications of restructuring proposals including (but not limited to):

 calculating restructuring costs and advising accordingly; and 
processing virements as per restructuring proposals.

The Supplier shall develop where necessary financial modelling 
techniques and conduct financial modelling as required for current and 
future activity, including major service restructures.

The Supplier shall assist Authorities’ services in their analysis of fees and 
charges where required by challenging and validating the relevant 
information.

The Supplier shall analyse service proposals and assist in the formal 
approval of proposals.

The Supplier shall evaluate the financial impact of proposed legislative 
changes/ developments and shall advise the Authority on the implications.

The Supplier shall provide support to the Authority by providing financial 
advice, challenging, checking and validating the financial aspects of 
service based projects and attend project team meetings as agreed.

FIN005 Budget 
Monitoring

The Supplier shall provide monitoring of all Authority budgets which shall 
include (but shall not be limited to) maintaining accurate, consistent and 
complete financial records and providing timely, correct, relevant 
information to the Authority and its services.  In providing such monitoring 
the Supplier shall undertake tasks including (but not limited to) obtaining 
projections, forecasts, budget maintenance and providing support to 

Quarters 2 and 
3 only (Apr-
Sept, Apr-Dec)
Monthly reports
Other regular 
reporting will 

P
age 72

A
genda Item

 5



Output Specification:  Finance

14

Reference Service Area Function Outputs Key volumes 
or frequency 
requirement

services on:

 projects – information on variances from budget to enable analysis, 
comment and decision making

be agreed for 
all Authorities

 capital and revenue – updating and reporting on information on 
variances from budget to enable analysis, comment and decision 
making; and

 capital funding/project slippage – reviewing capital funding/project 
slippage and providing advice on maximisation of resources relating to 
funding sources. 

The Supplier shall coordinate the budget monitoring process for reporting 
to service management teams, the Authority’s senior managers and 
directors and relevant committees.
The Supplier shall scrutinise and challenge budget monitoring returns from 
services before coordinating the summary budget monitoring report. 

The Supplier shall ensure the provision of budget and year to date actual 
information within two (2) Working Days of period end.

The Supplier shall create the revenue and capital budgets on the financial 
systems by 31 March prior to each financial year in line with the budget 
set by the Authorities.

The Supplier shall update revenue and capital budgets on financial 
systems within two (2) Working Days of committee approval (including 
approval of virements).

The Supplier shall provide challenges and validation of the financial 
information provided by revenue and capital budget managers and project 

P
age 73

A
genda Item

 5



Output Specification:  Finance

15

Reference Service Area Function Outputs Key volumes 
or frequency 
requirement

managers to ensure accurate reporting.  The Supplier shall coordinate and 
collate the information across services for presentation to the Authorities’ 
Heads of Service/Senior Management Boards and for corporate reporting 
including at member level.

The Supplier shall provide standard budget monitoring training to budget 
holders at regular intervals during the year.

The Supplier shall maintain the chart of accounts or coding structure for 
recording of financial accounts in accordance with CIPFA SeRCOP and 
shall ensure that the chart of accounts is accurately maintained, reviewed 
and updated within one (1) business day from the receipt of the request.

CIPFA and 
SeRCOP

The Supplier shall carry out full bank reconciliation activities every month, 
as part of the cashbook function, for all accounts.  The Supplier shall 
ensure that bank reconciliations are complete and accurate and reconciled 
within ten (10) Working Days of the month end. This includes the 
identification and posting of reconciling items.

Monthly

The Supplier shall reconcile control accounts and monitor progress of 
control accounts and income reconciliations across the relevant service 
areas within ten (10) Working Days of the month end.  The reconciliation 
process includes the correction on imbalances. 

The Supplier shall prepare and produce budget monitoring information, in 
a pre-agreed format (subject to variation depending on which Authority 
team or department it is being presented to) by the deadlines set by the 
Authorities.

The Supplier shall provide a financial information service to departments 
to enable and enhance budget monitoring.

The Supplier shall produce and agree with the client a budget monitoring 
timetable to enable key deadlines to be met and shall communicate the 

The timetable 
will be agreed 

P
age 74

A
genda Item

 5



Output Specification:  Finance

16

Reference Service Area Function Outputs Key volumes 
or frequency 
requirement

timetable to all relevant parties before the start of the financial year. with the 
Authorities via 
the Authorities’ 
Representative

The Supplier shall prepare and make available in a suitable format 
monthly details of income and expenditure within two (2) Working Days of 
the period end from the FMS for services to complete within the required 
timescales to enable timely reporting.
The Supplier shall support and challenge services’ understanding and 
interpretation of information they use to predict their year end revenue 
outturn position.

The Supplier shall prepare and make available in a suitable format the 
capital monitoring to project managers to complete and comment on within 
two (2) Working Days of the period end.  This shall include (but shall not 
be limited to) identifying slippage, additions, deletions and funding to 
capital projects/programmes.

The Supplier shall support and challenge services’ understanding and 
interpretation of information they use to predict their year end capital 
outturn position.

Monthly – Three 
(3) Working Days 
following the 
period end

The Supplier shall review the status of capital projects at least quarterly 
and carry out all necessary checks and transactions.

Monthly – high 
level monitoring

The Supplier shall coordinate and liaise with the Authorities’ accountancy 
client manager (and other partnership as agreed/necessary) regarding 
information to be incorporated into the budget monitoring by agreed 
timescales. 

The Supplier shall provide information, advice and support for revenue 

P
age 75

A
genda Item

 5



Output Specification:  Finance

17

Reference Service Area Function Outputs Key volumes 
or frequency 
requirement

and capital budget monitoring to budget holders/project managers by 
validating the financial information provided and addressing queries 
arising from budget holder’s completion of the budget monitoring.

The Supplier shall produce a report in an agreed format for reporting to 
the Authority’s management team the forecast outturn positions 
throughout the year at the relevant specified times. 

Quarterly

The Supplier shall review projections provided on an on-going basis and 
respond to reasonable requests as and when necessary to ensure proper 
monitoring of budgets including (but not limited to) verifying and where 
necessary challenging the projections submitted and obtaining 
explanations for significant variations in consultation with budget holders.  
Ultimately, however, each head of service is responsible for their service’s 
outturn projections.

The Supplier shall review and where required recalculate the bad debt 
provision and incorporate changes into the budget monitoring as part of 
the budget monitoring process.

Budget monitoring reports in the format as determined by the Authority’s 
management team in line with the monitoring timetable.

The Supplier shall liaise with service managers for budget challenge and 
attend Authority’s management team meetings to obtain clearance of the 
service monitoring reports by the required deadlines.

The Supplier shall make amendments to financial transactions requested 
in the financial system prior to the next period in full compliance with the 
scheme of virements.

In accordance 
with the scheme 
of virements in 
finance 
regulations

P
age 76

A
genda Item

 5



Output Specification:  Finance

18

Reference Service Area Function Outputs Key volumes 
or frequency 
requirement

The Supplier shall seek prior agreement from the CFO/deputy S151 
Officer regarding the allocation of contingency monies. 

The Supplier shall coordinate and action the monthly period close the fifth 
(5th) Working Day after the end of each month (except month 12) which 
shall form part of the closing of accounts process.

The Supplier shall, in conjunction with project managers, produce capital 
tables for agreement including year to date spend and projections.  The 
Supplier shall be responsible for project profiling amendments.

The Supplier shall make amendments to capital programmes via financial 
transactions requested in the financial system.

The Supplier shall provide financial support to those projects which are of 
critical importance to the Authority, enabling it to deliver its business 
strategy.

FIN006 Strategic 
Projects

The Supplier shall support the Authority as a finance lead in delivering its 
projects.  The Supplier shall (inter alia):

 provide advice on the financial aspects of project implementation (for 
example financial structure)

 provide costing/modelling as required for options appraisal and 
business cases

 attend at project team meetings and project board meetings as 
required

 review the financial elements contained in committee reports including 
use of resources and risk; and

 set up project codes.P
age 77

A
genda Item

 5



Output Specification:  Finance

19

Reference Service Area Function Outputs Key volumes 
or frequency 
requirement

The Supplier shall provide a flexible and appropriately qualified resource 
to be deployed to projects to enable project milestones and committee 
reporting deadlines to be met.  In addition, the Supplier shall provide 
resource to attend meetings as required by the lead officers on corporate 
projects.

The Supplier shall ensure financial information in reports to external 
bodies, individuals, members and senior officers is accurate, consistent, 
complete and timely.  The Supplier shall ensure decisions are taken in 
accordance with the Authority’s constitution, relevant financial regulations 
and the Authority’s scheme of delegation.

The Supplier shall produce capital and revenue monitoring reports and 
covering reports for committees in line with committee papers deadlines 
and the committee timetable.

In preparing an expenditure report the Supplier shall have regard to the 
relevant codes of practice and legislation (currently ‘Local Government 
transparency Code’ October 2014), the Data Protection Act 1998, 
Freedom of Information Act 2000 and the Environmental Information 
Regulations 2004 when preparing the information to be published.

The Supplier shall provide all necessary information to allow for the 
external audit to be completed with a draft ISA 260 by the required 
deadline with an unqualified audit opinion.

FIN007 Corporate 
Reporting

The Supplier shall carry out all the required year end processes to prepare 
and deliver the annual SoAs including (but not limited to) collection fund 
and in accordance with legislation, current guidance (currently ‘The Code 
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom’) and 
SeRCOP.  In doing so the Supplier shall (inter alia):

 liaise with and respond to external auditors; and

Annually
Code of Practice 
on Local 
Authority 
Accounting in 
the United 
Kingdom and 

P
age 78

A
genda Item

 5



Output Specification:  Finance

20

Reference Service Area Function Outputs Key volumes 
or frequency 
requirement

 publish a notification to view the accounts. SeRCOP

The Supplier shall prepare the SoAs to be reported to audit committee in 
accordance with the statutory timescales and to meet local timescales for 
submission to the relevant public meetings 

Prior to the closure of accounts each year, the Supplier shall provide 
appropriate and relevant training to budget holders and provide them with 
guidance notes and deadlines to enable them to carry out their tasks 
throughout the accounts closure process.

The Supplier shall accurately complete the “Whole of Government” 
accounts as required and by the deadlines set by the DCLG and shall 
ensure that clearance is given by the S151 Officer.  The Supplier shall 
submit whole of government accounts, grant claims and returns, statutory, 
statistical and other returns as required and in line with externally set 
deadlines. 

The Supplier shall, in accordance with the Audit Commission Act 1988 
and the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 and 2011:

 liaise with the S151 Officer and place the agreed advertisement in the 
local press; and

 make available documents requested for public inspection to persons 
entitled to inspect.

Audit 
Commission Act 
1988 and 
Accounts and 
Audit 
Regulations 
2003 and 2011

P
age 79

A
genda Item

 5



Output Specification:  Finance

21

Reference Service Area Function Outputs Key volumes 
or frequency 
requirement

The Supplier shall, where required under the constitution, prepare or input 
into delegated power reports and all relevant committee reports including 
(but not limited to) budget overview and scrutiny reports.

The Supplier shall, where required, review and provide financial clearance 
of DPRs and reports to committees by the required timescales – currently 
two (2) Working Days (clearance where DPR/committee report is supplied 
fully completed to finance).

The Supplier shall attend committee meetings (including pre-meetings) 
where relevant and required either as the representative of the S151 
Officer or to support a report by presenting the report, providing 
explanations or answering questions.

The Supplier shall respond to councillors’ requests for information in 
accordance with the Authority’s protocols.

The Supplier shall, through and in consultation with the Authority, respond 
to enquiries from the press within the timelines advised by the Authority’s 
communications team.

The Supplier shall respond to government and/or CIPFA benchmarking 
requests for information within the timelines set as required by the client.

Quarterly

Returns
The Supplier shall prepare all statutory, statistical and other actual returns 
and statements in accordance with relevant guidance and deadlines 
(statutory, government, departmental or otherwise) including (but not 
limited to):

 capital payments and receipts

 capital outturn

Quarterly

P
age 80

A
genda Item

 5



Output Specification:  Finance

22

Reference Service Area Function Outputs Key volumes 
or frequency 
requirement

 capital estimates returns

 revenue actuals

 quarterly accrued revenue expenditure

 revenue outturn

The Supplier shall prepare benchmarking and other statistical returns or 
surveys as required by the Authority (for example CIPFA statistics).

The Supplier, if requested, shall act as the finance lead and provide 
financial advice on projects developed by the Authority.

The Supplier shall evaluate the robustness and viability of financial 
recovery plans, business plans and project plans as required to ensure 
financial viability.

The Supplier shall provide on-going, ad hoc financial advice as agreed 
with senior management.

Annually and 
quarterly

The Supplier shall attend senior management meetings to raise issues 
arising of a financial nature and to provide challenge on budget 
monitoring, budget proposals, outturn, etc.

The Supplier shall carry out financial evaluations on the financial impact 
that changes in legislation may have on Authorities services and shall 
report on such impacts to the Authorities as and when required.

The Supplier shall provide support to Authority services by providing 
financial advice and by challenging, checking and validating the financial 
data or service based contracts and agreements.

FIN008

The Supplier shall provide advice on, and assess the financial impact of, 
DPRs, committee reports, briefings and shall liaise, where required, with 

P
age 81

A
genda Item

 5



Output Specification:  Finance

23

Reference Service Area Function Outputs Key volumes 
or frequency 
requirement

contributing officers prior to providing finance clearance.

Capital financing
The Supplier shall:

 ensure compliance with CIPFA’s code on Prudential Framework for 
Local Authority Capital Finance or any subsequent regulatory 
requirements

 ensure that any capital financing is affordable, prudent and sustainable 
and conducted in line with the Prudential Framework and Authority’s 
prudential indicators, ensuring that there is no breach of the Authority’s 
prudential limits.

As and when 
required

The Supplier shall undertake the above in accordance with appropriate 
accounting practices and standards and within statutory and regulatory 
requirements.

The Supplier shall calculate the minimum revenue provision for current 
and future years in line with Authority policy and the prevailing Finance 
Act.

Cash Book
The Supplier shall deal with all cashbook related activities which shall 
include (but shall not be limited to):

 dealing with all bank queries in a timely manner ensuring that these 
adhere to financial regulations

Daily

FIN009 Cash Book 
and Banking

 maintaining bank mandates so that all signatories to the Authority’s 
bank accounts are up-to-date and any changes notified to the bank 
immediately in accordance with the banking mandateP

age 82

A
genda Item

 5



Output Specification:  Finance

24

Reference Service Area Function Outputs Key volumes 
or frequency 
requirement

 clearing processing and posting all unidentified income to the correct 
budget area within the main general account clearing on a daily basis

 sorting and filing daily statements relating to accounts 

 reconciling income between the Authority’s bank accounts and the 
accounting system to ensure that all items are posted correctly and 
that the accounting system balances with the bank statement.  This 
includes daily reconciliation of the Authorities’ banking systems (e.g. 
Barclays.net), Internet, cashiers and PAYE Net fund at least monthly, 
and the posting of reconciling items.

 processing internal fund transfers requested by Authority services

The Supplier shall provide advice to the Authority to ensure that it is fully 
compliant with all applicable taxation legislation including (but not limited 
to) VAT and the CIS (construction industry scheme.  This includes 
statutory reporting to and liaison with HMRC as well as ad hoc request for 
information and submissions.

The Supplier shall ensure submission of monthly VAT (including the partial 
exemption calculation) and CIS returns and the annual information return 
to HMRC are on time and accurate and supported by a complete audit 
trail.

FIN010 VAT 
Accounting 
and 
construction 
industry 
scheme (CIS)

The Supplier shall reclaim all VAT due to the Authorities.  

The Supplier shall provide the Authorities with all advice required on 
taxation related queries and shall respond to ad hoc VAT claims.

The Supplier must remain up to date with current VAT legalisation and 
brief the client on potential VAT claims the Authorities (via the Supplier) 

P
age 83

A
genda Item

 5



Output Specification:  Finance

25

Reference Service Area Function Outputs Key volumes 
or frequency 
requirement

may want to pursue.  

The Supplier shall ensure that advice provided is up-to-date with 
legislative requirements and shall ensure that staff are aware of the VAT 
implications of actions within the service.

The Supplier shall ensure that the Authorities’ VAT manual for staff is kept 
up-to-date, accurate and accessible to all staff.

The Supplier shall ensure that staff are briefed as required on taxation 
legislation that has an impact on Authorities’ services and shall deliver 
training as required by the client.

The Supplier shall provide all required information and supporting 
evidence required for the year end accounting process including liaison 
with and provision of information to the auditor.

The Supplier shall provide initial and refresher VAT training as required by 
the client.

The Supplier shall review grants in line with grant conditions to ensure 
correct application and maximisation of external funding opportunities.

The Supplier shall monitor grants as part of the budget monitoring 
process.

The Supplier shall maximise the amount of grants that can be claimed with 
eligible expenditure as per the relevant grant conditions.

FIN011 Grants 
(receivable)

The Supplier shall, where relevant, prepare grant and other claims or 
returns with supporting evidence on behalf of the Authorities and liaise 
with government departments, internal and external audit in convection 

P
age 84

A
genda Item

 5



Output Specification:  Finance

26

Reference Service Area Function Outputs Key volumes 
or frequency 
requirement

therewith including (but not limited to):

 ensuring that all grant income is received and correctly coded

 liaising with the relevant services to ensure that the information 
required to complete the return or claim is provided (for example 
Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit/Council Tax support).

Where grant claims, other claims or returns are prepared by the Authority 
services, the Supplier shall review these prior to submission to ensure that 
they are correct and in accordance with the grant conditions or other 
guidance issued by the deadlines set out and in preparation before they 
are sent to the external auditors (where required).

The Supplier shall review grant claims/ returns for compliance with grant 
conditions and completeness and accuracy of completion prior to 
submission to the funding body by the deadlines set out and in preparation 
before they are sent to the external auditors by the deadlines set out in the 
certification instruction.

Authority services must provide grant claims at least five (5) Working Days 
before the submission deadline.

The Supplier shall ensure that all grant claims are submitted to the 
external auditors and/or relevant government department by the deadlines 
set in the auditor’s certification instruction (CI index) and in accordance 
with grant conditions.

Currently eight 
(8) as set out in 
the CI index

The Supplier shall make the necessary arrangements required to assist 
the external auditor in its audit of grant claims in a timely manner and 
respond where possible on the same day as the request.

FIN012 Systems 
administration 

The Supplier will provide a computerised general ledger system that is 
fully integrated and/or interfaced with all relevant computerised systems in 
use at the Authority.  The computerised general ledger system will be 

P
age 85

A
genda Item

 5



Output Specification:  Finance

27

Reference Service Area Function Outputs Key volumes 
or frequency 
requirement

available for use by all relevant staff.  and 
accounting System administration

The Supplier will provide a “right first time” for users comprehensive 
system administration function for the general ledger and all computerised 
financial management systems used by the Supplier, including but not 
limited to:

 Ensuring that the data on financial management systems is up to date 
and relevant 

 Ensuring the integrity and security of the data held on financial 
management systems

 Ensuring that all relevant users have the required access to the 
relevant systems as required

 Setting up, maintaining and suspending users including user access 
and privileges and workflow rules as per finance client requirements

 Setting up and maintaining codes and coding structures in accordance 
with SeRCOP and as per finance client requirements and will review 
these on an ongoing basis

 Providing training for new users and providing periodic refresher 
training for users as required by the client

 Processing journals and other transactions as required
 Ensure that the client is aware of the introduction of new versions of 

the financial management systems in use and agree implementation 
as required

 Managing the process for testing and implementing new versions, 
patches and upgrades to systems, including providing training to all 
users as required

 Advising the Authorities on unused, new or improved functionality in 
the financial systems and agreeing with the client which aspects are to 
be implemented, to include providing training for all users as requiredP

age 86

A
genda Item

 5



Output Specification:  Finance

28

Reference Service Area Function Outputs Key volumes 
or frequency 
requirement

System accounting
The Supplier will provide a comprehensive system accountancy function, 
to facilitate effective financial management, including but not limited to:
 Ensuring all financial systems are reconciled
 Providing, maintaining and developing general financial reports as 

required by the client for use by users
 Providing, maintaining and developing bespoke financial reports as 

required by the client for use in specific circumstances
 to continually review the provision of financial information to users to 

identify, advise on and implement improvements and best practice
 proactively identify and act upon the requirements of users
 maintain and update the fixed asset register throughout the year and, 

as part of the process of closing the accounts, shall ensure that it is 
accurate.

 work with services and obtain information to correctly process 
recharges relating to all relevant central support services in 
accordance with SeRCOP on a quarterly basis, ensuring that the 
correct cost centres (receivers) are recharged.

 verify and post approved credit card transaction journals within five (5) 
Working Days of receipt of the credit card bills and the transactions 
being approved

FIN021 Financial 
Administration

Contracts
In conjunction with the procurement team, the Supplier shall ensure that 
third party contracts for the finance service retained by the Authorities are 
accurately retendered, maintained, managed and administered as per the 
finance contracts register.  Current contracts include:

 banking contract

 VAT helpline contract

 Treasury advisors

P
age 87

A
genda Item

 5



Output Specification:  Finance

29

Reference Service Area Function Outputs Key volumes 
or frequency 
requirement

 debt recovery agents

Insurance Administer insurance service

 procure insurance contract up to Authority approval

 provide relevant training to service manager.

The Supplier shall provide treasury management services including (but 
not limited to) the management of cash flows, banking, money-market and 
capital-market transactions, the effective control of the risks associated 
with those activities and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent 
with those risks.

The Supplier shall secure effective arrangements for treasury 
management in accordance with the CIPFA code of practice on treasury 
management and in accordance with the Authority’s standing orders and 
financial regulations.

FIN009 Treasury 
Management

The Supplier shall manage the Authorities use of capital and project 
financings, borrowing, investment and hedging instruments and 
techniques in line with the Authority’s treasury management strategy and 
industry guidelines such as the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury 
Management in the Public Services, the Prudential Code for Capital 
Finance in Local Authorities:  Fully Revised guidance Notes for 
Practitioners 92007) and the Practitioner’s Guide to Capital Finance in 
Local Government (2008).

CIPFA Code of 
Practice for 
Treasury 
Management in 
the Public 
Services, 
Prudential Code 
for Capital 
Finance in Local 
Authorities:  
Fully Revised 
guidance Notes 
for Practitioners 
(2007) and the 
Practitioners 

P
age 88

A
genda Item

 5



Output Specification:  Finance

30

Reference Service Area Function Outputs Key volumes 
or frequency 
requirement
Guide to Capital 
Finance in Local 
Government 
(2008)

The Supplier shall prepare and adhere to the Authority’s treasury 
management strategy which will be prepared by the Authorities on an 
annual basis

 Prepare and present to A&(C)G Committee
 TMS
 TM mid year report
 TM

Cash management
The Supplier shall manage all aspects of the daily cash flow of the 
Authority in a manner that ensures liquidity and security of short term 
assets in line with the Authority’s treasury management strategy

In providing such management the Supplier shall undertake activities 
including (but not limited to):
 management of daily cash flows and cash flow forecasting
 daily dealing of cash including deposits and investments
 facilitation of CHAPS payments
 monitoring of cash balances including accurate monthly reconciliations
 management and administration of the Authority bank accounts
 cash flow forecasting and comparing forecasts to actuals
 banking relationship management

Daily

Daily

On average 
sixty five (65) 
per month

P
age 89

A
genda Item

 5



Output Specification:  Finance

31

Reference Service Area Function Outputs Key volumes 
or frequency 
requirement

 ensuring counter party limits are not breached
 keep detailed records in an appropriate form

Monthly

Investment and Borrowing
The Supplier shall:

 provide rigorous analysis of treasury management decisions

 assist those responsible for treasury management decisions to 
identify, measure and fully understand the implications of those 
decisions particularly with regard to the risks to the Authority

 ensure all transactions with counter parties are in compliance with the 
Authorities’ treasury management strategy; and

 ensure compliance with CIPFA’s treasury management code. CIPFA’s 
treasury 
management 
code

Reporting
The Supplier shall:

 produce accurate and relevant reports so as to enable the Authorities 
to make informed financial decisions based on accurate reporting of 
treasury management balances on a daily, weekly, monthly and 
annual basis

 properly record and account for the results of treasury management 
decisions and transactions

 provide required information for month end and year end accounting 
and in response to audit queries

Quarterly
CIPFA’s code 
on Prudential 
Framework for 
Local Authority 
Capital Finance, 
Prudential 
Framework

P
age 90

A
genda Item

 5



Output Specification:  Finance

32

Reference Service Area Function Outputs Key volumes 
or frequency 
requirement

 maintain full audit trails so that it can respond with a full audit trail to 
any queries raised by the audit committee or scrutiny committee

 report to CRC on treasury activities on a quarterly basis

 report to audit committee and cabinet and the relevant Authority

 TMS

 TMS mid year

 TM outturn

Authority’s 
minimum 
revenue 
provision policy 
and prevailing 
Finance Act

 Provide conclusion on the financial standing of the company and 
assessment of the financial risk, ensuring that D & B or Experian 
reports and financial ratios calculated are correct and have used 
the right figures from the SoAs.

 The Supplier shall provide advice on capital financing as required in 
order to ensure that appropriate funding is available and the best 
use is made of resources.

P
age 91

A
genda Item

 5



Output Specification:  Finance

33

4. Definitions and Glossary
The words in this Finance Output Specification shall have the meanings attributed to them in the Agreement where the context so permits and 
unless otherwise stated.

In this Finance Output Specification, unless the context otherwise requires, the following words and expressions shall have the meanings given 
below:

Term Definition
CFO mans the Authority’s Chief Finance Officer who also fulfils the role of S151 Officer
CHAPS means the Clearing House Automated Payment System
CIPFA means the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy
CIS means the Construction Industry Scheme as set out in the Finance Act 2004 and the Income Tax (Construction 

Industry Scheme) Regulations 2005 or any subsequent scheme which may supersede it from time to time
Council Tax means the tax levied and collected by each billing authority in accordance with section 1 of the Local Government 

Finance Act 1992 (as amended from time to time)
Council Tax Benefit means a benefit provided for by virtue of the scheme under Section 123 of the Social Security Contributions and 

Benefits Act 1992 (as amended from time to time) which is administered by the billing authority in the form of a 
payment of payments by the authority to the entitled person or a reduction in the amount of Council Tax payable by 
the entitled person or both

Council Tax support means the scheme operated by local authorities which replaces Council Tax Benefit from 1 April 2013 and provides 
relief to an individual on low income in respect of their Council Tax liability

DCLG means the Department for Communities and Local Government

Term Definition
DFG means Disabled Facilities Grant
DPR means an Authority delegated powers report such as ‘Individual Cabinet member decision’
Funding Strategy shall have the meaning given to it in FIN010 below

P
age 92

A
genda Item

 5



Output Specification:  Finance

34

Statement
HMRC means Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs
Housing Benefit means the payment made by local authorities on behalf of an individual on low income in respect of housing costs
HR means the Authority’s human resources department
HRA means the Authority’s housing revenue account
IAS means International Accounting Standards
IFRS means the International Financial Reporting Standards
ISA 260 means International Standard on Auditing (UK and Ireland) 260)
LAAP means the Local Authority Accounting Panel
MTFS means the Authority’s medium term financial strategy
NNDR means National Non-Domestic Rates being a tax on properties which are not used for domestic purposes
QRW means the quarterly return of wages and salaries
REFCUS means the Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute
Term Definition
S151 Officer means the Officer appointed by the Authority in compliance with its obligations under section 151 of the Local 

Government Act 1972
SMT/B means the service management team/strategic management board (the chief executive and directors)
SOA means a statement of account

P
age 93

A
genda Item

 5



CSP Risk Register

Note

This document has been extracted from Excel.

P
age 94

A
genda Item

 5



CSP Risks – Strategic

Risk No Type Date 
raised Owner Workstream 

Lead Risk Consequence Treat or 
tolerate? Mitigation Update Likelihood Impact Score Status

S-001 Strategic 08/10/2014 Tricia 
Hughes

Steve Bishop No clear boundary between in-
scope and retained elements of 
each service that is to be 
outsourced

There will be either a gap in or 
duplication of resource at the 
boundary between the provider 
and the Councils

Treat Recommendations to be sought from service 
heads on where the boundary should be drawn, 
Project Steering Group to approve following 3rd 
draft completion

06.11.15  Within the project, specifications have been further 
refined, following service stream and core dialogue.  This 
means that there is a better understanding of boundaries.  
Separately, South and Vale have produced dependency maps 
for all the main processes linking retained services and in-
scope services, clarifying the boundaries, which have been 
provided to bidders.
26.01.16  No change.  But with shrinking window before 
01.08.16 S&V contract commencement date, the project 
manager needs to prioritise dependency /handoff planning 
with preferred bidders.
ADDITIONAL MITIGATION:  RESOLVE URGENTLY IN LOT 1 
PREFERRED BIDDER-LOT 2 PREFERRED BIDDER-5 
COUNCILS DISCUSSIONS
12.02.16  (CD - update from SG call of 11.02)  The 
dependency mapping exercise should help to mitigate this 
risk.  Haylee Wilkins is preparing a master document for all 
five councils, based on SME feedback.  She will incorporate 
the South and Vale dependencies into this master document 
on 23.02, by which time it should be complete.

Almost 
certain

Moderate 15 Open

S-003 Strategic 08/10/2014 Chris AtkinsonJohn Sharland Partnership contract is not flexible 
enough to accommodate the 
scale/direction of change required 
by the councils over the term.

Council either 1. overpays for 
services or 2. partner is put 
under unreasonable strain 
regarding volumetrics.

Tolerate Build in appropriate clauses in contract.  Link 
Partnership development processes with 
councils' corporate planning processes.

28.1.16 Dialogue complete and change mechanism built into 
contract terms to accommodate need for flexibility

Unlikely Moderate 6 Open

S-004 Strategic 01/12/2014 Steve BishopJohn Newton Single solution does not recognise 
the differences between the 
councils

operational problems for one or 
more of the councils

treat identify key areas of difference in service 
requirements.  Resolve where possible.  Identify 
the costs of be spoking through dialogue.  Agree 
mechanism for dealing with the costs 
associated with retaining bespoke solution

24/03/2016 - DA - Please advise what mechanism was agreed and review it in light of this happening this week with ITUnlikely Moderate 6 Open

S-005 Strategic 08/10/2014 Steve BishopJohn Newton Any Traded Service to third parties 
that could be impacted adversely by 
the procurement.

Potential loss of third party 
customers, reductions in income.

Treat Review third party relationships for each 
council.  Identify any 
dependencies/requirements as part of 
customer input into specification development

09.12.15   Update from JN: Consider any material 
consequence of bidders' financial proposals as part of 
evaluation process.  Facilitate supplier liaison with third 
parties after preferred providers are announced.

Possible Minor 6 Open

S-006 Strategic 08/10/2014 Tricia 
Hughes

Steve Bishop Incompatibility of service strategies 
(e.g. IS/IT) between Councils 
reduces potential benefits

The outsourced service does not 
provide what each council needs 
to deliver corporate and 
organisational  objectives

Treat Governance put in place to resolve conflicts 
between councils.  Cost benefit analyses of be 
spoking

06.11.15  No incompatibilities have arisen to date.  To be 
assessed at tender evaluation.
26.01.16  High level assessment at tender evaluation did not 
flag any incompatibilities.  However, it is still unclear whether 
the 5 councils have the appetite to promote joint strategies 
(such as a joint IT strategy), or, whether individual councils 
will wish to retain sovereign control over strategies.  Covered 
in S-018 risk below.

Rare Moderate 3 Open

S-008 Strategic 24/11/2014 Chris AtkinsonSteering Group The procurement scope leaves 
retained service components 
unviable

Reduction in net financial 
benefits, service quality

Review retained operating model, opportunities 
to collaborate, integrate into other retained 
functions.  Identify opportunities for alternative 
use of surplus property

Each local authority will need to consider the retained 
services when decisions are reached on Lot 1 and Lot 2. This 
could lead to further discussions with partner authorities 
around sharing retained services.
12.02.16  (CD - update from SG call of 11.02)  Discussions 
with regard to retained services have started at CE-level.  The 
SG agreed that the Impact should be reduced to 'Negligible', 
giving a colour-rating of 'Yellow'.

Almost 
certain

Negligible 5 Open

P
age 95

A
genda Item

 5



S-009 Strategic 27/11/2014 Steve BishopJohn Sharland The procurement provides overall 
value for money but not in relation to 
certain individual services

Council unable to demonstrate 
VFM for individual services

Treat Develop appropriate mechanisms for 
benchmarking and if necessary terminating or 
retendering services that do not offer vfm

Dialogue will not be concluded until the Councils are satisfied 
that they have identified a solution that meets their needs.  
This could include being satisfied that each component of the 
overall Services provides value for money.  Include 
documented commitments to benefits.

28.1.16 Dialogue completed and benchmarking provisions 
included within contract terms

Rare Moderate 3 Open

S-010 Strategic 27/11/2014 Steve BishopJohn Newton When the council next has to go 
through a savings round it will have 
a much smaller pool of in-house 
services from which to make 
savings requiring it to renegotiate its 
external contracts.  

Limited ability to deliver service 
savings

Treat Require volume based pricing.  Use partnership 
to identify transformational savings opportunities

12.02.16  (CD - update from SG call of 11.02)  Future 
governance arrangements, and the implementation of 
Capita's Innovation Hub (on the assumption that the contract 
will be signed) will assist in identifying opportunities for 
savings in the future.

Likely Major 16 Open

S-011 Strategic 27/11/2014 Tricia 
Hughes

John Newton Any large team on the contractor 
side providing services to a number 
of councils could end up 
concentrating on larger, higher 
profile customers at the expense of 
smaller clients

Failure to deliver benefits Treat Likelihood is that combined client will have more 
influence than single district

09.12.15  Update from JN:  Need councils to confirm 
adequate levels of capacity and seniority for developing and 
delivering agreed client agenda.   Column H entry changed 
from 'Tolerate' to 'Treat'.

Possible Moderate 9 Open

S-013 Strategic 02/12/2014 Chris AtkinsonJohn Newton Tension between objectives set and 
outcomes required (e.g. maximise 
income collection, but avoid heavy 
handed approach to enforcement)

Reputational damage Treat Councils to develop portfolio of outcomes and 
objectives and scenario-test for potential 
conflicts.  Identify priorities and specify 
accordingly.

09.12.15  Limitations and outcomes set out in procurement 
documentation.  Client governance activity to make sure 
these outcomes delivered in an effective and pragmatic 
manner.

Possible Major 12 Open

S-014 Strategic 02/12/2014 Steve BishopShona Ware External customers do not 
understand or have confidence in 
outsourced services

Reduced customer satisfaction, 
poor engagement

Treat Comms strategy to identify and address 
external communication needs

Draft strategy with steering group for approval

23.09.15  The Comms Workstream Lead has produced and 
is implementing a strategy which the Comms WSL Support 
Reps were happy with.   However, we do not know whether 
this has been formally agreed by the Steering Group.

28.1.2016 The communications workstream lead continues to 
work in line with the communications strategy produced for 
the five councils.    Up until now most of the comms work has 

Unlikely Moderate 6 Open

S-015 Strategic 02/12/2014 Mark 
Gibbons

Mark Gibbons Staff do not see an opportunity for 
them in new solution

Morale decrease, higher turnover, 
resistance to the process

treat Internal comms plan, bidder involvement during 
procurement

26.08.2015  Staff to meet bidders will no longer take place.  
Qs and As were distributed at South and Vale on 25.08.15 
(Finance on 26.08.15).

23.10.15  (update from MG) - covered by internal comms 
plan.

11.11.15  Staff briefings and TUPE workshops took place in 
Sep and Oct.  There will be further staff briefings in January, 
after the issuing of the report recommending the Preferred 
Bidders.

25.11.15  (from WSL call with MG)  Update as previously.                                                                                       
27.01.16 Staff briefings took place.  MG and Shona Ware 
meeting with Capita today to discuss comms plan.  Shona 
also talking to Vinci.

Possible Major 12 Open

S-016 Strategic 05/12/2014 Tricia 
Hughes

John Newton Mismatch between commercial 
objectives of councils and 
supplier(s)

Inability to change commercial 
structure, implement demand 
reduction initiatives

Treat Ensure client side has appropriate commercial 
awareness.  Scope financial evaluation criteria 
to include long term cost reduction targets. 
Structure pricing model to cater for volume 
changes.  Include appropriate benchmarking 
clauses and enforce.  

Unlikely Major 8 Open

S-017 Strategic 08/12/2014 Jane Eaton Pat Connell Change in corporate policy / 
strategic objectives of one or more 
of the councils.

Incompatibility of operational 
parameters, potential withdrawal 
from collaboration

Treat/TolerateClient-side governance to have appropriate 
provisions and protocols for annual 
development, renegotiation of benefits targets, 
novation, exit

09.12.15  Update from JN: Workstream Lead changed from 
John Newton to Pat Connell.
26.1.2016  - Client side and governance thereof being 
developed by the Chief Executives. Paper in Cabinet Reports. 
No further details provided yet.

19.2.16 - DA Comments - Update once Governance agreed

Possible Major 12 Open

S-018 Strategic 18/12/2014 Chris 
Atkinson

Steve Bishop Councils cannot articulate the 
strategic requirements for the in-
scope service mix to deliver.

Potentially inflexible solution, 
reduced level of contractually 
guaranteed benefits

Treat Work with strategic service directors to identify 
extent of shared ambition.  Capture the 
requirement for flexibility in the contract and 
dialogue the optimum position of flexibility vs 
guaranteed benefits.

06.11.15  In addition to detailed service specifications, which 
have been agreed and harmonised between the five councils, 
we have articulated five over-arching service outcomes which 
bidders are positively responding to.
26.01.16  No significant progress in articulating or agreeing 
strategic requirements.
5 councils to clarify (with Lot 1 supplier) the ownership of in 
scope strategies (whether supplier or client responsibility) 
and, if client responsibility, the extent of appetite for joint vs 
individual strategies

Unlikely Major 8 Open

P
age 96

A
genda Item

 5



CSP Risks – Design
Risk No Type Date raised Owner Workstream 

Lead Risk Consequence Treat or 
tolerate? Mitigation Update Likelihood Impact Score Status

D-001 Design 08/10/2014 Steve 
Bishop

Steve Bishop Service Specifications do not 
capture the Councils' ambitions.

Solutions will not deliver beyond 
more efficient versions of current 
solution(s), competition may be 
restricted to incumbent

Treat Research strategy/objectives with senior 
management/political leadership, include cross-cutting 
statement of requirements based on common and 
individual ambition

12.11.15  Service specs, including overarching 
objectives, were harmonised and finalised in consultation 
with stakeholders across all five councils in March 2015.  
Subsequently, they have been further refined by council 
stakeholders and bidders.  They are therefore deemed to 
capture all the councils' ambitions as reflected in bidders'  
Service Delivery Plans (SDPs).

26.01.16  Final bids demonstrate that bidders have 
responded well to the overarching and added value 
requirements.  Innovation and transformational 
commitments.  Much more than simply cheaper service 
delivery.

Rare Major 4 Open

D-002 Financial Steve 
Bishop

Steve Bishop Project budgets are an estimate Budget is exceeded Treat 26.01.16  Consultancy budget has been exceeded but at 
South's risk, which will be funded from procurement 
savings (gain share formula agreed between SB & JN).
Savings for all councils are far greater than all previous 
estimates (e.g. lot 1 contract term savings are over £27% 
less than baseline).
Plus, substantial opportunities for additional 
transformation hub savings (over £500m theoretical 
savings already identified in 65 business cases at tender 
date)

Rare Moderate 3 Open

D-003 Design 08/10/2014 Tricia 
Hughes

Steve Bishop No clear boundary between in-
scope and retained elements of 
each service that is to be 
outsourced

There will be either a gap in or 
duplication of resource at the 
boundary between the provider 
and the Councils

Treat Recommendations to be sought from service heads on 
split.  Project Steering Group to review and confirm.

12.11.15  South and Vale's transitional support initiative 
project with the consultants, Teleios, has provided 
dependency maps of the major procedures and 
processes which cross the new client-contractor splits.  
These have been provided to bidders, and will be 
discussed in detail with preferred bidders as part of 
transition planning in early 2016.
26.01.16  No change.  But with shrinking window before 
01.08.16 S&V contract commencement date, the project 
manager needs to prioritise dependency /handoff 
planning with preferred bidders.
ADDITIONAL MITIGATION:  RESOLVE URGENTLY IN 
LOT 1 PREFERRED BIDDER-LOT 2 PREFERRED 
BIDDER-5 COUNCILS DISCUSSIONS
12.02.16  (CD - update from SG call of 11.02)  The 
dependency mapping exercise should help to mitigate 
this risk.  Haylee Wilkins is preparing a master document 
for all five councils, based on SME feedback.  She will 
incorporate the South and Vale dependencies into this 
master document on 23.02, by which time it should be 
complete.

Almost certain Major 20 Open

D-004 Design 08/10/2014 Jane 
Eaton

John Sharland In-flight procurement issues, or post-
signature changes to legislative 
frameworks, e.g. the centralisation 
of Housing Benefit into Universal 
Credit

Size and scope of the service 
procured may change reducing 
the attractiveness of the 
proposition to bidders.
There may be financial penalties 
to the council that would not have 
been incurred if the service 
stayed in-house

Tolerate Provide flexibility within contract to address detail of 
changes when enacted

See F-011 above for pricing of Changes - The cost of any 
Contract Change is calculated in accordance with the 
principles and day rates or day costs (as applicable) set 
out in Schedule 7.1 (Charges and Invoicing).  The 
Supplier is only entitled to increase the Charges if it can 
demonstrate in the Impact Assessment that the proposed 
Contract Change requires additional resources and, in 
any event, any change to the Charges will be strictly 
proportionate to the increase or decrease in the level of 
resources required for the provision of the Services as 
amended by the Contract Change.  Service 
Specifications should also be drafted so that the Supplier 
cannot argue that services are out of scope and not 
covered by Charges.

Possible Moderate 9 Open

P
age 97

A
genda Item

 5



D-005 Design 24/11/2014 Steve 
Bishop

Steve Bishop Specified service requirements 
imply continuation of current service 
model

Innovation stifled and reduced 
competition

Treat Arrange for challenge from customers, senior staff, 
best in class research through preparatory stage

12.11.15  Service transformation and innovation have 
been prioritised by the councils.  Both the tender 
specification and tender evaluation criteria highlight their 
importance.  This has been further emphasised during 
competitive dialogue.  Initial bidders' proposals include 
some substantial innovation and transformation ideas for 
the nine year contract term.
On 11.11.15, Havant indicated it was less interested in 
the transformational/innovation aspect - to be discussed 
by Steering Group.
26.01.16  Final bids have indicated that preferred bidders 
will transform and innovate services after initial transition - 
not steady state current service model.

Rare Moderate 3 Open

D-006 Financial Steve 
Bishop

Pat Connell Unknown costs of 
novating/terminating third part 
contracts.

Contract information could 
impact the cost of the project or 
contracts might not be able to 
novate.

Treat 29.10.15 (CJD) Information is being collected from the 
services, to be posted on portal on 06.11

26.1.2016 - Work identifying 3rd party contracts has 
recommenced. SMEs to provide /update initial 
spreadsheet by 5/2/2016 including contract values and 
provide copies of the contract documents so they can be 
given to each council's legal lead/procurement 

Possible Moderate 9 Open

D-007 Strategic Steve 
Bishop

Haylee Wilkins Poorly designed specs, resulting in 
increased contract cost

Change control orders required 
to ensure contract covers all 
activities, increasing cost to 
councils

Treat Training and support for officers writing specs from 
Implementation partner. Legal review of specs to 
ensure compliance.

26.01.2016 - Bidders solutions detail sufficiently, the 
measures that they intend to apply to ensure service 
delivery is robust. This therefore determines that service 
specifications along with dialog provided the clarity that 
was needed to bidders. This risk will be further tested as 
transition takes place. 

Possible Moderate 9 Open

D-008 Strategic Steering 
Group

Haylee Wilkins Retained service leads not signed 
up to the benefits in the business 
case

Business case not supported by 
the retained organisation.

Treat Appropriate consultation with retained service leads.  
Close working on aligning dependencies at Preferred 
Bidder stage, and throughout transition.

26.01.2016 - |This risk becomes more paramount as we 
move into the transition phase. The appointment of a 
transition manager and the client manager will assist 
greatly with mitigating this risk. 

Possible Minor 6 Open

D-009 Staffing 
and 
Culture

Steering 
Group

Shona Ware Staff form a negative opinion of the 
project

Staff unrest and lack of 
willingness to co-operate with the 
project

Treat 28.01.2016 Working with the HR workstream lead we've 
produced a couple of mini comms plan for keeping staff, 
particularly those affected updated on the project, the 
next steps etc.  We're currently working on one for the 
period between 4 Feb and 31 March.  From 31  March the 
focus will shift to Capita and Vinci leading the comms 
with the affected staff.

Possible Moderate 9 Open

D-010 Staffing 
and 
Culture

Steering 
Group

New client 
team manager

Benefits at risk if managers do not 
accept internal transformation

Business case benefits are 
overstated if internal 
transformation does not happen

Treat Ensure Finance are comfortable with the figures and 
the sponsor is equally happy with figures and rationale.  
Requirement on director of any area who has concerns 
about change to provide clarity and direction.  Meetings 
with each lead to assess willingness to accept change.

12.02.16  (CD - update from SG call of 11.02) The SG 
agreed that they, rather than the new client team 
manager (not yet in post) should be the Workstream 
Lead for this risk.  Communications, and discussions 
with the managers of retained services have started.

Likely Major 16 Open

D-011 Staffing 
and 
Culture

Steering 
Group

Mark Gibbons Bidders place too much reliance on 
possibly incorrect structure charts

If bidders place reliance in 
structure charts they will not all 
match FTE due to deleted posts 
that have not been removed from 
ERP systems, causing incorrect 
pricing.

Treat Clarification note placed in data room regarding 
updated FTE and emphasising need to rely on 
refreshed FTE and finance figures, not structure charts 
due to inaccuracies.

11.11.15  Original mitigation still holds.

25.11.15  (from WSL meeting with MG)  As 

27.01.16 - Capita and Vinci should refer to TUPE staff list 
as and when they are updated.

Unlikely Moderate 6 Open

D-013 Financial Steering 
Group

Adam Savery Corporate overheads unable to be 
reduced in line with reduced size of 
councils.

Retained services bear additional cost.Treat Identify resource reduction/redeployment opportunities. 24.11.15   (from call to AS)  - AS to supply text.

28.01.16 AS  The full initial impact of this risk will not be 
known until the solutions are finalised and the contracts 
signed. Steering group have raised the issue and the 
mitigation has started alongside the costing of current 
and future client costs. True mitigation action is via 
internal restructure once the impact is known. However, 
as the contracts progress there is the potential for new 
business cases to impact further in this area. As such it 
should be closely monitored throughout the contract.

Possible Moderate 9 Open

P
age 98

A
genda Item

 5



D-014 Financial Steering 
Group

Adam Savery Mismatch between Output specs, 
Finance and Staffing information

Bidders do not recognise 
baseline, savings against 
baseline inaccurately reported, 
resource required to resolve 
additional bidder queries

Treat Data room review and refresh 25.09.15 AS (noted by CJD on WSL call) - Finance: 
meetings will provide clarity.  Baseline of Staffing 
Information dependent on TUPE list.  

23.10.15  (from WSL call to AS) - Issue discussed during 
core dialogue.  Clarification of what is in-scope and the 
extent of the service delivery will have been clarified 
through SME dialogue.  The detail behind the baseline 
has been provided.  The issue which remains is around 
staffing and TUPE.

24.11.15  (from WSL call to AS): As part of bidders' 
question, we have reviewed the baseline against the 
staffing information, which should minimise this risk.

28.01.16 AS Risk is classified as unlikely following 
competitive dialogue. Issues remain around finalised 
TUPE list but this will not be resolved until staff are due to 
transfer. Maintenance budgets also require further 
discussion at PB as a result of the assumptions and 
dependencies.

Unlikely Major 8 Open

D-015 Design 08/10/2014 Adam 
Savery

John Sharland Contract Financials predicated too 
far in direction of day one savings

Reduced flexibility and inability to 
demonstrate ongoing VFM

Treat Financial evaluation criteria to award credit for the 
delivery of value for money throughout the initial 
contract term

28.1.16  Financial evaluation has taken account of this Rare Moderate 3 Open

D-016 Design 28/11/2014 Adriana 
Partridge

Steve Bishop Specifications do not capture the 
operational requirements

Gaps in service provision, or 
avoidance of general obligation

Treat Specification to receive several review iterations, 
customer input, strategic level sign-off.  Change 
mechanisms in contract allowing no-cost 
reprioritisation and tweaking

12.11.15  Service specs, including overarching 
objectives, were harmonised and finalised in consultation 
with stakeholders across all five councils in March 2015.  
Subsequently, they have been further refined by council 
stakeholders and bidders.  They are therefore deemed to 
capture all the councils' ambitions as reflected in bidders'  
Service Delivery Plans (SDPs).
26.01.16  Subject Matter Experts carried out technical 
reviews at tender evaluation which have raised some 
gaps, ambiguities, concerns and queries.  Steering 
Group evaluators also raised various queries.  Nothing 
fundamental, mostly minor impact, but some potentially 
major impacts.  These all need to be bottomed out during 
preferred bidder clarification discussions.
ADDITIONAL MITIGATION:  RESOLVE URGENTLY IN 
LOT 1 PREFERRED BIDDER-LOT 2 PREFERRED 
BIDDER-5 COUNCILS DISCUSSIONS
12.02.16  (CD - update from SG call of 11.02)  There has 
been an exercise to obtain additional (to that of the 
evaluation) SME feedback on the SDPs.  This feedback, 
together with the existing feedback, has been 
incorporated into a master spreadsheet by Haylee 
Wilkins, which will be used as an information source for 
questions for the Preferred Bidders.

Almost certain Major 20 Open

D-017 Design 03/12/2014 Chris 
Atkinson

John Sharland Specified scope includes 
components that cannot be 
outsourced for statutory reasons

Vires issue, potential for challengetreat Obtain assurance on vires, retain functions that cannot 
transfer

Advice on vires provided to Councils on 16/06/15

28.1.16 Advice on vires provided to Councils on 16/06/15

Rare Moderate 3 Open

D-019 Design 18/03/2015 Mark 
Gibbons

Steve Bishop LGPS local rules may exclude work 
across more than one council, this 
may be a requirement across the 5 
councils post procurement

TUPE transferred staff to the new 
provider may lose the right to 
their LGPS pension if they work 
across the 5 councils and not 
solely in the council they have 
TUPE transferred from.  This will 
be counter productive for the 
future working of the procured 
services and potentially impact 
the economies of scale

Treat Each council through their Steering Group Member or 
HR Representative to check existing pensions rules 
locally.  Individual pension fund committees to be 
approached for their ability to change this, decision to 
be  made centrally through the Steering Group about 
what and when to take to the individual Pension Fund 
committees.

29.10.15 (CJD) ? Re-assign WSL, Owner to Steve 
Bishop.

11.11.15  Re-assigned to Steve Bishop, in agreement 
with Mark Gibbons.

26.01.11  Informal discussion between SB and 
Oxfordshire LGPS manager dismissed this risk, saying 
that pension funds already have members operating out 
of area, fund managers are more pragmatic, particularly 
with govt intention to merge funds making geographical 
boundaries obsolete.  Need to confirm this in formal 
pension discussions in the run-up to contract start dates.

Unlikely Minor 4 Open

P
age 99

A
genda Item

 5



CSP Risks – Procurement
Risk No Type Date raised Owner Workstream 

Lead Risk Consequence Treat or 
tolerate? Mitigation Update Likelihood Impact Score Status

P-001 Procurement 08/10/2014 Tricia 
Hughes

John Newton Service leads do not prioritise their work on 
the project, or resource capacity not provided 
by individual councils/across the 5 councils

Timescales will slip, quality of 
input to process, lack of 
engagement, lack of data

Tolerate Project Manager to ensure regular engagement 
with Service Leads to closely monitor progress  
and informally on a day to day basis.

18/03/2015 Possible Moderate 9 Open

P-002 Procurement 08/10/2014 Mark 
Gibbons

Mark Gibbons TUPE Regulations - any restrictions on 
restructuring etc. prior to planned date of 
transfer?

If an in-scope service 
restructures prior to 
commencement of service, could 
receive a challenge to individuals 
right to TUPE at tribunal, unfair 
dismissal 

Treat All restructures must be carried out with HR 
engagement and in line with annual budget cuts - 
all service leads to be made aware of rules and 
risks of getting restructures wrong. HR Leads to 
sign off restructures to be in line with TUPE 
regulations.

11.11.15  Mitigation as per original in column I.

25.11.15  - as per original in column I                                                                                                                                            
27.01.16 - Restructures within the councils 
being led by the Chief Executives so not likely to 
conflict with 5 councils project.

Unlikely Moderate 6 Open

P-003 Procurement 08/10/2014 Mark 
Gibbons

Mark Gibbons Staff posts have not all been included in the 
business case making financials incorrect - 
difficult in identifying posts in services

Business case does not reflect 
accurate financials and staff in 
scope have not been briefed.

Treat HR in each Council to consider potentially 
affected services, prior to sign off of 3rd draft 
specification

26.08.15  All posts in-scope are currently being 
reviewed.  TUPE lists and (internal-only)  Client-
Side lists to be produced for all councils by cop 
Fri 4 Sep.

11.11.15  Client-side/retained staff list is 
currently being worked on, alongside TUPE ELI 
information.                                                                          
30.11.15 Client-side/retained list still being 
worked on, this has been reiterated in 
responses to bidders questions.                                                    
27.01.16 Client side still unresolved.  We need 
to be clear on this.                                       
12.02.16  (CD - update from SG call of 11.02)  
The Cabinet reports take into account the 
expected client team costs.  Councils will meet 
their own transition costs.  The SG agreed that 
the Impact should be downgraded from 'Major' 
to 'Moderate', giving this risk a colour-rating of 
Amber.     

Likely Moderate 12 Open

P-004 Procurement 08/10/2014 Sharpe 
Pritchard

Sharpe 
Pritchard

Procurement process open to challenge if 
processes are not robust enough (esp. 
evaluation).

Challenge to the procurement 
process can come at any time 
including the Alcatel/stand still 
period and if successful very 
costly to the councils.

Treat Ensure appropriate training of evaluators and 
that all rounds of scoring and evaluation are 
provided with appropriate time and level of 
challenge and moderation to reduce 
inconsistencies and inaccurate scoring. Where 
appropriate engage legal advisor and 
Procurement for review and approval of 
methodology.
Evaluation for PQQ and then CD1 process to 
be reviewed by project board for approval and 
sign off.

Training session held with service streams on 
8th March before start of Detailed Dialogue 
meetings.  SP chaired ISOS moderation 
evaluation meeting and reviewed ISOS 
feedback letters.

28.1.16 Evaluation has taken place and 
moderation subject to legal review.

Unlikely Major 8 Open

P-005 Procurement 08/10/2014 Steve 
Bishop

Pat Connell Security of Bidder intellectual property Leakage of information could give 
unfair advantage to a bidder, 
putting procurement in jeopardy.

Treat Ensure appropriate security coverage of 
communications and data (secure procurement 
portal and network storage), people (NDAs and 
confidentiality undertakings) and evaluation 
content of bidder submissions, evaluation 
scoring sheets and detailed comments.

26/.1.2016 Communication has been through 
the PMO  and access to specific documents 
restricted according to need and whether 
officers /advisors have signed NDAs and 
confidentiality undertakings. All persons involved 
in evaluation  have so signed. 

Unlikely Major 8 Open

P-006 Procurement 08/10/2014 Jane Eaton Pat Connell Conflicts of interest Whether real or perceived an 
accusation of conflict of interest 
leads to failure of trust in the 
fairness of the procurement

Treat Training provided to staff.  Protocols for dealing 
with existing relationships and contact outside 
of formal channels

26.1.2016 - Any person involved as an SME or 
lead or member of steering group and leaders 
and  members and advisors all had to consider 
and advise of any perceived conflict at time of 
signing NDAs etc. Risks assessed at that time

19.2.16 - DA Comments - monitor up to 
contract signing then close

Unlikely Moderate 6 Open

P
age 100

A
genda Item

 5



P-007 Procurement 08/10/2014 Steve 
Bishop

Adam Savery Lack of baseline information in data room for 
bidders to use in solutions

Delay to procurement, sub-
optimal solution, reduced 
opportunity to transfer risk

Treat Early consultation over bidders' requirements 
for the data room.  Nominate leads with 
responsibility for preparing service and financial 
baselines

Baseline information  reviewed after ISOS 
submissions and to be included in the Core 
Dialogue discussions to ensure figures are 
accurate and understood.

25.09.15  AS (noted by CJD on WSL call) - 
Have discussed in dialogue.  Finance meetings 
should provide absolute clarity, and will mitigate 
risk.

23.10.15 (from WSL call to AS) - Finance 
meetings have taken place; detailed baseline 
information is available on the portal.

24.11.15 (from WSL call to AS) - baseline is 
now finalised, refined information having been 
provided.

Rare Major 4 Open

P-009 Procurement 24/11/2014 Jane Eaton Pat Connell Public Consultation: Council fails to 
appropriately consult on proposals

Council consults on proposals 
before they are matured, or after 
the consultation can meaningfully 
affect the decision

Treat View has been provided on consultation 
requirements by the appointed legal advisors.  
Public consultation has been completed across 
all 5 councils.

26.1.2016The 5 councils relied on the advice 
from Sharpe Pritchard on adequacy of 
consultation. 

19.2.16 - DA Comments - find out time limitation 
for legal challenge and montior until that date 
then close

Possible Moderate 9 Open

P-010 Procurement 27/11/2014 Chris 
Atkinson

Sharpe 
Pritchard

Discontinuity between bid teams and 
operational management of the bidder

Ambiguity over promised benefits Treat Structure procurement to ensure all 
commitments are captured contractually within 
the contract suite

Dialogue will not be concluded until the Councils 
are satisfied that they have identified a solution 
that meets their needs.  This will include 
documented commitments to benefits.

28.1.16 Dialogue will not be concluded until the 
Councils are satisfied that they have identified a 
solution that meets their needs.  This will 
include documented commitments to benefits.

Possible Major 12 Open

P-011 Procurement 28/11/2014 Steve 
Bishop

Sharpe 
Pritchard

Contractor may want to ‘cherry-pick’ and 
leave the difficult areas to the client, 
increasing the client side team 

Cost, potential gaps in service Treat Contract will require delivery of entire 
specification.  Price performance mechanism 
will include ratchets to make continued failure 
uneconomic

Dialogue will not be concluded until the Councils 
are satisfied that they have identified a solution 
that meets their needs.  This will include a 
solution which delivers all the service 
requirements.

28.1.16 Dialogue has been concluded. Contract 
is being assembled and will document all 
commitments given by bidders

Unlikely Moderate 6 Open

P-012 Procurement 28/11/2014 Tricia 
Hughes

Adam Savery Divergent or contradictory values e.g. public 
service goals subordinate to profit motive 

Partnership failure Treat Client management focuses on benefits 
delivery, partnership governance to be focused 
on finding synergies between supplier and 
councils

Level of risk has not increased. There have 
been regular meetings of the Steering Group, 
Project Board, and engagement of SME's from 
different authorities during dialogue.
12.02.16  (CD - update from SG call of 11.02) A 
Joint Committee has been agreed, which will 
strengthen the partnership further.

Possible Catastrophic 15 Open

P-013 Procurement 28/11/2014 Steve 
Bishop

Pat Connell Confidential information breaches Reputational damage, 
prosecution, sensitive data made 
public

Treat Require compliance with appropriate data 
security standards

26.1.2016 Current issues of dissemination of 
bidder information to staff now addressed. 
Further information to be provided after all 
cabinet decisions and call in have been 
completed

Possible Major 12 Open

P-014 Procurement 28/11/2014 Steve 
Bishop

John Newton Inability to assure individual service 
quality/VFM within an outsourced package

Failure to achieve required 
service/benefits at individual 
service level

Treat Focus on both overall and individual service 
delivery plans as part of evaluation.  Apply 
appropriate price/quality balance in evaluation.  
Clear targets for individual service delivery and 
balance of KPIs covering each service 
component, appropriately weighted.  Ability to 
partially terminate

09.12.15  Update from JN - mitigation 
unchanged from original in column I.

Possible Major 12 Open

P
age 101

A
genda Item

 5



P-015 Procurement 02/12/2014 Tricia 
Hughes

Sharpe 
Pritchard

Partnership structure and complexity makes it 
difficult to procure any alternative in the future

Reduction in competition, 
incumbent has overwhelming 
advantage

tolerate This is unlikely.  For next procurement the 
market will be fully consulted on opportunities 
and constraints.  Full disclosure of information.  
Suitable exit provisions within contract

The draft Contract will include extension options 
that may be deployed by each Council 
individually to provide flexibility on exit.  

28.1.16 Contract includes appropriate exit 
provisions.

Unlikely Moderate 6 Open

P-016 Procurement 02/12/2014 Steve 
Bishop

Haylee Wilkins Services not in a fit state to be outsourced Outsourcing a problem service 
could lead to additional cost and 
delay to overall benefits 
realisation

tolerate The councils have not identified any such 
problems

26.01.2016 - There are not perceived at this 
stage to be any issues in any of the highlighted 
services that will impact the project, however 
there are options for mitigation should these be 
brought to light. Namely, additional resources 
applied to the effected service area by the 
relevant council, additional resources applied by 
the contractor to assist the transition, or cross 

Possible Minor 6 Open

P-017 Procurement 02/12/2014 Jane Eaton Steve Bishop Overambitious solution is not deliverable Problems in operational phase treat Validation of solution through detailed review of 
commitments, service proposals, supported by 
evidence from other clients and activity

26.01.16  Final bid proposals are certainly 
ambitious but Steering Group evaluators 
assessed deliverability and 'reality checked' 
them as part of the evaluation process.  Firm-
but-fair close management of the contractors 
will be required especially in the run-up to each 
contract start date, managing transition plans, 
mobilisation and implementation plans.  Also 
extensive collaborative problem-solving skills 
will be required to resolve the myriad loose ends 
and unforeseen problems.  The ability of the 
Client Manager, Transition Manager and other 
client team members will be critical, aligned with 
the contractors' abilities.
ADDITIONAL MITIGATION ACTIONS:  
RECRUIT THE BEST CLIENT TEAM 
POSSIBLE, WHO WILL NEED TO MANAGE 
THE CONTRACTORS EXTREMELY CLOSELY 
DURING MOBILISATION/IMPLEMENTATION.
12.02.16  (CD - update from SG call of 11.02)   
Due diligence meetings and transition planning 
meetings with the Preferred Bidders will be key 
to mitigating this risk, as will the subsequent  
mobilisation and implementation phases.  It was 
agreed that this risk should stay red until at least 
1 August 2016.

Likely Major 16 Open

P-018 Procurement 02/12/2014 Steve 
Bishop

Tricia Hughes Service performance averages downwards 
for some councils

Potential lack of vfm at individual 
council level

treat Service requirements and KPIs agreed by all 
councils prior to release

KPI's have been challenged through dialogue 
and in some cases, Councils have noted that 
the expected KPI's exceed current delivery. The 
Councils are now benchmarking against the 
anticipated KPI's to ensure that there is a 
substantial baseline to evaluate impact of 
service changes. 

Possible Moderate 9 Open

P-019 Procurement 02/12/2014 Chris 
Atkinson

Jennifer Burt Inadequate transition plan Service failures, extended 
transition

Treat Bidders to supply comprehensive transition plan 
as part of submission.  This evaluated as part of 
quality assessment

12.02.16  (CD - update from SG call of 11.02) 
JN will be meeting with Jennifer Burt, who is 
preparing a transition project plan, on 16.02.  
Transition to be discussed on SG call of 25.02.

Unlikely Major 8 Open

P-020 Procurement 05/12/2014 Tricia 
Hughes

Steve Bishop Disconnect between procurement  and 
operational staffing

Loss of context, no buy in to 
shared consensus, failure to 
'own' the benefits

treat Develop client structure and fill roles in parallel 
with procurement.  Expose client staff to latter 
stages of procurement so they understand the 
issues and areas of potential tension.  Require 
BAFO bidders to identify their key individuals 
working on the partnership prior to final bids.

26.01.16  No progress as we have yet to appoint 
preferred bidders.  But shrinking window ahead 
of 01.08.16 S&V contract start, in which to 
appoint client team, bidders to identify their 
procurement staff and to establish ways of 
working together.
ADDITIONAL MITIGATION:  RESOLVE 
URGENTLY IN LOT 1 PREFERRED BIDDER-
LOT 2 PREFERRED BIDDER-5 COUNCILS 
DISCUSSIONS

Possible Moderate 9 Open

P-021 Procurement 08/12/2014 Jane Eaton John Newton Change of council control during procurement Delay to procurement, loss of 
supplier confidence

Treat Structure procurement timetable in line with 
elections timetable.  Brief political groups at key 
stages.  Secure appropriate delegations at 
outset

19.2.16 - DA Comments - close at contract signing date Unlikely Minor 4 Open

P
age 102

A
genda Item

 5



P-022 Procurement 08/12/2014 Chris 
Atkinson

Pat Connell Conflict with existing contracts, partnerships 
and arrangements with other public/private 
suppliers

Cost of novation, delay to service 
transformation

treat Councils' procurement staff to undertake 
contract audit exercise to identify ability to 
novate or terminate contracts relating to in-
scope services

Understood lists of all 3rd party contracts was 
being compiled. However not aware if this has 
been provided to procurement officers to carry 
out this work.
29.10.15 (CJD) Third-party contracts being 
identified at all councils, and will be posted on 
the portal on 06.11.15.                                                                                                                                                             
26.1.2016 SMEs have been asked to revisit the 
spreadsheet and update and provide copies of 
contracts by 5/2/2016 for review by legal leads 
in each council . Where appropriate SMEs may 
pass to procurement officers for first review.

Possible Moderate 9 Open

P-027 Procurement 18/03/2015 Sharpe 
Pritchard

Pat Connell OJEU publication 2 weeks after procurement 
regulations are amended 

Full understanding, interpretation 
and guidance of the new 
regulations is not yet fully 
understood or developed.  High 
risk to procurement process and 
potential challenge at 
Alcatel/Stand Still Period

Treat Sharpe Pritchard to advise in good time of 
potential risk and keep a watching brief on all 
updates.  Update council in weekly meetings of 
upcoming activity and requirements

18/03/2015 Ongoing weekly calls with SP.                                                                                                           
26.1.2016 Weekly legal calls continue and 
current issues raised. Draft Preferred bidder 
and alcatel letters being prepared by SP to 
minimise risk at this stage

Unlikely Major 8 Open

P-034 Procurement 18/03/2015 Steve 
Bishop

Pat Connell Suitable lockable secure space cannot be 
provided for storing bidders' submissions, and 
evaluation materials

Security of bidder information 
cannot be guaranteed, and 
potential for legal challenge at 
Alcatel/Stand Still 

Treat Careful consideration of options and location 
and facilities of evaluation to be agreed with 
legal partners

18/03/2015 Protocol applied for ISOS will be 
used for ISDS Portal  used for access to 
documents                                                                                                                                                                              
26.1.2016 Access to hard copies limited and 
securely stored in Project Team room at Vale in 
Milton Park in lockable cabinets while evaluation 
in progress. One set of Original documents now 
in Fireproof safe in legal services at Milton Park

28.1.16 JS A further Inter Authority Agreement 
governing the relationship between the Councils 
during the contract period will be entered into by 
the Councils

Unlikely Major 8 Open

P-037 Procurement 18/03/2015 Tricia 
Hughes

Sharpe 
Pritchard

Any one of the 5 councils wish to leave the 
process

Bidder opportunity decreases 
and potentially willingness to bid

Treat Inter Authority Agreement is a legally binding 
agreement between the parties and covers this 
eventuality

The OJEU contract notice and the tender 
invitation documents allow for the procurement 
to be continued by the remaining Councils, 
although the risk of bidders withdrawing from 
the procurement remains.

Unlikely Catastrophic 10 Open

P-038 Procurement 18/03/2015 Chris 
Atkinson

Chris Draper Risk identification from each work and service 
stream 

Further risks will become 
apparent 

Treat Update risks with each work and service stream 
to understand full detail

30.06.15  Risk and issue updates will be a 
standing item in conference calls; risks will then 
be added/amended as required.    

27.01.16  All Workstream Leads were asked to 
update their risks last July, and there were 
subsequently updates as a result of individual 
discussions.  All Workstream Leads have again 
been asked to update their risks - the deadline is 
Fri 29 Jan. The risk rating for this risk indicates 

Rare Major 4 Open

P-041 Procurement 18/03/2015 Steve 
Bishop

Mark Gibbons Staff and or TU opposition to project and the 
transfer of staff

May cause delays in the process, 
negative messaging, drop in 
motivation, lack of support for 
completion of tasks within the 
project

Treat Continue staff meetings and roll out across the 
5 councils.  Monthly TU meetings across the 5 
councils.  TU sessions during dialogue with the 
bidders.  Comms Strategy to include 
demystifying the process, honest responses to 
staff questions 

11.11.15  APSE report needs to be managed.                                              
30.11.15 APSE report acted on and no major 
issues from it.  TU calls and answers to staff 
questions ongoing, meetings arranged in 
January 2016 to relay preferred bidder.                                                                                                  
27.01.16 - APSE report has been responded to 
and not likely to need further attention.  Currently 
no disruptive opposition. 

Possible Moderate 9 Open

P-042 Procurement 18/03/2015 Tricia 
Hughes

Tricia Hughes Possible Councillor opposition to project May cause negative messaging 
and publicity, unsettling residents 
and staff

Treat Communication strategy to careful manage 
provision of adequate information and key 
messages

Where appropriate, Steering Group Members 
have been holding All Member Briefings, taking 
update reports to Scrutiny or other formal or 
informal meetings to ensure Members are kept 
informed of the progress of the project.

Unlikely Major 8 Open

P-044 Procurement 18/03/2015 Jane Eaton Mark Gibbons Losing key staff due to future uncertainty of 
roles due to procuring of services

Leaving knowledge gaps, loss of 
experience, potentially roles that 
will be difficult to fill, time 
consuming to recruit and train 
new employees

Treat Continue staff meetings and roll out across the 
5 councils.  Monthly TU meetings across the 5 
councils.  TU sessions during dialogue with the 
bidders.  Comms Strategy to include 
demystifying the process, honest responses to 
staff questions 

11.11.15  Mitigation as per column I.   30.11.15 
as per column I.                                                                              
27.01.16 - TU phone discussions and comms 
strategy ongoing.

19.2.16 - DA Comments - HBC and EHDC 
preparing Golden Handcuffs proposals - 
Steering to be advised to consider similar 
mitigation 

Possible Moderate 9 Open

P
age 103

A
genda Item

 5



P-045 Procurement 18/03/2015 Chris 
Atkinson

Jennifer Burt Change of provider start date across the 5 
councils

Transition plans and expectations 
would be rescheduled and may 
carry a cost

Treat Steering Group members referencing existing 
provider contracts to understand break clauses 
and options

19/03/2015 Almost certain Negligible 5 Open

P-046 Procurement 19/03/2015 Steve 
Bishop

Jennifer Burt Holiday of key individuals, resignation or 
reallocation of resources for Board, Steering 
Group, Core Dialogue Team, Workstreams, 
Project Team or SME's

Inadequate information provision, 
decision making, dialogue.  Risk 
to final product

Treat Early planning and circulation of timetables.  
Deputies to be understood and kept abreast of 
the project.   All to check critical path before 
booking holiday.  Holiday diary to be kept up-to-
date.  Steering Group to decide on any 
replacement roles

19/03/2015

24/03/2016 DA Portal (Kahootz) must be kept 
up to date, having taken over a Steering role it is 
not possible to find the latest documents to be 
able to provide effective internal advice, rsulting 
in asking operational questions at Steering or of 
Steering members causing additional work.  
Emailed John Newton 22/03/16 received 
assurance that the portal would be updated.

Almost certain Negligible 5 Open

P-047 Procurement 19/03/2015 Chris 
Atkinson

Mark Gibbons Perception of failure to consult on TUPE Tribunal for affected councils Treat Information share with staff and TUs throughout 
process in monthly meetings, mirrored across 
the 5 councils.  HR workstream to lead on 
appropriate period of consultation about the 
TUPE transfer.

11.11.15  Consultation with all staff between 
April and July 2016, regardless of start dates of 
individual council contracts.   A second 
consultation will take place for those staff with 
delayed contract start dates.                                                        
30.11.15 As at 11.11.15                                            
27.01.16 As at 20.11.15                                      

Possible Moderate 9 Open

P-049 Procurement 19/03/2015 Tricia 
Hughes

Haylee Wilkins Data provided to bidders: accuracy 
challenged

Could result in challenge to the 
process at Alcatel/Stand Still or 
caveated/qualified bids at 
submission of tender stages, 
leaving the councils open to 
increase in costs

Treat Workstreams to audit own data and ensure that 
all 5 councils are providing quality provision of 
data, returns, responses to bidders questions 
and due diligence

19/03/2015
26.01.2016 - Baselining information has been 
consolidated across the five councils and 
existing contracts and service delivery to create 
a "view" of services. This information and been 
provided to bidders monthly from July 2015 
onwards. This has therefore provided bidders 
with transparency regarding service delivery and 
also aids the 5councils client team, once 
established, to actively challenge service 
delivery through the transition period. 

Possible Moderate 9 Open

P-050 Procurement 19/03/2015 Jane Eaton Jennifer Burt Increased capacity requirements across key 
periods within the project

Workstream Leads and SMEs 
will at times be taken out of the 
business for extensive periods of 
time

Treat Quoted FTE of individuals were across the life 
of the project.  Early planning and 
communication will ensure individuals are 
aware of the periods they will be required for 
activity such as evaluation, competitive dialogue 
and bidders questions

19/03/2015

19.2.16 - DA Comments - Mobilisation plans to 
include capacity limitations.  {See John Newton 
for prgramme moving into mobilation} 

Likely Moderate 12 Open

P-051 Procurement 19/03/2015 Chris 
Atkinson

Jennifer Burt Overrunning of any stage of the project e.g. 
evaluation, dialogue 

There is no cushioning in the 
timetable and the project and 
costs would overrun

Treat Careful management of the project and 
reprioritisation of key individuals to be 
committed to the project where necessary

19/03/2015 Possible Moderate 9 Open

P-053 Procurement 19/03/2015 Steve 
Bishop

Pat Connell Cabinet and other key democratic meetings 
do not happen in the limited window the 
project will need decision making

Delay to contract signature and  
transition.  This will delay start 
date and incur cost

Treat Steering Group to ensure meetings fit the 
critical path

19/03/2015    26.1.2016 - Democratic process 
underway Meetings taking place as scheduled                                                                                                                                                                       

Possible Major 12 Open

P-054 Procurement 19/03/2015 Tricia 
Hughes

Pat Connell Public Consultation: Print and Design the risk 
to savings for South and Vale's sub-optimal 
service mixes

South and Vale could incur 
additional costs with their choice 
to opt out of these services within 
the procurement

Treat The project is flexible enough to allow South and 
Vale to add design and print to the contract later 
on should that prove a more cost-effective 
solution

19/03/2015 Unlikely Moderate 6 Open

P-055 Procurement 19/03/2015 Jane Eaton John Newton Public Consultation:  The risk of outsourced 
solution delivering worse vfm than alternative 
models

Additional cost potentially 
incurred by the councils

Treat Short listed bids will be compared against an in-
house capability for quality and VFM

09.12.15  Update from JN - short listed bids will 
be compared against an in-house capability for 
quality and VFM.  Cost baseline prepared for 
VFM comparison, evaluation includes technical 
review by service SMEs.

19.2.16 - DA Comments - John Newton to  
update action/mitigation for this risk?

Rare Catastrophic 5 Open

P-056 Procurement 27/03/2015 Tricia 
Hughes

Tricia Hughes Client-side not well enough defined at point of 
contract award/recommendation.

Uncertainty around contract 
management; delays to 
transition.

Treat All key design principles agreed and articulated 
at the time of Preferred Bidder notification, and 
client-side organisation designed, and lead 
client officer in place (permanent or interim) by 
contract award

The Chief Executives are working towards the 
creation of a new client team, with East 
Hampshire tasked with the creation of a 
JD/Person spec and hay grading for the team 
manager role

Likely Moderate 12 Open

P-057 Procurement 10/03/2016 Steve 
Bishop

John Newton Bidder 3rd parties alter commercial shape of 
the deal

delay to contract signature, 
potential deterioration of VFM

Treat councils to reject material changes to risk 
profile of the deal and hold prime supplier to 
their commitments

Vinci - urgent clarity sought on property 
management/print provision
Capita - review funder requirements, resist 
warranting third party debt repayment

Likely Moderate 12

P
age 104

A
genda Item

 5



CSP Risks – Operational
Risk No Type Date raised Owner Workstream 

Lead Risk Consequence Treat or 
tolerate? Mitigation Update Likelihood Impact Score Status

O-001 Operational 08/10/2014 Steve 
Bishop

Haylee Wilkins Changes to service specifications 
during  dialogue process

Services will not deliver expected 
levels of service to 
internal/external customers

Treat QA to be provided by SME Service Lead to 
ensure that they are fit for purpose on Day 1.  
Subsequent changes enacted through relevant 
contract clauses

26.11.2015 - With the exception of the licensing specification all 
Specs have remained as originally details. EHBC information 
has been added under the guise of Havant. Risk reduced due to 
the stage of the project and closure of dialog. 
26.01.2016 - With the exception of the licensing specification, 
no significant amendments were made to service specifications 
throughout the dialog period or thereafter. Licensing 
Specification provided the both bidders with further clarity 
regarding the councils expectations for service delivery which 
whilst produced a further document, aided the bidders in there 
knowledge and understanding of the service. This was 
therefore not seen to be detrimental. 

Rare Negligible 1 Open

O-002 Operational 08/10/2014 Steve 
Bishop

Haylee Wilkins Service specifications provide an 
incomplete set of requirements 
because they do not address 
implicit as well as explicit 
requirements

Services are not proactive in 
supporting council outcomes, 
just work to the letter of the 
contract, services do not work 
effectively in partnership with 
retained functions

Tolerate Specification QA and challenge processes to 
test whether more explicit statements are 
needed.  Focus on developing a PI/KPI set that 
represents outcomes as well as outputs

26.11.2015 - No perceived issues or concerns in this area. 
Specifications and dialog have determined any local nuances, 
and detailed to bidders any links with retained services. 
26.01.2016 - With the exception of the licensing specification, 
no significant amendments were made to service specifications 
throughout the dialog period or thereafter. Licensing 
Specification provided the both bidders with further clarity 
regarding the councils expectations for service delivery which 
whilst produced a further document, aided the bidders in there 
knowledge and understanding of the service. This was 
therefore not seen to be detrimental. 

Possible Minor 6 Open

O-003 Operational 28/11/2014 Tricia 
Hughes

John Newton Operational problems due to 
increased turnaround time and 
workload of transactional activity 
under KPIs

More workload and cost for client 
function

Treat Price performance mechanism to incentivise 
early resolution of operational problems.  
Partnership governance and reporting 
mechanisms to highlight and focus attention on 
improvement issues.  Appropriate escalation 
measures including step-in and partial 
termination

09.12.15  Update from JN - mitigation as per original in column 
I.

Unlikely Moderate 6 Open

O-004 Operational 28/11/2014 Jane 
Eaton

Tricia Hughes Operational problems during 
contract

Fewer strategic/service benefits 
realised

Treat Clear targets set for service outputs and 
outcomes,  operational performance and wider 
strategic benefits, incentivised through PPM.  
Benefits realisation plan prepared and managed 
by joint client team and supplier partnership 
director(s)

This will be the role of the new Client Team when in operation. 
Details of the Client team are being created now by the Chief 
Executives.

19.2.16 - DA Comments - Transfer this risk to the Client 
Manager - consider it a PRP objective for them

Possible Major 12 Open

O-005 Operational 28/11/2014 Chris 
Atkinson

Sharpe 
Pritchard

Siloed approach of potential 
contractors means best practice 
isn’t easily realised across the 
contract.

Sub-optimal performance 
achieved

Treat Benchmarking and continuous improvement 
clauses to be included in the contract

The draft Contract includes the ability to terminate the 
Agreement as a whole even if the termination event is in 
respect of one Council, which should also discourage a siloed 
approach.

28.1.16 The draft Contract includes the ability to terminate the 
Agreement as a whole even if the termination event is in 
respect of one Council, which should also discourage a siloed 
approach.

Unlikely Moderate 6 Open

O-006 Operational 28/11/2014 Steve 
Bishop

Haylee Wilkins Loss of local knowledge which 
impacts on frontline public interface 
if workforce is out-of-the-area

Failure to deliver appropriate 
service to customers

Treat Review service requirements to ensure 
appropriate service delivery model.  Test 
through dialogue and evaluation how the 
supplier's proposals will retain the necessary 
local knowledge and context

26.11.2015 - Dialog has tested this concept. Once final 
solutions are received evaluation will determine if there is any 
increased risk in this area. 
26.01.2016 - Bidders solutions detail sufficiently, the measures 
that they intend to apply to ensure service delivery is robust. 

Unlikely Negligible 2 Open

O-007 Operational 28/11/2014 Tricia 
Hughes

Mark Gibbons Loss of key skills and experience 
within the operations as headcount 
reduces

Impact upon resilience Tolerate Additional resilience/redundancy through multi 
site operation

26.08.15  South and Vale: Teleios support programme may 
help to lessen chances  of people leaving.

23.10.15  (update from MG) - implementation of comms plan 
should help mitigate risk, and Teleios programme is continuing.  
Mendip have been having staff drop-in-sessions.

11.11.15  As in column I   30.11.15 As in column I                                                                                                               
27.01.16 Comms with staff ongoing

Possible Moderate 9 Open

P
age 105

A
genda Item

 5



O-008 Operational 28/11/2014 Steve 
Bishop

John Newton Inflexibility/unwillingness of 
contractor to be innovative and pro-
active.

Failure to capitalise on 
opportunities for transformation, 
delivery of key objectives, access 
funding streams etc.

Treat Councils need to retain sufficient strategic 
capability to identify opportunities and 
commission effectively

09.12.15  Update from JN - mitigation as per original in column 
I.

Possible Moderate 9 Open

O-009 Operational 28/11/2014 Tricia 
Hughes

Sharpe 
Pritchard

Supplier does not have the capability 
to manage peaks and troughs of 
workload across multiple clients

Impact upon resilience Treat Check interrelationship of service solution with 
other operations as part of solution evaluation.  
Price performance mechanism and losses 
clauses in contract 

The calibration of the price performance mechanism and the 
associated remedies should address and seek to mitigate this 
issue.

28.1.16 The calibration of the price performance mechanism 
and the associated remedies should address and seek to 
mitigate this issue. 
NOTE FROM JS Please note that I think O-009 and O-014 are 
pure operational issues and it would not be appropriate for a 
lawyer to express a view on these.

Rare Major 4 Open

O-010 Operational 01/12/2014 Jane 
Eaton

Sharpe 
Pritchard

External Audit cannot access the 
necessary people and information 
for outsourced services when they 
visit council sites

Governance/Assurance failure Treat Transparency and audit access clauses in the contractPart C of sch 7.5 of the Draft Contract contains detailed audit 
rights including access to Sites, Supplier Systems and Supplier 
Personnel

28.1.16 Part C of sch 7.5 of the Draft Contract contains detailed 
audit rights including access to Sites, Supplier Systems and 
Supplier Personnel

19.2.16 - DA Comments - Transfer this risk to the Client 
Manager - consider it a PRP objective for them

Rare Minor 2 Open

O-011 Operational 01/12/2014 Chris 
Atkinson

Steve Bishop Specification only covers routine 
tasks

Additional cost of flexibility/non-
routine tasks

Treat Include re-prioritisation clauses within contract 26.01.16  There are numerous "non-standard" services and 
rates identified in the bids - especially by the Lot 1 bidder.  Also, 
many assumptions, dependencies and derogations.  All of 
which increase the risk that what we assume to be "standard" 
and "core", included in the bid price, are not.
ADDITIONAL MITIGATION:  RESOLVE URGENTLY IN LOT 1 
PREFERRED BIDDER-LOT 2 PREFERRED BIDDER-5 
COUNCILS DISCUSSIONS

Almost certain Moderate 15 Open

O-012 Operational 01/12/2014 Steve 
Bishop

Steve Bishop Support Services do not provide 
professional advice, only 
transactional services

Councils cannot utilise the 
capability of the supplier to help 
with e.g. budget reduction 
exercises

Treat Identify boundary between retained and 
outsourced elements of service.  Specify role of 
outsourced elements of service fully

Final bids indicate more than simple transactional services.  
E.g. lot 1 bidder identifies the higher value professional advisory 
skills required in HR and Finance requiring onsite face-to-face 
'business partners'.  But we can only assess the realisation of 
this risk or not after implementation, with feedback from 
retained services.

Unlikely Major 8 Open

O-013 Operational 01/12/2014 Steve 
Bishop

Steve Bishop Conflicts of interest between 
different components of services 
(e.g. internal audit vs other 
transferred services, Lot 1 & Lot 2)

Failure of assurance, benefits not 
realised

Treat Assess nature of conflict.  Dialogue potential 
solutions with the market.  Retain service 
components where conflicts cannot be 
managed

No progress.  Same action required as risk S-001 and D-003, 
urgent discussions between Lot 1 preferred bidder, Lot 2 
preferred bidder and 5 councils to identify dependencies, agree 
respective roles & responsibilities to ensure different teams co-
ordinate and complement, not conflict and confuse.
ADDITIONAL MITIGATION:  RESOLVE URGENTLY IN LOT 1 
PREFERRED BIDDER-LOT 2 PREFERRED BIDDER-5 
COUNCILS DISCUSSIONS.

Likely Major 16 Open

O-014 Operational 02/12/2014 Tricia 
Hughes

Sharpe 
Pritchard

Customer/user experience not satisfactoryKPIs delivered but not right 
outcomes for service users

Treat Customer satisfaction measured as part of the KPI/PI regimeClause 7.7 includes the ability to change the weighting which 
applies to a KPI within certain constraints.

28.1.16 Clause 7.7 includes the ability to change the weighting 
which applies to a KPI within certain constraints.
NOTE FROM JS Please note that I think O-009 and O-014 are 
pure operational issues and it would not be appropriate for a 
lawyer to express a view on these.

Possible Major 12 Open

P
age 106

A
genda Item

 5



O-015 Operational 02/12/2014 Jane 
Eaton

Jane Eaton Service users do not engage with 
service

Less opportunity to co-design 
improvements, assurance issues 
missed

Specify required channels for service user 
engagement (including 
confidential/whistleblowing)

Full public consultation completed and taken into account in 
decision to proceed.  Engagement with customers included and 
reviewed in ISOS stage to ensure companies are experts in this 
area of work.

17.11.15  East Hants and Havant: will be undertaking a Fit for 5 
Councils project, which appears in the Councils' business plan.  
Additionally, during transition, all councils expect to be working 
with the Preferred Supplier(s).  

25/1/16 transitions plans include updating customers on what 
they will need to know.

19.2.16 - DA Comments - Transition Prgramme to include roll 
out of  'Fit for 5' as engagement  approach for retained services

Likely Moderate 12 Open

O-016 Operational 02/12/2014 Chris 
Atkinson

Sharpe 
Pritchard

Non-compliance with statutory 
obligations of the councils (e.g. data 
protection)

Risk of prosecution Treat Relevant contract clauses will deal with 
obligations and suppliers' liabilities

The draft Contract provides that material default under the DPA 
or FOIA provisions constitutes a Supplier Termination Event

28.1.16 The draft Contract provides that material default under 
the DPA or FOIA provisions constitutes a Supplier Termination 
Event

Unlikely Moderate 6 Open

O-017 Operational 02/12/2014 Steve 
Bishop

Sharpe 
Pritchard

Failure by councils to deliver their 
dependencies 

Supplier does not have to deliver 
its obligations under the contract

Treat Retained service interfaces and dependencies 
reviewed as solutions are developed.  Action 
taken to minimise risk of client side failure to 
deliver on obligations

As the Authorities Responsibilities are identified through 
dialogue they need to be carefully impacted to ensure they are 
understood, clearly worded and capable of being delivered by 
the client teams.

28.1.16 Authority responsibilities addressed in contracts but 
need to be reviewed

Possible Moderate 9 Open

O-018 Operational 05/12/2014 Steve 
Bishop

Tricia Hughes Client team does not have sufficient 
commercial skills

supplier not managed effectively, 
risk of partnership failure

Treat Develop person specification for each role 
incorporating necessary attributes.  Provide 
appropriate training, recruit suitable candidates

East Hampshire/Havant have been tasked with the creation of a 
job description and person spec. Once the team manager is in 
place they will seek to recruit staff and train to ensure the 
calibre of the staff

Possible Major 12 Open

O-019 Operational 05/12/2014 Tricia 
Hughes

Tricia Hughes Client team is disjointed across 
individual services/client 
organisations

Overall outcomes not achieved, 
risk of divergent performance 
across different services and 
clients

Treat Clear joint client structure with individual subject 
matter expertise managed through a single 
senior client lead reporting to all councils                                                               

Principles of a joint client team have been agreed by Chief 
Executives and on this basis a detailed client team approach is 
being created.

Likely Minor 8 Open

O-020 Operational 05/12/2014 Jane 
Eaton

Tricia Hughes Client team does not enforce the 
contract fully in the interests of 
preserving a good relationship with 
supplier(s)

Difficult to re-establish once 
precedent has been set, implies 
tacit acceptance of reduction in 
performance/benefits

Treat Contract is enforced fully.  Relationship 
development is a matter for senior level 
governance, with operational staff working 
together to prevent contractual issues 
developing

See O-018 above

19.2.16 - DA Comments - Transfer this risk to the Client 
Manager - consider it a PRP objective for them

Possible Major 12 Open

O-021 Operational 05/12/2014 Chris 
Atkinson

Tricia Hughes Retained service undertakes some 
duties that should be within scope of 
the supplier's requirements

Practices become embedded, 
client distracted from managing 
the supplier, additional cost

Treat Clearly specify retained team duties Principles of a joint client team have been agreed by Chief 
Executives and on this basis a detailed client team approach is 
being created.

Possible Moderate 9 Open

O-022 Operational 05/12/2014 Steve 
Bishop

Sharpe 
Pritchard

Councils liaise directly with sub-
contractors, not the prime

Loss of risk transfer Treat Clear instructions provided to client/retained 
staff on how to engage with supplier(s).  Single 
councils' representative with authority to engage

28.1.16 The contract includes provisions for a single point of 
contact for all authorities

Rare Minor 2 Open

O-023 Operational 18/11/2015 Paul 
Howden

Paul Howden Service does not respond 
adequately to the introduction of 
Business Improvement Districts.

Revenue not collected from 
Business Improvement Districts.

Reputational damage to the 
Council

Treat Preferred bidder discussion to ensure 
specification and SDPs are aligned with the 
requirements.

The Abingdon (VWHDC) bid is due to commence from 1 April 
15 for five years. A variation has already been agreed to cover 
system development and billing/collection work during the 
current contract but will need to be addressed under the new 
contract from 1 August 2016. It has been agreed that the BID 
should be managed on the (in-situ) Agresso FMS system in the 
first instance. However, this is likely to change to Integra post 1 
August.

Possible Major 12 Open

O-024 Operational 23/05/2016 Steve 
Bishop

Haylee Wilkins Capita provide less non-contractual 
management information than 
expected.

Councils unable to make insights 
into some aspects of Lot 1 
services, meaning that 
optimisation of service efficiency 
becomes harder.

Treat Steve Bishop to liaise with Steph Coward 
(Capita Partnerships Director) to determine 
Capita position.

23.05  Added by CD, at request of SB on 19.05 Steering Group 
call.

Possible Moderate 9 Open

O-025 Operational 23/05/2016 Steve 
Bishop

Jennifer Burt HR and/or payroll policies cannot be 
harmonised by end July.

HR/Payroll service unable to be 
implemented properly on 1 
August at South and Vale.

Treat Steve Bishop to liaise with Matt Spencer (Capita 
Transition Lead).

23.05  Added by CD, at request of SB on 19.05 Steering Group 
call.

Likely Major 16 Open

P
age 107

A
genda Item

 5



CSP Risks – Financial
Risk No Type Date 

raised Owner Workstream 
Lead Risk Consequence Treat or 

tolerate? Mitigation Update Likelihood Impact Score Status

F-001 Financial 08/10/2014 Steve 
Bishop

Pat Connell Any expensive, long-term, inflexible 
third party contracts/leases lead to a 
sub-optimal solution to the  project

These may impact on the viability 
of the business case as the 
council will not be able remove 
these liabilities

Treat
Procurement compliance exercise to identify 
size/length of contracts, and review whether 
possible to renegotiate contracts to meet 
NSCSO project timelines

26.1.2016 - review of 3rd party contracts re 
commenced and SMEs requested to update 
spreadsheet and provide contract documents 
for review

Possible Moderate 9 Open

F-002 Financial 08/10/2014 Steve 
Bishop

Adam Savery Post contract award adverse 
performance in income collecting 
activity leads to the Councils being 
put under financial pressure

The size of the service procured 
will not be sufficient to cope with 
fluctuations

Treat Solution design that brings additional 
capacity from elsewhere

No Update

25.09.15  AS (noted by CJD on WSL call) - 
No update: cannot yet comment.

23.10.15 AS (noted by CJD on WSL call) - as 
for 25.09.

24.11.15  AS (noted by CJD on WSL call) - as 
for 25.09.

28.01.16 AS - as for 25.09

Possible Major 12 Open

F-003 Financial 08/10/2014 Steve 
Bishop

Pat Connell Financial and legal risk of 
outsourcing in-scope services if 
advice given to council leads to loss

Poor advice from supplier to 
customer could leave council 
exposed to financial penalties or 
legal proceedings.

Treat Risk workshop to be held in dialogue phase 
that identifies potential types of loss and 
quantifies them for the council and map 
these onto relevant provisions in the draft 
contract provided by Legal advisor. 

Not yet advised when this will take place. 
26.1.2016 Dialogue closed  and bids received 

Unlikely Moderate 6 Open

F-004 Financial 08/10/2014 Steve 
Bishop

Adam Savery Budget retained for services does 
not cover staff who are retained.

Too much budget transferred to 
provider and savings can not be 
realised.

Treat Finance Leads to confirm the match 
between in/out of scope elements and 
disaggregated budgets

Figures being reviewed target for completion 
14/08/15

25.09.15  AS (noted by CJD on WSL call) - 
We are currently quantifying the budgets for 
TUPE and retained staff.  This will inform the 
need for restructures.

23.10.15 AS (noted by CJD on WSL call): 
Work on the TUPE lists has progressed; 
financial reconciliation remains.  Hence the 
mitigation is being progressed.

24.11.15   AS (noted by CJD on WSL call): 
Will know what resource going and staying on 
finalisation of TUPE lists, at which point we 
can quantify the risks financially.

28.01.16 AS Baseline figures were reconciled 
prior to final bid submission. The issue of 
finalised TUPE figures remains. The project is 
not able to inform or anticipate the impact of 
any resulting internal restructures as a result 
of the procurement.

Possible Major 12 Open

P
age 108

A
genda Item

 5



F-005 Financial 08/10/2014 Steve 
Bishop

Sharpe 
Pritchard

Changes imposed by central govt to 
policy or funding could adversely 
affect the ability for project to deliver 
benefits.

Reduce the financial benefit the 
project can deliver.

Tolerate Accept risk but Legal Leads will monitor 
legislative changes on an ongoing basis. 
Finance Leads will do the same for 
savings targets and funding reductions. 
Significant impacts will be reported to the 
project team in the first instance and 
escalated to the Project Board and 
respective Cabinets where necessary. 
Should statutory changes occur during the 
procurement process these will form part 
of the dialogue discussions.

The draft Contract provides for Change in Law 
risk to be shared, with the Supplier taking the 
risk on General Changes and the Councils 
taking the risk on Specific Changes not 
reasonably foreseeable at signature.  A Specific 
Change in Law is narrowly defined. Changes in 
Law which come into force during the 
procurement are a Supplier risk

28.1.16 The changes in law provisions have 
been subject to dialogue and the risk profile has 
to some extent been modified in the 
contractor's favour particularly on Lot 2. 

Possible Moderate 9 Open

F-006 Financial 08/10/2014 Steve 
Bishop

Sharpe 
Pritchard

Central govt funding reduces during 
life of contract

Inability to deliver the service for 
agreed cost resulting in a 
reduced service

Treat Any provider will be required to support the 
council in the delivery of the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy. Flexibility will be built 
into the contract to ensure the provider 
meets the council requirements within the 
available budget. In practice this will work 
whereby if our funding levels change, 
there is an agreed mechanism in the 
contract for the contractor to respond to 
the Councils with options for reviewing 
service levels, for example, to fit in with 
whatever budgetary envelope we have.
Manage through dialogue discussions and 
review on the back of the ISOS 
submissions.

28.1.16 Change mechanism be used for 
adjusting service levels during the course of the 
contract

Possible Moderate 9 Open

F-007 Financial 08/10/2014 Steve 
Bishop

Adam Savery Risk to budgets of transferring in-
flight projects/activity

Increased cost from take-on or 
prior overspend on WIP

Treat Retain close budget monitoring on in-flight 
projects, agree costs to close with bidders 
based on expected position at handover

No Update, will be addressed through Core 
dialogue. In flight project information is being 
collected from 5 councils

25.09.15 AS (noted by CJD on WSL call) - In-
flight projects to be put on portal, to enable 
bidders to dialogue this topic.

23.10.15  (from WSL call to AS): In-flight 
projects now on portal.  Bidders were previously 
unable to quantify impact; now better able.  But 
cannot close off until evaluation of bids.

24.11.15   AS (noted by CJD on WSL call):  
update as for 23.10.

28.01.16 AS - Bidders aware of in flight projects 
when submitting final bids. Most projects due 
for completing prior to hand over. This will 
require ongoing review on a project by project 
basis. Risk could increase if commencement 
dates move forward at Mendip, Hart and 
Havant.

Possible Moderate 9 Open

P
age 109

A
genda Item

 5



F-009 Financial 08/10/2014 Steve 
Bishop

Adam Savery The councils do not achieve clarity 
around the scope of services where 
a substantive part of the activity 
includes the managing of third party 
budgets (e.g. ICT refresh and 
Estates R&M)

Loss of opportunity to transfer 
risk to supplier

Treat Review all service areas for 3rd party 
spend management requirements prior to 
issuing OJEU notice.  Review optimum 
risk share between councils and supplier 
for managed contracts and test through 
dialogue

Being addressed through ongoing core dialogue

25.09  AS (noted by CJD on WSL call) - Hope to 
resolve this by 8 Oct, through dialogue.

23.10  (from WSL call to AS) - This issue has 
been discussed extensively in core dialogue.  
There are still some areas of minor uncertainty 
which the Steering Group are aware of.  Clarity 
should be reached on receipt of final bids.

24.11 The bidders now have all of the information 
they need re managed budgets.  Once we are at 
Preferred Bidder stage, we can review the risks in 
this area, informed by knowledge of their 
solutions.

28.01.16 AS - Bidders have mentioned this area in 
their assumptions. Update from 24.11 still stands.

Possible Major 12 Open

F-010 Financial 08/10/2014 Steve 
Bishop

Adam Savery Contract Financials predicated too 
far in direction of day one savings

The councils are tied into a 
contract that no longer delivers 
the benefits envisaged

Treat Scope payment profile to reflect value 
delivered.  Use financial evaluation criteria 
to drive pricing for financial value to be 
delivered throughout term of contract

Subject to final bid submission. The Financial 
scoring criteria are designed to prevent this and 
drive appropriate levels of saving throughout the 
term of the contract. This issue has been 
discussed and explained to all 4 bidders during the 
Core Dialogue discussions in July.

25.09.15  AS (noted by CJD on WSL call) -Topic 
being discussed in dialogue.  Dependent on 
submissions.  We are happy with the criteria 
which we have supplied to bidders.

23.10.15  (from WSL call to AS) - There have 
been another couple of iterations of dialogue.  We 
remain confident with regard to our evaluation 
criteria, and that they meet the requirements of the 
5 councils.

24.11.15  AS (noted by CJD on WSL call):  update 
as for 23.10.

28.01.16 AS Final bid submissions deliver 

Rare Major 4 Open

P
age 110

A
genda Item

 5



F-011 Financial 27/11/2014 Steve 
Bishop

Sharpe 
Pritchard

Variations and hidden costs after 
contract award outweigh the original 
business case

Failure to deliver ongoing VFM Treat Require bidders to prepare a detailed 
financial model as part of their 
submissions and include within contract 
clauses to validate the costs of any 
proposed changes

The cost of any Contract Change is calculated in 
accordance with the principles and day rates or day 
costs (as applicable) set out in Schedule 7.1 (Charges 
and Invoicing).  The Supplier is only entitled to increase 
the Charges if it can demonstrate in the Impact 
Assessment that the proposed Contract Change 
requires additional resources and, in any event, any 
change to the Charges will be strictly proportionate to 
the increase or decrease in the level of resources 
required for the provision of the Services as amended by 
the Contract Change.  Service Specifications should 
also be drafted so that the Supplier cannot argue that 
services are out of scope and not covered by Charges.

28.1.16 The cost of any Contract Change is calculated 
in accordance with the principles and day rates or day 
costs (as applicable) set out in Schedule 7.1 (Charges 
and Invoicing).  The Supplier is only entitled to increase 
the Charges if it can demonstrate in the Impact 
Assessment that the proposed Contract Change 
requires additional resources and, in any event, any 
change to the Charges will be strictly proportionate to 
the increase or decrease in the level of resources 
required for the provision of the Services as amended by 
the Contract Change.  Service Specifications should 
also be drafted so that the Supplier cannot argue that 
services are out of scope and not covered by Charges.

Unlikely Moderate 6 Open

F-012 Financial 03/12/2014 Steve 
Bishop

Adam Savery Process change leads to 
consequential costs for the councils 
in the retained services (e.g. travel 
to central location for HR course 
delivery, training in new systems, 
new ICT interfaces,, reduction in 
income to cover reduce costs)

Reduction in net financial benefits 
to the councils

Treat Test bidder solutions for consequential 
costs and factor into financial evaluation 

No Update

25.09.15  AS (noted by CJD on WSL call) - No 
costs (finalised) received yet.  SME dialogue will 
ensure no apparent areas of inefficiency of 
suggested solutions.

23.10.15  (from WSL call to AS) - SMEs have had 
the relevant dialogue to help mitigate the risk, but 
we cannot close this off until we receive the final 
bids.

24.11.15  (from WSL call to AS) - update as for 
23.10.15

28.01.16 AS Final bids indicate this risk has been 
mitigated with the guaranteed process changes 
etc. funded within the solutions provided. Risk 
should remain open until conclusion of PB and 
Final Contract signing.

Unlikely Major 8 Open

F-013 Financial 05/12/2014 Steve 
Bishop

Sharpe 
Pritchard

Optimal risk share on pensions for 
transferring cohort not achieved

councils either pay unnecessary 
premium for supplier to manage 
the risk, or is exposed to risk of 
rising contributions caused by 
supplier actions 

Treat Appropriate drafting of pensions clauses in 
contract.  Scenario test potential 
variances

28.1.16 Councils have accepted provisions for risk 
sharing and these have been built into the c 
contract

Possible Moderate 9 Open

P
age 111

A
genda Item

 5



F-014 Financial 05/12/2014 Steve 
Bishop

Sharpe 
Pritchard

Councils do not have sufficient 
information to validate costs of 
change, termination etc.

Councils potentially overpay for 
changes, or on exit

Treat Require detailed financial model & annual 
update.  Require validation of any costs 
counting towards potential liability of the 
councils outside of the annual service 
charge

The draft Contract requires the Supplier to 
maintain and allow the Councils access to Open 
Book Data during the Term, and for 7 years after.  
There is a detailed definition of Open Book Data in 
schedule 7.5 which includes operating costs, 
profit, overheads with costs broken down against 
each Service and/or Deliverable

28.1.16 The draft Contract requires the Supplier to 
maintain and allow the Councils access to Open 
Book Data during the Term, and for 7 years after.  
There is a detailed definition of Open Book Data in 
schedule 7.5 which includes operating costs, 
profit, overheads with costs broken down against 
each Service and/or Deliverable

Rare Moderate 3 Open

F-015 Financial 05/12/2014 Steve 
Bishop

Sharpe 
Pritchard

Exit plan becomes out of date additional cost in the event of 
termination or expiry

Contract should require bidder to provide 
updated exit plan on annual basis

The draft Contract requires 4.5 the Supplier to 
review and update the Exit Plan in the first month 
of each Contract Year (commencing with the 
second Contract Year) to reflect any changes in 
the Services that have occurred since the Exit 
Plan was last agreed.  The final form of the Exit 
Plan is submitted for approval by the Councils 6 
months prior to expiry.

28.1.16 The draft Contract requires 4.5 the 
Supplier to review and update the Exit Plan in the 
first month of each Contract Year (commencing 
with the second Contract Year) to reflect any 
changes in the Services that have occurred since 
the Exit Plan was last agreed.  The final form of 
the Exit Plan is submitted for approval by the 
Councils 6 months prior to expiry.

Rare Minor 2 Open

P
age 112

A
genda Item

 5



CSP – Issues
Issue 
no. Status Issue Owner Type Definition Response Action required Impact Date 

raised
Scor

e Comments1 Comments2 Comments JN Approval to 
Close/Change

Action for tidying of risk 
register

I-001 Open Project expenditure 
has exceeded the 
estimated budget

Steve 
Bishop

Financial Project budgets are an 
estimate

Budget is 
exceeded

In January 2015, Steering Group 
acknowledged inadequate project 
management resource, and arranged 
additional resources, which were partly 
provided from New Networks.  The 
additional cost was covered from the 
financial contributions from the 5 councils.  
At the same time, additional commercial 
negotiation capacity was arranged from 
New Networks, to be funded from 
increased procurement savings at New 
Networks' commercial risk.

Moderate 06/11/2015 10 Open

P
age 113

A
genda Item

 5



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Accounts Payable Audit 

Vale of White Horse and South Oxfordshire 

June 2016 

 

 

Paul Thorogood 
Capita Local Government Services – Finance and Accountancy 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 114

Agenda Item 6



  

 

 Page 2 of 8 

 

Contents 

1 Document Objective ........................................................................................................ 3 

2 Introduction ...................................................................................................................... 4 

2.1 Background ............................................................................................................ 4 

3 Main Findings .................................................................................................................. 5 

3.1 Processes .............................................................................................................. 5 

3.1.1 Scanning ................................................................................................... 5 

3.2 Duplicates .............................................................................................................. 5 

4 Observations and Recommendations .............................................................................. 7 

 

Page 115

Agenda Item 6



  

 

 Page 3 of 8 

 

1 Document Objective 

The main objective of this document is to provide the findings from the review of the current 
procedures, controls and processes in place within the Shepton Mallet Shared Service 
Centre  Accounts Payable function including the external scanning completed by the 
Darlington Team. This review has focussed in full on the Vale of the White Horse and South 
Oxfordshire Councils.   

The review will cover: 

 Scanning Process by the Digital Mailroom at Darlington 

 Registration Process 

 Controls 

 Reporting 

. 

 

Page 116

Agenda Item 6



  

 

 Page 4 of 8 

 

2 Introduction 

Introduction 

An internal review of the current process, procedures and controls was initiated to identify 
any areas where improvements could be made or additional controls could be implemented 
to reduce the risk of potential errors in Accounts Payable. 

It has been identified previously that errors in the process could arise because: 

 Invoices are received multiple times by the remote scanning service as they either e-

mail and post their invoices directly to the service or a copy of their invoice is sent to 

the Council who subsequently post this to the scanning service. 

 Purchase orders are raised to the incorrect supplier, meaning an incorrect supplier 

payment may be issued if not identified during the payment process. 

 Manual vouchers for non invoice payments are duplicated and the invoice detail is 

not reflected as a duplicate and then the approver doesn’t pick up on the duplicate. 

Objective 

By the end of this review we will have: 

 Completed a review of processes 

 Taken a sample of all transactions and checked for scanning accuracy by the remote 

scanning mailroom service 

 Taken a sample of potential duplicate transactions and checked and reviewed a 

percentage of these 

 Reported our finding  

 Produced a list of recommendations 

2.1 Background 

The accounts payable process 15,335 of invoices per year (7,185 for Vale of White Horse 
and 8,150 for South Oxfordshire). 

There is currently a perception that the quality of the service being delivered by the Accounts 
Payable team in Shepton Mallet deteriorated twelve months ago following an abnormal 
increase in staff turnover. There has been improvement and the service has stabilised over 
the course of the year however it is felt that the error rate is still too high. 

A number of examples had been provided by the council where they felt there were 
weaknesses in the processes and this was causing additional work for all parties involved.. 

Page 117

Agenda Item 6



  

 

 Page 5 of 8 

 

3 Main Findings 

3.1 Processes 

3.1.1 Scanning 

To indentify the accuracy of the information being captured by the Darlington scanning team, 
a full extract of the last years worth of invoices processed by the Accounts Payable service 
was taken and a sample of twelve invoices per authority were reviewed.  

Of the 15,335 invoices processed, a sample of 24 invoices was chosen to ensure their 
accuracy at the point of data capture by the scanning solution or when manually input by the 
accounts payable team. Of the sample chosen, this indicates an average accuracy rate of 
83.3%.  

Of the 16.7% of invoices were the data was captured incorrectly, this is predominantly where 
the invoice number had been inaccurately captured, for example mistaking an ‘I’ as a ‘1’, or 
‘S’ as a ‘5’. As these invoices were not duplicate invoice numbers against the supplier 
account these will have been processed automatically by the Accounts Payable system. 

 None of the invoices were rejected by the coder or authoriser within the council stating the 
information had been captured and entered incorrectly. As part of the authorisers role they 
are responsible for checking the accuracy of the data captured and this has been reiterated 
through recent refresh training provided by the Council. The invoices have been paid to the 
supplier quoting the incorrect reference. In the examples chosen, none of the invoices were 
subsequently paid under the correct invoice reference and therefore no duplicate payment 
has been made. 

The below table shows the number a summary of the findings 

Summary 
Number of 

Transactions 
Sample 

Size 
Value 

correct 
% Accuracy 

Vale of White Horse 7,185 12 9 75% 

South Oxfordshire 8,150 12 11 92% 

 

3.2 Duplicates 

A full extract of the last years worth of accounts payable invoices (15,335) was taken and 
analysis undertaken to capture those invoices where they had the same amount and invoice 
date but a different invoice number or supplier name. This subset identified where the 
likelihood of a duplicate payment being made was significantly high. Of the 15,335 invoices 
processed 583 (3.8%) fell into this classification. 

A number of the entries identified within the subset could automatically be discounted as the 
invoices in question were paid to different suppliers. For example an invoice was received 
with the same invoice value and invoice date however both the invoice number and supplier 
were different. To ensure the accuracy of this test supporting documentation of a number of 
records was also checked. 

From the already reduced data set a sample of 40 invoices were selected where the invoice 
date and invoice value were the same but the supplier name was the same. Of this smaller 
dataset 16 invoices were identified as non duplicates and therefore 60% were identified as 
duplicates. 

Page 118

Agenda Item 6



  

 

 Page 6 of 8 

 

In the majority of cases payment was not actually issued to the supplier as the duplicate was 
identified before the payment run by either Accounts Payable staff or the Council. In a 
number of cases the financial controls within the system identified to staff the potential risk of 
a duplicate payment and therefore in line with the control the invoice was blocked for 
payment within the system. This is a legitimate control with the system. Of the duplicates 
that have been paid refunds or credits have been sought or received in line with agreed 
processes in place by the Accounts Payable team. 

The main reasons for these duplicates are listed below: 

 Incorrect capture of invoice number and the invoice had been submitted multiple 

times to the scanning service, either once from the service and one from the 

supplier, or the supplier both e-mailing and posting their invoice. 

 PO raised incorrectly by the business, quoting the incorrect supplier/payee or 

there being multiple supplier records. 

 Authorisers not reviewing the document they are approving and identifying the 

invoice has already been processed. 

Assuming an extrapolation of the error rate identified the number of duplicate invoices 
potentially at risk of duplicate payment within the 15,335 is likely to be in the region of 1.52% 
which is a worst case position. This would equate to 233 invoices across the two Councils. 

 

Summary 
Number of 

Transactions 

Forecast 
Transactions at Risk 

of a Duplicate 
Payment 

Vale of White Horse 7,185 109 

South Oxfordshire 8,150 124 

Page 119

Agenda Item 6



  

 

 Page 7 of 8 

 

4 Observations and Recommendations 

 

 Concern Recommendation Responsibility 

1 Accuracy Rate by Scanning 
Software 

Additional quality checks 
need to be implemented 
by the team in Darlington 
to ensure the information 
being captured by the 
scanning software is 
accurate, in particular the 
invoice number and 
supplier as this will aid in 
reducing the duplicates 

Capita 

2 Checking process for coders 
and approvers 

All coders and approvers 
need to be reminded that 
when coding and 
approving it is vital that 
they check all the 
information that has been 
captured to ensure this 
matches the invoice 
image. It is vital that they 
are checking this to 
ensure payments are 
being made correctly 

Council 

3 Order accuracy 
When purchase orders are 
being raised and approved 
it should be ensured that 
the correct supplier is 
being used and suppliers 
are being told to submit 
their invoice directly to 
Darlington, inline with the 
purchase order 
requirement, so duplicate 
invoices  are not received 

Council 

4 Supplier Cleanse 
There are a number of 
duplicate suppliers that 
have been created; a 
complete review of the 
supplier master file should 
be carried out. Initially any 
supplier that has not been 
used within the last 18 
months should be closed 
with agreement, once this 
exercise is complete, the 
remaining suppliers should 
be reviewed to identify any 

Capita 

Page 120

Agenda Item 6



  

 

 Page 8 of 8 

 

duplicate suppliers. 

5 Ongoing Review The review undertaken by 
the service should be an 
ongoing exercise or a 
duplicate software 
package purchased  

Capita 

 

Page 121

Agenda Item 6



Audit and Governance 
Committee

Report of Assurance Manager
Author: Adrianna Partridge
Telephone: : 01235 422485
Textphone:  18001 01235 422510

E-mail: adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk
SODC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Jane Murphy
Tel: 07970 932054
E-mail: jane.murphy@southoxon.gov.uk
VWHDC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Matthew Barber
Telephone: 07816 481452
E-mail: matthew.barber@whitehorsedc.gov.uk

To: Audit and Governance Committee
DATE: 4 July 2016

Internal audit activity report quarter one 
2016/2017 
Recommendation

That members note the content of the report

Purpose of Report 

1. The purpose of this report is to summarise the outcomes of recent internal audit activity 
at both councils for the committee to consider.  The committee is asked to review the 
report and the main issues arising, and seek assurance that action will be/has been 
taken where necessary. 

2 The contact officer for this report is Adrianna Partridge, Assurance Manager for South 
Oxfordshire District Council (SODC) and Vale of White Horse District Council (VWHDC), 
telephone 01235 422485.

Strategic Objectives 

3. Managing our business effectively.

CONFIDENTIAL

Page 122

Agenda Item 7

mailto:jane.murphy@southoxon.gov.uk
mailto:matthew.barber@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


Background 

4. Internal audit is an independent assurance function that primarily provides an objective 
opinion on the degree to which the internal control environment supports and promotes 
the achievements of the council’s objectives.  It assists the councils by evaluating the 
adequacy of governance, risk management, controls and use of resources through its 
planned audit work, and recommending improvements where necessary. After each audit 
assignment, internal audit has a duty to report to management its findings on the control 
environment and risk exposure, and recommend changes for improvements where 
applicable.  Managers are responsible for considering audit reports and taking the 
appropriate action to address control weaknesses. 

 
5. Assurance ratings given by internal audit indicate the following:

Full assurance: There is a good system of internal control designed to meet the system 
objectives and the controls are being consistently applied. 

Substantial assurance: There is a sound system of internal control designed to meet 
the system objectives and the controls are being applied.

Satisfactory assurance: There is basically a sound system of internal control although 
there are some minor weaknesses and/or there is evidence that the level of non-
compliance may put some minor system objectives at risk.

Limited assurance: There are some weaknesses in the adequacy of the internal control 
system which put the system objectives at risk and/or the level of non-compliance puts 
some of the system objectives at risk.

Nil assurance: Control is weak leaving the system open to significant error or abuse 
and/or there is significant non-compliance with basic controls.

6. Each recommendation is given one of the following risk ratings:

High Risk: Fundamental control weakness for senior management action

Medium Risk: Other control weakness for local management action

Low Risk: Recommended best practice to improve overall control

2016/2017 Audit Reports

7. Since the last audit and governance committee meeting, the following audits and follow 
up reviews have been completed:

Completed Audits

Full Assurance: 1
Substantial Assurance: 3
Satisfactory Assurance: 3
Limited Assurance: 4
Nil Assurance: 0

Page 123

Agenda Item 7



Assurance 
Rating

N
o.

 o
f R

ec
s

H
ig

h 
R

is
k 

R
ec

s.

N
o.

 A
gr

ee
d

M
ed

iu
m

  R
is

k 
R

ec
s.

N
o.

 A
gr

ee
d

Lo
w

 R
is

k 
R

ec
s.

N
o.

 A
gr

ee
d

Joint
Treasury Mgt 1516 Substantial 1 0 0 1 1 0 0
Council Tax 1516 Substantial 3 0 0 0 0 3 3
SODC General Ledger 
1516

Substantial 5 0 0 1 1 4 2

VWHDC General Ledger 
1516

Substantial 4 0 0 1 1 3 1

1. Project Management 
1516

Limited 10 5 5 4 4 1 1

Capital Mgt and 
Accounting 1516

Satisfactory 6 0 0 3 3 3 1

2. Elections and Election 
Pay 1516

Limited 7 1 1 4 4 2 2

ICT 1516 Satisfactory 8 0 0 4 4 4 4
Pro-active Anti-Fraud 
1516

Full 1 0 0 0 0 1 1

3. HR Recruitment 1516 Limited 7 2 2 3 2 2 2
HR Management 1516 Satisfactory 5 0 0 2 2 3 3
4. SODC Insurance 
1516

Limited 19 5 4 7 7 7 7

4. VWHDC Insurance 
1516

Limited 18 5 4 6 6 7 7

Follow Up Reviews

Initial
Assurance 
Given

N
o.

 o
f R

ec
s

Im
pl

em
en

te
d

Pa
rt

ly
 

Im
pl

em
en

te
d

N
ot

 
Im

pl
em

en
te

d

O
ng

oi
ng

SODC
Waste Mgt & Recycling 
1516 Substantial 3 1 1 1 0

Receipt of Income 1516 Satisfactory 6 5 1 0 0
Development 
Management 1516 Satisfactory 3 3 0 0 0

Licensing 1516 Satisfactory 6 6 0 0 0
Cash Office 1516 Limited 4 3 0 1 0
VWHDC
Waste Mgt & Recycling 
1516 Substantial 3 1 1 1 0

Receipt of Income 1516 Satisfactory 6 5 1 0 0
Development Satisfactory 3 3 0 0 0

Page 124

Agenda Item 7



Management 1516
Licensing 1516 Satisfactory 4 4 0 0 0
Cash Office 1516 Limited 5 4 0 1 0

8. Appendix 1 of this report sets out the key points and findings relating to the completed 
audits which have received limited or nil assurance, and satisfactory or full assurance 
reports which members have asked to be presented to committee 

9. Members of the committee are asked to seek assurance from the internal audit reports 
and/or respective managers that the agreed actions have been or will be undertaken 
where necessary.  

10. A copy of each report has been sent to the appropriate service manager, the strategic 
management board, the section 151 officer and the relevant member portfolio holder. In 
addition to the above arrangements, reports are now published on the councils’ intranet.

11. Internal audit continues to carry out a six month follow up on all non-financial and non-
key financial audits to establish the implementation status of agreed recommendations.   
All key financial system recommendations are followed up as part of the annual 
assurance cycle.

Overdue Recommendations

12. Appendix 2 of this report summarises all overdue recommendations within each service 
area.  The report has been circulated to the relevant service manager, heads of service, 
the strategic management board and the portfolio holder.  

Financial Implications

13. There are no financial implications attached to this report.

Legal Implications

14. None.

Risks

15.  Identification of risk is an integral part of all audits.

ADRIANNA PARTRIDGE
ASSURANCE MANAGER

 

Page 125

Agenda Item 7



APPENDIX 1

1. JOINT NEIGHBOURHOOD PLANNING GRANTS 2015/2016

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 This report details the internal audit review of procedures, controls and 
the management of risk in relation to project management.  The audit has 
a priority score of 17.  The draft report was issued on 7 September 2015 
and the final report was issued on 26 April 2016.

1.2 The following areas have been covered during the course of this review 
to provide assurance that:

 There is a comprehensive and clear framework for project 
management which is up to date and suitable guidance is available 
to relevant officers;

 Roles and responsibilities for project management are clearly 
assigned and fulfilled and there is sufficient oversight of the project 
management process;

 Individual projects comply with the chosen methodologies; and
 Projects are suitably monitored and reported with adequate 

closure.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 In 2012, the council launched a revised project management methodology. 
This methodology included definitions of what was and was not a project, and 
the structures expected dependent on the categorisation of the project. This 
methodology has now been embedded within the council for 3 years.

2.2 At the commencement of this audit, the project register for the council listed 
87 projects, of which 56 should have been completed.

3. PREVIOUS AUDIT REPORTS

3.1 Project management was last subject to an internal audit review in June 
2011 and four recommendations were raised at both councils.  All the 
recommendations were agreed, and a satisfactory assurance opinion 
was issued. In May 2012 a follow up report was issued which reported 
that one recommendation had been partially implemented at each council 
and the remaining three had not been implemented.

3.2 Since that report, the councils have introduced a new project toolkit which 
addressed the outstanding recommendations.

4. 2015/2016 AUDIT ASSURANCE

4.1 Limited assurance: There are some weaknesses in the adequacy of the 
internal control system which put the system objectives at risk and/or the 
level of non-compliance puts some of the system objectives at risk.

4.2 Ten recommendations have been raised in this review.  Five high risk, 
Page 126

Agenda Item 7



four medium risk and one low risk.

5. MAIN FINDINGS

5.1 Project Management Framework

5.1.1

5.1.2

5.1.3

The project registers are not up to date and the inflight register contains 
several projects that, on the basis of the council definitions currently in 
use, are not projects.

The framework in place covers most of the elements that would be 
expected for a successful project management framework. What is 
absent is a robust and comprehensive section covering terms of 
reference for each project board. Within the framework there are 
elements that would benefit from clarification, and refinement, including 
rewording the project management process document, requiring options 
appraisals to be conducted by procurement, ensuring the links from the 
intranet are live and link through to the correct files, standardisation of 
risk registers for projects and the definitions of major and minor projects. 

The toolkit regarding risk management, redirects to a section with a 
‘guide to the risk management process’ and an ‘explanation of the risk 
register’. Both of these are overdue for review, with the last update for 
either being six years ago in 2009.

5.1.4 Area assurance: Limited
Three recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this 
area. (Recs 1, 2 & 3)

5.2 Roles, responsibilities, oversight and governance

5.2.1

5.2.2

5.2.3

5.2.4

The success and impact of a project is largely dependent on the 
effectiveness of good governance within the project and within the 
councils. Effective project governance should ensure that the elements of 
the approved methodology are complied with, evidenced as such, and 
that reporting and monitoring of the project is undertaken robustly and 
timely. This could not be evidenced from the sample reviewed as part of 
this audit.

Numerous non-compliance issues with the councils’ prescribed 
methodology across all elements were noted, including no evidence of 
projects being approved and authorised, no evidence of project business 
cases, no evidence of project plans, no evidence of project boards, no 
evidence of monitoring and reporting the projects and no terms of 
reference for project boards.

For those projects that do have project board terms of reference, they are 
extremely vague and lack the detail, such as quoracy, membership, 
appointment of chair, reporting arrangements, attendance, frequency of 
meetings, and limitations of authority. In one instance it was noted that a 
project board had been suspended (due to the project not proceeding in 
a timely manner), yet the terms of reference had not been changed to 
reflect this, and this had not been identified for eight months.

Page 127

Agenda Item 7



Area assurance: Limited
Five recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this 
area. (Recs 4, 5, 6, 7, & 8)

5.3.1 Framework Compliance

5.1.1

5.1.2

The project management toolkit, clearly sets out the methodology 
required to be adopted for every project whatever the size or complexity. 
From the sample of ten projects reviewed, one of which failed to engage 
with the audit, and one failed to provide any documentation at all, three 
projects were clearly non-compliant with the methodology. A further 
project that had been completed, had failed to complete project reviews 
and reporting as is required, yet had been accepted as completed by the 
project sponsor.

Area assurance: Limited
One recommendation has been made as a result of our work in this area. 
(Rec 9)

5.4 Monitoring and Reporting

5.4.1

5.4.2

5.4.3

The project management methodology adopted and approved by the 
councils requires projects to be monitored and reported throughout the 
life of the project and also at the end of the project. 

Of the projects reviewed where there was sufficient documentation 
available, only one fulfilled that criteria and that was found not to 
have been reported correctly with the review and report stages 
which are the project sponsors responsibility, despite the project 
being completed.

Area assurance: Limited
One recommendation has been made as a result of our work in this area 
(Rec 10)

OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Management overview from Anna Robinson, Strategic Director
SMB recognises the importance of project management across all work disciplines and that 
effective project management is critical to the delivery of organisational and corporate plan 
objectives.

We acknowledge that project management as a discipline is not embedded or operated as 
intended across the councils, although a toolkit exists and training was carried out for all staff 
with known project responsibilities.

Unfortunately, because of a period of sustained government cuts, a number of posts had to be 
removed to make the necessary savings. This included the performance and projects team 
which oversaw project management. 

Central responsibility was then passed to the Fit for the Future programme manager who 
produced the current toolkit and provided the initial training. On completion of the FFTF 
programme the role identified for the post holder was to take responsibility for embedding 
project management across the organisation, including the introduction of project 
management software, training and reinforcement of requirements, monitoring, trouble 

Page 128

Agenda Item 7



shooting, challenges to project timescales, reporting to Strategic Management Board on 
performance, and, making proposals on continuous improvement, such that project 
management would become a way of life.

A growth bid for this role in 2013 was not approved and the Fit for the Future Programme 
Manager left the organisation.

The attempt to cover the work through a member of staff classed as a ‘project management 
champion’ has been unsuccessful. The work required to embed and oversee project 
management as an essential discipline throughout the organisation requires a full time 
resource. There is currently no capacity to do this.

Management recognises the inadequacy of the current situation. In consultation with the 
responsible cabinet members a new project has been established to do the following:

 assess and select appropriate project management software
 review and revise the project management system
 identify training requirements and a suitable project management qualification for key 
staff 
 identify the resources required to ensure a project management culture is fully embedded 
and there is a dedicated corporate resource to oversee performance
 submit a growth bid for 2017/18 to seek funding for the recommended outcomes from the 
project group

PROJECT MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

1. Project definition (Low Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
A project is only constituted as a 
project when certain criteria are met.

Findings
The councils have a definition of what 
constitutes a project, what level of 
project and what is not a project. 
However this is not being applied 
consistently or robustly with business 
as usual and procurement being 
recorded as projects.

Risk
Failure to correctly classify projects, 
will lead to unnecessary resources 
being used to conduct business as 
usual, leading to financial wastage 
and loss.

A full review of both the 
projects register and 
inflight register should be 
undertaken, to ensure the 
listings are accurate and 
correct against the 
councils’ definition of a 
project.

Nominated head of 
service/ Corporate 
Management Team

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed
The Fit for the Future post holder who had responsibility for the 
project management system left the council in March 2014 after an 
unsuccessful growth bid to retain the post. This point carries 
throughout the report. The role of developing project management 
across the organisation requires a dedicated resource. 

Management response: Anna Robinson, strategic director

31 July 2016

Page 129

Agenda Item 7



2. Project management toolkit (High Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
Any guidance or framework must be 
regularly reviewed and amended to 
ensure it is fit for purpose.

Findings
There is no evidence of the project 
management toolkit having been 
reviewed since it was launched in 
2012, despite the expectation that it 
would be reviewed after six months. 
A review now is important as the 
following improvements have been 
identified:
 Definition of level of project could 

be improved.
 Guidance on intranet to be 

correctly hyperlinked.
 Include the requirement for Terms 

of Reference for each project 
board.

 Options appraisals to be 
conducted by procurement for all 
projects involving any 
procurement.

 Use of dedicated project software 
that can respond to task 
dependencies and change, as 
well identifying the critical path.

 Include in the project reports 
delays, reasons for them, 
amended dates, remedial action.

 Follow up on previous overdue 
actions to ensure completed.

 Consistent approach to recording 
risks in the risk register.

Risk
Failure to ensure a current and 
consistent approach will lead to 
inconsistencies between projects and 
local practices developing, in turn 
leading to poor decision making, poor 
governance, financial and 
reputational loss.

A full review and relaunch 
of the councils’ project 
management toolkit 
should be undertaken.

Nominated head of 
service/ Corporate 
Management Team

Management Response Implementation Date
Recommendation is Agreed
This work forms part of the Project Management Software and 
Systems Project that commences on 3 May 2016. It completes in 
mid-September and will lead to a growth bid for the resources 
needed to ensure project management is instilled as an essential 
discipline.

Management response:  Anna Robinson, strategic director

1 April 2017

Page 130

Agenda Item 7



3. Risk management (Medium Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
Risk management is undertaken 
consistently and applied to each 
project in accordance with the risk 
management process of the council.

Findings
The documented risk management 
process consists of two documents 
available on the intranet, both of 
which were drafted in 2009, and were 
due for review in 2012, but have yet 
to be reviewed. 

Furthermore the recording of risk and 
the risk management process is not 
being undertaken on the projects 
reviewed consistently or thoroughly.

Risk
Failure to accurately record, evaluate 
and identify mitigations for risk in a 
consistent manner, can lead to risks 
being managed incorrectly, or not in a 
timely manner, leading to financial 
and reputational loss.

A consistent format for 
recording and evaluating 
risk, along with identifying 
mitigation actions should 
be drafted and introduced 
as part of the project 
management toolkit.

Project Sponsor

Management Response Implementation Date
Recommendation is Agreed
This work forms part of the Project Management Software and 
Systems Project that commences on 3 May 2016. It completes in 
mid-September and will lead to a growth bid for the resources 
needed to ensure project management is instilled as an essential 
discipline.

Management response:  Anna Robinson, strategic director

1 April 2017

ROLES, RESPONSIBILITIES, OVERSIGHT AND GOVERNANCE

4. Project register (High Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
All approved projects should be 
recorded on a central projects 
register with relevant details and be 
updated regularly to ensure it is 
current.

Findings
The council maintains a register of all 
projects in progress. This showed 87 
projects of which 56 should have 
been completed by the time of this 
review. Furthermore of the 87 
projects there were 16 with named 
project managers who had left the 
employment of the council.

Risk

A review of the projects 
register is undertaken 
immediately, and the 
correct status of project 
and project managers 
recorded. Furthermore a 
system of regular reviews 
be introduced to ensure 
the currency is retained.

Nominated head of 
service/ Corporate 
Management Team

Page 131

Agenda Item 7



Failure to ensure the project register 
is accurate and current will lead to a 
lack of oversight on projects and 
resource decisions being based on 
inaccurate information.
Management Response Implementation Date
Recommendation is Agreed
Heads of service, overseen by the corporate management team will 
ensure the project register is updated, all cancelled projects 
removed, all columns correctly completed and a quarterly review 
system put in place

Management response:  Anna Robinson, strategic director

31 July 2016

5. Authorisation of projects (High Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
To authorise all projects in 
accordance with the published and 
approved project management 
methodology.

Findings
A sample of ten projects were 
reviewed. 

 One project the information was 
refused by the Project Manager, 
so no evidence of authorisation 
(SVAAP).

 One incomplete business case 
(not yet a live project) so no 
evidence of authorisation 
(Berinsfield co-location).

 One project with no project 
business case (there is a 
powerpoint but this is not a 
business case or completed or 
authorisation). (GWP)

 One project not started despite 
being recorded on project register 
as underway, so no authorisation 
(Ridgeway Leisure Facility)

 One rejected by cabinet (Mobile 
working).

 Two correctly authorised. 
(Broadway seating and Didcot 
Leisure Facility)

 One project approved, but there is 
no evidence of a project business 
case. (Vale Go Active – Get 
Healthy 2014/15)

 One project with project business 
case but no authorisation. (WCH 
Marketing Plan (Beacon))

The remaining project did not engage 
with the audit process. (Fate of 
Crowmarsh Gifford)

All current projects should 
be reviewed to ensure 
they have been correctly 
approved, and obtain 
retrospective approval if 
necessary.

Furthermore all future 
projects should be 
approved in accordance 
with the methodology.

Nominated head of 
service/ Corporate 
Management Team

Page 132

Agenda Item 7



Risk
Failure to ensure all projects are 
appropriately authorised, could result 
in uncontrolled projects and resources 
used inappropriately, which can lead 
to financial and reputational loss. 
Management Response Implementation 

Date
Recommendation is Agreed
All project business cases will be brought up to date and correct 
records maintained. Corporate Management Team will review the 
position in July.

Management response:  Anna Robinson, strategic director

31 July 2016

6. Review of projects (High Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
To review all stages of all projects 
contemporaneously in accordance 
with the published and approved 
project management methodology.

Findings
The Great Western Park sports 
facilities project identified a number of 
concerns as follows:
 Project business case is not in 

format prescribed by the toolkit. 
(style and content)

 No evidence of project approval.
 Project sponsor has left the 

council and not been replaced on 
the project, so there is no project 
sponsor.

 No evidence of a project board.
 No evidence of Terms of 

Reference (ToR) for the absent 
project board.

 No documented project plan.
 No evidence of monitoring by the 

project sponsor.

Risk
Failure to ensure the project is 
reviewed in accordance with the 
published and approved 
methodology, can result in delays, 
project creep and both financial and 
reputational loss.

All current projects should 
be reviewed to ensure 
they are subject to the 
appropriate scrutiny.

Furthermore all future 
projects should be 
scrutinised in accordance 
with the methodology.

Nominated head of 
service/ Corporate 
Management Team

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed
New projects commencing after 1 April 2016 will have to comply 
with the project methodology’s review and scrutiny requirements.  

Heads of service are responsible for ensuring their projects comply 
with the review and scrutiny requirements. They will report to 
Corporate Management Team in July to verify that the review and 
scrutiny arrangements have been complied with.

Internal audit will carry out a spot check in August to test the 

Compliance on all new 
projects commencing from 
01/04/16 

Actions complete by 31 
July 2016

Page 133

Agenda Item 7



verifications.

Management response:  Anna Robinson, strategic director

7. Project documentation (Medium Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
All project documentation (as 
described in the methodology) should 
be completed and retained.

Findings
Of the nine projects reviewed, four had 
sufficient documentation retained 
relevant to their individual progress.  

The remaining five projects had 
insufficient documentation to support 
the project (as required by the project 
management toolkit). The projects 
were:

 SVUK
 WCH marketing
 Vale Go Active
 GWP
 Berinsfield co-location (not yet 

a live project)
The remaining project failed to engage 
with the audit process was. (Fate of 
Crowmarsh Gifford)

Risk
Failure to ensure adequate and 
complete records are maintained for 
each project may lead to poor 
decision making, poor project 
management, increased risks, and 
reputational and financial loss.

All projects should have 
completed and 
comprehensive 
documentation to support 
it and to comply with the 
approved methodology.

Nominated head of 
service/ Corporate 
Management Team

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed
All new projects commencing after 1 April 2016 will meet all of the 
methodology documentation requirements.

Heads of service are responsible for ensuring their projects comply 
with the toolkit. They will report to Corporate Management Team in 
July to verify that all documentation is up to date.

Internal audit will carry out a spot check in August to test the 
verifications.

Management response:  Anna Robinson, strategic director

31 July 2016

8. Project Terms of Reference (High Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
All committees, boards and groups 
that are formed, should have clear 
and detailed terms of reference (ToR) 

1) Amend the guidance in 
the toolkit to include 
the requirement for 
project boards to have 

Nominated head of 
service/ Corporate 
Management Team

Page 134

Agenda Item 7



in place, which should be regularly 
reviewed to ensure they remain fit for 
purpose.

Findings
The project management toolkit does 
not have guidance on the requirement 
for drafting and implementing ToR for 
project boards. From the sample of 
ten projects reviewed only one 
project, the Didcot Leisure Facility 
project, had ToR for the project board 
in place, but these are not robust or 
effective as they lack a number of 
vital components and need 
redesigning. 

Risk
Failure to ensure robust and 
comprehensive ToR are in place and 
ensuring they are current and match 
what the board are doing, 
demonstrate poor project governance, 
which could lead to financial and 
reputational loss.

complete ToR, 
containing the 
following components.

 Introduction – Who has 
authorised the creation 
of this Board (the full 
council), confirmation 
that they have the 
power to create this 
board, and whether or 
not they have the 
authority to call upon 
outside expert opinion.

 Membership – This 
should detail by name 
and job title all the 
members, appoint the 
chair and deputy chair, 
and who will record the 
minutes.

 Attendance – What will 
be the quorum, both in 
numbers and specific 
attendees.

 Frequency of meetings 
– How many meetings 
per year, or during the 
life of the project, the 
timings of them, and 
frequency.

 Calling of meeting – 
These should be in 
accordance with the 
constitution of the 
council including notice 
period, and submission 
of documents date.

 Remit – Why does the 
board exist, what are 
its powers, what 
decisions can it 
make/recommend.

 Reporting – What is 
the timescale for 
producing the 
minutes/circulating 
minutes.

 Limitations of authority 
– Any restrictions 
placed upon the 
project board.

2) Amend the Didcot 
Leisure Facility ToR to 
reflect the 
requirements above 
and the suspension of 
the project.

3) Ensure all projects are 
reviewed to ensure 
ToR are in place and 
are effective and 
robust for all current 

Page 135

Agenda Item 7



project.
Management Response Implementation 

Date
Recommendation is Agreed but implementation deferred
Heads of service to review all current projects in their areas and 
ensure they comply with the current project management toolkit.

 As the PM system is about to undergo a comprehensive review it 
isn’t expedient, given current work pressures, to make piecemeal 
amendments to the toolkit. However, heads of service must ensure 
that the guidance in the toolkit is adhered to on all projects. 

Management response:  Anna Robinson, strategic director

31 July 2016

Framework Compliance

9. Project compliance with methodology (Medium Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
All projects should be undertaken in 
accordance with the approved project 
management methodology.

Findings
From the sample of ten projects 
reviewed, one of which failed to 
engage with the audit, and one failed 
to provide any documentation at all, 
four projects were clearly non-
compliant with the methodology. This 
included a project that had been 
accepted as completed by a project 
sponsor.

Risk
Failure to ensure projects are 
undertaken in accordance with the 
approved methodology, will lead to 
uncontrolled projects and reputational 
and financial loss.

1) All current projects 
should be reviewed to 
ensure they are 
compliant with the 
methodology.

2) A system of regular 
checks should be 
introduced to ensure 
ongoing compliance 
and reporting thereof.

Nominated head of 
service/ Corporate 
Management Team

Management Response Implementation Date
Recommendation is Agreed
Compliance with the toolkit and methodology will be made a 
standing item at CMT meetings, to be considered and reviewed 
quarterly.

Management response:  Anna Robinson, strategic director

First formal Corporate 
Management Team 
Review July 2016

Monitoring and Reporting

10. Project sponsor duties (Medium Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
All projects should be monitored and 
reported in accordance with the approved 
project management methodology.

Findings
Of the projects reviewed where there was 

1) All current projects 
should be monitored 
throughout the project 
to ensure they are 
compliant with the 
methodology.

2) A system of regular 

Nominated head of service/ 
Corporate Management 
Team

Page 136

Agenda Item 7



sufficient documentation available, only 
one fulfilled the criteria, and that was 
found not to have been reported correctly 
with the review and report stages which is 
the project sponsors responsibility, 
despite the project being completed.

Risk
Failure to monitor and report projects 
throughout their lifecycle and when they 
are completed, including post project 
evaluation and lessons learnt, can lead to 
reputational and financial loss.

checks should be 
introduced to ensure 
ongoing monitoring and 
reporting is being 
undertaken.

Management Response Implementation Date
Recommendation is Agreed
The project sponsor is responsible for overseeing the project, which 
includes checking that the project methodology is being complied with.  
In addition, the designated project manager’s line manager is 
responsible for ensuring each member of their team complies with all 
corporate rules, regulations and policies.  Therefore there are two 
officers responsible for checking compliance with the methodology on 
each and every project.

Corporate Management Team will review the performance of each 
service area and will ensure through quarterly reviews that projects are 
compliant with the methodology

Management response:  Anna Robinson, strategic director

31 July 2016

Page 137

Agenda Item 7



2. JOINT ELECTIONS AND ELECTION PAYMENTS 2015/2016

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 This report details the internal audit review of procedures, controls and 
the management of risk in relation to elections and election payments.  
The audit has a priority score of 22.  The draft report was issued on 13 
April 2016 and the final report was issued on 16 May 2016.

1.2 The following areas have been covered during the course of this review 
to provide assurance that:

 appropriate procedures are in place for managing election 
payments and elections to confirm that the process is conducted in 
accordance with legislation;

 the roles and responsibilities are clearly explained in relation to the 
electoral registration and returning officer and their clerks and 
presiding officers at the polling stations and the count;

 agreed schedule of fees are in place for all election payments;
 appropriate recharges are made to the necessary individual parish 

councils for administering their elections;
 an appropriate process is in place for checking, authorising and 

making election payments;
 election payments are recorded, reconciled and reported;
 an appropriate process is in place to manage referendum and 

parliamentary election expenses to confirm they are appropriately 
recorded, evidenced, reconciled and reported;

 post-election performance reviews are undertaken and an action 
plan is developed to address areas of improvement for future 
elections.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 The returning officer is responsible for organising elections within the district 
including Parliamentary and European elections and forthcoming elections 
for police and crime commissioners.  In accordance with the Representation 
of the People’s Act 1983 the cost of local elections are met from the local 
authority’s budgets.  The Electoral Commission is an independent body set 
up by Parliament which sets out standards and guidelines for returning 
officers running elections.  The Parliamentary Voting Systems and 
Constituencies Act 2011 allowed the Commission to make advance 
payments to cover the costs of the UK parliamentary elections which took 
place in conjunction with parish and district elections on 7 May 2015.

2.2 The May 2015 elections took place at 246 polling stations across the 
districts with 247 presiding officers and 298 poll clerks employed in addition 
to the count officers and staff involved in managing postal votes.

Page 138

Agenda Item 7



3. PREVIOUS AUDIT REPORTS

3.1 SODC
Election payments was last subject to an internal audit review in June 
2012 and six recommendations were raised.  All six recommendations 
were agreed.  A satisfactory assurance opinion was issued.

3.2 Of the six recommendations, three have been implemented and three 
recommendations are no longer applicable as they have been 
superseded.  No recommendations have been restated as part of this 
review.

3.3 VWHDC
Election payments was last subject to an internal audit review in June 
2012 and six recommendations were raised.  All six recommendations 
were agreed.  A satisfactory assurance opinion was issued.

3.4 Of the six recommendations, three have been implemented and three 
recommendations are no longer applicable as they have been 
superseded.  No recommendations have been restated as part of this 
review.

4. 2015/2016 AUDIT ASSURANCE

4.1 Limited assurance: There are some weaknesses in the adequacy of the 
internal control system which put the system objectives at risk and/or the 
level of non-compliance puts some of the system objectives at risk.

4.2 Seven joint recommendations have been raised in this review.  One high 
risk, four medium risk and two low risk.

5. MAIN FINDINGS

5.1 Policies and procedures

5.1.1 The Electoral Commission provided the returning officer with guidance 
specifically for the parliamentary May 2015 elections.  The guidance sets 
out the process that should be undertaken pre, post and during the 
elections.  It is noted that the Cabinet Office have also given guidance 
primarily on claiming expenses.  Whilst there are procedures in place for 
officers that carry out election duties, there are no office working 
procedures covering how payments for elections are managed and 
recorded.

5.1.2 Guidance from the Electoral Commission expects the returning officer to 
develop both a project plan and risk register for the elections.  Guidance 
also states the information that should be included in both the project 
plan and risk register.  Review confirmed that both councils have 
developed a project plan and risk register for both the UK parliamentary 
elections in May 2015 and the Police and Crime Commission elections 
due in May 2016.  Both the project plans and risk registers include and 
are appropriate to the requirements of the Electoral Commission, and the 

Page 139

Agenda Item 7



project plan also includes the statutory dates as required.

5.1.3 Area assurance: Substantial
One recommendation has been made as a result of our work in this area 
(Rec 1).

5.2 Roles and responsibilities

5.2.1 Roles and responsibilities for staff working on elections are documented 
and in place.  The councils have a three year contract with Halarose Ltd 
in place and they email staff working on elections a link to the online 
training.  The training is tailored to the roles staff members will be 
undertaking in the elections so that they are aware of their roles and 
responsibilities.  Review of 23 presiding officers and 34 poll clerks 
working in two (one in the South Oxfordshire district and the other in the 
Vale of White Horse district) parishes/towns confirmed that the training 
was provided and undertaken appropriately.  

5.2.3 Area assurance: Full
No recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this 
area.

5.3 Schedule of fees

5.3.1 The councils have four scale of fees in place for elections.  These are:-
1. Scale of expenditure for elections of District Councillors;
2. Scale of expenditure for elections of Parish Councillors;
3. Scale of expenditure for polls consequent on parish meetings;
4. Scale of fees for neighbourhood planning referendums.
The fees for May 2015 elections were approved by SODC’s council on 11 
December 2014 and VWHDC’s council on 10 December 2014.  Review 
of the scale of fees confirmed that they appear to be comprehensive and 
cover the roles and duties required in carrying out an election.

5.3.2 The May 2015 elections were combined between UK parliamentary, 
district councils and town/parish council elections, therefore an increase 
of 20% was applied to the fees as agreed.  Review of 23 presiding 
officers and 34 poll clerks working in two parishes/towns confirmed that 
the officers were appropriately charged in line with the agreed schedule 
of fees.

5.3.3 Area assurance: Full
No recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this 
area.

5.4 Parish councils’ recharges

5.4.1 A record is kept on the Xpress management system of all town/parish 
contested and uncontested elections in May 2015 and required the 
election costs recharged to.  A schedule of fees spreadsheet has been 
developed which shows the breakdown of election costs that need to be 
recharged.  It is noted that the schedule of fees spreadsheet is spilt into 
wards in the towns/parishes and due to the May 2015 elections being 

Page 140

Agenda Item 7



combined (UK parliamentary, district councils and town/parish council) 
elections, the election costs were divided between the three.  Review of 
15 wards found that one ward was not recharged the full relevant cost 
and there is a lack of independent review of the fees spreadsheet.

5.4.2 Invoices are raised and issued to the town/parish councils through the 
debtors’ module on the Agresso system for recharging of the election 
costs.  Review of 100% (26) of contested town/parish council invoices 
found that three town/parish councils were recharged the wrong amount 
and there was a delay on issuing one town/parish council invoice due to 
the invoice not being approved.  The invoice was over the £10,000 
threshold and required the head of legal & democratic services or the 
democratic services manager’s approval.  The democratic services 
manager received a system message on Agresso, but did not have the 
level of access required to approve the invoice.  However, there was a 
delay in contacting Capita services to rectify the issue.  It is noted that 
the invoice has now been issued to the town/parish council (31 March 
2016).

5.4.5 Area assurance: Limited
Three recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this 
area (Recs 2, 3 & 4).

5.5 Checking, authorising and making election payments

5.5.1 Payments due for election duties are recorded on the Xpress 
management system, while other payments for other expenses are 
recorded on various spreadsheets.  The Xpress management system 
splits the payments dependent on where the staff are based, i.e. split 
33.3% if the town/parish also has town/parish council elections.  Mileage 
claims are requested when officers sign and return the appointment form.  
It is noted that the election team had checked one in 20 mileage claims 
against google maps to confirm accuracy for the May 2015 elections, but 
will now check 100% of mileage claims for the May 2016 police and 
crime commissioners elections.  Review of 57 (23 presiding officers & 34 
poll clerks) staff found that two officers claimed for and received payment 
for excessive mileage.  It is understood that the election services officer 
received a phone call stating that they were both living elsewhere at the 
time of the elections, but failed to record this.

5.5.2 The returning officer has a signed contract with Selima Ltd to undertake 
the payroll service for election staff payments, which is due to expire in 
December 2017.  The elections team download the payment report from 
the Xpress management system and sends it to Selima Ltd for payment.  
Payslips are sent to the elections team to check against their records to 
confirm that the information and amounts are appropriate.  It is noted that 
one in 20 payslips were checked for accuracy.  After the checks are 
completed and the elections team are satisfied, the elections team leader 
approves the payment by emailing Selima Ltd.  Review of 57 (23 
presiding officers & 34 poll clerks) staff confirmed that staff were paid 
appropriately against the records kept.

5.5.3 Various calculation spreadsheets are used to calculate the amounts 
Page 141

Agenda Item 7



payable for the other election costs, so that payments can be 
apportioned appropriately between DCLG (UK parliamentary, EU & 
referendum), district councils and town/parishes councils.  It is noted that 
DCLG and the parish/town councils are recharged for their element of 
the costs.  Review of 15 wards confirmed that the invoices supported 
each cost and was consistently and appropriately applied.  However, an 
independent officer does not check, review and sign off the calculation 
spreadsheet to confirm accuracy of apportionment, which is considered 
best practice.

5.5.4 Area assurance: Satisfactory
Two recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this 
area (Recs 5 & 6).

5.6 Reconciling and reporting of election payments

5.6.1 Staff payments are recorded and analysed on the Xpress management 
system, and other elections expenditure is reported and analysed using 
several spreadsheets to allocate the costs to the UK parliament, district 
councils and/or town/parish council elections.  Review of the recharge 
cost and invoices found discrepancies (see objective 5.4) and due to the 
lack of reconciliations and checks undertaken were not identified and 
rectified.

5.6.2 The returning officer has a contract with Selima Ltd in place to undertake 
payment to election staff.  The payment does not go through the Agresso 
system and is directly paid out of the councils’ bank account.  
Accountancy are notified of the amount to be credited and raise a journal 
against the relevant account code on the Agresso system.  Accountancy 
undertake a monthly reconciliation of the councils’ bank accounts to 
confirm that the amount paid balances against the general ledger.  This 
was reviewed in more detail in the general ledger undertaken in March 
2016.

5.6.5 Area assurance: Limited
Three recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this 
area (Rec 2, 3 & 4).

5.7 Parliamentary election expenses

5.7.1 Records of election expenditure are maintained over various 
spreadsheets detailing the individual cost elements, such as hall hire 
costs, stationery costs etc.  Each cost element is apportioned to the UK 
parliamentary, district councils and/or town/parish council elections.  It is 
noted that some costs are attributable to the UK parliamentary elections 
only and other costs are either split across UK parliamentary, district 
councils and town/parishes council elections at 33.3% if a contested 
town/parish elections is involved, or 50% each between the UK 
parliamentary and district councils.

5.7.2 There are three parliamentary areas within both South Oxfordshire and 
Vale of White Horse districts (one in South Oxfordshire and two in Vale 
of White Horse) and each area received a 75% advance totalling 

Page 142

Agenda Item 7



£202,786.00 from DCLG based on the estimated costs for running the 
May 2015 elections.  The councils submitted expenses claim forms with 
supporting documents to the Election Claims Unit, within DCLG for 
verification in November 2015 and at the time of the audit (April 2016) no 
response or payment has been received.  It is noted that the cost of the 
parliamentary elections overspent by £52,737.91 and due to overspend 
the returning officer was required to submit a justification for submission 
of costs to the Election Claims Unit.

5.7.3 Area assurance: Full
No recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this 
area.

5.8 Post-election performance reviews

5.8.1 The Electoral Commission compiled an assessment of the performance 
of returning officers at the May 2015 polls in July 2015.  The report 
highlighted the returning officers, that had been assessed, that had not 
met one or more of the following performance standards:-
 Voters;
 Those who want to stand for elections;
 Co-ordination and management of elections.
Review of the Electoral Commission’s report found that the returning 
officer for South Oxfordshire was in the report as he had not met one of 
the criteria’s in performance standard one (voters).  Review found that 
the returning officer for Vale of White Horse had met all three 
performance standards.

5.8.2 The Returning Officer developed a joint (SODC & VWHDC) report on the 
delivery of the May 2015 elections.  The report was accepted and 
approved by the Community Governance & Electoral Issues Committee 
on 20 October 2015 (SODC) and 13 October 2015 (VWHDC).  The 
report included the findings from the Electoral Commission and was 
compiled with consultation and feedback from a sample of voters, staff, 
media outlets and disability access groups.  The report highlighted eight 
key actions that arose from the May 2015 elections.  Of the eight action 
points three are due to be implemented by the police & crime 
commissioner elections in May 2016 or the EU referendum in June 2016.  
Review confirmed that all three key action points have been 
implemented.  It is noted however that an action plan has not been 
developed to monitor and ensure that the remaining five key action 
points are implemented.

5.8.3 Area assurance: Substantial
One recommendation has been made as a result of our work in this area 
(Rec 7).

Page 143

Agenda Item 7



OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

1. Procedure notes (Medium Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
Procedure notes are in place, so if 
key officers are absent other 
officers in the team can cover their 
role.

Findings
There are no office procedures in 
place covering how election 
payments are managed, recorded, 
calculated and recharged.

Risk
If procedures notes are not in 
place, there is a risk of 
responsibilities not being able to be 
covered when key officers are 
absent.

Procedure notes should be 
developed to cover election 
payments.

Electoral Services Officer

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed

Management response: Democratic Services Manager 

1 December 2016

TOWN/PARISH COUNCIL RECHARGES

2. Schedule of fees checks (Medium Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
A check of the town/parish 
councils’ schedule of election fees 
is undertaken.

Findings
Review of 15 wards found that one 
ward was not recharged the full 
amount of costs, which was not 
picked up due to a lack of 
checking.

Risk
If a check of the schedule of fees 
is not undertaken, there is a 
financial risk to the council as 
town/parish councils are recharged 
without all of the relevant cost.

A check of the town/parish 
council’s schedule of election 
fees spreadsheet should be 
undertaken prior to the issue 
of invoices to ensure that the 
town/parish councils are 
recharged all relevant costs.

Democratic Services 
Manager

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed Immediate

Page 144

Agenda Item 7



Management response: Democratic Services Manager

3. Town/parish council invoices (High Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
A reconciliation is undertaken 
between the town/parish council 
schedule of fees spreadsheet and 
the Agresso system to confirm that 
town/parish councils are recharged 
the appropriate amounts.

Findings
Review of 100% sample (26) of 
contested town/parish council 
invoices found that three 
town/parish councils were 
recharged the wrong amount, 
which totalled £14,464.67 of 
underpayments.  It is noted that the 
three town/parish councils have 
now been invoiced.

Risk
If a reconciliation is not 
undertaken, there is a financial risk 
to the council as invoices issued to 
town/parish councils with the 
incorrect amount could remain 
undetected.

A reconciliation should be 
undertaken between the 
town/parish councils’ 
schedule of fees and the 
Agresso system to confirm 
that the correct amounts are 
invoiced to town/parish 
councils.

Electoral Services Officer

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed

Management response: Democratic Services Manager 

Immediate

4. Town/parish council invoices over £10,000 (Low Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
A process is in place, so that any 
town/parish council invoices over 
£10,000 are approved promptly.

Findings
Review of 100% sample (26) of 
contested town/parish council 
invoices found that there was delay 
on issuing one town/parish council 
invoice due to the invoice not being 
approved.  The invoice was over 
the £10,000 threshold and required 
the head of legal & democratic 
services or democratic services 
manager’s approval.  The 
democratic services manager 
received a system message but did 
not have the level of access to 
approve the invoice.  However, 
there was a delay in contacting 

A process should be in place 
and documented to ensure 
that all invoices to 
town/parish councils over the 
£10,000 threshold are 
approved promptly ensuring 
that invoices are issued 
efficiently.

Democratic Services 
Manager

Page 145

Agenda Item 7



Capita services to rectify the issue.  
It is noted that the invoice was 
issued to the town/parish council 
on 31 March 2016.

Risk
If a process is not put in place so 
that invoices over £10,000 are 
approved promptly, there is a 
financial risk to the council as 
invoices over £10,000 may not be 
issued and paid.

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed

Management response: Democratic Services Manager

Immediate

CHECKING, AUTHORISING AND MAKING ELECTION PAYMENTS

5. Change of circumstances (Low Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
A record is kept of any agreements 
to exceptional circumstances 
relating to staff working on 
elections, so that checks can be 
made to confirm that appropriate 
mileage is being claimed.

Findings
Review of 57 (23 presiding officers 
& 34 poll clerks) staff over two 
(Abingdon & Henley) parishes 
found that two staff members 
claimed for and got paid for more 
miles than google maps stated.  It 
is understood that the election 
services officer received a phone 
call stating that they were both 
living elsewhere at the time of the 
elections, but there was no 
evidence to confirm this.

Risk
If records are not kept evidencing 
agreements to exceptional 
circumstances relating to staff 
working on elections, there is a risk 
of appropriate checks not being 
able to be undertaken with the 
potential for officers to falsify their 
mileage claims which could remain 
undetected.

A record should be kept to 
any agreements to 
exceptional circumstances 
relating to staff working on 
elections so that checks can 
be undertaken confirming 
that staff are claiming the 
appropriate mileage.

Electoral Services Officer

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed

Management response: Democratic Services Manager 

Immediate

Page 146

Agenda Item 7



6. Election calculation spreadsheets (Medium Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
Apportionment and recharges of 
costs are accurately undertaken 
and checked prior to invoicing.

Findings
There are various spreadsheets 
used in support of the calculations, 
apportionment and recharging of 
cost.  These are not independently 
checked, reviewed and signed off.

Risk
If the calculation spreadsheets are 
not independently checked, 
reviewed and signed off, there is a 
risk of the councils undercharging 
both the town/parish councils and 
DCLG.

The calculation spreadsheet 
should be independently 
checked, reviewed and 
signed off to confirm that the 
calculations and 
apportionment of cost to be 
recharged are accurate.  

Democratic Services 
Manager

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed

Management response: Democratic Services Manager 

Immediate

POST-ELECTION PERFORMANCE REVIEWS

7. Key action points (Medium Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
An action plan for the key action 
points raised in the May 2015 
elections with target 
implementation dates is in place.

Findings
Review of the returning officer’s 
report on the delivery of the May 
2015 elections found that key 
action points were raised to rectify 
any issues identified; however an 
action plan has not been 
developed to monitor and ensure 
the implementation of the action 
points.

Risk
If an action plan for the key action 
points raised in the May 2015 
elections is not in place, there is a 
risk of action points not being 
monitored or implemented resulting 
in the same mistakes being made 
in future elections.

An action plan with 
implementation target dates 
is developed to ensure that 
any key actions identified 
after elections are in place 
prior to the next elections.

Election Services Team 
Leader

Page 147

Agenda Item 7



Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed

Management response: Democratic Services Manager 

31 July 2016

Page 148

Agenda Item 7



3. JOINT HR RECRUITMENT 2015/2016

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 This report details the internal audit review of procedures, controls and 
the management of risk in relation to HR recruitment.  The audit has a 
priority score of 17.  The draft report was issued on 20 April 2016 and the 
final report was issued on 6 June 2016.

1.2 The following areas have been covered during the course of this review 
to provide assurance that:

 that adequate policies and procedures are in place for recruitment and 
that appropriate training is given to all officers involved in the 
recruitment process;

 that all recruitment requests are reviewed to ensure they are required, 
there is adequate budget available to fund the post and appropriate 
authorisation is sought to commence the recruitment process;

 that for each appointment the councils’ recruitment process is adhered 
to with all supporting documentation maintained by HR;

 that for each appointment all the relevant pre-employment checks 
have been undertaken prior to commencement in employment and;

 that for each new starter, management induction responsibilities are 
completed in a timely manner.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 SODC and VWHDC have harmonised all the HR recruitment systems and 
processes in 2011.  Both councils aim to:

 recruit and retain employees who demonstrate high levels of 
performance and motivation and those who demonstrate future 
potential;

 treat all employees and prospective employees fairly and with respect, 
promoting equal access to such opportunities, including supporting the 
positive action provisions;

 recruit and retain a diverse workforce that reflects the demographics of 
each district;

 support the Oxfordshire Apprenticeship pledge, encouraging service 
areas to take on apprentices where appropriate.

2.2 At the time of the audit, the HR administration support team currently 
comprises of one HR business support manager, two full time and two part 
time HR assistants and one HR assistant on a causal worker contract.  It was 
also noted that two of the HR assistants are agency employees and the other 
three HR assistants are permanent members of staff.

2.3 From the 1 April 2015 to the 1 April 2016,106 SODC and 43 VWHDC 
have been recruited as new employees.

Page 149

Agenda Item 7



3. PREVIOUS AUDIT REPORTS

3.1 SODC
HR Recruitment was last subject to an internal audit review in July 2010 
and four recommendations were raised.  Two recommendations were 
agreed.  A satisfactory assurance opinion was issued.

3.2 From the findings of the current review, internal audit have established 
that the recommendation regarding harmonising the recruitment process 
has been implemented. The remaining recommendation on pre-
employment checks review has not been implemented and restated 
within the current review (Rec 6).

3.3 VWHDC
HR Recruitment was last subject to an internal audit review in July 2010 
and six recommendations were raised.  Four recommendations were 
agreed.  A satisfactory assurance opinion was issued.

3.4 From the findings of the current review, internal audit have established 
that the recommendations regarding harmonising the recruitment process 
had been implemented. The remaining recommendations on temporary 
staff records, pre-employment checks review and induction process have 
not been implemented and restated within the current review (Recs 5 - 7).  

4. 2015/2016 AUDIT ASSURANCE

4.1 Limited assurance: There are some weaknesses in the adequacy of the 
internal control system which put the system objectives at risk and/or the 
level of non-compliance puts some of the system objectives at risk.

4.2 Seven joint recommendations have been raised in this review.  Two high 
risk, three medium risk and two low risk.

5. MAIN FINDINGS

5.1 Policies and procedures

5.1.1 A joint recruitment and selection policy and procedures is in place and 
was last updated in November 2014.  The policy is available on the 
councils’ intranet page.  After reviewing the policy, internal audit is 
satisfied that the policy is in line with CIPD best practice.  

5.1.2 The councils have entered into a contract to recruit temporary employees 
and/or consultants through Hays Recruitment Agency from 1 April 2016.  
It was identified that procedures exist for hiring staff through the Hays 
recruitment agency system.  The recruitment agency went through a 
tendering process and the ESPO Framework was used to ensure that all 
relevant extensive checks were carried out. 

5.1.3 Area assurance: Full
No recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this 
area.

Page 150

Agenda Item 7



5.2 Service area reviews

5.2.1 The recruiting manager is required to fill in a ‘Request to Recruit’ form in 
which they have to consider if the post is necessary and is within their 
budget.  The recruitment and selection policy directs the recruiting 
manager to the request to recruit form.  Internal audit concluded that 
sufficient service area review is required as the request to recruit forms 
require approval from the recruiting manager, HR and the strategic 
director.  There is no information on the form verifying that the recruiting 
manager has ensured that there is adequate funds in the budget to 
spend (Rec 1).

5.2.2 A sample of 15 officers employed in the time period 1 April 2015 to 1 
April 2016 were selected at random and reviewed to ensure that the 
request to recruit forms and service area review are carried out in 
accordance with the council’s policy.  It was identified that two out of the 
15 sample selected did not have all the required request to recruit forms 
attached to the appropriate personnel files. (Rec 2)

5.2.3 Area assurance: Satisfactory
Two recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this 
area (Rec 1 and 2).

5.3 Recruitment process

5.3.1 It was identified that the recruitment process is in line with CIPD 
recruitment and selection best practice.  The HR team assist the 
recruiting managers throughout the process to select and recruit the best 
candidate for the job.  Vacancies are advertised through Easyweb with 
whom SODC and VWHDC have a contract which is managed by the 
shared HR manager.  Internal audit is satisfied with the contract.

5.3.2 From the sample of 15 officers selected in 5.2.2, testing was conducted 
to ensure that the recruitment process is carried out in accordance with 
the council’s policy.  It was identified that:

 eight out of the 15 sample selected had incomplete record files in 
regards to insufficient and/or no qualifications attached, 

 one out of the 15 sample selected had no signed contract 
attached to the appropriate personnel files.  (Rec 6)

5.3.3 Area assurance: Limited
No recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this 
area.

5.4 Pre-employment checks

5.4.1 Internal audit established that the following pre-employment checks are 
undertaken by the hr support team:
 Two references;
 Medical clearance;
 Proof of ID;
 Right to work in the UK; 

Page 151

Agenda Item 7



 DBS checks, if applicable to the post.

5.4.2 A sample of 15 officers employed in the time period 1 April 2015 to 1 
April 2016 were selected at random and reviewed to ensure that the pre-
employment checks are carried out in accordance with the council’s 
policy.  It was identified that 12 out of the 15 sample selected did not 
have all the required checks and correct hr procedures performed in full. 
(Recs 2 - 6)

5.4.3 Area assurance: Limited
Five recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this 
area (Rec 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6).

5.5 Induction process

5.5.1 Internal audit identified that although there are no procedures for 
induction, there is sufficient guidance in the recruitment and selection 
policy for service managers to follow in the form of an induction plan and 
checklist.  Both the induction plan and checklist are in line with CIPD best 
practice guidance, as it covers all essential areas required for the new 
starter to fully understand the council and their own role.

5.5.2 From the sample of 15 officers selected in 5.2.2, testing was conducted 
to ensure that the induction process is carried out in accordance with the 
council’s policy.  No issues were identified with the sample selected.  
Further review of the induction training list identified new starters that had 
received their induction training more than six months from their start 
date (Rec 7).

5.5.3 Area assurance: Satisfactory
One recommendation has been made as a result of our work in this area.

OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

RECRUITMENT REQUESTS

1. Request to recruit forms (Low Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
Checks are made to ensure that 
sufficient funds are available prior 
to the recruitment process taking 
place. 

Findings
The current procedure for 
recruitment requests does not 
document the recruiting manager 
has ensured that there is adequate 
budget available to fund the post.

Risk
If the funding stream is not 
reviewed prior to recruitment the 

The request to recruit form 
should include a section in the 
form that confirms that the 
recruiting manager has 
ensured that there is adequate 
budget available to fund the 
post.

N/A

Page 152

Agenda Item 7



budget could become over or 
under spent and could lead to 
inefficient use of council resources 
and financial losses.
Management Response Implementation 

Date
Recommendation is Agreed
We have added a specific note to the request to recruit form asking; 
Please confirm you have checked that your budget can afford this 
recruitment.

Management response: Human Resources Manager

Implemented

PRE-EMPLOYMENT CHECKS

2. Service area recruitment procedure (High Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
Recruitments are conducted in line 
with the council recruitment and 
selection policy.

Findings
Internal audit identified two 
candidates from the development 
and housing team who were 
interviewed and recruited by the 
recruiting manager without 
following the councils’ recruitment 
and selection policy.  The following 
procedures were not completed:
 Request to recruit form not 

completed showing details of 
post and the proposed budget 
it will be covered by.

 HR not informed that 
vacancies need to be filled to 
ensure all recruitment and 
selection is completed in line 
with HR policies and 
procedures.

 Job descriptions and person 
specifications not available or 
provided to HR for both 
vacancies.

Risk
Insufficient audit trails detailing that 
the starters process has been 
completed accurately may lead to 
a risk of ineligible or inappropriate 
personnel being employed by the 
council.

All permanent and fixed term 
contract staff positions should 
be supported by a request to 
recruit form.

Human Resources 
Manager

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed

Management response: Human Resources Manager

With immediate effect

Page 153

Agenda Item 7



3. Disclosure Barring Service (DBS) Scope (Medium Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
All posts that are deemed to 
warrant a DBS check is undertaken 
in a timely manner and prior to 
commencement of their 
employment.

Findings
Internal audit has recognised from 
undertaking this review of DBS 
checks that the council has chosen 
to only undertake DBS checks for a 
specified categories of employee, 
for example those working with 
children who would fall within 
standard disclosure. Internal audit 
also noted that HR does not 
conduct any vetting of staff who 
have access to the councils’ bank 
accounts, financial information and 
payment facilities.

It should be noted that this 
recommendation was raised in the 
human resources 2008/09 audit 
and has been amended to reflect 
the 2015/16 findings.

Risk
Failure to ensure that officers follow 
procedures relating to employment 
references and DBS checks, could 
result in employees being recruited 
for positions for which they are not 
suitable/qualified and lead to 
adverse criticism of the council 
recruitment process.

Consideration is given to 
widening the range of officers 
who are subject to DBS 
checks who have financial 
responsibilities and/or access 
to sensitive personal 
information.  The scope 
should include the basic level 
of disclosure for officers.  This 
could also assist with 
compliance to 2014 HMG (Her 
Majesty’s Government) 
baseline personnel security 
standard.

N/A

Management Response Implementation Date
Recommendation is Not Agreed
The councils do not have discretion to carry out DBS checks at will. 
 There is strict legislation governing eligibility for DBS checks and I 
cannot agree any audit recommendation that is at odds with the 
legislation.

Auditors and accountants
Charted accountants and certified accountants are eligible for a DBS 
check on entry to the profession only.  Internal auditors are not 
eligible for a check.  I therefore do not agree with recommendation 3.

Management response: Head of HR, IT and Technical Services

N/A

4. Disclosure Barring Service (DBS) checks (High Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
All posts that are deemed to 
warrant a DBS check is undertaken 
in a timely manner and prior to 
commencement of their 
employment. 

DBS checks and disclosures 
should be undertaken for all 
posts that require a one in a 
timely manner.  Internal audit 
would also recommend that is 
undertaken prior to the 
commencement of their 

Head of HR, IT and 
Technical Services

Page 154

Agenda Item 7



Findings
Internal audit selected a sample of 
15 employees that had been 
recruited in the period 1 April 2015 
to 1 April 2016.  From the sample 
selected, it was identified that:
 Two out of the 15 required DBS 

checks as part of the job 
description.  Further testing 
was undertaken through the 
request of the Head of HR, IT 
and Services and it was 
identified that three lettings 
officers and two housing needs 
officers required checks as part 
of their job description.  These 
had not been undertaken at the 
time of the audit even though 
the officer was in post for more 
than six months.

 In internal audit’s opinion, there 
were two out of the 15 officers 
(Casual Assistant Duty 
Manager – Leisure Centre and 
Accelerated Housing and 
Development Manager – 
Development and Housing 
team) who were not DBS 
checked that should be 
checked.  This is a risk 
whereby the officers are 
dealing with the community 
(including vulnerable people) 
and payment processing.

Risk
Failure to ensure employee 
references and DBS checks have 
been obtained and verified in a 
timely manner, could result in the 
employee commencing their 
employment without the necessary 
supporting references being in 
place.

employment.

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed in Principle
The HR business support team will ensure that:
 they review the recruitment process to make sure there are no 

gaps in the procedure
 they check lettings and housing needs team have all received 

DBS checks, and carry out any which are missing.

Casual assistant duty manager - leisure centre:
I do not agree that a DBS check is required for the casual assistant 
duty manager, whose role at the Beacon Leisure Centre does not 
meet the eligibility criteria.

Accelerated housing and development manager:
This role is a strategic one and does not involve frequent interaction 
with children or vulnerable adults.  A meeting with a community 
group is not an activity which needs a DBS check.  The role is not 
eligible for a DBS check and I do not agree this part of the 

31 July 2016

Page 155

Agenda Item 7



recommendation.

Management response: Head of HR, IT and Technical Services

PREVIOUS RECOMMENDATIONS RESTATED

5. Agency and Casual worker staff records (Low Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
HR keeps a record to monitor 
temporary staff hired through the 
recruitment agency to ascertain if it 
is cost effective.

Findings
From the sample of 15 new 
starters selected, it was identified 
that one new starter was recruited 
through Champion recruitment 
agency on 7 March 2016 and one 
new starter was an East 
Cambridgeshire Council employee 
who had been seconded to SODC 
for 6 month from 4 August 2015.  
From the two posts, it was noted 
that HR kept insufficient records of 
temporary staff hired through an 
agency or secondment as required 
in the recruitment and selection 
policy.

Risk
If insufficient records are kept, HR 
cannot monitor the information 
required and related cost; therefore 
the council could incur financial 
costs which could be prevented.

a) A record of staff hired 
through an agency or 
other establishments 
should be retained by HR 
to monitor the numbers, 
working arrangements and 
cost to ensure and 
determine if the approach 
is cost effective and 
efficient.

b) HR should create a form 
for councils that enter into 
staff exchange or 
secondments with SODC 
and/or VWHDC, 
confirming the pre-
employment checks they 
undertake on the 
respective staff member.  
Any pre-employment 
checks documented as not 
undertaken would need to 
be performed by HR, in 
line with the council’s 
recruitment and selection 
policy.

Human Resources 
Manager

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed
Recommendation a) The Hays reporting system now enables us to 
access and report on these records 
Recommendation b) We have produced a form to ensure that staff 
exchanges with other councils have correct pre-employment check 
(provided).

Management response: HR Manager

Implemented

6. Pre-employment checks (High Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
All officers have had relevant pre-
employment checks required for 
their position.

Findings
Internal audit identified that the 

HR should review the pre-
employment checks process to 
ensure that all officers are 
given the appropriate checks 
required for their jobs as soon 
as possible.  

Human Resources 
Manager

Page 156

Agenda Item 7



administration of the pre-
employment checks were not being 
completed in accordance to the 
agreed procedures.  A random 
selection of 15 starters were tested 
and it was identified that:
 There was no evidence for 

proof of identification being 
obtained for one out of the 15 
starters;

 Three out of 15 starters 
received only one reference 
which is not in line with the 
council’s agreed recruitment 
procedures;

 Two out of the 15 starters had 
incomplete medical 
questionnaire recorded with no 
follow up being performed by 
HR; 

 Three out of the 15 starters did 
not have all the relevant 
certificates obtained by HR to 
support their qualifications as 
stated on the application forms 
and required by the role;

 Five out of 15 starters had no 
qualifications received from the 
successful candidate; 

 One out of the 15 starters did 
not have a signed contract 
retained in the HR personnel 
file.

Risk
Failure to carry out a 
comprehensive pre-employment 
check could result in officers being 
recruited to positions which they 
are not suitable for and this could 
lead to adverse criticism and legal 
action towards the council.

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed

Management response: HR Manager

Implemented

7. Induction process (Medium Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
All officers received induction 
training as soon as they start their 
role.

Findings
Internal audit identified that the 
three officers that had been 
employed by the council for over a 
year and nine officers that had 

Reviews of new starters 
should be undertaken to 
ensure that they are provided 
with induction training on the 
first available session.   

HR Business Partner 
(Learning and 
Development)

Page 157

Agenda Item 7



been employed for more than six 
month before receiving their 
induction training. 

Risk
Failure to carry out prompt 
induction training for new started 
could result in officers not being 
fully aware of how their role 
supports the council’s aims and 
objectives.

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed in Principle.
Agreed that induction should be attended as soon as possible after 
starting with the council.

Induction is organised on a regular basis according to the number of 
new starters and they are asked to book on a course. HR can’t be 
responsible if new starters fail to book onto the course in a timely 
fashion and we don’t have the capacity to chase. People who have 
been here for more than a year are not specifically invited to attend 
(with agreement of the Chief Executive), although we cannot prevent 
people from booking themselves on if they want to. 

Management response: HR Business Partner (Learning and 
Development)

Capita’s responsibility 
from 1 August 2016

Page 158

Agenda Item 7



4. JOINT INSURANCE 2015/2016

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 This report details the internal audit review of procedures, controls and 
the management of risk in relation to insurance.  The audit has a priority 
score of 20.  The draft report was issued on 30 March 2016 and the final 
report was issued on 7 June 2016.

1.2 The following areas have been covered during the course of this review 
to provide assurance that:

 insurance policies are assessed, reviewed, negotiated and renewed 
annually;

 all insurable risks are insured and have adequate cover;
 procedures for reporting incidents and making claims are adequate, 

appropriate and available to the public;
 claims made are thoroughly reviewed and case documentation is 

adequate;
 insurance information is submitted to management for monitoring and 

approval; and
 business continuity claims have been suitably, reviewed, documented 

and authorised.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 The Accountancy Manager (Technical) (AMT) within the finance team had 
responsibility for insurance until December 2015 and managed the process 
for the business continuity claims. Following the resignation of the AMT the 
Assurance Manager (AM) took over responsibility for the councils’ insurance 
function from January 2016. Claims are reviewed on a day to day basis by a 
part time Administrative Assistant. A new post was being recruited to during 
the course of this review to cover risk, insurance and business continuity. The 
business continuity claims are from the period prior to the AM taking over 
responsibility.

2.2 Zurich Municipal (ZM) were awarded the contract to provide both councils’ 
insurance cover for the period 1 April 2014 to 30 September 2017 with an 
option to extend by 2 years. ZM’s online claims database at the time of review 
lists 44 claims that have been referred by SODC, of which eight are open.  A 
total of 27 have been referred by VWHDC to Zurich and 7 were open at the 
time of review. Not all of these claims result in a payment being made.

2.3 Following the January 2015 fire at the council offices in Crowmarsh, the 
councils are claiming from their insurer, Zurich, for getting services up and 
running again based at the Milton park offices. This is what is referred to as 
the business continuity claim. In addition to business expenses, officers 
based at the offices lost personal possessions. GAB Robins act as loss 
adjusters for the claim process and they validate the councils’ claims and 
agree Zurich’s contribution. 

Page 159

Agenda Item 7



3. PREVIOUS AUDIT REPORTS

3.1 SODC
Insurance was last subject to an internal audit review in August 2012 and 
two recommendations were raised.  Both recommendations were agreed.  
A full  assurance opinion was issued.

3.2 From findings within the current review neither recommendation has been 
implemented so they have been restated (Recs 18 & 19).

3.3 VWHDC
Insurance was last subject to an internal audit review in August 2012 and 
six recommendations were raised.  All six recommendations were 
agreed.  A satisfactory assurance opinion was issued.

3.4 Three recommendations were found to have been implemented at the 
time of a follow up in March 2013. From findings within the current 
review, one recommendation regarding the review process has been 
implemented and two recommendations regarding guidance to the public 
and training for officers have been restated (Recs 18 & 19).

4. 2015/2016 AUDIT ASSURANCE

4.1 Limited assurance: There are some weaknesses in the adequacy of the 
internal control system which put the system objectives at risk and/or the 
level of non-compliance puts some of the system objectives at risk.

4.2 Eighteen joint recommendations have been raised in this review and one 
specific to SODC. Five are high risk, seven medium risk (including the 
SODC recommendation) and seven low risk.

5. MAIN FINDINGS

5.1 Insurance policies

5.1.1 Zurich Municipal (ZM) currently provide insurance cover for both councils 
for the period 1 April 2014 to 30 September 2017 with an option to extend 
by 2 years. The insurance policy was split into lots and was a joint tender 
exercise under an OJEU accelerated negotiated process. No areas of 
concern were identified from review of the insurance procurement 
documentation.

5.1.2 The first year of the contract ran from 1/4/2014 to 31/3/2015 with a review 
and renewal of relevant policies for the period 1/4/2015 to 30/9/2015 and 
then for the current period which is for 1/10/2015 to 30/9/2016. ZM 
commence the policy review/renewal by issuing the council a request for 
revised valuations, which is circulated to heads of service for cascading 
to service managers for review and response to the insurance team. 
Different elements that make up the policies are also reviewed to 
ascertain current replacement values. The revised values then are fed 
back to ZM for the premium levels to be agreed. From comparison of 
renewal terms with the renewal invoices, it was not clear how the various 
discounts had been applied to arrive at the invoiced amount. An up to 

Page 160

Agenda Item 7



date summary of the various policies and cover provided is lacking.

5.1.3 Area assurance: Substantial
Two recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this 
area (Recs 1 to 2).

5.2 Insurable Risks

5.2.1 Internal audit undertook checks on the most recent insurance renewals 
for the period October 2015 to September 2016 for each council, to 
ensure that supporting documentation could be found detailing what is 
included within the various elements of insurance cover. Differences 
were noted for each council that could not be readily explained, for 
example in the property valuation spreadsheets compared with figures 
stated in the property renewal terms.

5.2.2 A comparison was made between the renewal terms for each council and 
variances were noted which warrant further investigation to ensure 
suitable cover is in place for each council. A lack of independent review 
was noted for the last review period. Both councils’ risk registers are out 
of date so do not readily facilitate a review of all risks to ensure insurance 
cover is in place where required. Furthermore there is no apparent cross-
referencing of identified risks with insurance cover.

5.2.3 Area assurance: Limited
Four recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this 
area (Rec 3 to 6).

5.3 Procedures

5.3.1 There is no documented procedure or guidance made available to 
members of the public or officers regarding reporting incidents and 
making claims against the council. Whilst there are working procedures 
covering recording and managing incident reports and insurance claims, 
these require review and update as well as streamlining due to 
duplication of documents.

5.3.2 An electronic directory is used to hold claim documentation and a 
summary spreadsheet is used to log all incidents and progress. Both the 
filing structure and summary spreadsheet would benefit from being 
reviewed and enhanced.

5.3.3 Area assurance: Satisfactory
Three recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this 
area and an outstanding previous recommendation has been updated 
and restated (Recs 7 - 9  & 18)

5.4 Claims

5.4.1 Some claims can be readily assessed as not the councils’ liability and 
following discussion with relevant service areas, such as properties or 
land charges to ensure the location is not council owned, can be referred 
to the appropriate organisation, e.g. Oxfordshire County Council or 

Page 161

Agenda Item 7



Thames Water Authority. Once liability is established, claims above the 
excess on the insurance policy would be referred to the insurers. 
Amounts below the excess are paid out of the relevant service area 
budget. Claims that involve personal injury are referred immediately to 
the insurers. Items referred to the councils’
 insurers are recorded through an online database with separate access 
and databases for each council. 

5.4.2 Sample testing was undertaken on ten claims for each council which 
included six each that had been referred to the insurers. Whilst no areas 
of concern were identified with the referrals to the insurers themselves, 
testing did identify a lack of comprehensive documentation and 
supporting detail within the insurance team electronic directories for all 
claims sampled. Some documentation was held only with the email 
system or within a case folder for each claim or within the insurers online 
claim system. A record of actions and decisions taken, payments made, 
a conclusion and a record of any corrective action was lacking for the 
claims reviewed. There is no formal requirement for a review following 
incidents to ensure any corrective action to prevent a similar incident is 
identified, recorded and acted upon.

5.4.3 Area assurance: Limited
Four recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this 
area and a previous recommendation has been restated (Recs 10 – 13 & 
19).

5.5 Claim monitoring and approval

5.5.1 Whilst some claims are assessed by loss adjusters or the council relies 
on advice from the insurance company, a record of who has reviewed 
that decision is lacking. From the sample checks on ten claims for each 
council there was no record of review and approval of claims before they 
were settled. Furthermore there is no formal reporting requirement. 

5.5.2 Area assurance: Limited
Two recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this 
area (Rec 14 and 15).

5.6 Business continuity claim

5.6.1 The insurance company agreed a fixed amount to cover officers’ 
personal losses due to the fire. A one off payment of £25 was given to 
eligible staff based at the council offices in lieu of a claim for personal 
possessions lost in the fire. This was to cover the cost of replacements 
for items such as mugs in order to reduce the administration that would 
be needed for several small value claims. Officers claiming for additional 
items were expected to go through their own insurance first and complete 
a claim request detailing the items lost. Individual claims were paid to 16 
SODC employees and 9 VWHDC employees. Checks were made on a 
sample of individual claims from 10 SODC employee claims and 9 
VWHDC claims. Whilst no issue with the claims themselves were 
identified, there was a lack of comprehensive supporting documentation 
available. The categorising of SODC employee payments within the 

Page 162

Agenda Item 7



insurance claim does not appear correct as the amounts should be 
excluded from the main claim.

5.6.2 Each council’s business continuity insurance claim covers purchases for 
replacement equipment, e.g. furniture or IT equipment, and business 
continuity purchases which are solely to allow services to get up and 
running, e.g. consultancy to get networks up and running. Expenditure 
within each of these categories was routed through the Revenues and 
Benefits Client Officer and Accountancy officers to ensure there was 
control and appropriate management of the expenditure, including correct 
coding within the general ledger. A sample of ten SODC and ten VWHDC 
business claims were selected for review and all were found to be 
suitable recorded, documented and approved. At the time of review, the 
final claim for SODC was being reviewed prior to submission with some 
adjustments being discussed. The final claim for VWHDC had been 
settled.

5.6.5 Area assurance: Limited
Two recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this 
area (Rec 16 and 17).

OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

INSURANCE POLICIES

1. Policy list (Low Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
A summary of insurance policy 
numbers and levels of cover should 
be available.

Findings
A summary listing all of the insurance 
policies and the levels of cover was 
found in a spreadsheet for SODC 
which is now out of date, but none 
was found for VWHDC. Therefore 
details need to be established by 
reference to each individual policy or 
renewal document.

Risk
If a summary of key insurance facts is 
not available then time may be 
wasted searching through individual 
policy documents should queries 
arise.

An up to date summary of 
the insurance policy 
numbers and levels of 
cover should be in place 
for both councils.

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed
The new risk and insurance officer started in April, and an 
insurance action plan has been developed to embed a new 
insurance framework across both councils.  This recommendation 
has been implemented.

Implemented

Page 163

Agenda Item 7



Management response: Adrianna Partridge, Assurance Manager

2. Premium renewals (Medium Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
Insurance renewal documentation 
should be reconciled to ensure 
invoices match renewal terms with 
any differences explained.

Findings
Internal audit compared renewal term 
documents for individual policies with 
the premium invoices for the current 
renewal period which is for 1/10/2015 
to 30/9/2016. Two SODC premiums 
and three VWHDC premiums differed 
and were lower than renewal terms. 
This could not be readily explained but 
is expected to be due to how 
discounts are applied.

From discussion with the former 
Accountancy Manager (Technical) 
there was no independent review of 
the renewal documentation due to a 
lack of resource at the time.

Risk
If module documents setting out 
terms of cover are not readily located 
then delays may occur should queries 
arise regarding insurance 
requirements.

a) The insurance team 
should seek 
explanations for 
differences noted by 
internal audit between 
the renewal terms and 
invoiced amounts.

b) There should be an 
independent officer 
review of the insurance 
renewal process prior 
to terms being agreed 
with the insurers.

a) Risk and insurance 
officer
b) Assurance manager

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed
The new risk and insurance officer started in April, and an 
insurance action plan has been developed to embed a new 
insurance framework across both councils.  Work has already 
commenced on this year’s renewals.

Management response: Adrianna Partridge, Assurance Manager

a) 30 June 2016
b) 30 September 2016

INSURABLE RISKS

3. Supporting documentation (Medium Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
There is full supporting 
documentation with enough details to 
support and explain amounts covered 
within the insurance policies.

Findings
Internal audit were unable to obtain 
documentary evidence from within the 
electronic and hardcopy insurance 
documentation to explain how all of 
the values stated in the Oct 2015 – 

Supporting documentation 
should be retained with 
enough details to 
substantiate and explain 
amounts being covered 
within the insurance 
policies.

Risk and insurance officer

Page 164

Agenda Item 7



Sep 2016 renewals were arrived at.

Risk
If full details of how the amounts 
insured are not recorded then it is 
difficult to establish that all items or 
risks are insured.
Management Response Implementation 

Date
Recommendation is Agreed
The new risk and insurance officer started in April, and an 
insurance action plan has been developed to embed a new 
insurance framework across both councils.  This recommendation 
has been added to the action plan for implementation.

Management response: Adrianna Partridge, Assurance Manager

30 September 2016

4. Risk registers (High Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
The councils risk registers are 
regularly reviewed and are up to date.

Findings
The most recent service team risk 
register was from quarter 2 of 
2013/2014 and the strategic risk 
registers dated from January 2013. 
Three of seven service teams had 
risk registers dating from 2012/2013 
and one from 2011/2012.

Internal audit checked five risks 
identified in one service teams risk 
register and was able to match them 
with a suitable insurance policy. 
However, there is no evidence of a 
cross check of insurable risks with the 
risk registers.

Risk
If risk registers are not regularly 
reviewed and updated then 
appropriate mitigating action, 
including insurance cover, may not be 
in place exposing the councils to 
greater risk than may be necessary.

The councils risk registers 
should be updated and 
subject to quarterly review 
including evidence of 
cross reference to 
insurance cover.

Risk and insurance officer

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed
The new risk and insurance officer started in April, and an 
insurance action plan has been developed to embed a new 
insurance framework across both councils.  This approach is also 
being applied to risk management, and a relevant action plan will 
be developed with this recommendation added to the action plan for 
implementation.

Management response: Adrianna Partridge, Assurance Manager

31 March 2017

Page 165

Agenda Item 7



5. Levels of cover (High Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
Insurance cover for the two councils is 
compared to identify differences that 
may require further checks.

Findings
Internal audit compared the policies 
held by SODC and VWHDC and 
noted 9 differences and queries that 
require explanation. For example, 
motor vehicle legal expenses are 
listed for SODC but not for VWHDC. 
Also, there is a hirer’s liability element 
for VWHDC but not for SODC.

Without the appropriate supporting 
documentation, as referred to in 
recommendation 4, internal audit 
could not establish that the technical 
equipment and other property at the 
Beacon was covered by insurance.

Premiums for fidelity guarantee and 
for professional negligence were not 
listed in the renewal for the current 
period, October 2015 to September 
2016, but declarations were made for 
this cover. No certificates have been 
provided for these two elements since 
the last expired 31 March 2015.

Risk
If comparisons are not made and 
differences explained then there could 
be areas where cover is either 
duplicated or missing between the two 
councils that may remain unresolved.

a) It is recommended that 
the queries identified 
by internal audit during 
the review are 
discussed with the 
councils’ insurers for 
explanations and if 
necessary corrective 
action.

b) Insurance cover for the 
two councils should be 
compared as part of 
the renewal process to 
identify differences 
that may require 
further checks.

c) Checks are needed to 
ensure all equipment 
at the Beacon is 
covered by insurance.

d) Checks should be 
made to ensure each 
council has both 
fidelity guarantee and 
professional 
negligence cover and 
certificates should be 
obtained.

Risk and insurance officer

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed
The new risk and insurance officer started in April, and an 
insurance action plan has been developed to embed a new 
insurance framework across both councils.  This recommendation 
has been added to the action plan for implementation.

Management response: Adrianna Partridge, Assurance Manager

30 September 2016

6. Property valuations for insurance renewals (Medium Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
There is an explanation of how the 
property valuations are reflected 
within the levels of insurance cover in 
the insurance renewal terms.

Findings

The insurance team should 
liaise with the councils’ 
property team to establish 
how the renewal values 
are arrived at for council 
properties using the 
valuations for insurance.

Risk and insurance officer

Page 166

Agenda Item 7



Spreadsheets recording property 
valuations for insurance are held 
within the electronic renewal files for 
each council. There were two 
versions for VWHDC. The values 
could not be readily matched with 
values stated on the renewal terms 
documentation for either SODC or 
VWHDC. 

Risk
If there is no explanation of how 
property valuations are reflected in 
the levels of insurance cover then it 
may prove difficult to evidence that all 
property is correctly insured.
Management Response Implementation 

Date
Recommendation is Agreed
The new risk and insurance officer started in April, and an 
insurance action plan has been developed to embed a new 
insurance framework across both councils.  This recommendation 
has been added to the action plan for implementation.

Management response: Adrianna Partridge, Assurance Manager

31 July 2016

PROCEDURES

7. Working procedures (Low Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
Working procedures are available to 
relevant officers setting out how 
incidents and insurance claims are 
recorded and managed.

Findings
Working procedures are in place but 
were found to be out of date, not 
evidenced as reviewed and 
authorised, not comprehensive and 
duplicate documents were saved in 
different locations. 

Risk
Without accurate, up to date and 
authorised procedures officers may 
make inappropriate decisions which 
could have an adverse impact both 
financially and reputationally.

Working procedures 
should be reviewed, 
updated, harmonised, 
version controlled and 
include requirements for 
review of claims and 
liaison with insurance 
companies and all relevant 
parties.

Risk and insurance officer

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed
The new risk and insurance officer started in April, and an 
insurance action plan has been developed to embed a new 
insurance framework across both councils.  This recommendation 
has been added to the action plan for implementation.

Management response: Adrianna Partridge, Assurance Manager

31 December 2016

Page 167

Agenda Item 7



8. Claim summaries (Low Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
A summary is available which lists all 
claims in one area with an easily 
visible indication of their current 
status.

Findings
A spreadsheet is used for each 
council to record incident/claim 
details. This splits incidents into 
separate worksheets dependant on 
whether it is open, closed, not yet 
claimed, not council responsibility or 
other. This requires moving details 
from one worksheet to another as the 
status changes and more time is 
spent looking for specific claims within 
the different workbooks. The current 
structure of the electronic directories 
results in the two separate claim 
summaries being held in separate 
subfolders rather than in one location.

The details of each claims’ current 
status is recorded within a free text 
‘current position’ cell. From this it is 
not easy to identify which claims are 
awaiting further documentation or 
awaiting responses by the insurers 
etc. From tests on ten claims for each 
council, the summary comments did 
not always reflect the current position 
and were missing for one claim.

Risk
If claim details are not recorded 
centrally then it may prove 
unnecessarily time consuming finding 
relevant information or answering 
queries about claims by status. 

Claim summary 
spreadsheets should be 
reviewed to:-
a) Introduce a 

streamlined method of 
recording claims in a 
central register using 
codes to identify 
status/actions needed 
and filters, or using 
tables and pivot 
tables, to narrow down 
searches rather than 
using the existing 
separate worksheets.

b) Ensure notes for 
individual claims are 
up to date if this is not 
replaced by status 
codes as above.

Risk and insurance officer

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed
The new risk and insurance officer started in April, and an 
insurance action plan has been developed to embed a new 
insurance framework across both councils.  This recommendation 
has been added to the action plan for implementation.

Management response: Adrianna Partridge, Assurance Manager

31 July 2016

9. Documentation – file types (Low Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
All incident/claim documentation is 
easily identified and readily available.

Findings
Recent documentation has been 
largely managed through email 

a) Emails should be 
saved in a format such 
as a ‘pdf’ file so that 
there is no reliance on 
a particular type of 
email system to be 
able to view them. 

Risk and insurance officer

Page 168

Agenda Item 7



correspondence. Whilst some of the 
emails themselves have been saved 
in the case file, any documents, such 
as initial incident forms or claim 
letters, attached to those emails rely 
on being able to open the email to 
access them. It is not clear from the 
file structure which emails contain 
attachments and what the 
attachments are. 

Risk
If documentation is not clearly and 
consistently saved then delays may 
occur in locating relevant information 
that could be embedded within 
emails.

b) Attachments to emails 
should be saved as a 
separate document 
and be clearly named.

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed

Management response: Adrianna Partridge, Assurance Manager

Implemented

CLAIMS

10. Documentation – comprehensive & central (Low Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
All relevant documentation is 
available through the electronic case 
file.

Findings
From checks undertaken on ten 
SODC claims and ten VWHDC claims 
the documentation within the case file 
was found to be incomplete. Records 
are held within the insurance email 
system, the case file and the insurer’s 
database so there is no one 
comprehensive record. 

The documents in each claim’s case 
file were not set out in a consistent 
way that allows quick identification of 
the initiating documents, payment 
documents and final claim 
documents.

Only one claim for each council from 
those sampled had an incident report 
within the case file.

Risk
If comprehensive documentation is 
not held in a central location then it 
may prove difficult to evidence that 
relevant actions have been taken 
should queries arise.

a) A comprehensive and 
central set of 
documentation should 
be held within the 
electronic insurance 
case files.

b) A formal structure 
should be considered 
for documents within 
the case files.

c) An incident report 
form should be 
available for each 
claim unless full 
details are available in 
an alternative 
document which is 
clearly identified as 
claim details.

Risk and insurance officer

Page 169

Agenda Item 7



Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed
The new risk and insurance officer started in April, and an 
insurance action plan has been developed to embed a new 
insurance framework across both councils.  This recommendation 
has been added to the action plan for implementation.

Management response: Adrianna Partridge, Assurance Manager

31 December 2016

11. Decisions, action log and transactions (Medium Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
Decision regarding insurance claims 
are documented, an action log is 
maintained for all claims and there is 
a comprehensive record of financial 
transactions.

Findings
From checks undertaken on ten 
claims for each council, there was no 
consistent record of who had made 
decisions and on what basis they had 
been made. For example a claim for 
£294 above the excess was paid in 
full with no explanation as to why it 
was not claimed from the insurers. 
Also, comments were seen that ‘given 
evidence available’ no liability would 
attach, but there was no explanation 
for this or evidence in the case file. 
Details of the officers making the 
decisions were not recorded.

An action log was used while claims 
were paper based but this is no 
longer continued. This means a 
review of documentation is required to 
establish what has happened with the 
claims. Only one claim for each 
council had an action log and this was 
incomplete.

From checks on ten claims for each 
council, payments were made on 
three for each council. There was no 
summary by claim setting out what 
had been paid in total and for what 
reason, such as VAT only or excess 
amount and this was not immediately 
obvious form documentation in the 
case files.

Risk
If comprehensive records of decisions 
are not recorded then it may prove 
difficult to explain actions taken 
should queries arise.

a) Decisions made 
regarding insurance 
claims should be 
documented and 
explained including 
details of who made 
the decision.

b) An action log should 
be used to record 
what is happening 
with each claim and 
this should record 
documentation and 
telephone calls.

c) There should be a 
record for each claim 
recording financial 
transactions and what 
the expenditure 
relates to.

Risk and insurance officer

Page 170

Agenda Item 7



Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed
The new risk and insurance officer started in April, and an 
insurance action plan has been developed to embed a new 
insurance framework across both councils.  This recommendation 
has been added to the action plan for implementation.

Management response: Adrianna Partridge, Assurance Manager

31 December 2016 

12. Post incident review (High Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
There is a post incident review.

Findings
From checks undertaken on ten 
claims for each council, there was no 
post incident review to identify any 
corrective action that may be 
required. There is no formal 
requirement for a review. 

Risk
If incidents are not reviewed then any 
corrective action the council needs to 
take may remain unidentified and 
uncorrected which could result in 
similar incidents occurring.

There should be a formal 
post incident review to 
identify any corrective 
measures that may be 
required and to action this 
with the relevant service 
area.

Risk and insurance officer

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed
The new risk and insurance officer started in April, and an 
insurance action plan has been developed to embed a new 
insurance framework across both councils.  This recommendation 
has been added to the action plan for implementation.

Management response: Adrianna Partridge, Assurance Manager

31 December 2016

13. All claims recorded (Low Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
All incident documentation is recorded 
and investigated.

Findings
Whilst reviewing renewal 
documentation held in a lever arch 
file, a section was found with 
documentation relating to 10 separate 
incidents that were not recorded 
within the claims spreadsheet. It is 
likely appropriate actions have been 
taken as they date from June, July 
and August 2015 so would have been 
escalated if further action was 
needed, but there is no electronic 
record.

Risk

The insurance team 
should review and 
investigate the incident 
documentation found, 
record the relevant details 
and ensure no further 
documentation exists.

Risk and insurance officer

Page 171

Agenda Item 7



If not all incident documentation is 
recorded then it may prove difficult to 
answer queries regarding the 
incidents should they arise. 
Management Response Implementation 

Date
Recommendation is Agreed
The new risk and insurance officer started in April, and an 
insurance action plan has been developed to embed a new 
insurance framework across both councils.  This recommendation 
has been added to the action plan for implementation.

Management response: Adrianna Partridge, Assurance Manager

30 September 2016

CLAIM MONITORING AND APPROVAL

14. Review and approval (Medium Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
Incidents are regularly reviewed and 
reported and there is evidence of 
manager approval for key decisions 
regarding incidents and insurance 
claims.

Findings
From checks undertaken on a sample 
of ten incident reports for each 
council, there was no record made of 
who has taken decisions regarding 
incidents, for example when referrals 
are made to the insurers. There was 
no formal review of the incidents 
unless the administrative assistant 
referred specific queries to a line 
manager.

Risk
If manager approval is not obtained 
and evidenced then it would be 
difficult to prove officers have taken 
actions which they are authorised to 
take.

a) A formal mechanism 
to obtain and record 
approval for decisions 
should be 
implemented.

b) There should be 
management review of 
incidents.

Risk and insurance officer

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed
The new risk and insurance officer started in April, and an 
insurance action plan has been developed to embed a new 
insurance framework across both councils.  This recommendation 
has been added to the action plan for implementation.

Management response: Adrianna Partridge, Assurance Manager

31 December 2016

15. Reporting (Medium Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
Insurance claims are regularly 
reported.

A management reporting 
process should be 
introduced for insurance 
claims including reports on 

Risk and insurance officer

Page 172

Agenda Item 7



Findings
There is currently no formal reporting 
requirement for insurance claims and 
queries tend to be ad-hoc and claim 
specific. 

Risk
If there is no regular reporting of 
insurance claims then any trends or 
patterns that may require 
investigating may not be identified 
and would remain unaddressed.

caseloads and status of 
claims for review.

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed
The new risk and insurance officer started in April, and an 
insurance action plan has been developed to embed a new 
insurance framework across both councils.  This recommendation 
has been added to the action plan for implementation.

Management response: Adrianna Partridge, Assurance Manager

31 December 2016

BUSINESS CONTINUITY CLAIM

16. Business continuity claim - SODC (Medium Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
Expenditure for personal losses which 
are covered by a lump sum 
agreement are excluded from the 
business continuity claim.

Findings
A lump sum payment has been 
agreed with the insurers to cover 
personal losses in addition to the 
business continuity claim. The 
amounts paid to SODC employees for 
personal losses and for the flat rate 
£25 payments are listed within the 
business continuity claim but not all of 
the payments have been excluded 
from the total to be claimed.

The spreadsheet used to record the 
personal loss expenditure show 
different totals to what was actually 
paid and does not readily match to 
the individual records in the continuity 
claim. The difference was reconciled 
by internal audit with payroll records 
and with the continuity claim. 

Risk
If the personal claim payments are 
covered by the lump sum agreed 
amount and also claimed in the 
business continuity amount then the 
council will be claiming twice for the 
expenditure. 

a) The business 
continuity claim should 
be revised to exclude 
the staff compensation 
payments for both the 
flat rate £25 amounts 
and the individual 
claim amounts. 

b) The spreadsheet used 
to record the personal 
loss expenditure 
should be enhanced to 
include a reconciliation 
with payroll records 
and with the continuity 
claim. 

Head of Finance/ 
Accountant

Page 173

Agenda Item 7



Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed
The business continuity claim is still open and the spreadsheet will 
be reconciled to the appropriate records before it is finalised.

Management response: Head of Finance

31 July 2016

17. Personal loss claim documentation (High Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
All relevant documentation for 
personal loss insurance claims is 
available.

Findings
Documentation supporting the 
acceptance of the flat rate of £25 
could not be located within either the 
lever arch file used by the AMT to 
store documentation or within the 
electronic directory within 
accountancy.

From checks on 10 SODC payments, 
a claim form could not be found for 
three and from checks on 9 VWHDC 
payments, a claim form could not be 
found for one. 

For six SODC and six VWHDC 
payments, a typed name was evident 
on claims with no signature or email 
retained as evidence of the officer 
completing the application. 

For both SODC and VWHDC claims, 
although a spreadsheet recorded 
officers as agreeing to the amount 
offered, no documentation supporting 
their agreement could be found for 
any of the payments reviewed.

A hardcopy file of claim 
correspondence included some but 
not all of the claim forms and also 
included several duplicates.

Risk
If claim documentation supporting 
amounts paid is not retained then it 
may prove difficult to evidence that 
the claims were appropriate and the 
amounts paid had been agreed with 
the claimant.

Documentation should be 
located and centrally 
retained in an electronic 
directory for all personal 
loss insurance claims 
including:-
 Agreements to the 

amounts paid.
 Signed claim forms or 

supporting emails.

N/a

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Not Agreed
It is not considered to be an efficient use of resources to locate the 
information now but should queries arise this would be considered.

N/a

Page 174

Agenda Item 7



Management response: Accountancy Manager (Revenue)

PREVIOUS RECOMMENDATIONS RESTATED

18. Guidance documentation (Medium Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
Guidance documents are available to 
both officers and members of the 
public regarding reporting incidents 
and making insurance claims.

Findings
There is no documented guidance to 
provide to members of the public or to 
officers regarding reporting incidents. 

Risk
Without relevant procedures for the 
public and officers there may be 
unnecessary delays and 
administrative processes which is not 
an efficient use of resources.

Start to end 
guidance/procedures that 
include relevant 
timescales and 
documentation, should be 
developed for:-
a) officers dealing with 

reported incidents, 
and these should be 
made available 
through the intranet.

b) members of the public, 
and these should be 
made available 
through the councils 
websites.

Risk and insurance officer

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed
The new risk and insurance officer started in April, and an 
insurance action plan has been developed to embed a new 
insurance framework across both councils.  This recommendation 
has been added to the action plan for implementation.

Management response: Adrianna Partridge, Assurance Manager

31 December 2016

19. Training (Low Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
All officers dealing with insurance are 
trained adequately.

Findings
Internal audit established that the 
officer with day to day responsibility 
for insurance claims has only had 
specific tree related training and ‘on-
the-job training’.  It is understood that 
the councils’ insurance company 
organise training that would be 
helpful. 

Risk
If officers dealing with insurance 
claims are not trained, there is a risk 
of them not understanding what is 
required.

Officers dealing with 
insurance should receive 
relevant training including 
attending courses offered 
by the councils’ insurers.

Risk and insurance officer

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed
The new risk and insurance officer started in April, and an 
insurance action plan has been developed to embed a new 

31 March 2017

Page 175

Agenda Item 7



insurance framework across both councils.  This recommendation 
has been added to the action plan for implementation.

Management response: Adrianna Partridge, Assurance Manager

Page 176

Agenda Item 7



Appendix 2

Head of 

Service

Total 

Number of 

Recs

Number of Overdue 

Recs

% of Overdue Recs Total 

Number of 

Recs

Number of Overdue 

Recs

% of Overdue Recs Total Number 

of Recs

Number of Overdue 

Recs

Q4 2015/16 % of 

Overdue Recs 

Q1 2016/17 % of 

Overdue Recs 

% Change Additional Notes

Clare Kingston 

(Head of 

Corporate 

Strategy)

10 2 20% 32 1 3% 42 3 10% 7% -3%

Vacant post

(Head of 

Development and 

Housing)

2 0 0% 2 0 0% 4 0 0% 0% 0%

William Jacobs 

(Head of Finance)

49 15 31% 41 13 32% 90 28 8% 31% 23% Increase derived from 

additional service areas 

added due to the retirement 

of one of the head of 

service's.

Andrew Down 

(Head of HR, IT & 

Technical 

Services)

37 9 24% 38 10 26% 75 19 20% 25% 5% Increase derived from 

additional service areas 

added due to the retirement 

of one of the head of 

service's.

Margaret Reed 

(Head of Legal 

and Democratic 

Services)

19 1 5% 15 1 7% 34 2 6% 6% 0%

Adrian Duffield 

(Head of Planning)

16 11 69% 16 12 75% 32 23 22% 72% 50%

133 144 277 75

Joint Comparison of Q4 2015/16 and Q1 2016/17

Report Date: 15/06/2016 12:00:00

JOINT AGC Overdue Recommendations Q1 2016/2017

Executive summary
SODC VWHDC

Service Area

Corporate Strategy and Leisure

Development and Housing

Finance and Arts (including Cornerstone)

HR, IT, Technical Services, Economy, Property 

and Corporate Policy

Legal and Democratic

Planning

South and Vale Recs

Total recommendations Q1 2016/17 38 37

P
age 177

A
genda Item

 7



Rec ID Audit Name Audit 

Year

Head of 

Service

Service 

Manager

Recommendation 

Name

Recommendation Risk Rating Implementation date Recommendation 

Update

Date of Officer 

Update

Recommendation 

Status

Revised 

Implementation 

Date
16 Anti-Fraud and Corruption 

Arrangements

2014/2015 Margaret Reed 

(Head Of Legal 

And Democratic 

Services)

Steven Corrigan 

(Democratic 

Services 

Manager)

5. Awareness of anti-fraud 

and corruption arrangements 

and training modules.

a) The council needs to ensure 

that there is sufficient visibility 

(i.e. posters/leaflets/bulletins) 

across all council buildings 

informing staff of the anti-fraud 

and corruption culture 

throughout the workplace.  

High 30/11/2014  a)Due to elections 

preparations, the democratic 

services team priorities had to 

be changed.  This will be picked 

up by the democratic services 

team and implemented by 

September 2015 incorporating 

the office move to Milton Park.

10/06/2015 Not Implemented 30/09/2015

23 Petty Cash 2014/2015 William Jacobs 

(Head Of Finance)

 4. Storage of claims/receipts 

- Cornerstone

Records of individual claims and 

the supporting receipts should 

be included with the voucher 

requesting top up of the float 

balance so that they are 

captured as an image within the 

Agresso system.

Low 08/01/2015 The last replenishment request 

was made in February 2015 and 

did not have a receipt attached.  

The officer submitting the 

requests is now aware of the 

new process to follow and will 

implement this from the next 

replenishment request when it is 
 needed.

 

NP Update

21/07/2015 Not Implemented 21/07/2015

24 Petty Cash 2014/2015 William Jacobs 

(Head Of Finance)

Bob Watson 

(Accountancy 

Manager 

(Technical))

5. Petty Cash 

Replenishment Process

The request to replenish petty 

cash should be processed within 

creditors using a separate 

control account requiring a 

single coding and routing to an 

agreed officer for authorisation. 

Journal transfers would then be 

needed to code expenditure to 

the appropriate departments. 

Medium 31/01/2015 At the time if the follow up, the 

most recent replenishment 

request to supplier ID 11130 

was December 2014 and the 

process had not been changed 

so was coded to the individual 

service areas.  The accountancy 

manager stated that the 

replenishment of petty cash 

process will reviewed as part of 
 the overall cash office review.

 

NP Update

21/07/2015 Not Implemented 30/09/2015

31 S106, Commuted Sums, 

CIL 

2014/2015 Adrian Duffield 

(Head of Planning)

Cathie Scotting 

(Major 

Applications 

Officer)

4. Internet and intranet 

register

When expenditure is recorded 

within Ocella, this should also 

be made available within the 

intranet and internet listings.

Low 31/05/2015 Ocella has been updated and 

further data entry work is 

needed to complete new 

database fields to records S106 

spending.

 Implemented - To be 

verified by IA

31/03/2016

32 S106, Commuted Sums 

and CIL

2013/2014 Adrian Duffield 

(Head of Planning)

Cathie Scotting 

(Major 

Applications 

Officer)

7. Reconciliations A regular reconciliation of 

agreements recorded within 

Ocella should be undertaken 

with general ledger transactions 

to ensure income is accurately 

recorded.

Medium 30/04/2015 The November report to cabinet 

contained financial analysis and 

followed an exercise matching 

Agresso and Ocella data.  

 Implemented - To be 

verified by IA

31/03/2016

44 Council fees and charges 2013/2014 William Jacobs 

(Head Of Finance)

Simon Hewings 

(Accountancy 

Manager 

(Revenue))

1. Key information A standard template should be 

incorporated within the fee 

setting process to capture key 

information in a standard format 

where it is not already clearly 

and comprehensively stated.

Low 31/10/2014 The Accountancy Manager 

(Revenue) stated that this 

recommendation will be 

reviewed as part of the 

2016/2017 budget setting 

process and a decision will be 

made. - Added by Nilesh 

Parmar after discussion.

09/07/2015 Not Implemented 31/10/2015

53 Post Room 2013/2014 Andrew Down 

(Head of HR, IT & 

Technical 

Services)

Mark Gibbons 

(HR Business 

Partner)

2. Procedures c) Comprehensive and up to 

date procedures should be in 

place covering the processing of 

incoming and outgoing post 

within HR.

Low 30/09/2013 c) Not implemented due to the 

closure of the Vale office, 

Comprehensive and up to date 

procedures should be in place 

covering the processing of 

incoming and outgoing post 

within HR will now be produced..

04/06/2014 N/A 30/06/2014

55 Inter-council Recharges 2013/2014 William Jacobs 

(Head Of Finance)

Bob Watson 

(Accountancy 

Manager 

(Technical))

1. Policies and procedures (a) Establish policy and 

procedures on when joint 

purchases is allowed and what 

inter-council recharges should 
 then be made.

(b) Incorporate good practice 

guides in recharges guidance 

(e.g. use of time allocation 
 sheets).

(c) Incorporate a section on key 

issues in recharges guidance 

(e.g. transferring items, low 
 value purchases).

High 31/03/2014 This is now being reviewed 

following the move to one office.  

This will be implemented prior to 

the 2015/16 budget setting 

process.  This will be completed 
 by 31 October 2014.

 

Update (8/6/15)  Due to staffing 

issues and the recent fire, the 

accountancy team have been 

diverted to other priorities and 

this remains an aspiration.  I 

would still not regard this as 
 high risk.

08/06/2015 Not Implemented 31/10/2015

SODC Summary of overdue recommendations 

P
age 178

A
genda Item

 7



Rec ID Audit Name Audit 

Year

Head of 

Service

Service 

Manager

Recommendation 

Name

Recommendation Risk Rating Implementation date Recommendation 

Update

Date of Officer 

Update

Recommendation 

Status

Revised 

Implementation 

Date
195 Receipt of Income 

Arrangements

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield 

(Head of Planning)

Sandra Wildern 

(Building Control 

Surveyor 

(Senior))

Local management control 

and checks

Building control line 

management should undertake 

and evidence monthly reviews to 

ensure that the councils¿ 

policies and procedures are 

being followed regarding the 

receipt of income.

Low 03/11/2015     

197 Receipt of Income 

Arrangements

2015/2016 William Jacobs 

(Head Of Finance)

Paul Howden 

(Revenues & 

Benefits Client 

Manager)

Receipt of Income 

Procedures

Clear procedures for all areas of 

the council regarding the 

receiving of income, including 

unallocated income, need to be 

developed, approved, regularly 

reviewed, monitored, and 

evidenced with a named 

individual or role responsible for 

procedures in each service area 

and for updating intranet 

guidance.

Medium 30/09/2015 Still agreed but will not be 

concluded by due date - 

competing priorities

25/09/2015 Ongoing (Date of 

implementation not yet 

passed)

30/11/2015

254 Consultations (public and 

staff)

2015/2016 Andrew Down 

(Head of HR, IT & 

Technical 

Services)

Sally Truman 

(Policy, 

Partnership & 

Engagement 

Manager)

2a) Assessment of financial 

costs

 a)The evaluation process 

should include an assessment 

to determine the actual cost of 

the consultation, both directly 

and indirectly.  The proportion of 

the cost in relation to the service 

area should also be identified.  

The cost should be compared to 

similar exercises within the 

council or similar local 

authorities.  These areas are 

considered good practice and 

they should be incorporated into 

a financial cost evaluation 

undertaken by the council.

Medium 30/04/2016     

255 Consultations (public and 

staff) 

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield 

(Head of Planning)

Duncan Grainge 

(Customer 

Service Manager)

2a) Assessment of financial 

costs

 a)The evaluation process 

should include an assessment 

to determine the actual cost of 

the consultation, both directly 

and indirectly.  The proportion of 

the cost in relation to the service 

area should also be identified.  

The cost should be compared to 

similar exercises within the 

council or similar local 

authorities.  These areas are 

considered good practice and 

they should be incorporated into 

a financial cost evaluation 

undertaken by the council.

Medium 01/01/2016     

256 Consultations (public and 

staff) 

2015/2016 Andrew Down 

(Head of HR, IT & 

Technical 

Services)

Sally Truman 

(Policy, 

Partnership & 

Engagement 

Manager)

2b) Assessment of financial 

costs

 b)The lead officer within each 

service area should be assigned 

responsibility for ensuring a 

financial cost evaluation is 

undertaken on all consultations.  

The results of the evaluation 

should be reported to the 

relevant senior officers and 

appropriate councillors on a 
 regular basis.

 

Medium 30/04/2016     

257 Consultations (public and 

staff) 

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield 

(Head of Planning)

Duncan Grainge 

(Customer 

Service Manager)

2b) Assessment of financial 

costs

 b)The lead officer within each 

service area should be assigned 

responsibility for ensuring a 

financial cost evaluation is 

undertaken on all consultations.  

The results of the evaluation 

should be reported to the 

relevant senior officers and 

appropriate councillors on a 

regular basis.

Medium 01/01/2016     

258 Consultations (public and 
 staff)

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield 

(Head of Planning)

Duncan Grainge 

(Customer 

Service Manager)

2c) Assessment of financial 

costs

c) Once the financial cost 

evaluation process has been 

decided it should be included in 

the current corporate 

consultation procedures.

Medium 01/01/2016     P
age 179

A
genda Item

 7



Rec ID Audit Name Audit 

Year

Head of 

Service

Service 

Manager

Recommendation 

Name

Recommendation Risk Rating Implementation date Recommendation 

Update

Date of Officer 

Update

Recommendation 

Status

Revised 

Implementation 

Date
259 Consultations (public and 

staff)

2015/2016 Andrew Down 

(Head of HR, IT & 

Technical 

Services)

Sally Truman 

(Policy, 

Partnership & 

Engagement 

Manager)

2c) Assessment of financial 

costs

 c) Once the financial cost 

evaluation process has been 

decided it should be included in 

the current corporate 

consultation procedures.

Medium 30/04/2016     

260 Consultations (public and 

staff)

2015/2016 Andrew Down 

(Head of HR, IT & 

Technical 

Services)

Sally Truman 

(Policy, 

Partnership & 

Engagement 

Manager)

3a) Assessments of added 

value

 a)Appropriate assessments 

should be undertaken following 

any changes resulting from 

consultation to assess the 

outcome and the process of the 

consultation undertaken. The 

effectiveness of the consultation 

itself should also be evaluated.

Low 01/01/2016     

261 Consultations (public and 

staff)

2015/2016 Andrew Down 

(Head of HR, IT & 

Technical 

Services)

Sally Truman 

(Policy, 

Partnership & 

Engagement 

Manager)

3b) Assessments of added 

value

 b)The current corporate 

consultation procedures should 

include guidance to the 

assessment of the outcome and 

process of the consultation and 

also the evaluation process.

Low 01/01/2016     

273 Leisure centres 2015/2016 Clare Kingston 

(Head Of 

Corporate 

Strategy)

Kate Arnold 

(Leisure 

Manager)

2. Electronic devices Suitable electronic devices 

should be provided for the 

leisure team to use while on site 

visits.

Low 31/03/2016 Surface Pro unit has been 

purchased loaded with software 

and is in use by the client team.

06/05/2016 Implemented - To be 

verified by IA

 

287 Leisure centres 2015/2016 Clare Kingston 

(Head Of 

Corporate 

Strategy)

Kate Arnold 

(Leisure 

Manager)

11. Indexation The monthly management fee 

should be reviewed in 

accordance with the correct 

inflation rate.

Medium 01/04/2016   Implemented - To be 

verified by IA

 

305 National Non-Domestic 

Rates (NNDR)

2015/2016 William Jacobs 

(Head Of Finance)

Paul Howden 

(Revenues & 

Benefits Client 

Manager)

Suspense Account A review of the suspense 

account should be undertaken 

and a decision made on the old 

transactions still on the account.

Low 01/03/2016     

307 Neighbourhood Planning 

Grants

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield 

(Head of Planning)

Michelle Yankah 

(Customer 

Service Team 

Leader)

Procedures Written procedures should be in 

place and followed when 

undertaking the neighbourhood 

planning process to ensure that 

both SODC & VWHDC are 

complying with the requirements 

of the Neighbourhood Planning 

(General) Regulations 2012.

Medium 30/04/2016     

308 Neighbourhood Planning 

Grants

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield 

(Head of Planning)

Michelle Yankah 

(Customer 

Service Team 

Leader)

Grant Conditions 

Acceptance

Prior to the grant being issued, 

the planning policy team should 

ensure that the town/ parish 

councils have signed and 

returned the acceptance of grant 

conditions form so that the grant 

awarded can be withdrawn for 

non-compliance.

High 30/04/2016     

309 Neighbourhood Planning 

Grants

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield 

(Head of Planning)

Michelle Yankah 

(Customer 

Service Team 

Leader)

Post Funding Checks At the submission stage, the 

district councils should request 

from the town/parish councils¿ 

confirmation that all the funding 

provided was used on 

developing the neighbourhood 

plan.

Medium 30/04/2016     

310 Neighbourhood Planning 

Grants

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield 

(Head of Planning)

Michelle Yankah 

(Customer 

Service Team 

Leader)

Supporting Documentation The supporting documentation 

for neighbourhood planning 

grants should be filed 

appropriately so that an audit 

trail is in place confirming 

compliance with the 

Neighbourhood Planning 

(General) Regulations 2012.

Medium 30/04/2016     

311 Neighbourhood Planning 

Grants

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield 

(Head of Planning)

Michelle Yankah 

(Customer 

Service Team 

Leader)

Efficiency of Grant 

Applications

Neighbourhood planning grants 

should be applied for from 

DCLG at the next possible time 

after the area 

designations/decision 

statements are approved.

Low 31/03/2016     

325 Creditor Payments 2015/2016 William Jacobs 

(Head Of Finance)

Paul Howden 

(Revenues & 

Benefits Client 

Manager)

3b) Sundry suppliers 

account 

 3b)Efforts must be made by 

the planning policy department 

to recover the duplicate 

payments made through the 

sundry supplier accounts to the 

supplier. 

High 31/01/2016     

P
age 180

A
genda Item

 7



Rec ID Audit Name Audit 

Year

Head of 

Service

Service 

Manager

Recommendation 

Name

Recommendation Risk Rating Implementation date Recommendation 

Update

Date of Officer 

Update

Recommendation 

Status

Revised 

Implementation 

Date
327 Creditor Payments 2015/2016 William Jacobs 

(Head Of Finance)

Paul Howden 

(Revenues & 

Benefits Client 

Manager)

4a) Duplicate Suppliers on 

Agresso

 4a)Regular reviews should be 

undertaken on the supplier 

master file to ensure that 

possible duplicate suppliers are 

reviewed and if necessary, 

closed on the Agresso system.

High 01/04/2016   Implemented - To be 

verified by IA

 

329 Creditor Payments 2015/2016 William Jacobs 

(Head Of Finance)

Paul Howden 

(Revenues & 

Benefits Client 

Manager)

4c) Duplicate Suppliers on 

Agresso

 4c)The human resources 

department should ensure that a 

refund request is requested for 

the invoice payment duplications 

made by the council as soon as 

possible.

High 01/04/2016     

331 Creditor Payments 2015/2016 William Jacobs 

(Head Of Finance)

Paul Howden 

(Revenues & 

Benefits Client 

Manager)

5) VAT Invoices - Capita 

Only

5a) VAT should only be coded 

for reclaim when suitable VAT 

invoices/receipts are provided. 
 

5b) Guidance should be 

provided to officers as to what 

constitutes appropriate VAT 
 documentation.

Low 31/01/2016     

350 Sundry Debtors 2015/2016 William Jacobs 

(Head Of Finance)

Paul Howden 

(Revenues & 

Benefits Client 

Manager)

Independent contractor 

assurances

The council should seek from 

Capita as part of the contract, 

assurance that the controls in 

place surrounding accounts 

receivable operated by Capita 

are regularly reviewed and are 

effective.  Any control 

weaknesses identified and 

action taken should be reported 

to the council.

Medium 01/06/2016     

351 Sundry Debtors 2015/2016 William Jacobs 

(Head Of Finance)

Paul Howden 

(Revenues & 

Benefits Client 

Manager)

Aged debt management Management should review all 

long term outstanding debts on 

a regular basis and consider 

writing these debts off or 

progressing alternative action.

Low 01/06/2016     

352 Sundry Debtors 2015/2016 William Jacobs 

(Head Of Finance)

Paul Howden 

(Revenues & 

Benefits Client 

Manager)

On hold invoices The corporate debt recovery 

strategy should include clear 

guidance on responsibility for on 

hold accounts and delegating 

authority.

Medium 01/05/2016     

353 Sundry Debtors 2015/2016 William Jacobs 

(Head Of Finance)

Paul Howden 

(Revenues & 

Benefits Client 

Manager)

Debt recovery Regular and scheduled face to 

face meetings between the legal 

team and service teams should 

be re-established.

Low 01/05/2016     

354 Sundry Debtors 2015/2016 William Jacobs 

(Head Of Finance)

Paul Howden 

(Revenues & 

Benefits Client 

Manager)

Recovery process  a)Service managers should 

remind their teams that all debts 

must be monitored sufficiently 

and relevant information should 

be passed to legal services in a 
 timely manner.

 

 b)Recovery timeframes and 

monitoring guidance for post 

judgement debts should be 

added to the corporate debt 

recovery strategy.

Low 01/05/2016     

358 Payroll 2015/2016 Andrew Down 

(Head of HR, IT & 

Technical 

Services)

Mark Gibbons 

(HR Business 

Partner)

Authorisation of 

appointment/leaver/amendm

ent forms

HR should ensure that the 

emails are filed alongside the 

notification of appointment, 

leaver and amendment forms to 

confirm that the forms are 

approved and sent by the 

appropriate officer.

Medium 01/03/2016     

359 Payroll 2015/2016 Andrew Down 

(Head of HR, IT & 

Technical 

Services)

Mark Gibbons 

(HR Business 

Partner)

Establishment Listing 

Reconciliation

Discrepancies found from the 

reconciliation between the 

establishment list and the 

payroll system should be dealt 

with efficiently to ensure that 

records held by both HR and 

Capita payroll are accurate.

High 30/04/2016     

P
age 181

A
genda Item

 7



Rec ID Audit Name Audit 

Year

Head of 

Service

Service 

Manager

Recommendation 

Name

Recommendation Risk Rating Implementation date Recommendation 

Update

Date of Officer 

Update

Recommendation 

Status

Revised 

Implementation 

Date
360 Payroll 2015/2016 Andrew Down 

(Head of HR, IT & 

Technical 

Services)

Mark Gibbons 

(HR Business 

Partner)

Starters All starter processes should 

comply with the council¿s 

agreed policies and procedures 
 i.e.

 a)Two references must be 

received for all starters and filed 
 within the personnel records.

 b)All references received must 

show sufficient independence 

from the staff members 
 conducting the interview.

 c)All new starters who joined 

via agency employment or 

contractual work need to have 

the council¿s standard 

documentation requested and 

filed in their personnel records.

Low 31/03/2016     

Rec ID Audit Name Audit 

Year

Head of 

Service

Service 

Manager

Recommendation 

Name

Recommendation Risk Rating Implementation date Recommendation 

Update

Date of Officer 

Update

Recommendation 

Status

Revised 

Implementation 

Date

80 Anti-fraud and Corruption 

Arrangements

2014/2015 Margaret Reed 

(Head Of Legal 

And Democratic 

Services)

Steven Corrigan 

(Democratic 

Services 

Manager)

5. Awareness of anti-fraud 

and corruption arrangements 

and training modules.

a) The council needs to ensure 

that there is sufficient visibility 

(i.e. posters/leaflets/bulletins) 

across all council buildings 

informing staff of the anti-fraud 

and corruption culture 
 throughout the workplace.  

 

High 30/11/2014  a)Due to elections 

preparations, the democratic 

services team priorities had to 

be changed.  This will be picked 

up by the democratic services 

team and implemented by 

September 2015 incorporating 

the office move to Milton Park.

10/06/2015 Not Implemented 30/09/2015

98 S106, CIL and Commuted 

Sums

2013/2014 Adrian Duffield 

(Head of Planning)

Cathie Scotting 

(Major 

Applications 

Officer)

3. Internet and intranet 

register

When expenditure is recorded 

within Ocella, this should also 

be made available within the 

intranet and internet listings.

Low 31/05/2015 Ocella has been updated and 

further data entry work is 

needed to complete new 

database fileds to records S106 

spending.

 Implemented - To be 

verified by IA

31/03/2016

99 S106, CIL and Commuted 

Sums

2013/2014 Adrian Duffield 

(Head of Planning)

Cathie Scotting 

(Major 

Applications 

Officer)

7. Reconciliation A regular reconciliation of 

agreements recorded within 

Ocella should be undertaken 

with general ledger transactions 

to ensure income is accurately 

recorded.

Medium 30/04/2015 The November report to cabinet 

contained financial analysis and 

followed an exercise matching 

Agresso and Ocella data.  

 Implemented - To be 

verified by IA

31/03/2015

109 Health and safety 2013/2014 Andrew Down 

(Head of HR, IT & 

Technical 

Services)

Sally Truman 

(Policy, 

Partnership & 

Engagement 

Manager)

All fire wardens should be 

appropriately trained.

 Best Practice

All selected fire wardens have 
 been on fire warden training.

 

 Findings

Internal audit established that 

there are 16 fire wardens at 

SODC, of which five have not 
 had fire warden training.

 

 Risk

If fire wardens are not given 

appropriate training, there is a 

risk that the fire wardens are not 

sure about their responsibilities 
 if a fire occurred.

High 31/03/2014 The fire evacuation procedures 

at Crowmarsh and Abbey House 

had been reviewed,updated and 

fire wardens were trained.  

Since this recommendation, due 

to the fire we have now moved 

to 135 Milton Park, the 

occupancy at Abbey House has 

changed and we have lost a 

large number of staff, everything 

needed to be revisited.  We 

have divided Milton Park into 

zones and we have recruited fire 

wardens for each zone.  All fire 

wardens have been sent 

information on their role during a 

fire evacuation.  Not all fire 

wardens have been trained but 

we hope to complete this by 31 

March 2016.  We do not have 

fire wardens at Abbey House.

08/09/2015 Ongoing (Date of 

implementation not yet 

passed)

31/03/2016

110 Council fees and charges 2013/2014 William Jacobs 

(Head Of Finance)

Simon Hewings 

(Accountancy 

Manager 

(Revenue))

1. Key information A standard template should be 

incorporated within the fee 

setting process to capture key 

information in a standard format 

where it is not already clearly 

and comprehensively stated.

Low 31/10/2014 The Accountancy Manager 

(Revenue) stated that this 

recommendation will be 

reviewed as part of the 

2016/2017 budget setting 

process and a decision will be 

made. - Added by Nilesh 

Parmar after discussion.

09/07/2015 Not Implemented 31/10/2015

VWHDC Summary of overdue recommendations 

P
age 182

A
genda Item

 7



Rec ID Audit Name Audit 

Year

Head of 

Service

Service 

Manager

Recommendation 

Name

Recommendation Risk Rating Implementation date Recommendation 

Update

Date of Officer 

Update

Recommendation 

Status

Revised 

Implementation 

Date
118 Inter-council Recharges 2013/2014 William Jacobs 

(Head Of Finance)

Bob Watson 

(Accountancy 

Manager 

(Technical))

1. Policies and procedures (a) Establish policy and 

procedures on when joint 

purchases is allowed and what 

inter-council recharges should 
 then be made.

(b) Incorporate good practice 

guides in recharges guidance 

(e.g. use of time allocation 
 sheets).

(c) Incorporate a section on key 

issues in recharges guidance 

(e.g. transferring items, low 
 value purchases).

High 31/03/2014 This is now being reviewed 

following the move to one office.  

This will be implemented prior to 

the 2015/16 budget setting 

process.  This will be completed 
 by 31 October 2014.

 

Not yet had the opportunity to 

review policy and guidance 

(although FPR have been 

updated).  Still do not consider 

this high risk and would 

appreciate if the rationale for 

this decision to assess it so 
 could be explained. 

 

As above and due to higher 

priority issues and limited 

resources this has yet to be 

implemented.

08/06/2015 Not Implemented 30/10/2015

119 Stock Control 2013/2014 Andrew Down 

(Head of HR, IT & 

Technical 

Services)

John Backley 

(Technical and 

Facilities 

Manager)

1. Reconciliations Stock held, purchased, used 

and recharged is reconciled with 

original documents and with 

financial records of purchases 

and recharges to identify, record 

and resolve any anomalies.

Medium 01/10/2013 We now update the stock record 

and reconcile at the end of the 

financial year.  Jan 2015 all 

facilities and Poppin stock 

lost/burnt so currently replacing 

lost facilities stock as and when 

required.

14/09/2015 Implemented - To be 

verified by IA

30/04/2016

183 Receipt of Income 

Arrangements

2015/2016 William Jacobs 

(Head Of Finance)

Paul Howden 

(Revenues & 

Benefits Client 

Manager)

Receipt of Income 

Procedures 

Clear procedures for all areas of 

the council regarding the 

receiving of income, including 

unallocated income, need to be 

developed, approved, regularly 

reviewed, monitored, and 

evidenced with a named 

individual or role responsible for 

procedures in each service area 

and for updating intranet 

guidance.

Medium 30/09/2015 Still agreed but will not be 

completed by due date - 

competing priorities

25/09/2015 Ongoing (Date of 

implementation not yet 

passed)

 

184 Receipt of Income 

Arrangements

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield 

(Head of Planning)

Sandra Wildern 

(Building Control 

Surveyor 

(Senior))

Receipt of Income 

Procedures 

Draft, approve and embed local 

income procedures for building 

control.

Medium 03/11/2015     

186 Receipt of Income 

Arranagements

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield 

(Head of Planning)

Sandra Wildern 

(Building Control 

Surveyor 

(Senior))

Local Management Control 

and Checks

Building control line 

management should undertake 

and evidence monthly reviews to 

ensure that the councils¿ 

policies and procedures are 

being followed regarding the 

receipt of income.

Low 03/11/2015     

239 Cash Office 2015/2016 William Jacobs 

(Head Of Finance)

Ben Watson 

(Finance & 

Systems 

Manager)

Civica access A review of access to the Civica 

Icon system should be 

undertaken to ensure that only 

current and appropriate staff 

have access to the system

Medium 31/03/2016   Not Implemented  

264 Consultations (public and 

staff) 

2015/2016 Andrew Down 

(Head of HR, IT & 

Technical 

Services)

Sally Truman 

(Policy, 

Partnership & 

Engagement 

Manager)

2a) Assessment of financial 

costs

 a)The evaluation process 

should include an assessment 

to determine the actual cost of 

the consultation, both directly 

and indirectly.  The proportion of 

the cost in relation to the service 

area should also be identified.  

The cost should be compared to 

similar exercises within the 

council or similar local 

authorities.  These areas are 

considered good practice and 

they should be incorporated into 

a financial cost evaluation 

undertaken by the council.

Medium 30/04/2016     

P
age 183

A
genda Item

 7



Rec ID Audit Name Audit 

Year

Head of 

Service

Service 

Manager

Recommendation 

Name

Recommendation Risk Rating Implementation date Recommendation 

Update

Date of Officer 

Update

Recommendation 

Status

Revised 

Implementation 

Date
265 Consultations (public and 

staff) 

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield 

(Head of Planning)

Duncan Grainge 

(Customer 

Service Manager)

2a) Assessment of financial 

costs

 a)The evaluation process 

should include an assessment 

to determine the actual cost of 

the consultation, both directly 

and indirectly.  The proportion of 

the cost in relation to the service 

area should also be identified.  

The cost should be compared to 

similar exercises within the 

council or similar local 

authorities.  These areas are 

considered good practice and 

they should be incorporated into 

a financial cost evaluation 

undertaken by the council.

Medium 01/01/2016 The Policy team have recently 

invested in a new piece of 

software that effectively 

captures time and costs that can 

be attributed to any piece of 

work they undertake. Therefore, 

from now any large scale public 

consultation will be logged 

within this system and allocated 

to an officer. All costs 

attributable to the consultation 

will be captured and recorded 
 within this tool.

14/12/2015 Implemented  

267 Consultations (public and 

staff) 

2015/2016 Andrew Down 

(Head of HR, IT & 

Technical 

Services)

Sally Truman 

(Policy, 

Partnership & 

Engagement 

Manager)

2b) Assessment of financial 

costs

 b)The lead officer within each 

service area should be assigned 

responsibility for ensuring a 

financial cost evaluation is 

undertaken on all consultations.  

The results of the evaluation 

should be reported to the 

relevant senior officers and 

appropriate councillors on a 

regular basis.

Medium 30/04/2016     

269 Consultations (public and 

staff)

2015/2016 Andrew Down 

(Head of HR, IT & 

Technical 

Services)

Sally Truman 

(Policy, 

Partnership & 

Engagement 

Manager)

2c) Assessment of financial 

costs

 c)Once the financial cost 

evaluation process has been 

decided it should be included in 

the current corporate 

consultation procedures.

Medium 30/04/2016     

270 Consultations (public and 

staff)

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield 

(Head of Planning)

Duncan Grainge 

(Customer 

Service Manager)

2c) Assessment of financial 

costs

 c)Once the financial cost 

evaluation process has been 

decided it should be included in 

the current corporate 

consultation procedures.

Medium 01/01/2016     

271 Consultations (public and 

staff)

2015/2016 Andrew Down 

(Head of HR, IT & 

Technical 

Services)

Sally Truman 

(Policy, 

Partnership & 

Engagement 

Manager)

3a) Assessments of added 

value

 a)Appropriate assessments 

should be undertaken following 

any changes resulting from 

consultation to assess the 

outcome and the process of the 

consultation undertaken. The 

effectiveness of the consultation 

itself should also be evaluated.

Low 01/01/2016     

272 Consultations (public and 

staff)

2015/2016 Andrew Down 

(Head of HR, IT & 

Technical 

Services)

Sally Truman 

(Policy, 

Partnership & 

Engagement 

Manager)

3b) Assessments of added 

value

 b)The current corporate 

consultation procedures should 

include guidance to the 

assessments of the outcome 

and process of the consultation 

and also the evaluation process.

Low 01/01/2016     

300 Leisure centres 2015/2016 Clare Kingston 

(Head Of 

Corporate 

Strategy)

Kate Arnold 

(Leisure 

Manager)

9. Complete alarm checks GLL should remind officers of 

the need to carry out and fully 

document alarm checks.

Medium 01/02/2016   Implemented - To be 

verified by IA

 

304 Consultations (public and 

staff)

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield 

(Head of Planning)

Duncan Grainge 

(Customer 

Service Manager)

2b) Assessment of financial 

costs

 b)The lead officer within each 

service area should be assigned 

responsibility for ensuring a 

financial cost evaluation is 

undertaken on all consultations.  

The results of the evaluation 

should be reported to the 

relevant senior officers and 

appropriate councillors on a 

regular basis.

Medium 01/01/2016     

306 National Non-Domestic 

Rate (NNDR)

2015/2016 William Jacobs 

(Head Of Finance)

Paul Howden 

(Revenues & 

Benefits Client 

Manager)

Suspense Account A review of the suspense 

account should be undertaken 

and a decision made on the old 

transactions still on the account.

Low 01/03/2016     

312 Neighbourhood Planning 

Grants

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield 

(Head of Planning)

Michelle Yankah 

(Cutomer Service 

Team Leader)

Procedures Written procedures should be in 

place and followed when 

undertaking the neighbourhood 

planning process to ensure that 

both SODC & VWHDC are 

complying with the requirements 

of the Neighbourhood Planning 

(General) Regulations 2012.

Medium 30/04/2016     

P
age 184

A
genda Item

 7



Rec ID Audit Name Audit 

Year

Head of 

Service

Service 

Manager

Recommendation 

Name

Recommendation Risk Rating Implementation date Recommendation 

Update

Date of Officer 

Update

Recommendation 

Status

Revised 

Implementation 

Date
313 Neighbourhood Planning 

Grants

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield 

(Head of Planning)

Michelle Yankah 

(Cutomer Service 

Team Leader)

Grant Conditions 

Acceptance

Prior to the grant being issued, 

the planning policy team should 

ensure that the town/ parish 

councils have signed and 

returned the acceptance of grant 

conditions form so that the grant 

awarded can be withdrawn for 

non-compliance.

High 30/04/2016     

314 Neighbourhood Planning 

Grants

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield 

(Head of Planning)

Michelle Yankah 

(Cutomer Service 

Team Leader)

Post Funding Checks At the submission stage, the 

district councils should request 

from the town/parish councils¿ 

confirmation that all the funding 

provided was used on 

developing the neighbourhood 

plan.

Medium 30/04/2016     

315 Neighbourhood Planning 

Grants

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield 

(Head of Planning)

Michelle Yankah 

(Cutomer Service 

Team Leader)

Supporting Documentation The supporting documentation 

for neighbourhood planning 

grants should be filed 

appropriately so that an audit 

trail is in place confirming 

compliance with the 

Neighbourhood Planning 

(General) Regulations 2012.

Medium 30/04/2016     

316 Neighbourhood Planning 

Grants

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield 

(Head of Planning)

Michelle Yankah 

(Cutomer Service 

Team Leader)

Efficiently of Grant 

Applications

Neighbourhood planning grants 

should be applied for from 

DCLG at the next possible time 

after the area 

designations/decision 

statements are approved.

Low 31/03/2016     

317 Sundry Debtors 2015/2016 William Jacobs 

(Head Of Finance)

Paul Howden 

(Revenues & 

Benefits Client 

Manager)

Independent contractual 

assurances

The council should seek from 

Capita as part of the contract, 

assurance that the controls in 

place surrounding accounts 

receivable operated by Capita 

are regularly reviewed and are 

effective.  Any control 

weaknesses identified and 

action taken should be reported 

to the council.

Medium 01/06/2016     

318 Sundry Debtors 2015/2016 William Jacobs 

(Head Of Finance)

Paul Howden 

(Revenues & 

Benefits Client 

Manager)

Aged debt management Management should review all 

long term outstanding debts on 

a regular basis and consider 

writing these debts off or 

progressing alternative action.

Low 01/06/2016     

319 Sundry Debtors 2015/2016 William Jacobs 

(Head Of Finance)

Paul Howden 

(Revenues & 

Benefits Client 

Manager)

On hold invoices The corporate debt recovery 

strategy should include clear 

guidance on responsibility for on 

hold accounts and delegating 

authority.

Medium 01/05/2016     

320 Sundry Debtors 2015/2016 William Jacobs 

(Head Of Finance)

Paul Howden 

(Revenues & 

Benefits Client 

Manager)

Debt recovery Regular and scheduled face to 

face meetings between the legal 

team and service teams should 

be re-established.

Low 01/05/2016     

342 Creditor Payments 2015/2016 William Jacobs 

(Head Of Finance)

Paul Howden 

(Revenues & 

Benefits Client 

Manager)

3d) Sundry Suppliers 

Account

 3d)The Capita team need to 

ensure that all invoices being 

registered  go to a ¿coding 

group¿ for coding in Agresso in 

the first instance for council 

officers to check and authorise 

that all the details are correct 

(including supplier account). 

High 31/05/2016 Last review completed in Q1 of 

2016/17 (looking at Q4 

2015/16).  Next review to take 

place in Q2 of 2016/17 (looking 

at Q1 2016/17)

26/05/2016 Implemented - To be 

verified by IA

 

343 Creditor Payments 2015/2016 William Jacobs 

(Head Of Finance)

Paul Howden 

(Revenues & 

Benefits Client 

Manager)

4a) Duplicate Suppliers on 

Agresso

 4a)Regular reviews should be 

undertaken on the supplier 

master file to ensure that 

possible duplicate suppliers are 

reviewed and if necessary, 

closed on the Agresso system.

High 01/04/2016   Implemented - To be 

verified by IA

 

345 Creditor Payments 2015/2016 William Jacobs 

(Head Of Finance)

Paul Howden 

(Revenues & 

Benefits Client 

Manager)

4c) Duplicate Suppliers on 

Agresso

 4c)The licensing department 

and the IT department should 

ensure that a refund request is 

requested for the invoice 

payment duplications made by 

the council as soon as 
 possible.

 

High 01/04/2016     

P
age 185

A
genda Item

 7



Rec ID Audit Name Audit 

Year

Head of 

Service

Service 

Manager

Recommendation 

Name

Recommendation Risk Rating Implementation date Recommendation 

Update

Date of Officer 

Update

Recommendation 

Status

Revised 

Implementation 

Date
346 Creditor Payments 2015/2016 William Jacobs 

(Head Of Finance)

Paul Howden 

(Revenues & 

Benefits Client 

Manager)

4d) Duplicate Suppliers on 

Agresso

 4d)The IT operations manager 

should remind all Vodafone 

account holders in the council 

on the uses of the Vodafone 

accounts in Agresso to ensure 

they use the correct supplier id 

when making payments. 

High 01/04/2016     

363 Payroll 2015/2016 Andrew Down 

(Head of HR, IT & 

Technical 

Services)

Mark Gibbons 

(HR Business 

Partner)

Authorisation of 

appointment/leaver/amendm

ent forms

HR should ensure that the 

emails are filed alongside the 

notification of appointment, 

leaver and amendment forms to 

confirm that the forms are 

approved and sent by the 

appropriate officer.

Medium 01/03/2016     

364 Payroll 2015/2016 Andrew Down 

(Head of HR, IT & 

Technical 

Services)

Mark Gibbons 

(HR Business 

Partner)

Establishment listing 

reconciliation

Discrepancies found from the 

reconciliation between the 

establishment list and the 

payroll system should be dealt 

with efficiently to ensure that 

records held by both HR and 

Capita payroll are accurate.

High 30/04/2016     

365 Payroll 2015/2016 Andrew Down 

(Head of HR, IT & 

Technical 

Services)

Mark Gibbons 

(HR Business 

Partner)

Starters All starter processes should 

comply with the council¿s 

agreed policies and procedures 
 i.e.

 a)Two references must be 

received for all starters and filed 
 within the personnel records.

 b)All references received must 

show sufficient independence 

from the staff members 
 conducting the interview.

 c)All new starters who joined 

via agency employment or 

contractual work need to have 

the council¿s standard 

documentation requested and 

filed in their personnel records.

Low 31/03/2016     

P
age 186

A
genda Item

 7



Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee

Report of Assurance Manager
Author: Adrianna Partridge
Telephone: : 01235 422485
Textphone: 18001 01235 422510
E-mail: adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk
SODC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Jane Murphy
Tel: 07970 932054
E-mail: jane.murphy@southoxon.gov.uk
VWHDC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Matthew Barber
Telephone: 07816 481452
E-mail: matthew.barber@whitehorsedc.gov.uk

To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee
DATE: 4 July 2016

Internal audit management report 
quarter one 2016/2017
 
Recommendation

That members note the content of the report.

Purpose of report

1. The purpose of this report is:

 to report on management issues within internal audit;

 to summarise the progress against the 2016/2017 audit plan up to 14 
June 2016; and

 to summarise the priorities for quarter one 2016/2017.

CONFIDENTIAL

Page 187

Agenda Item 8

mailto:jane.murphy@southoxon.gov.uk
mailto:matthew.barber@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


2. The contact officer for this report is Adrianna Partridge, Assurance Manager for 
South Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White Horse District Council, 
telephone 01235 422485.

Strategic objectives

3. Managing our business effectively.

Background 

4. The CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in the UK 
2006 states that the head of internal audit should prepare a risk-based audit 
plan, which should outline the assignments to be carried out and the broad 
resources required to deliver the plan.

5. The CIPFA Code also states that the audit committee should approve the 
annual internal audit plan and monitor progress against the plan.  The joint 
committee approved the 2016/2017 annual internal audit plan on 21 March 
2016.

Management issues

6. The new risk and insurance officer is now in post and action plans have been 
developed to deliver new frameworks in business continuity, insurance and risk 
management, which will integrate with the internal audit function.

7. The assurance manager is currently assessing with external audit, additional 
assurance reviews to be undertaken on the 5 councils partnership.

Progress against the 2016/2017 audit plan

8. Progress against the approved audit plan has been calculated for the quarter 
and year to date and is summarised in appendix 1 attached.

9. Performance figures to date are as follows:

Target YTD Q1 
15/16

Q2 
15/16

Q3 
15/16

Q4 
15/16

Chargeable
(identifiable client and/or specific 
IA deliverable)

74% 71% 71% - - -

Non-Chargeable 
(corporate, not IA deliverable)

8% 6.5% 6.5% - - -

Planned Lost
(i.e. leave)

16% 21.5% 21.5% - - -

Unplanned Lost
(i.e. study, sickness)

2% 1% 1% - - -

10. As at 14 June 2016 the status of audit work against the 2016/2017 audit plan is 
as follows:

Planned 

Strategic, operational and financial assurance work known and approved by the 
audit and governance committee.

Page 188

Agenda Item 8



2016/2017

Pl
an

ne
d

C
om

pl
et

e

D
ra

ft

In
 p

ro
gr

es
s

To
 

co
m

m
en

ce

PLANNED 28 0 0 5 23
Joint 25 0 0 5 20
SODC 3 0 0 0 3

Adhoc

Unplanned project work based on agreed terms of reference with the audit 
manager (i.e. implementation of new systems) and responsive work issued and 
agreed by the section 151 officer, members or senior management team (i.e. 
investigations).

2016/2017

R
eq

ue
st

ed

C
om

pl
et

e

D
ra

ft

In
 p

ro
gr

es
s

To
 

co
m

m
en

ce

ADHOC 1 0 0 1 0
Joint 0 0 0 0 0
SODC 0 0 0 0 0
VWHDC 1 0 0 1 0

Follow up 

Work undertaken to ensure that agreed recommendations have been 
implemented.  The number of follow-up audits is a rolling number, all internal 
audit reports are followed up after six months unless the area is subject to an 
annual review.

2016/2017

R
eq

ue
st

ed

C
om

pl
et

e

D
ra

ft

In
 p

ro
gr

es
s

To
 

co
m

m
en

ce

FOLLOW-UP 28 10 0 0 18
SODC 14 5 0 0 9
VWHDC 14 5 0 0 9

Priorities for 2016/2017 quarter two (July 2016 - Sept 2016)

11. The priorities for quarter two are to:
 

Page 189

Agenda Item 8



 Update all internal audit procedures to reflect new working practices.
 Agree an assurance work plan for the 5 councils partnership.

12. Remaining 2016/2017 planned audit work can be reviewed in appendix 2. 

Financial implications

13. There are no financial implications attached to this report.

Legal implications

14. None.

Risk implications

15. Identification of risk is an integral part of all audits.

ADRIANNA PARTRIDGE
ASSURANCE MANAGER

Page 190

Agenda Item 8



PLANNED AUDIT 2016/2017

System Name

As at 14 June 2016

Payroll (29 priority score) 36

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

General Ledger (26) 20

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Procurement (CSP) (25) 20

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Council Tax (24) 20

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Creditor Payments (24) 20

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Pro-active Anti-Fraud Review (23) 20

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Capital Management and Accounting (23) 14

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Housing Benefits and CTRS (22) 30

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Sundry Debtors (22) 20

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

NNDR (20) 20

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Treasury Management (18) 14

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

T
o

ta
l 
N

o
t 

A
g

re
e
d

JOINT - Part 1

M
e
d

iu
m

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
dStatus

A
u

d
it

 

A
ll
o

c
a
ti

o
n

T
o

ta
l 
D

a
y
s
 

U
s
e
d

Exception Issues

L
o

w

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
d

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
d

To Commence Q2

N
o

. 
o

f 
R

e
c
sAudit Opinion

To Commence Q4

TOR Sent

To Commence Q3

To Commence Q2

To Commence Q4

To Commence Q3

To Commence Q3

To Commence Q2

To Commence Q4

To Commence Q2

APPENDIX 1

H
ig

h

P
age 191

A
genda Item

 8



Risk Management (28) 14

SODC 7.0

VWHDC 7.0

Community Infrastructure Levy (25) 12

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Training and Development (22) 12

SODC 1.5

VWHDC 1.5

Building Control (22) 20

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.5

Health and Safety (20) 20

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Gifts and Hospitality (20) 10

SODC 5.0

VWHDC 5.0

Performance Management (20) 16

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Facilities Management (20) 20

SODC 2.0

VWHDC 2.0

Lone Working and Officer Security (20) 14

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Comments and Complaints Process (20) 16

SODC 0.5

VWHDC 0.5

Environmental Protection (20) 20

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Information Governance (15) 20

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Tree Management and Inspections (15) 20

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Safeguarding Children, Young People and Vulnerable 

Adults (16)

12

SODC 4.5

VWHDC 4.5

In Progress

In Progress

To Commence Q4

To Commence Q4

In Progress

JOINT - Part 2
In Progress

To Commence Q2

In Progress

TOR Sent

To Commence Q4

TOR Sent

To Commence Q4

TOR Sent

To Commence Q2

P
age 192

A
genda Item

 8



Cornerstone (21) TOR Sent 10 0.0

Leader Project Assurance (17) To Commence Q2 10 0.0

Leader Project Grant Verification (10) To Commence Q2 5 0.0

Full
Substantial

Satisfactory
Limited

Nil

Full

Substantial
Satisfactory

Limited
Nil

Full
Substantial

Satisfactory
Limited

Nil

00000

0

IA PLANNED AUDIT TOTALS

0

- 485 41.5

0
0

0

SODC

00 0

VWHDC PLANNED AUDIT TOTALS - 263 21.0

0

SODC PLANNED AUDIT TOTALS 0- 268 20.5 0 0

0

0
0

0

0

0 0 0 0

0

0
0

0
0

0 0 0 0 0 0

0

0

P
age 193

A
genda Item

 8



FOLLOW UP AUDITS 2015/2016

System Name Total Days 

Used

Original Audit Opinion Issued Total No. of Recs 

Agreed

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

P
a

rt
ly

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

N
o

t 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

O
n

g
o

in
g

Waste Management & Recycling 1516 0.25 Substantial 3 1 1 1 0

Receipt of Income 1516 0.25 Satisfactory 6 5 1 0 0

Development Management 1516 0.25 Satisfactory 3 3 0 0 0

Licensing 1516 0.25 Satisfactory 6 6 0 0 0

Cash Office 1516 0.25 Limited 4 3 0 1 0

Waste Management & Recycling 1516 0.25 Substantial 3 1 1 1 0

Receipt of Income 1516 0.25 Satisfactory 6 5 1 0 0

Development Management 1516 0.25 Satisfactory 3 3 0 0 0

Licensing 1516 0.25 Satisfactory 4 4 0 0 0

Cash Office 1516 0.25 Limited 5 4 0 1 0

FOLLOW UP AUDITS 2016/2017

System Name Total Days 

Used

Original Audit Opinion Issued Total No. of Recs 

Agreed

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

P
a

rt
ly

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

N
o

t 
Im

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

O
n

g
o

in
g

None

None

IA FOLLOW UP 15/16 TOTALS 0.5 14 7 0 2 0

SODC FOLLOW UP 15/16 TOTALS 0.3 4 3 0 1 0

VWHDC FOLLOW UP 15/16 TOTALS 0.3 10 4 0 1 0

VWHDC

SODC 

VWHDC

SODC

P
age 194

A
genda Item

 8



UNPLANNED WORK 2016/2017

CONSULTANCY

System Name Status Audit Allocation Total Days Used Requested By

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

CONTINGENCY

System Name Status Audit Allocation Total Days Used Requested By

MOT and Business Insurance Spotcheck In progress 2 2 Assurance Manager

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

West Way Botley In progress 15 N/A Councillor

SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT

System Name Status Audit Allocation Total Days Used Requested By

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

VWHDC

SODC

JOINT

VWHDC

JOINT

SODC

JOINT

VWHDC

SODC

P
age 195

A
genda Item

 8



PLANNED AUDITS

PRIORITY
JOINT - PART 1 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5

Payroll 29

General Ledger 26

Procurement (CSP) 25

Council Tax 24

Creditor Payments 24

Pro-active Anti-Fraud Review 23

Capital Management & Accounting 23

Housing Benefits & CTRS 22

Sundry Debtors 22

NNDR 20

Treasury Management 18
JOINT - PART 2

Risk Management 28

Community Infrastucture Levy 25

Training and Development 22

Building Control 22

Health and Safety 20

Gifts and Hospitality 20

Performance Management 20

Facilities Management 20

Lone Working and Officer Security 20
Comments and Complaints Process 20

Environmental Protection 20

Information Governance 15

Tree Management and Inspections 15

Safeguarding Children, Young People and 

Vulnerable Adults
14

SODC

Cornerstone 21

Leader Project Assurance 17

Leader Project Grant Verification 11

FOLLOW UP AUDITS

PRIORITY
JOINT 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5
Waste Management
Receipt of Income Arrangements
Development Management
Licensing
Cash Office
Consultation
Partnership Performance Management
Leisure
Neighbourhood Planning Grants
Elections & Election Payments
ICT
HR Recruitment
HR Mgt
Insurance
SODC
None
VWHDC
None

UNPLANNED AUDITS

PRIORITY
JOINT 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5
Spotcheck of MOT and Business Insurance
SODC
None
VWHDC
Planning Investigation

Key
Projected Start Date
In Progress
Draft Issued
Complete

Appendix 2

August September

June

December

February

MarchNovember December January February

A
G

C

A
G

C

March

A
G

C

January

A
G

C

September

February March

October November

A
G

C
A

G
C

A
G

C

A
G

C

December

January

A
G

C

April

A
G

C
A

G
C

 

August

AUDIT PLAN SCHEDULE 2016/2017 (As at 14 June 2016)

April May June July

April May July

May June

A
G

C

October NovemberJuly

August OctoberSeptember

P
age 196

A
genda Item

 8



Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee

Report of Assurance Manager
Author: Adrianna Partridge
Telephone: 01235 422485
Textphone: 18001 01235 422510
E-mail: adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk
SODC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Jane Murphy
Tel: 07970 932054
E-mail: jane.murphy@southoxon.gov.uk
VWHDC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Matthew Barber
Telephone: 07816 481452
E-mail: matthew.barber@whitehorsedc.gov.uk

To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee
DATE: 4 July 2016

Internal audit annual report 2015/2016 
Recommendation

That members note the content of the report.

Purpose of Report

1. The purpose of this report is to report on the work of internal audit in the year 
ended 31 March 2016, and to advise the committee of the assurance 
manager’s opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the internal 
control environments at South Oxfordshire and the Vale of White Horse District 
Councils.

2. The contact officer for this report is Adrianna Partridge, Assurance Manager for 
South Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White Horse District Council, 
telephone 01235 422485.

Strategic Objectives

3. Managing our business effectively.

CONFIDENTIAL

Page 197

Agenda Item 9

mailto:jane.murphy@southoxon.gov.uk
mailto:matthew.barber@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


Background 

4. Standard 10 of the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local 
Government in the UK 2006 (CIPFA Code) states that the head of internal audit 
(assurance manager) must produce an annual report that:

 includes his or her opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the 
organisation’s control environment;

 discloses any qualifications to that opinion, together with the reason(s) for 
the qualification;

 presents a summary of the audit work from which the opinion is derived, 
including reliance placed on work by other assurance bodies;

 draws attention to any issues the head of internal audit judges particularly 
relevant to the preparation of the Annual Governance Statement;

 compares the work actually undertaken to the work that was planned and 
summarises the performance of the internal audit function against its 
performance measures and targets; and

 comments on compliance with the CIPFA standards and communicates the 
result of the internal audit quality assurance programme.

5. The control environment comprises the systems of governance, risk 
management and internal control.  The key elements of the control 
environment include:

 establishing and monitoring the achievement of the organisation’s 
objectives;

 ensuring compliance with established policies, procedures, laws and 
regulations;

 ensuring risk management is embedded in the activity of the organisation, 
that leadership is given to the risk management process, and staff are 
trained or equipped to manage risk in a way appropriate to their authority 
and duties;

 ensuring the economical, effective and efficient use of resources, and for 
securing continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are 
exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness;

 the financial management of the organisation and the reporting of financial 
management; and

 the performance management of the organisation and the reporting of 
performance management.

Overall Opinion

6. The assurance manager is satisfied that sufficient internal audit work has been 
undertaken to allow a reasonable conclusion to be drawn as to the adequacy 
and effectiveness of SODC’s and VWHDC’s risk management, control and 
governance processes.  The assurance manager’s opinion is based on the risk-
based audits carried out during the year at each council and other unplanned 
work on control systems.  No reliance has been placed on the work of other 
assurance bodies.

Page 198

Agenda Item 9



7. It is the assurance manager’s unqualified opinion that based on the areas 
reviewed during the year, satisfactory assurance can be placed on both 
councils’ risk management, control and governance processes.  There is 
basically a sound system of internal control at both councils, but there are 
some weaknesses which may put some system objectives at risk.  

8. Three areas were given full assurance – housing and council tax reduction 
scheme, national non-domestic rates and pro-active anti-fraud.  Areas of 
weakness in the control environment have been identified in the following 
areas – procurement, payroll, elections and election payments, creditor 
payments, insurance, the cash office, HR recruitment, partnership performance 
monitoring, project management and neighbourhood planning grants.  Where 
internal audit identified weaknesses which require remedial action, 
recommendations have been made and discussed with officers.  

9. Notwithstanding the assurance manager’s overall opinions, internal audit 
identified a number of opportunities for improving controls and procedures 
across the councils which officers have generally responded to positively.  

10. A summary of all internal audit opinions across both councils is attached as 
Appendix 1.

Summary of Audit Work

11. For 2015/2016, internal audit completed 469 audit work days.  232 days for 
South Oxfordshire District Council and 237 days for the Vale of White Horse 
District Council.  This includes planned audit work, consultancy work and 
contingency work (i.e. investigations).

12. A total of 26 joint planned internal audit reviews have been undertaken.  From 
the 52 completed audits, six (11.5%) achieved a full assurance rating.  10 
audits (19%) achieved a substantial rating.  For 16 audits (31%) a satisfactory 
assurance rating was achieved.  Limited assurances were appropriate for 20 
(38.5%) audits and no reviews resulted in nil assurance being given.   In total 
287 recommendations to improve controls and procedures within the councils 
were made.  50 (17.5%) were classified as high, 113 (39.5%) as medium and 
124 (43%) as low.  Of the completed audits 19 recommendations were not 
agreed by management.

13. Two joint investigations were completed during 2015/2016, and these utilised 
seven days.    One VWHDC investigation was in progress at year end and had 
utilised two days.  No system development work was requested.

14. A total of 21 follow-up reviews were undertaken during 2015/2016, utilising 8.5 
days.  From those 21, 10 related to SODC and 11 related to VWHDC.  Time 
has been allocated within the 2016/2017 audit plan for further follow-up work.

Issues Relevant to the Annual Governance Statement

15. Specific audit reviews on corporate governance, the council’s anti-fraud and 
corruption policies and risk management were not included within the 
2015/2016 annual audit plan, but a risk management audit is in the 2016/2017 
planned audit schedule.  Internal audit has undertaken proactive anti-fraud 

Page 199

Agenda Item 9



testing within 2015/2016 which raised one low risk recommendation at both 
councils.

16. One suspicion of fraud and corruption by a partner/contractor was reported to 
the assurance manager during 2015/2016.  A full review was undertaken but 
the suspicion was not substantiated.  The findings of the review were shared 
with external audit. 

17. The council's gifts and hospitality policy states that 'The Local Government Act 
and other legislation makes it clear that council employees should not accept 
any fees or reward during the course of their employment other than their 
standard remuneration from their employer'. The policy goes on to highlight 
where exceptions to this rule are permissible and outlines the process staff 
should follow when offers of gifts or hospitality are made. The assurance 
manager has reviewed the four entries declared within the register for 2015/16, 
and there were no concerns.  A specific gifts and hospitality audit review is in 
the schedule for 2016/2017.

  
Internal Audit’s Performance

18. The internal audit team was at full complement for 2015/2016 of an assurance 
manager (0.8FTE) and three auditors shared across both sites.  There was an 
auditor vacancy for three months, but this was filled by an interim contractor.  

19. The performance of internal audit is measured against a number of indicators.  
The out-turn for 2015/2016 is as follows:

Year Ending 
31/03/15

Target 15/16 Year Ending 
31/03/16

Chargeable
(identifiable client and/or specific 
IA deliverable)

71.5% 74% 74%

Non-Chargeable 
(corporate, not IA deliverable)

8.5% 8% 6%

Lost
(i.e. leave, study, sickness)

20% 18% 20%
Planned Lost N/A 16% 12%
Unplanned Lost N/A 2% 8%

Performance Targets Year Ending 
31/03/16

PT1 To issue 90% of audit notifications at least 1 month before 
start of audit fieldwork

92%

PT2 To issue 90% of draft audit reports within 5 working days of 
completion of the exit meeting.

98%

PT3 To issue 90% of final audit reports within 5 working days of 
receipt of the auditees final responses to draft report and 
recommendations.

100%

PT4 To issue 90% of follow-up notifications at least 1 month 
before start of follow-up work.

50%

PT5 To follow up 90% of final reports within 6 months of 50%
Page 200

Agenda Item 9



completion of audit.
PT6 To complete the audit fieldwork and issue draft reports on 
100% of key financial system audits within the audit plan.

100%

PT7 To complete the audit fieldwork and issue draft reports on 
80% of all non key financial system audits within the audit plan.

100%

20. In 2015/2016 the team achieved seven out of 10 of the annual performance 
targets set.  The team’s lost target was affected by a period of staff absence, 
and the follow up targets were affected by a management decision in Q1 to 
prioritise completion of the previous year’s audits delayed by the Crowmarsh 
fire.  Notwithstanding, the assurance manager considers completion of the full 
audit plan to be a good team performance.  The 2015/2016 performance 
targets remain for 2016/2017, and the team is committed to improving follow 
up performance.

Compliance with CIPFA Code

21. As part of the quality assurance programme and to assist in monitoring and 
improving the quality and value of service provided, auditees are asked to 
complete an audit feedback questionnaire on internal audit’s performance. Five 
responses were received in 2015/2016 and are summarised in appendix 2.

22. All feedback received by the assurance manager is discussed with the relevant 
auditor.  Where appropriate, the assurance manager meets the officer to 
discuss their comments in more detail and implement any necessary process 
improvements.

Financial Implications

23. There are no financial implications attached to this report.

Legal Implications

24. None

Risk Implications

25. Identification of risk is an integral part of all audits.

ADRIANNA PARTRIDGE
ASSURANCE MANAGER

Page 201

Agenda Item 9



PLANNED AUDIT 2015/2016

System Name

Procurement (26 priority score) 16

SODC 8.0 9 2 2 5 5 2 2 0

VWHDC 8.0 8 1 1 5 5 2 2 0

Payroll (24) 36

SODC 13.5 5 1 1 1 1 3 3 0

VWHDC 13.5 5 1 1 1 1 3 3 0

Housing & Council Tax Reduction Scheme (22) 30

SODC 11.5 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 0

VWHDC 11.5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Leisure Centres (22) 30

SODC 18.0 10 0 0 3 3 7 7 0

VWHDC 18.0 11 0 0 4 4 7 7 0

Elections & Election Payments (22) 30

SODC 7.5 7 1 1 4 4 2 2 0

VWHDC 8.0 7 1 1 4 4 2 2 0

Council Tax (21) 20

SODC 8.5 3 0 0 0 0 3 3 0

VWHDC 8.5 3 0 0 0 0 3 3 0

General Ledger (21) 20

SODC 4.0 5 0 0 1 1 4 2 2

VWHDC 4.0 4 0 0 1 1 3 1 1

National Non-Domestic Rate (21) 20

SODC 10.0 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 0

VWHDC 10.0 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 0

Sundry Debtors (21) 20

SODC 8.5 5 0 0 2 2 3 3 0

VWHDC 8.5 4 0 0 2 2 2 2 0

ICT(21) 20

SODC 4.0 8 0 0 4 4 4 4 0

VWHDC 4.0 8 0 0 4 4 4 4 0

Creditor Payments (20) 20

SODC 10.0 6 3 3 0 0 3 3 0

VWHDC 12.5 5 3 3 0 0 2 2 0

Pro-Active Anti-Fraud Review (20) 20

SODC 5.0 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 0

VWHDC 5.0 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 0

Insurance (20) 20

SODC 9.5 19 5 4 7 7 7 7 1

VWHDC 9.5 18 5 4 6 6 7 7 1

Completed 

Completed 

Completed 

Completed 

Completed 

Completed 

Completed 

Completed 

Completed 

Completed 

Completed 

Completed 

APPENDIX 1

Limited

Limited

Satisfactory

Limited

T
o

ta
l 

N
o

t 

A
g

re
e

d

JOINT

Full

Satisfactory

M
e

d
iu

m

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
dStatus

A
u

d
it

 

A
ll

o
c

a
ti

o
n

T
o

ta
l 

D
a

y
s

 

U
s

e
d

Exception Issues

L
o

w

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
d

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
d

Completed 

N
o

. 
o

f 
R

e
c

sAudit 

Opinion

Limited

Limited

H
ig

h

Limited

Limited

Full

Substantial

Satisfactory

Limited

Limited

Substantial

Satisfactory

Full

Satisfactory

Substantial

Satisfactory

Full

Limited

Full

Full

Substantial

P
age 202

A
genda Item

 9



Capital Management and Accounting (19) 14

SODC 7.5 6 0 0 3 3 3 1 2

VWHDC 7.5 6 0 0 3 3 3 1 2

Cash Office (19) 16

SODC 6.5 5 2 2 3 2 0 0 1

VWHDC 6.5 5 3 3 2 1 0 0 1

Licensing (18) Completed 20

SODC 10.0 7 0 0 2 2 5 4 1

VWHDC 10.0 5 0 0 2 2 3 2 1

Treasury Management (18) 14

SODC 5.0 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0

VWHDC 5.0 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0

Receipt of Income Arrangements (18) Completed 20

SODC 10.0 6 0 0 4 4 2 2 0

VWHDC 10.0 6 0 0 4 4 2 2 0

HR Management (18) 20

SODC 6.5 5 0 0 2 2 3 3 0

VWHDC 6.5 5 0 0 2 2 3 3 0

HR Recruitment (17) 20

SODC 5.5 7 2 2 3 2 2 2 1

VWHDC 5.5 7 2 2 3 2 2 2 1

Partnership Performance Monitoring (17) 20

SODC 10.5 6 3 2 1 1 2 1 2

VWHDC 10.0 6 3 2 1 1 2 1 2

Project Management (17) 20

SODC 10.0 10 5 5 4 4 1 1 0

VWHDC 10.0 10 5 5 4 4 1 1 0

Waste Management & Recycling (17) 20

SODC 10.0 3 0 0 1 1 2 2 0

VWHDC 10.0 3 0 0 1 1 2 2 0

Consultation (Public & Staff) (16) 10

SODC 5.0 3 0 0 1 1 2 2 0

VWHDC 5.0 3 0 0 1 1 2 2 0

Neighbourhood Planning Grants (15) 10 Change of auditor.

SODC 9.5 5 1 1 3 3 1 1 0

VWHDC 9.5 5 1 1 3 3 1 1 0

Development Management (13) 20

SODC 10.5 3 0 0 2 2 1 1 0

VWHDC 10.5 3 0 0 2 2 1 1 0

LEADER Project Grant Verification (10) 5 No longer required. N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Completed 

Completed 

N/A

Completed 

Completed 

Completed 

Completed 

Completed 

Completed 

Completed 

Completed 

Completed 

Substantial

Substantial

Substantial

Limited

Limited

N/A

Satisfactory

Limited

Limited

Satisfactory

Limited

Substantial

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

Limited

Limited

Substantial

Substantial

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

Limited

Limited

Limited

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

P
age 203

A
genda Item

 9



Full

Substantial 10

Satisfactory

Limited

Nil

Full

Substantial

Satisfactory

Limited

Nil

Full

Substantial

Satisfactory

Limited

Nil

9

3

5

8

10

140 25 23 56 54 59VWHDC PLANNED AUDIT TOTALS - 263 227.0

0

SODC PLANNED AUDIT TOTALS 23

53

57 55 65 59 10- 268 224.5 147 25

3

5

8

10

0

11350 46IA PLANNED AUDIT TOTALS

0

- 531 451.5

16

20

6

19112124109287

P
age 204

A
genda Item

 9



FOLLOW UP AUDITS 2014/2015

System Name Total Days 

Used

Original Audit Opinion Issued Total No. of Recs 

Agreed

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

P
a

rt
ly

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

N
o

t 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

O
n

g
o

in
g

Anti-fraud and Corruption Policies 0.5 Limited 6 1 1 4 0

Bank Contract and Arrangements 0.25 Full 1 1 0 0 0

Contract Monitoring 0.25 Full 2 1 0 1 0

Travel and Subsistence 0.25 Full 2 2 0 0 0

S106, Commuted Sums and CIL 0.25 Limited 8 6 2 0 0

Council Fees and Charges 0.5 Full 2 1 0 1 0

Credit Card Usage 0.5 Satisfactory 5 2 2 1 0

Petty Cash 0.5 Satisfactory 5 3 0 2 0

Land Charges 0.5 Satisfactory 6 4 0 0 2

Anti-fraud and Corruption Policies 0.5 Limited 6 1 1 4 0

Bank Contract and Arrangements 0.25 Full 1 1 0 0 0

Contract Monitoring 0.25 Full 2 1 0 1 0

Travel and Subsistence 0.25 Full 2 2 0 0 0

S106, Commuted Sums and CIL 0.25 Limited 9 7 2 0 0

Council Fees and Charges 0.5 Full 2 1 0 1 0

Credit Card Usage 0.5 Satisfactory 3 2 1 0 0

Petty Cash 0.5 Satisfactory 9 9 0 0 0

Land Charges 0.5 Satisfactory 6 4 0 0 2

FOLLOW UP AUDITS 2015/2016

System Name Total Days 

Used

Original Audit Opinion Issued Total No. of Recs 

Agreed

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

P
a

rt
ly

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

N
o

t 
Im

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

O
n

g
o

in
g

Procurement 0.5 Limited 9 5 4 0 0

Beacon 0.5 N/A Investigation 11 8 2 1 0

Procurement 0.5 Limited 8 5 3 0 0

IA FOLLOW UP 15/16 TOTALS 8.5 111 67 18 16 4

SODC FOLLOW UP 15/16 TOTALS 4.0 46 26 9 9 2

VWHDC FOLLOW UP 15/16 TOTALS 4.5 65 41 9 7 2

VWHDC

SODC 

VWHDC

SODC

P
age 205

A
genda Item

 9



UNPLANNED WORK 2015/2016

CONSULTANCY

System Name Status Audit Allocation Total Days Used Requested By

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

CONTINGENCY

System Name Status Audit Allocation Total Days Used Requested By

Expenses spot checks Completed 3 1.5 Chief Executive

Finance expenditure review Completed 5 5.5 Section 151 officer

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

West Way Botley In progress 15 2 Councillor

SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT

System Name Status Audit Allocation Total Days Used Requested By

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

IA UNPLANNED WORK TOTALS 23 9
SODC UNPLANNED WORK TOTALS 4 3.5
VWHDC UNPLANNED WORK TOTALS 19 5.5

SODC TOTAL AUDIT WORK 232 days
VWHDC TOTAL AUDIT WORK 237 days
TOTAL PLANNED AUDIT WORK 469 days

VWHDC

SODC

JOINT

VWHDC

JOINT

SODC

JOINT

VWHDC

SODC

P
age 206

A
genda Item

 9



INTERNAL AUDIT FEEDBACK APPENDIX 2

Five audit feedback questionnaires were returned for work completed in 2015/2016 (those received in 2014/2015 were lost in the Crowmarsh 
fire).  Responses were received from:

Licensing
Consultation and engagement
Henley on Thames Town Council
Leisure x 2

AUDIT PLANNING AND SCOPE OF WORK

Very Good Good Satisfactory Poor Very Poor Did Not Answer
1. Consultation on the scope and coverage of the audit 2 3
2. Minimal disruption to daily activities 1 4

COMMUNICATION

Very Good Good Satisfactory Poor Very Poor Did Not Answer
3. Consultation and communication during the audit 4 1
4. Communication of audit findings and recommendations 4 1

QUALITY OF AUDIT REPORT

Very Good Good Satisfactory Poor Very Poor Did Not Answer
5. Clarity and conciseness of the audit report 2 3
6. Fulfilment of the audit scope and objectives 3 2
7. Accuracy, validity and significance of the audit findings 2 2 1
8. Audit recommendations - constructive, practical and logical 4 1

PROFESSIONAL PROFICIENCY

Very Good Good Satisfactory Poor Very Poor Did Not Answer
9. Professionalism of the auditor(s) 4 1
10. Advice given by the auditor(s) 4 1

GENERAL

Very Good Good Satisfactory Poor Very Poor Did Not Answer
11. Usefulness of audit in identifying risks and improving 
controls

1 3 1

12. Overall evaluation of the quality of the audit service provided 3 2

P
age 207

A
genda Item

 9



TOTALS

Very Good Good Satisfactory Poor Very Poor Did Not Answer
34 24 2

OTHER COMMENTS RECEIVED

Very pleased to be working with Nilesh.  Despite the legal complexity of licensing he quickly got to grips with our many and varied activities and showed a sensitivity 
for the difficult circumstances the team had and was experiencing.  The final report was succinct and removed a number of outdated and unnecessary 
recommendations from the previous audit.

This audit was well conducted and was a pleasure to be part of.

P
age 208

A
genda Item

 9



A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited

Ernst & Young LLP
Apex Plaza
Forbury Road
Reading

Tel: + 44 118 928 1599
Fax: + 44 118 928 1101
ey.com

RG1 1YE

David Buckle
South Oxfordshire District Council
135 Eastern Avenue
Milton Park
Milton
OX14 4SB

31 March 2016

Dear David

Annual Audit and Certification Fees 2016/17

We are writing to confirm the audit and certification work that we propose to undertake for the 2016/17
financial year at South Oxfordshire District Council.

Indicative audit fee

For the 2016/17 financial year, Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) has set the scale fee for
each audited body, following consultation on its Work Programme and Scale of Fees.

The fee reflects the risk-based approach to audit planning set out in the National Audit Office’s Code of
Audit Practice for the audit of local public bodies.

The audit fee covers the:

• audit of the financial statements
• value for money conclusion
• whole of Government accounts.

For South Oxfordshire District Council our indicative fee is set at the scale fee level. Certain
assumptions form the basis for the indicative fee, including:

• the overall level of risk in relation to the audit of the financial statements is not significantly different
from that of the prior year

• officers meeting the agreed timetable of deliverables;
• the operating effectiveness of the internal controls for the key processes identified within our audit

strategy;
• placing reliance on the work of internal audit as planned;
• our accounts opinion and value for money conclusion being unqualified;
• appropriate quality of documentation is provided by the Council;
• there being an effective control environment; and
• prompt responses to our draft reports.

Meeting these assumptions will help ensure the delivery of our audit at the indicative audit fee as set out
in the table below.

Page 209

Agenda Item 10



A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited

Page 2

As we have not yet completed our audit for 2015/16, our audit planning process for 2016/17 will continue
as the year progresses.  We will review and update fees as necessary, within the parameters of our
contract.

Certification fee are no applicable certification arrangements made by the PSAA]

The PSAA has set an indicative certification fee for housing benefit subsidy claim certification work for
each audited benefits authority.  The indicative fee is based on actual 2014/15 benefit certification fees,
and incorporating a 25 per cent reduction.

The basis of the indicative certification fee is on the expectation that an audited body is able to provide
the auditor with complete and materially accurate housing benefit subsidy claim with supporting working
papers, within agreed timeframes.

The indicative certification fee for 2016/17 relates to work on the housing benefit subsidy claim for the
year ended 31 March 2017.  We have set the certification fee at the indicative fee level. We will update
our risk assessment after we complete 2015/16 benefit certification work, and to reflect any further
changes in the certification arrangements.

Summary of fees

Indicative fee
2016/17

£

Planned fee
2015/16

£

Actual fee
2014/15

£

Total Code audit fee 48,186 48,186 64,248
Certification of housing benefit subsidy
claim

9,623 10,972 12,830

[Notes to auditors for completion –
We will separately negotiate and agree fees for any additional work that we may agree to undertake
(outside of the Code of Audit Practice).

Billing

The indicative audit fee will be billed in 4 quarterly instalments of £14,452.

Audit plan

We expect to issue our plan in February 2017.  This will communicate any significant financial statement
risks identified, planned audit procedures to respond to those risks and any changes in fee.  It will also
set out the significant risks identified in relation to the value for money conclusion.  Should we need to
make any significant amendments to the audit fee during the course of the audit, we will discuss this in
the first instance with the Head of Finance and, if necessary, prepare a report outlining the reasons for
the fee change for discussion with the Joint Audit and Governance Committee.

Page 210

Agenda Item 10



A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited

Page 3

Audit team

The key members of the audit team for the 2016/17 financial year are:

Andrew Brittain
Executive Director abrittain@uk.ey.com Tel: 07976 515115

Adam Swain
Manager aswain@uk.ey.com Tel: 07867 152511

We are committed to providing you with a high quality service.  If at any time you would like to discuss
with us how our service to you could be improved, or if you are dissatisfied with the service you are
receiving, please contact me.  If you prefer an alternative route, please contact Steve Varley, our
Managing Partner, 1 More London Place, London, SE1 2AF.  We undertake to look into any complaint
carefully and promptly and to do all we can to explain the position to you.  Should you remain dissatisfied
with any aspect of our service, you may of course take matters up with our professional institute.

Yours sincerely

Andrew Brittain
Executive Director
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

cc. William Jacobs, Head of Finance
Kevin Bulmer, Chair of the Joint Audit and Governance Committee

Page 211

Agenda Item 10



A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited

Ernst & Young LLP
Apex Plaza
Forbury Road
Reading

Tel: + 44 118 928 1599
Fax: + 44 118 928 1101
ey.com

RG1 1YE

David Buckle
Vale of White Horse District Council
135 Eastern Avenue
Milton Park
Milton
OX14 4SB

31 March 2016

Dear David

Annual Audit and Certification Fees 2016/17

We are writing to confirm the audit and certification work that we propose to undertake for the 2016/17
financial year at Vale of White Horse District Council.

Indicative audit fee

For the 2016/17 financial year, Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) has set the scale fee for
each audited body, following consultation on its Work Programme and Scale of Fees.

The fee reflects the risk-based approach to audit planning set out in the National Audit Office’s Code of
Audit Practice for the audit of local public bodies.

The audit fee covers the:

• audit of the financial statements
• value for money conclusion
• whole of Government accounts.

For Vale of White Horse District Council our indicative fee is set at the scale fee level. Certain
assumptions form the basis for the indicative fee, including:

• the overall level of risk in relation to the audit of the financial statements is not significantly different
from that of the prior year

• officers meeting the agreed timetable of deliverables;
• the operating effectiveness of the internal controls for the key processes identified within our audit

strategy;
• placing reliance on the work of internal audit as planned;
• our accounts opinion and value for money conclusion being unqualified;
• appropriate quality of documentation is provided by the Council;
• there being an effective control environment; and
• prompt responses to our draft reports.

Meeting these assumptions will help ensure the delivery of our audit at the indicative audit fee as set out
in the table below.

Page 212

Agenda Item 10



A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited

Page 2

As we have not yet completed our audit for 2015/16, our audit planning process for 2016/17 will continue
as the year progresses.  We will review and update fees as necessary, within the parameters of our
contract.

Certification fee are no applicable certification arrangements made by the PSAA]

The PSAA has set an indicative certification fee for housing benefit subsidy claim certification work for
each audited benefits authority.  The indicative fee is based on actual 2014/15 benefit certification fees,
and incorporating a 25 per cent reduction.

The basis of the indicative certification fee is on the expectation that an audited body is able to provide
the auditor with complete and materially accurate housing benefit subsidy claim with supporting working
papers, within agreed timeframes.

The indicative certification fee for 2016/17 relates to work on the housing benefit subsidy claim for the
year ended 31 March 2017.  We have set the certification fee at the indicative fee level. We will update
our risk assessment after we complete 2015/16 benefit certification work, and to reflect any further
changes in the certification arrangements.

Summary of fees

Indicative fee
2016/17

£

Planned fee
2015/16

£

Actual fee
2014/15

£

Total Code audit fee 47,129 47,129 62,839
Certification of housing benefit subsidy
claim

12,488 11,616 16,650

[Notes to auditors for completion –
We will separately negotiate and agree fees for any additional work that we may agree to undertake
(outside of the Code of Audit Practice).

Billing

The indicative audit fee will be billed in 4 quarterly instalments of £14,904.

Audit plan

We expect to issue our plan in February 2017.  This will communicate any significant financial statement
risks identified, planned audit procedures to respond to those risks and any changes in fee.  It will also
set out the significant risks identified in relation to the value for money conclusion.  Should we need to
make any significant amendments to the audit fee during the course of the audit, we will discuss this in
the first instance with the Head of Finance and, if necessary, prepare a report outlining the reasons for
the fee change for discussion with the Joint Audit and Governance Committee.

Page 213

Agenda Item 10



A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited

Page 3

Audit team

The key members of the audit team for the 2016/17 financial year are:

Andrew Brittain
Executive Director abrittain@uk.ey.com Tel: 07976 515115

Adam Swain
Manager aswain@uk.ey.com Tel: 07867 152511

We are committed to providing you with a high quality service.  If at any time you would like to discuss
with us how our service to you could be improved, or if you are dissatisfied with the service you are
receiving, please contact me.  If you prefer an alternative route, please contact Steve Varley, our
Managing Partner, 1 More London Place, London, SE1 2AF.  We undertake to look into any complaint
carefully and promptly and to do all we can to explain the position to you.  Should you remain dissatisfied
with any aspect of our service, you may of course take matters up with our professional institute.

Yours sincerely

Andrew Brittain
Executive Director
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

cc. William Jacobs, Head of Finance
Simon Howell, Chair of the Joint Audit and Governance Committee

Page 214

Agenda Item 10



1

Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee

 Report of Head of Finance
Author: Rhona Bellis, Principal Accountant
Telephone: 01235 422497
Textphone: 18001 01235 422497
E-mail: rhona.bellis@southandvale.gov.uk
SODC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Jane Murphy
Telephone: 07970 932054
E-mail: jane.murphy@southoxon.gov.uk
VWHDC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Matthew Barber
Telephone: 07816 481452
E-mail: matthew.barber@whitehorsedc.gov.uk

To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee
DATE: 4 July 2016 by Joint Audit and Governance Committee
            6 Oct  16(S) / 12 Aug 16 (V) by Cabinet
           13 Oct  16 (S) / 12 Oct 16 (V) by Council

Treasury Outturn 2015-16
 
That Joint Audit and Governance Committee:

1.  notes the treasury management outturn report 2015/16, 

2.  is satisfied that the treasury activities are carried out in accordance with the 
treasury management strategy and policy, and

3.  make any comments and recommendations to Cabinets as necessary. 

That Cabinet:

Considers any comments from Joint Audit and Governance Committee and 
recommends Council to:

1. approve the treasury management outturn report for 2015/16;

2. approve the actual 2015/16 prudential indicators within the report.

Page 215

Agenda Item 11

mailto:jane.murphy@southoxon.gov.uk
mailto:matthew.barber@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


2

Purpose of report

1. This report fulfils the legislative requirements to ensure the adequate monitoring 
and reporting of the treasury management activities and that the councils’ 
prudential indicators are reported to the councils at the end of the year.  The report 
provides details of the treasury activities for the financial year 2015/16.

2. This complies with the requirements of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance 
and Accountancy (CIPFA’s) Code of Practice on Treasury Management (revised) 
2009.

Strategic objectives

3. Effective treasury management is required in order to meet our strategic objective 
of managing our business effectively.  Managing the finances of the authorities in 
accordance with the treasury management strategy will help to ensure resources 
are available to deliver our services and meet the councils’ other strategic 
objectives.

Background

4. The councils’ treasury activities are strictly regulated by legislation.  The CIPFA 
Prudential Code and CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice require a 
report to be provided to the councils at the end of the financial year.  

5. This report provides details on the treasury activity and performance for 2015/16 
against prudential indicators and benchmarks set for the year in the 2015/16 
treasury management strategy (TMS), approved by each council in February 2015.  
Each council is required to approve this report.

6. Capita Asset Services are the councils’ retained treasury advisors.  

7. There are three types of investment the performance of which is covered in this 
report

a. True Treasury investments – these investments are primarily for generating 
interest for the councils. Examples of these are loans to banks or other local 
authorities. It also includes investments in property funds.

b. Non-treasury loans – these are loans to third parties, which earn a return, 
but they do not fall under the strict definition of a treasury investment.  

c. Property investments - both councils have investment properties let on 
commercial bases. The primary purpose of holding these assets is for 
investment purposes and they are not part of regeneration schemes.     

8. The councils continue to invest with regard for security, liquidity and yield, in that 
order.  

Page 216

Agenda Item 11



3

Economic conditions and factors effecting investment returns 
during 2015/16

9. UK bank base rates have remained at an historic low of 0.5 per cent since 2009.  
Capita Asset Services provide a regular forecast of interest rates and the latest 
forecast is reproduced in appendix A.  This forecast shows that base rates are 
expected to continue at low levels for the near future. There are a number of 
reasons for this assumption, including the spare capacity in the UK economy 
supressing inflationary forces and uncertainty over the heavily geared Chinese 
economy. 

10.The TMS makes clear that investment priority is given to the security of principal in 
the first instance.  As a result, investments have only been made with 
counterparties of high credit quality and low risk. Since the global banking crisis 
and the downgrading of the credit ratings of many banks, it has become 
increasingly difficult to place money as institutions with high credit ratings have 
been offering lower rates. 

11.Average treasury investment balances were higher for both councils than expected 
in the year.  This arose from a combination of accumulated revenue and capital 
surpluses/slippage and unbudgeted grant receipts. More cash to invest has been a 
factor in the surplus of treasury investment income over budget in the year.  

12. Investments that have helped to keep yields up for both councils include longer 
term investments taken out when rates were higher, the CCLA property fund at 
both councils, and the Unit Trusts at South. 

13.Outlook for 2016/17 – as discussed above, interest rates are expected to remain 
low for the near future.  In order to reduce risk efforts are being made to rebalance 
the treasury portfolio to reduce the value held by building societies.  Other 
counterparties being considered are high rated foreign banks, other councils and 
treasury bills.

Summary of investment activities during 2015/16

14.Prudential limits (security).  During the year none of the prudential code limits set 
each year in the TMS were exceeded. Both councils are required by the Prudential 
Code to report on the limits set each year in the TMS.  The purpose of these limits 
is to ensure that the activity of the treasury function remains within certain 
parameters, thereby mitigating risk and reducing the impact of an adverse 
movement in interest rates.  However, if these limits are set to be too restrictive 
they may impair the opportunities to reduce costs/improve performance.  These 
limits are shown in appendix B.

15.The benchmark for liquidity is the Weighted Average Life (WAL) of treasury 
investments in days, which sets an indicator for how long investments should be 
made. Both councils exceeded the benchmark for WAL but were well within the 
acceptable ranges as set out in the TMS for 2015/16. The benchmarks for liquidity 
are set to ensure that sufficient funds can be accessed at short notice. These are 
set as targets and not definitive limits.    

16.Yield - the performance of the two councils is summarised in the tables below.  

Page 217

Agenda Item 11



4

 

South Treasury 
investments 

£000

Non 
treasury 

loan    
£000

Sub 
Total 
£000

Property 
investment 

£000

Overall 
total £000

1
Average investment 
balance1 117,525 15,000 132,525 8,950 141,475 

2
Budgeted investment 
income2 1,465 623 2,088   

3 Gross investment income 1,826 624 2,450 774 3,224 
4 surplus/(deficit)  (3) - (2) 361 1 362   
5 Rate of return  (3) ÷ (1) 1.55% 4.16% 1.85% 8.65% 2.28%

 

Vale Treasury 
investments 

£000

Property 
investment      

£000

Overall 
total 
£000

1
Average investment 
balance1 42,804 8,210 51,014 

2
Budgeted investment 
income 2 411   

3 Gross investment income 542 542 1,084 
4 surplus/(deficit)  (3) - (2) 131   
5 Rate of return  (3) ÷ (1) 1.27% 6.6% 2.12%

17.Both councils have exceeded their treasury budgeted investment income this year 
in terms of both actual income against budget and rates of return against 
benchmark.  As benchmarks are quite detailed, they are not included above, but 
are included in the appendices that follow this report.

18.Detailed reports on the treasury activities for each council and performance for 
2015/16 against prudential indicators and benchmarks set for the year in the 
2015/16 are contained in appendix C – South Oxfordshire DC and appendix D – 
Vale of White Horse DC.  

19.A detailed list of both councils’ treasury investments as at 31 March 2016 is shown 
at appendix E.

Debt activity during 2015/16

20.During 2015/16, there has not been a need for either council to borrow and both 
councils continue to take a prudent approach to their debt strategy.  The prudential 
indicators and limits set out in appendix B provide the scope and flexibility for the 
Council to borrow in the short-term if such a need arose for cash flow purposes to 
support the council(s) in the achievement of their service objectives.    

Financial implications

21.The treasury investments made in 2015/16 ensured that both councils exceeded 
their budgeted targets for treasury investment income.  Income earned from 
investments is used to support the councils’ medium term financial plans and 

1 For property the balance shown is the fair value of investment properties at 31st March 2016
2 The budget for investment properties is not separately identified in ELP's budget

Page 218

Agenda Item 11



5

contributes to the councils’ balances, or supports the in-year expenditure 
programmes.   

22.Looking forward, income is anticipated to remain stable with any increase due to 
rises in market rates offset by a general reduction in the balances available to 
invest.  This will be reflected in the councils’ 2017/18 budgets and medium term 
financial plans.

Legal implications

23.There are no significant legal implications.  Compliance with the CIPFA Code of 
Practice for Treasury Management in the Public Services and the DCLG Local 
Government Investment Guidance provides assurance that the councils’ 
investments are, and will continue to be, within their legal powers.

Conclusion

24.Despite a difficult operating environment, both councils continued to make 
investments during 2015/16 that maintained security and liquidity whilst providing a 
return that exceeded market benchmarks.    

Background papers

 Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accounting (CIPFA) code of practice 
for treasury management in the public sector.

 DCLG Local Government Investment Guidance
 CIPFA treasury management in the public services code of practice and cross 

sectoral guidance notes
 Treasury Management Strategy 2015/16 – Councils in February 2015.

Appendices

A. Interest rate forecasts
B. Prudential limits 
C. SODC – Treasury activities 2015-2016
D. VWHDC – Treasury activities 2015-2016 
E. Treasury investments as at 31 March 2016
F. Glossary of terms

Page 219

Agenda Item 11



Appendix A
Interest rate forecast as at March 2016 

The table below shows Capita Asset Services’ forecast of the expected movement in 
medium term interest rates:

NOW Jun-16 Sep-16 Dec-16 Mar-17 Jun-17
BANK RATE 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.75 0.75
3 month LIBID 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.60 0.80 0.80
6 month LIBID 0.70 0.70 0.70 0.80 0.90 1.00
12 month LIBID 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.10 1.20 1.30

5 yr PWLB 1.75 1.90 2.00 2.10 2.20 2.30
10 yr PWLB 2.45 2.40 2.50 2.60 2.70 2.80
25 yr PWLB 3.21 3.20 3.30 3.30 3.50 3.50
50 yr PWLB 3.00 3.00 3.10 3.10 3.30 3.30

Sep-17 Dec-17 Mar-18 Jun-18 Sep-18 Dec-18
BANK RATE 1.00 1.00 1.25 1.25 1.50 1.50
3 month LIBID 1.00 1.10 1.30 1.30 1.60 1.80
6 month LIBID 1.20 1.40 1.60 1.70 1.80 2.00
12 month LIBID 1.50 1.70 1.90 2.00 2.10 2.30

5 yr PWLB 2.40 2.60 2.70 2.80 2.90 3.00
10 yr PWLB 2.90 3.00 3.10 3.30 3.40 3.50
25 yr PWLB 3.60 3.60 3.70 3.70 3.70 3.80
50 yr PWLB 3.40 3.40 3.50 3.60 3.60 3.70

Page 220

Agenda Item 11



Appendix B
Prudential limits (indicators) as at March 2016

     
 Vale South

 
Original 
estimate

Actual 
position

Original 
estimate

Actual 
position

 £m £m £m £m
Authorised limit for external debt  
Borrowing 30 0 5 0
Other long term liabilities 5 0 5 0
 35 0 10 0
  
Operational boundary for external debt  
Borrowing 25 0 2 0
Other long term liabilities 0 0 3 0
 25 0 5 0
Investments  
Interest rate exposures  
Limits on fixed interest rates 60 23 100 87
Limits on variable interest rates 30 4 30 18
Maximum principal sums invested > 364 days  
Upper limit for principal sums invested > 364 days 30 6 70 62
Limit to be placed on investments to maturity  

1 - 2 years 0 0 70 7
2 - 5 years 0 0 50 9
5 years + 0 0 50 0

  
Investment portfolio spread  
Supranational bonds 10 0 15 0
Gilts n/a 0 15 0
Equities* 3 0 10 13
Corporate bonds 5 0 10 0
Money market funds 20 1 20 5
Pooled bond fund 0 0 5 0
Property - direct investments n/a 0 30 16
Property related pooled funds 3 2 20 5
  
Cash and certificates of deposit 85% 78%
Debt management account deposit facility 100% 0% 100% 0%
      
*Limit at time of purchase - Equities include 
accumulated dividends

Page 221

Agenda Item 11



Appendix C

1

SODC treasury activities in 2015/16

Council treasury investments as at 31 March 2016

1. The council’s treasury investments, analysed by age as at 31 March 2016 were as 
follows: 

Table 1: maturity structure of investments at 31 March 2016:
    
    
 £000 % holding  
Call 4,203 4%  
Money market fund 4,815 5%  
Cash available within 1 week 9,018 9%  
Up to 4 months 37,500 35%    
5-6 months 6,000 6%  
6 months to 1 year 18,500 17%  
Over 1 year 16,000 15%  
Kaupthing Singer & Friedlander 222 0%  
  
Total cash deposits 87,240 82%  
  
CCLA Property Fund 6,093 6%  
Equities (Unit trusts) 12,774 12%  
Corporate Bonds 295 0%  
  
Total investments 106,402 100%  

2. The majority of the funds invested are held in the form of fixed interest rate and 
term cash deposits. These provide some certainty over the investment return. 

3. The investment profile is organised in order to ensure sufficient liquidity for 
revenue and capital activities, security of investments and to manage risks within 
all treasury management activities.

4. The chart below shows in percentage terms how the portfolio above is spread 
across the investment types:

Page 222

Agenda Item 11



Appendix C

2

Banks - UK Call 
accounts
 £4,203

 4%
Banks - UK Fixed 

Deposits
 £22,222

 21%

Building societies - 
fixed deposits

 £46,000
 43%

Local Authorities
 £10,000

 9%

Money Market Funds
 £4,815

 5%

Unit Trusts
 £12,774

 12%

Corporate Bonds
 £295
 0%

CCLA
 £6,093

 6%

Portfolio analysis £000

Treasury investment income 

5. The total income earned on investments during 2015/16 was £1.9 million, 
compared to the original budget of £1.5 million, as shown in table 2 below:

Table 2:  Investment income earned by investment type
 Interest earned
 Annual Actual Variation
Investment type Budget  
  £000 £000 £000
  
Call accounts 75 34 (41)
Cash deposits < 1yr 404 590 186
Cash deposits > 1yr 264 333 69
MMF 37 48 11
Corporate Bonds 75 65 (10)
Equities 360 456 96
CCLA property fund  250 300 50
  1,465 1,826 361

6. The actual return achieved was £361,000 or 24.6 per cent higher than the original 
budget. This was due to:

 The call accounts earned less interest than forecast because of rates reducing 
on our accounts.

 Interest earned on cash deposits was £255,000 higher than forecast due to an 
increase in interest rates achieved during the first part of the financial year.

 Dividend received on equities was £96,000 higher than forecast due to the 
overall increase in the value during the year.  As our capital investment 
increases, the dividend earned goes up.

 Dividend earned on CCLA was £50,000 higher due to fluctuations in the price 
of units held.  As our capital investment increases, the dividend earned goes 
up.

Page 223

Agenda Item 11



Appendix C

3

7. The actual average rate of return on treasury investments for the year was 1.55 
per cent. 

Performance measurement

8. A list of treasury investments as at 31 March 2016 is shown in appendix E.  All 
investments were with approved counterparties.  The average level of investments 
held was £117 million. Table 3 below shows in summary the performance of the 
council’s treasury investments against the benchmarks set out in the TMS.  These 
benchmarks are used to assess and monitor the council’s treasury investment 
performance for each type of investment.

Table 3: Treasury investment returns achieved against 
benchmark   

  
Benchmark 

Return
Actual 
Return

Growth 
(Below)/above 

Benchmark Benchmarks
  
Bank & Building Society deposits - 
internally managed 0.46% 1.06% 0.60% 3 Month LIBID
Equities (7.33%) (7.79%) (0.46%) FTSE All Shares Index
Property related investments 11.00% 11.30% 0.30% IPD balanced property 

unit trust index
Corporate Bonds 0.50% 11.50% 11.00% BoE base rate
      
*source CCLA Local Authorities Property Fund Report March 
2016

Note: the benchmark return for unit trusts and CCLA includes the movement in 
capital value.  All other benchmarks reflect earnings of treasury investment 
income.  

9. Returns on Bank and building society deposits (Call accounts, money market funds 
and fixed term deposits) are benchmarked against the three-month LIBID rate, 
which was an average of 0.46 per cent for 2015/16.  The performance for the year 
of 1.06 per cent exceeded the benchmark by 0.60 per cent.  

10. It remained difficult to place investments because of continued financial 
uncertainty. Some good rates were achieved which contributed to the increase in 
investment income during the year. 

11.The CCLA property fund principal investment of £5 million (March 2013) increased 
in value during 2015/16 to £6.5 million.  Dividends were received in the year 
totalling £300,000. Both the capital appreciation and the interest earned are 
included in the performance of 11.3% achieved above.  The capital gain is 
however not realised and so for comparison purposes, the actual rate of return is 
interest as a factor of market value of holding being 4.6 per cent. 

Equities 

12.The council’s holdings with the Legal & General (L&G) UK 100 Index Trust were 
purchased in 2000/01 at an initial cost of £10 million.  This is an authorised unit 
trust incorporated in the United Kingdom and regulated by the FSA.  The trust’s 
objective is to track the capital performance of the UK equity market as 

Page 224

Agenda Item 11



Appendix C

4

represented by the FTSE 100 index which represents 98-99 per cent of the UK 
market capitalisation

13.The index shows the performance of all eligible companies listed on the London 
Stock Exchange main market and today covers 630 constituents with a combined 
value of nearly £1.8 trillion.  It is recognised as the main benchmark for unit trusts.  

14.Table 4 below shows the movement in capital value during the year of the holding 
of unit trusts as at 31 March 2015 so the decrease in value of this holding only, can 
be compared to the movement in the stock market as a whole for the year to 31 
March 2016.

Table 4: Unit Trusts - Movement in capital   
 £ £
Market Value as at 31.3.16 12,774,260
Less:  

Dividends received in year
          
275,761  

Accrued dividends
          
180,000  

 
       

(455,761)
  
Market value of Unit trusts which were held at 1.4.15 as 
at 31.3.16 12,318,499
  
Market value as at 1.4.15 13,359,340
  
Decrease in Market Value in year   (1,040,841)

15.The decrease above is compared to the performance of the stock market as a 
whole using the benchmarking in table 5 below.  The funds underperformance of 
0.46 per cent equates to £61,601 in real terms.    

Table 5: Unit Trust performance 1.4.15 - 31.3.16
   
Decrease in FTSE all share was (7.33%)
  
Decrease in Market Value (7.79%)
  
Under-performance (0.46%)
   
 £
Market Value  1.4.15       13,359,340 
  
Less 7.33% FTSE decrease (979,240)
  
Benchmark Market Value at 31.3.16       12,380,100 
  
Market Value (amended at 31.3.16)       12,318,499 
  
Under performance 1.4.15 to 
31.3.16                (61,601)

Page 225

Agenda Item 11



Appendix C

5

16.The performance of the fund over the past few years is summarised in table 5.1 
below.

Table 5.1 Unit Trust past 
performance 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15
  
Performance against FTSE all share % (0.92%) (0.22%) 0.49%
(Under)/Over  

Performance against FTSE all share £0
            

(122,746)
             

(30,492)
             

61,163 
(Under)/Over  
    

The justification for holding this investment is regularly reviewed.  

17.Dividends received of £0.46 million were reinvested to acquire additional fund 
units.    

Corporate Bonds

18.The Council’s corporate bonds are also accounted for in the financial statements at 
fair value.  The opening carrying value for 1 April 2015 was £1.9 million.  The 
closing carrying value at 31 March 2016 was £0.3 million as the RBS corporate 
bond matured and was disposed of during the year.  The carrying values and 
market values for the corporate bonds are shown in table 6 below:

Table 6: Corporate bond values    

 

Original 
cost 

Nominal 
Value 

Carrying 
Value as at 

1.4.15

Carrying 
Value as at 

1.4.16 

Market value 
at 1.4.16

Bonds £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
   
Santander 
11.50%

              
422 

               
270 299 287 287

RBS 9.625%
           

1,973 
            

1,500 1,549 0 0
  

 
           

2,395 
            

1,770 1,848 287 287

19.The weighted average return on the Council’s corporate bonds for 2015/16 was 
11.50 per cent, this significantly exceeded the benchmark return of 0.5 per cent 
(Bank of England base rate).

20.The remaining corporate bond matures in 2017.  Annual interest earned remains 
the same for the whole period a bond is held.  Table 7 below shows the 
redemption yield of the bonds if held until the redemption date.

Table 7: corporate bond redemption yields if held to maturity
  

Bank Interest 
rate %

Original           
cost            
£000

Nominal 
value               
£000

Interest 
to date  
£000

Interest 
due  
£000

Redemption 
value               
£000

Redemption 
date

Redemption 
yield 

Santander 11.50% 422 270 334 93 697 04/01/2017 5.59%
         

Page 226

Agenda Item 11



Appendix C

6

Icelandic bank default – Kaupthing Singer & Friedlander

21.The Council invested £2.5 million in July 2007 with the failed Icelandic bank 
Kaupthing Singer and Friedlander Ltd (KSF).  The Council has received 
£2,203,691 to date in respect of the claim for £2.6 million (£2.5 million investment 
plus interest).  

22.As a wholesale depositor, the Council is treated as an unsecured creditor in the 
administration process and ranks equally with all other unsecured creditors.  The 
administrators intend to make further payments at regular intervals.  The latest 
creditors’ report now indicates that the estimated total amount to be recovered 
should be in the range of 84p to 86.5p in the pound.  In total terms, this would 
mean receiving between £2,209,901 and £2,275,671.  

Non-treasury investment loan

23.During 2013/14, the council entered into a secured loan agreement with SOHA to 
enable them to finance affordable housing schemes.   The Council lent £15 million 
over 20 years at a fixed rate of 4.15%.  Interest is paid quarterly and during 
2015/16, the council received £624,205. 

Land and property

24.The Council holds a portfolio of investment properties, which includes land, depots, 
garages, and shops that are let on a commercial basis.   These assets had a net 
book value of £8.95 million at 31 March 2016 (£9.88 million at 31 March 2015) and 
generated income of £0.77 million in 2015/16 (£0.75 million in 2014/15) giving a 
gross rate of return of 8.65 per cent.  

25.Due to movement in property values and the exclusion of whole life costs, these 
rates of return should not be taken as a direct comparison with the treasury rates.

26.The Economy, Leisure and Property (ELP) team manages investment property, 
ensuring that rent is collected and rent reviews are implemented.  The 
performance of the investment property is assessed annually by ELP to determine 
if assets should be retained or disposed of and agree any actions to improve or 
enhance the value of the investment property holdings.

Liquidity and yield

27.The council uses short-term investments to meet daily cash-flow requirements and 
aims to invest a proportion of the portfolio over longer dated cash deposits where 
possible.  

28.The amount maintained for liquidity was £9 million, which is lower than the 
benchmark.  The benchmark is to be reviewed as it may be set too high. Good 
rates were achieved on short dated investments and funds were placed on the 
market, rather than on call to increase yield.  

29.The actual for the weighted average life of 307 days was within the range set of 0.5 
years to 3 years but above the benchmark level of 182.5 days.  The reason that 
the actual was above the benchmark is that during the year the council lent out 
some longer term investments to spread the investment portfolio and access better 

Page 227

Agenda Item 11



Appendix C

7

returns – like many others, the council is struggling to achieve suitable investment 
returns in the short to medium term investment market.

30.The year-end position against the original benchmarks approved in February 2015 
is shown below:

Page 228

Agenda Item 11



Appendix C

8

Table 9: Risk-liquidity against benchmark   
 2015/16 2015/16
 Benchmark Actual
 £m £m
Bank overdraft* 0 0
Short term deposits - minimum available within 1 
week 10 9
 2015/16 2015/16
 Benchmark Actual
  
Weighted average life (days) 182.5 307.0

*Since 1 April 2014, following the re-tender process for the bank contract, the council 
no longer has an agreed overdraft facility.

Page 229

Agenda Item 11



Appendix D

1

VWHDC detailed treasury performance in 2015/16

Council treasury investments as at 31 March 2016

1. The council’s treasury investments analysed by age as at 31 March 2016 were as 
follows: 

Table 1: maturity structure of investments at 31 March 2016:
    
    
 £000 % holding  
Call 50 0%  
Money market fund 3,770 11%  
Cash available within 1 week 3,820 11%  
Up to 4 months 0 0%    
5-6 months 5,000 14%  
6 months to 1 year 18,000 51%  
Over 1 year 6,000 17%  
  
Total cash deposits 32,820 93%  
  
CCLA Property Fund 2,581 7%  
  
Total investments 35,401 100%  

2. The majority of the funds invested are held in the form of fixed interest rate and 
term cash deposits.  These provide some certainty over the investment return.  

3. The investment profile is organised in order to ensure sufficient liquidity for 
revenue and capital activities, security of investments and to manage risks within 
all treasury management activities.

4. The chart below shows in percentage terms how the portfolio above is spread 
across  investment types:

Page 230

Agenda Item 11



Appendix D

2

Treasury investment income
5. The total interest earned on treasury investments during 2015/16 was £541,892 

compared to the original budget estimate of £411,640 as shown in table 2 below:

Table 2: Investment interest earned by investment type   
  
 Annual Actual Variation
Investment type Budget Interest  
 £000 £000 £000

Call accounts                  40 23 
                

(17)

Cash deposits - less than 1 year                136 235 
                  

99 

Cash deposits - greater than 1 year                104 116 
                  

12 

MMFs                  32 45 
                  

13 

CCLA Property Fund                100 123 
                  

23 
Total Interest  412 542 130 

6. The actual return achieved was £130,000 or 31 per cent higher than the original 
budget. This was due to :

 The maturity period for investments was extended thereby attracting slightly 
higher rates.

 Average balances throughout the year have remained higher than forecast. 

7. The total actual average interest rate achieved for the year was 1.27 per cent.

Performance measurement
8. A list of treasury investments as at 31 March 2016 is shown in appendix E. All 

investments were with approved counterparties. The average level of investments 
held was £42.8 million. Table 3 below shows in summary the performance of the 
council’s treasury investments against the benchmarks set out in the TMS. These 
benchmarks are used to assess and monitor the council’s treasury investment 
performance for each type of investment.

Table 3: Treasury investment returns achieved against benchmark
 Benchmark 

return
Actual 
return

Growth 
(below)/above 

Benchmark

Benchmarks

Internally managed - Bank & 
Building Society deposits

0.46% 0.99% 0.53% 3 month LIBID

Property related funds (CCLA)* 11.00% 11.67% 0.67%

IPD balanced 
property unit trust 

index
 *Source: CCLA Local Authorities Property Fund Report March 2016

9. Returns on bank and building society deposits (internally managed cash deposits) 
are benchmarked against the 3-month LIBID rate, which was an average of 0.46 

Page 231

Agenda Item 11



Appendix D

3

per cent for 2015/16.  The performance for the year of 0.99 per cent exceeded the 
benchmark by 0.53 per cent. 

10. It remained difficult to place investments because of continued financial 
uncertainty. Some good rates were achieved which contributed to the increase in 
investment income during the year.

11.The CCLA property fund principal investment of £2 million (April 2013) increased in 
value during 2015/16 to £2.6 million.  Dividends were received in the year totalling 
£124,944. Both the capital appreciation and the interest earned are included in the 
performance of 11.67% achieved above.  The capital gain is however not realised 
and so for comparison purposes, the actual rate of return is interest as a factor of 
market value of holding being 4.84 per cent. 

Land and Property
12.The council holds a portfolio of investment properties, which includes land, offices 

and shops that are let on a commercial basis.  These assets had a net book value 
of £8.21 million at 31 March 2016 (£20.6 million as at 31 March 2015) and 
generated income of £0.5 million (£1.3 million in 2014/15).  This is equivalent to a 
gross return of 6.6 per cent.

13.Due to movement in property values and the exclusion of whole life costs, these 
rates of return should not be taken as a direct comparison with the treasury rates.

14.The reduction in the investment property holding between 31 March 2015 and 31 
March 2016 includes one disposal (Emcor house) but also the re-classification of 
the property at Botley into other land and buildings due to the regenerative nature 
of the holding. This has had a significant impact on returns this year, as well as 
void periods for old abbey house. 

15.The Economy, Leisure and Property (ELP) team manages investment property, 
ensuring that rent is collected and rent reviews are implemented.  The 
performance of the investment property is assessed annually by ELP to determine 
if assets should be retained or disposed of and agree any actions to improve or 
enhance the value of the investment property holdings.

Liquidity and yield

16.The council uses short-term investments to meet daily cash-flow requirements and 
has also aims to invest a proportion of the portfolio over longer dated cash 
deposits where possible.  

17.The amount maintained for liquidity was £3.8 million and was above the 
benchmark. This was due to the better rates of return on MMFs compared with 
other short-term deposits making it more attractive to hold funds short.

18.The actual for the weighted average life of 431 days was above the range set.  The 
reason that the actual was above the benchmark is that the council has previously 
let some long term investments with another local authority in order to spread the 
investment portfolio and access better returns.

Page 232

Agenda Item 11



Appendix D

4

19.The year-end position against the original benchmarks approved in February 2015 
is shown below:

Table 11: Risk-liquidity against benchmark  
 2015/16 2015/16
 Benchmark Actual
 £m £m
Bank overdraft 0 0
Short term deposits - minimum available within 1 
week 0.5 3.8
 2015/16 2015/16
 Benchmark Actual
Weighted average life (days)  360 431

Page 233

Agenda Item 11



Appendix E

South Oxfordshire District Council treasury investments as at 31 March 
2016

Counterparty
Deposit 

Type Maturity Principal Rate
  Date   
Newcastle Building Society Fixed Apr-16 2,000,000 1.10%
National Counties Building Society Fixed Apr-16 2,000,000 0.96%
Newcastle Building Society Fixed May-16 2,000,000 1.10%
Skipton Building Society Fixed May-16 2,000,000 1.02%
Newcastle Building Society Fixed May-16 2,000,000 1.10%
Principality Building Society Fixed May-16 2,000,000 1.00%
Progressive Building Society Fixed Jun-16 2,000,000 1.00%
Progressive Building Society Fixed Jun-16 1,000,000 0.95%
West Bromwich Building Society Fixed Jun-16 3,000,000 1.01%
Skipton Building Society Fixed Jun-16 1,000,000 1.00%
Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed Jun-16 2,000,000 1.00%
Skipton Building Society Fixed Jun-16 1,500,000 1.00%
West Bromwich Building Society Fixed Jul-16 4,000,000 1.05%
National Counties Building Society Fixed Jul-16 1,000,000 1.00%
Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed Jul-16 2,000,000 1.00%
Progressive Building Society Fixed Jul-16 2,000,000 1.00%
West Bromwich Building Society Fixed Jul-16 1,000,000 1.00%
Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed Jul-16 2,000,000 1.02%
Progressive Building Society Fixed Aug-16 2,000,000 0.98%
Newcastle Building Society Fixed Aug-16 2,000,000 1.10%
Newcastle Building Society Fixed Sep-16 2,000,000 1.10%
Close Brothers Fixed Dec-16 3,000,000 1.05%
National Counties Building Society Fixed Dec-16 1,500,000 0.95%
National Counties Building Society Fixed Dec-16 2,000,000 0.95%
Progressive Building Society Fixed Dec-16 1,000,000 0.90%
Progressive Building Society Fixed Jan-17 2,000,000 0.90%
Skipton Building Society Fixed Mar-17 3,000,000 1.02%
Principality Building Society Fixed Mar-17 2,000,000 1.05%
Close Brothers Fixed Mar-17 2,000,000 1.40%
Blaenau Gwent County Borough Council Fixed Apr-16 3,000,000 1.38%
HSBC Fixed Feb-17 2,000,000 1.90%
Close Brothers Fixed Apr-17 2,000,000 1.41%
Close Brothers Fixed Nov-17 3,000,000 1.60%
Royal Bank of Scotland Fixed Jan-18 2,000,000 1.50%
Royal Bank of Scotland Fixed Feb-19 2,000,000 1.20%
Kingston upon Hull City Council Fixed Aug-20 3,500,000 2.70%
Kingston upon Hull City Council Fixed Aug-20 1,500,000 2.70%
Kingston upon Hull City Council Fixed Jan-21 2,000,000 2.50%
Santander Call 4,105,465 0.40%
Royal Bank of Scotland Call 2,335 0.25%
Royal Bank of Scotland Call 95,643 0.25%
Goldman Sachs MMF 2,310,000 Variable
Deutsche Bank MMF 1,815,000 Variable
Blackrock MMF 690,000 Variable
L&G Equities Unit trust 12,774,260 Variable
Santander Corporate bond 295,461 11.50%
CCLA - property fund Property fund 5,000,000 4.85%
     
GRAND TOTAL   105,088,164  

Page 234

Agenda Item 11



Appendix E

Vale of White Horse District Council treasury investments as at 31 March 
2016
Counterparty Deposit Type Maturity Principal Rate
  Date   
Hull City Council Fixed Jan-21 2,000,000 2.50%
Hull City Council Fixed Aug-20 2,000,000 2.70%
Close Brothers Ltd Fixed Nov-17 2,000,000 1.60%
Lloyds Bank Fixed Mar-17 6,000,000 1.05%
West Bromwich Building Society Fixed Mar-17 2,000,000 1.05%
Principality Building Society Fixed Jan-17 2,000,000 1.05%
Principality Building Society Fixed Dec-16 2,000,000 0.93%
Newcastle Building Society Fixed Dec-16 1,000,000 1.02%
National counties Building Society Fixed Nov-16 1,000,000 0.90%
National Counties Building Society Fixed Nov-16 2,000,000 1.00%
Skipton Building Society Fixed Oct-16 2,000,000 1.02%
Close Brothers Ltd Fixed Sep-16 2,000,000 1.07%
West Bromwich Building Society Fixed Sep-16 2,000,000 1.05%
Saffron Building Society Fixed Aug-16 1,000,000 0.75%
Santander Call 50,000 0.40%
Goldman Sachs MMF 1,770,000 0.44%
LGIM MMF 2,000,000 0.46%
CCLA Property fund 2,000,000 4.65%
GRAND TOTAL   34,820,000  

Note – these do not reconcile to table 1 figures seen in appendix c and d as these are 
original investment levels whereas the values in table 1 are the fair values of 
investments held.

Page 235

Agenda Item 11



Appendix F

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Basis point (BP) 1/100th of 1%, i.e. 0.01%

Base rate Minimum lending rate of a bank or financial institution in the UK.

Benchmark A measure against which the investment policy or performance 
of a fund manager can be compared.

Bill of Exchange A non-interest-bearing written order used primarily in 
international trade that binds one party to pay a fixed sum of 
money to another party at a predetermined future date. 

Callable Deposit A deposit placed with a bank or building society at a set rate for a 
set amount of time.  However, the borrower has the right to repay 
the funds on pre agreed dates, before maturity.  This decision is 
based on how market rates have moved since the deal was 
agreed.  If rates have fallen the likelihood of the deposit being 
repaid rises, as cheaper money can be found by the borrower.

[Cash] Fund 
Management

Fund management is the management of an investment portfolio 
of cash on behalf of a private client or an institution, the receipts 
and distribution of dividends and interest, and all other 
administrative work in connection with the portfolio.

Certificate of 
Deposit (CD)

Evidence of a deposit with a specified bank or building society 
repayable on a fixed date.  They are negotiable instruments and 
have a secondary market; therefore the holder of a CD is able to 
sell it to a third party before the maturity of the CD.

Commercial 
Paper

Short-term obligations with maturities ranging from 2 to 270 days 
issued by banks, corporations and other borrowers.  Such 
instruments are unsecured and usually discounted, although 
some may be interest bearing.

Corporate Bond Strictly speaking, corporate bonds are those issued by 
companies.  However, the term is used to cover all bonds other 
than those issued by governments in their own currencies and 
includes issues by companies, supranational organisations and 
government agencies.

Counterparty Another (or the other) party to an agreement or other market 
contract (e.g. lender/borrower/writer of a swap/etc.)

Credit Default 
Swap (CDS)

A swap designed to transfer the credit exposure of fixed income 
products between parties.  The buyer of a credit swap receives 
credit protection, whereas the seller of the swap guarantees the 
credit worthiness of the product.  By doing this, the risk of default 
is transferred from the holder of the fixed income security to the 
seller of the swap.

Page 236

Agenda Item 11



Appendix F
Capital 
Financing 
Requirement 
(CFR)

The amount the council has to borrow to fund its capital 
commitments.

CIPFA Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy.

CLG [Department for] Communities and Local Government.

Derivative A contract whose value is based on the performance of an 
underlying financial asset, index or other investment, e.g. an 
option is a derivative because its value changes in relation to the 
performance of an underlying stock.

Debt 
Management 
Account Deposit 
Facility (DMADF)

Deposit Account offered by the Debt Management Office, 
guaranteed by the UK government

European 
Central Bank 
(ECB)

European Central Bank – sets the central interest rates in the 
EMU area.  The ECB determines the targets itself for its interest 
rate setting policy; this is the keep inflation within a band of 0 to 
2%.  It does not accept that monetary policy is to be used to 
manage fluctuations in unemployment and growth caused by the 
business cycle.

European and 
Monetary Union 
(EMU)

The Economic and Monetary Union (EMU) is an umbrella 
term for the group of policies aimed at converging the economies 
of all member states of the European Union.

Equity A share in a company with limited liability.  It generally enables 
the holder to share in the profitability of the company through 
dividend payments and capital appreciation.  Equity values can 
decrease as well as increase.

Forward Deal The act of agreeing today to deposit funds with an institution for 
an agreed time limit, on an agreed future date, at an agreed rate.

Forward 
Deposits

Same as forward dealing (above).

Fiscal Policy The government policy on taxation and welfare payments.

GDP Gross Domestic Product.

[UK] Gilt Registered UK government securities giving the investor an 
absolute commitment from the government to honour the debt 
that those securities represent.

LIBID London inter-bank bid rate

LIBOR London inter-bank offered rate.   

Page 237

Agenda Item 11



Appendix F
Money Market 
Fund

A well rated, highly diversified pooled investment vehicle whose 
assets mainly comprise of short-term instruments.  It is very 
similar to a unit trust, however in a MMF.

Monetary Policy 
Committee 
(MPC)

Government body that sets the bank rate (commonly referred to 
as being base rate).  Their primary target is to keep inflation 
within plus or minus 1% of a central target of 2.5% in two years 
time from the date of the monthly meeting of the committee.  
Their secondary target is to support the government in 
maintaining high and stable levels of growth and employment.

Other Bond 
Funds

Pooled funds investing in a wide range of bonds.

PWLB Public Works Loan Board.

QE Quantitative Easing.

Retail Price 
Index

Measurement of the monthly change in the average level of 
prices at the retail level weighted by the average expenditure 
pattern of the average person.

Sovereign Issues 
(excl UK Gilts)

Bonds issued or guaranteed by nation states, but excluding UK 
government bonds.

Supranational 
Bonds

Bonds issued by supranational bodies, e.g. European Investment 
Bank.  The bonds – also known as Multilateral Development 
Bank bonds – are generally AAA rated and behave similarly to 
gilts, but pay a higher yield (“spread”) given their relative 
illiquidity when compared with gilts.

Treasury Bill Treasury bills are short-term debt instruments issued by the UK 
or other governments.  They provide a return to the investor by 
virtue of being issued at a discount to their final redemption 
value.

Page 238

Agenda Item 11



Audit and governance
work programme

containing Audit and Governance Committee work to 
be undertaken 

31 JULY 2016- 31 MARCH 2017

      

The audit and governance work programme belongs to the councils’ Joint Audit and Governance Committee and sets out a schedule of work 
for the period shown above.  It is a rolling plan, subject to change at each Committee meeting; however, the councils may allocate additional 
work.  

You can make representations on any issue below.  Please contact the officer shown below by 10am on the day the committee is due to 
meet.  

Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes
Internal audit activity 
report – second 
quarter 2016/17

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 26 
September 
2016

Adrianna 
Partridge 
Email: 
adrianna.partridg
e@southandvale.
gov.uk

The council audits its 
services through the 
internal audit service in 
line with the approved 
internal audit plan 
2016/17.

To summarise the 
outcomes of recent 
internal audit activity 
for the committee to 
consider.  The 
committee is asked to 
review the report and 
main issues arising, 
and seek assurance 
that action has been or 
will be taken where 
necessary.

This is a recurring 
agenda item, and is 
updated at each 
meeting.  

P
age 239

A
genda Item

 12

mailto:adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk


Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes

South and Vale Audit and Governance Work Programme
2

Internal audit 
management report - 
second quarter 
2016/17

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 26 
September 
2016

Adrianna 
Partridge 
Email: 
adrianna.partridg
e@southandvale.
gov.uk

The committee monitors 
the effectiveness of 
internal audit each 
quarter against the 
approved audit plan

To report on 
management issues, 
summarise the first 
quarter progress of the 
internal audit team 
against the 2016/17 
audit plan, and 
summarise the 
priorities and planned 
audit work for quarter 
three.

This is a recurring 
agenda item, and is 
updated at each 
meeting.  

External auditor's 
annual governance 
reports 2015/16

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 26 
September 
2016

William Jacobs, 
Email: 
william.jacobs@s
outhandvale.gov.
uk

The external auditor 
publishes an annual 
governance report on 
the councils’ activities.

To consider the 
external auditor's 
annual governance 
reports 2015/16

Statements of 
accounts 2015/16

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 26 
September  
2016

Simon Hewings 
simon.hewings@
southandvale.gov
.uk

The councils must 
produce statements of 
accounts each year.

To approve the 
statements of accounts 
2015/16

Annual governance 
statements 2015/16

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 26 
September 
2016

Ron Schrieber 
Email: 
ron.schrieber@s
outhandvale.gov.
uk

The councils are 
required to publish 
annual governance 
statements

To approve the annual 
governance 
statements

P
age 240

A
genda Item

 12

mailto:adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:ron.schrieber@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:ron.schrieber@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:ron.schrieber@southandvale.gov.uk


Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes

South and Vale Audit and Governance Work Programme
3

Letters of 
representation to the 
council's external 
auditor

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 26 
September 
2016

William Jacobs, 
Email: 
william.jacobs@s
outhandvale.gov.
uk

The committee's co-
chairmen and the 
section 151 officer are 
required to sign a 'letter 
of representation' to the 
external auditor, as part 
of the process in 
completing the 
statement of accounts.

To consider and agree 
the letters of 
representation

Treasury 
management mid-
year monitoring 
2016/17

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 23 
January 2017

Simon Hewings 
simon.hewings@
southandvale.gov
.uk

The committee is 
responsible for the 
scrutiny of the councils’ 
treasury management 
activity.

To review the councils’ 
treasury management 
activities for the first 
six months of the 
2016/17 financial year.
 

Treasury 
management 
strategies 2016/17

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 23 
January 2017

Simon Hewings 
simon.hewings@
southandvale.gov
.uk

The committee is 
responsible for the 
scrutiny of the councils’ 
treasury management 
activity and to propose a 
strategies to Councils, 
via Cabinets, for the 
management of this 
function in the 
forthcoming year.

To scrutinise the 
treasury management 
strategies and policies 
and if required, make 
recommendations for 
amendment to 
Cabinets
 

External auditor's 
annual audit letter

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 23 
January 2017

William Jacobs, 
Email: 
william.jacobs@s
outhandvale.gov.
uk

The external auditor, 
Ernst & Young, is 
responsible for auditing 
the councils@ business.

To consider the 
external auditor's 
annual audit letter 
2016/17
.
 

P
age 241

A
genda Item

 12

mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk


Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes

South and Vale Audit and Governance Work Programme
4

Internal audit plan 
2017/18

Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 
20 March 2017

Adrianna 
Partridge Email: 
adrianna.partridg
e@southandvale.
gov.uk

The council audits its 
services through the 
internal audit service.

To approve the internal 
audit plan for 2017/18

External auditor's 
report

Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 20 
March 2017

William Jacobs, 
Email: 
william.jacobs@s
outhandvale.gov.
uk

The external auditor to 
bring a progress report

P
age 242

A
genda Item

 12

mailto:adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk


Document is Restricted

Page 243

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 245

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	4 Review of complaints received during 2015/16
	5 Impact of the corporate services outsourcing and 5 councils partnership on the internal control environment
	Joint audit cttee 040716 int control environment annex 1
	CSP Risk Register

	6 Agresso control environment
	7 Internal audit activity report - first quarter 2016/17
	IA Activity Overdue Recs Report

	8 Internal audit management report - first quarter 2016/17
	IA Mgt Report App 1a Planned Audits.
	IA Mgt Report App1b Follow Up Audits
	IA Mgt Report App1c Unplanned Audits
	IA Mgt Report App2 Audit Plan Schedule

	9 Internal audit annual report 2015/16
	IA Annual Report App1a Planned Audits
	IA Annual Report App1b Follow Up Audits
	IA Annual Report App1c Unplanned Audits
	IA Annual Audit Plan Appendix 2

	10 External auditor's fees letters
	16 VOWH Audit and Certification Fee Letter 2016-17

	11 Treasury outturn 2015-16
	Treasury Outturn Appendix A - Interest rate forecasts 2015-2016
	Treasury Outturn Appendix B - Prudential Limits 2015-2016
	Treasury Outturn Appendix C -  South Treasury activities 2015-2016
	Treasury Outturn Appendix D -  Vale Treasury activities 2015-2016
	Treasury Outturn Appendix E - Treasury Investments as at 31 March 2016
	Treasury Outturn Appendix F - Glossary of terms

	12 Audit and governance work programme
	13 Internal audit report - planning application
	INV VWHDC Follow Up Report 34 North Hinksey Lane 1617 (1)




